Internet Usage Among University Students in Relation to their Life Style, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research

Thesis

Submitted to University of Kashmir for the Award of the Degree of DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY (Ph.D.) in EDUCATION

Syed Noor-ul-Amin (M. A, M. Phil, UGC NET) Investigator Dr. Mohammad Iqbal Mattoo Supervisor



Faculty of Education

UNIVERSITY OF KASHMIR, SRINAGAR HAZRATBAL, J&K-6 2015 Internet Usage Among University Students in Relation to their Life Style, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research

Thesis

Submitted to University of Kashmir for the Award of the Degree of DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY (Ph.D.) in EDUCATION

Syed Noor-ul-Amin (M. A, M. Phil, UGC NET) Investigator Dr. Mohammad Iqbal Mattoo Supervisor

Prof. Mahmood Ahmad Khan Dean and Head



Faculty of Education

UNIVERSITY OF KASHMIR, SRINAGAR HAZRATBAL, J&K-6 2015



Faculty of Education University of Kashmir, Srinagar Hazratbal - 6

(dr. mohammad Iqbal mattoo) associate professor

No. _____

Date:_____

Certificate

This is to certify that the thesis entitled "Internet Usage among University Students in Relation to their Life Style, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research", is the record of the original work of Syed Noor-ul-Amin for the award of the Doctor of Philosophy in Education, carried out under my guidance and supervision. The matter reported in the thesis has not been submitted for the award of any other degree of any University.

It is further certified that he has fulfilled all the statutory requirements for the submission of this thesis.

Dr. Mohammad Iqbal Mattoo Supervisor

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

To the Almighty Allah (the most merciful) for giving me the power to believe in myself and to pursue my dreams. I would never have completed the present investigation without HIS faith and I wish to express my warmest thanks to HIM for letting me to complete this research work.

It is a matter of great satisfaction that the investigator finished this research work in due course of time with keen sense of duty and sincerity. But at this juncture, it is the pious duty to express my feelings of gratitude to those who have motivated, helped and co-operated me. I am enough fortunate to have an opportunity to work under the inspired guidance of my research supervisor and mentor **Dr. Mohammad Iqbal Mattoo**, (Associate Professor, Department of Education, K.U). Without his affectionate and constant encouragement, the present work could not have been possible. He taught me, both consciously and unconsciously, how a good research is carried out. His wide knowledge and logical way of thinking have been of great value to me. The investigator owes his contribution-time, ideas and suggestions - to make the present research experience as productive and stimulating. The joy and enthusiasm of my supervisor for the research was praiseworthy and motivational to me, even during the tough times in the Ph.D. pursuit. Thank you for your advice, guidance.

I would like to express my record full thanks to my esteemed and worthy teacher Prof. Mahmood Ahmad Khan, (Dean and Head, Faculty of Education, KU), for being the guiding light of inspiration to me during my academic requirements. I extend my deep sense of gratitude to him for his timely valuable advices.

With great pleasure I acknowledge my indebtedness and heartfelt thanks to my respected Faculty members of Department of Education K.U- Dr. Mohammad Yousf Ganie, Dr. Tasleema Jan, Dr. Aamina Parveen, Dr. Najmah Peerzada- for their guidance and kind cooperation whenever, it was required during the completion of the present research.

Thank must go to my colleagues and friends- Mr. Feroze Ahmad Koul, Mr. Javaid Ahmad Puju, Dr. Firdous Ahmad Sofal, Ms.Bilquees Aslam, Mr. Taufeeq Ahamad Akmali, Mr. Ashiq Ahmad Thakur, Dr. Syed Ishfaq and Mr. Rizwan Roomifor their step after step support in the completion of this research work. Without their positive attitude, the research journey would have seemed a lot lonelier and more insurmountable.

The investigator offers his heartfelt thanks to all his research mates- Akeel Ahamad Pandit, Kawsar Hafeez, Riyaz Ahmad Shah, Tariq Ahmad Wani, Gowher Ahmad Bhat, Dilruba Syed - for accompanying and making the present research journey an enjoyable, easy and memorable experience. My heartfelt appreciations must go Mr. Habibullah Shah (Assistant Professor Distance Education) for his timely help in the completion of this present research pursuit. The team of scholars (always present in my supervisors chamber)–Shahida Parveen, Mrs. Nazima, Irshsd Ahmad Kumar, Moomin Jan, Hakeem Sayar Ahmad Shah, Saima Gazanfar, Hafeezullah Quarishi and Ab. Waheed Shah- are warmly acknowledged much beyond my vocabulary for their support and feedback during this research voyage.

I would also like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to Mr.Sunhair Quayoom and Mr.Parvaiz Amin Mir, who gave me strength to fulfill their earnest desire to do something special in the field of education.

I also feel highly indebted to my teachers, whose blessings have always been a source of inspiration to me. I express my appreciation to all the known and unknown persons and personalities, authors and authorities whose ideas, research work and actual quotations have been included in the present work.

Warm acknowledgement with appreciation is extended for the moral support provided by the staff members of the faculty - Mr. Mohammad Amin Dar, Dr. Shabir Ahmad, Dr. Gulshan Wani, Mr. Manzoor Ahmad, Dr. Kounsar, Ms. Asiya Maqbool, and Jameel Amin Mir- for their care and concern.

Additionally, I would like to thank Deans, Heads and Faculty members of various departments of University of Kashmir who permitted me to collect my research data from their respective departments. I also extend special thanks to all those participants who were the part of the investigation for their co-operation and response.

Sincere thanks are due to Library and non-teaching staff- Mr. M. Abbas, Mr. Fayaz Ahmad, Mr. Shabir Ahmad, Mr. Magray, Mr. Jan Shahib and Tanveera Jee for giving their sincere and warm cooperation throughout the course of study. I owe my innumerable thanks to my loving parents and my family, especially my Dad and Mom, Syed Gh. Mohammad and Syed Aamina, who have always been a vessel of support and encouragement throughout my academic pursuits. I would like to thank my brother, Syed Murtaza for all his affection, patience and support. I am thankful for enduring love and support of my sister, Tabasum. Thank you for your support, encouragement and for always being confident in my abilities. I also extend heartfelt gratitude to my fiance, Aqsa Amin, for her unconditional encouragement, support, love, patience, and belief in me and my dreams. In addition to having faith in me, she has taught me to have faith in myself, for which I could not be more grateful. Thank you for all you have done to make my life easier as I worked through this research.

Finally, I would like to express my particular appreciation to Mr. Showket Ahmad (Computer Inn), who efficiently brought this thesis in its present printed form well in time.

Syed Noor-ul-Amin

Acronyms

i) <u>Used in Tabular Work</u>

ADRRA	Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety
AGARRP	Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process
AINUs	Arts stream Internet Non-users
AIUs	Arts stream Internet-users
AOLS	Academic Oriented Lifestyle
ARRPSL	Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life
ASTR	Attitude Scale towards Research
AURPC	Attitude towards Usefulness of Research in Professional Career
COLS	Career Oriented Lifestyle
FINUs	Female Internet Non-users
FIUs	Female Internet-users
FOLS	Family Oriented lifestyle
HOLS	Health Oriented Lifestyle
INUs	Internet Non-users
IUs	Internet-users
КМО	Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin Measure of Sampling Adequacy
LSS	Lifestyle Scale
M INUs	Male Internet Non-users
M IUs	Male Internet-users
SINUs	Science Stream Internet Non-users
SIUs	Science Stream Internet-users
SOLS	Social Oriented lifestyle
SS IUs	Social Science Stream Internet-users
SSINUs	Social Science Stream Internet Non-users
TOLS	Trend Oriented lifestyle
ii) <u>Used in Text</u>	
ARPANET	Advanced Research Projects Agency Network
ERNET	Educational and Research Network

ERNET	Educational and Research Network
ICT	Information and Communication Technology
INTERNET	International Network
ISPs	Internet Service Providers
NICNET	National Informatics Centre Network
NSFNET	National Science Foundation Network
STPI	Software Technology Park Scheme
WWW	World Wide Web

Contents

CHAPTER	DESCRIPTION	PAGE NO.S
	Certificate	
	Acknowledgements	
	Acronyms	
	Contents	
	List of tables	
	List of figures	
	Abstract	i-xvi
Ι	INTRODUCTION	1-34
	 Significance of the Study 	25-28
	 Statement of the Problem 	28
	 Objectives of the Study 	28
	✤ Hypotheses	28-29
	 Operational Definitions of Variables 	29-34
	 Delimitations 	34
II	REVIEW OF THE RELATED LITERATURE	35-96
	2.1 Studies on Internet-users and Internet Non-users	37-43
	2.2 Studies on Internet Usage and -	
	A) Life Style	43-54
	B) Attitude Towards Research	54-60
	C) Academic Achievement	60-68
	D) Gender	68-73
	2.3 Studies on Related Variables	73-82
	✤ Overview	82-95
	✤ Conclusion	96
III	RESEARCH METHODOLOGY AND PROCEDURE	97-114
	✤ Sample	99-101
	 Selection and Description of Tools 	102-113
	 Procedure 	113-114
	 Statistical Treatment 	114
IV	STATISTICAL TREATMENT OF THE DATA	115-169
	Section A: Descriptive Analysis	122-142
	A1: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Overall Groups)	122-124

	A2: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Internet-users and Non-users)	125-127
	A3: Sub-Group Analysis Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Gender-wise & Faculty-wise)	128-142
	Section B: Comparative Analysis	143-159
	B1: Comparison between Internet-users and Non- users on: a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research	143-145
	B2: Comparison between Internet-users and Non- users (Gender wise) on: a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research	146-151
	B3: Comparison between Internet-users and Non- users (Faculty Wise) on: a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research	152-159
	Section C: Factor Analysis	160-169
	C1: Principle component Factor Analysis of Internet- users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research.	160-164
	C2: Principle component Factor Analysis of Internet Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research	165-169
V	INTERPRETATION AND DISCUSSION OF THE RESULTS	170-235
VI	CONCLUSIONS AND SUGGESTIONS	236-249
	✤ Conclusions	236-245
	 Suggestions for Future Research 	245-246
	 Practical Implications 	247-249
	BIBLIOGRAPHY	250-314
APPEN	DICES	I-IX
	 A Self constructed Information blank 	Ι
	 Lifestyle Scale by S. K. Bawa and S. Kaur (LSS-BK, 2010) 	II-V
	Attitude Scale towards Research by Vishal Sood and Y. K. Sharma (ASTR-SVSY, 2012)	VI-IX

List of Tables

Table No.	Title	Page No.s
4.00	Showing the Percent-wise Distribution of the overall Sample on Different Levels of Lifestyle (N=600)	122
4.01	Showing the Percent-wise Distribution of the overall Sample on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=600)	123
4.02	Showing the Percent-wise Distribution of overall sample on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=600)	124
4.03	Showing the Percent-wise details of Internet-users and Non- users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=300 each)	125
4.04	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=300 each)	126
4.05	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=300 each)	127
4.06	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)	128
4.07	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)	129
4.08	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=150 each)	130
4.09	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=150 each)	131
4.10	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)	132
4.11	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)	133
4.12	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (Science Stream; N=100 each)	134

4.13	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)	135
4.14	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (Arts Stream; N=100 each)	136
4.15	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (Science Stream; N=100 each)	137
4.16	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (Social Science Stream N=100 each)	138
4.17	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (Arts Stream: N=100 each)	139
4.18	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (Science Stream: N=100 each)	140
4.19	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research	141
4.20	(Social Science Stream; N=100 each) Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (Arts Stream: N=100 each)	142
4.21	Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Lifestyle	143
4.22	Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement (N=300 each)	144
4.23	Showing the Significance difference between the Mean Scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Attitude towards Research (N=300 each)	145
4.24	Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores of Male and Female Internet-users on Lifestyle (N=150 each)	146
4.25	Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Lifestyle (N=150 each)	147

- 4.26 Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean 148 Scores of Male and Female Internet-users on Academic Achievement (N=150 each)
- 4.27 Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean 149 Scores of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement (N=150 each)
- **4.28** Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean **150** Scores of Male and Female Internet-users on Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)
- 4.29 Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean 151 Scores of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)
- **4.30** Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean **152** Scores of Interne-users and Non-users on lifestyle (Science Stream; N=100 each)
- **4.31** Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean **153** Scores of Internet-users and Non-users on lifestyle (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)
- **4.32** Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean **154** Scores of Internet-users and Non-users on lifestyle (Arts Stream; N=100 each)
- **4.33** Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean **155** Scores of Internet-users and Non-users on Academic Achievement (Stream wise Comparison; N=100 each)
- 4.34 Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean 157 Scores of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research (Science Stream; N=100 each)
- 4.35 Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean 158
 Scores of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards
 Research (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)
- 4.36 Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean 159 Scores of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research (Arts Stream; N=100 each)
- **4.37** KMO measure of sampling adequacy and Bartlett's test of **160** Sphericity (Group Internet Non-users)
- 4.38 Showing the Total Variance Explained of Internet-users on 160 various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

4.39	Showing the Un-rotated and Rotated Factor Matrix of Internet-	161
	users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards	
	Research (N=300)	
1 10		1()

- 4.40 Showing the Rotated Factor Matrix with Blocked out Values 162 (Extraction Method) of Internet-users on various dimensions of lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)
- **4.41** KMO measure of sampling adequacy and Bartlett's test of **165** Sphericity (Group Internet Non-users)
- 4.42 Showing the Total Variance Explained of Internet Non-users 165 on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)
- 4.43 Showing the Un-rotated and Rotated Factor Matrix of Internet 166 Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)
- 4.44 Showing the Rotated Factor Matrix with Blocked out Values 167 (Extraction Method) of Internet Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

List of Figures

Fig. No.s	Title	Page No.s
1	Showing the Overall Percent-wise of total Sample on Different Levels of Lifestyle (N=600)	122
2	Showing the overall Percent-wise Status of total Sample on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=600)	123
3	Showing the overall Percent-wise Status of total Sample on different levels of Attitude towards Research of (N=600)	124
4	Showing the Percent-wise comparison of Internet-users and Non-user on different levels of Lifestyle (N=300 each)	125
5	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=300 each)	126
6	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=300 each)	127
7	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)	128
8	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)	129
9	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=150 each)	130
10	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=150 each)	131
11	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)	132
12	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)	133
13	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Science Stream Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=100 each)	134

14	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)	135
15	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison Arts stream Internet- users and Non-users on different Levels of Lifestyle (N=100 each)	136
16	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Science stream Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=100 each)	137
17	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Social science stream Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=100 each)	138
18	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Arts stream Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=100 each)	139
19	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Science stream Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=100 each)	140
20	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Social science stream Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=100 each)	141
21	Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users (Arts Stream) on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=100 each)	142
22	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle (N=300 each)	143
23	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement (N=300 each)	144
24	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Attitude towards Research (N=300 each)	145
25	Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet- users on Lifestyle (N=150 each)	146
26	Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet- users on Lifestyle (N=150each)	147
27	Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet- users on Academic Achievement (N=150 each)	148
28	Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement (N=150 each)	149
29	Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet- users on Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)	150

30	Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)	151
31	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on Lifestyle (Science Stream; N=100 each)	152
32	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on lifestyle (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)	153
33	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on Lifestyle (Arts Stream; N=100 each)	154
34	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on Academic Achievement (Science Stream; N=100 each)	155
35	Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores of Internet-users and Non-users on Academic Achievement (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)	156
36	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on Academic Achievement Arts stream; N=100 each)	156
37	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on Attitude towards Research (Science Stream; N=100 each)	157
38	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on Attitude towards Research (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)	158
39	Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non- users on Attitude towards Research (Arts Stream; N=100 each)	159
40	Showing the Scree Plot Graph which Represents the Eigenvalues against all the Factors of Internet-users (N=300)	161
41	Showing the Results of the Total Variance Explained by the extracted Factors and the Analysis of each of the 3 Factors Clusters of Variables Proffers a recipe for Naming the Factors of Internet-users (N=300)	163
42	Showing a Clear Pattern of the Loadings, with all items Identified with 3 Factors of Internet-users (N=300)	164
43	Showing the Scree Plot Graph which Represents the Eigenvalues against all the Factors of Internet Non-users (N=300)	166
44	Showing the results of the Total Variance Explained by the extracted Factors and the analysis of each of the 3 Factors clusters of variables proffers a recipe for naming the Factors of Internet Non-users (N=300)	168
45	Showing a clear pattern of the loadings, with all items identified with 3 Factors of Internet Non-users (N=300)	169

information and communication technology is the latest in a series of technological advances that have changed the world in varied ways. The last two decades have noticed a techno-revolution caused by the rapid development of Information and Communication Technology (ICT). It is hard to imagine the future that is not supported, in one way or other, by Information and Communication Technology (ICT). An information world, called the cyber world, comes into being between the social and physical worlds. Looking at the current widespread diffusion and the use of ICT in modern societies, especially by the younger ones (called as *digital generation*) affects their way of life. ICTs in general and the Internet in particular is one of the most important and complex innovations of mankind. As we approaching a new millennium, the Internet has revolutionised our: society, economy, education as well as technological system. If there were a vote for the thing which very much influenced people's lives in the 21st century, it is none other than Internet. Most people are seen to accept Internet as a revolutionary medium which has changed the lifestyle of present generation. Gates (2000) asserted that Internet has significantly influenced the lifestyle of each one and mostly the student community. Internet is acknowledged globally as a technology dominated resource in education, social interaction and entertainment (Salako & Tiamiyu, 2007).

Michael Hart's (1995) quoted as:

Internet, "for the first time we actually have the opportunity for a whole world's population to share not only air or water, but also to share the world of ideas, of art or of music and other sounds...anything that can be digitalized."



The advancement of Information and communication technology shows increasingly a visible effect on education (Vandana & Rishu, 2011). The widespread availability of resources on the Internet and their potential used in educational settings has driven much debate in its use. It has made a considerable and dramatic impact on the contemporary educational practice (Chou, et al., 2002). Seeking information on Internet has become the first choice option for many teaming millions, and students seem to be no exception (Cole *et al.*, 2003). In the present era, students integrate technology into all aspects of their life for varied purposes viz. academics, research, social networking and entertainment.

Internet usage among students is negatively reported with academic activities (Aslanidou & Menexes, 2008; Tadsad, 2003; Shen & Shakir, 2009). However, other findings are contrary. Internet among students is related to their studies (Omotayo, 2006), mainly for educational purposes (Ritter & Lemke, 2000) rather than for entertainment (Sam & Nordin, 2005). Some students strongly prefer the use of Internet as their primary information source (Gibson & Mazur, 2001). They favour the Web over traditional print materials and feel that information can be located much faster via Internet (Vansickle, 2002). Students consider Internet as easier than written material in books (Edmunds & Conole, 2010; Wallace, 2004). It has increasingly influenced the information seeking behaviour of students in higher education over the past decade. Turner & Farmer, (2008) reported that surfing the Internet for course material had positive effect on the intellectual development, vocational preparation and personal development of college and university students. The mass availability of information on the web has seen significant changes in this electronic era. It accelerates university students' learning and democratizes access to educational opportunities, and support interactivity, interaction, and collaboration (Oliver, 2006). Studies carried on: effect of Internet usage on educational performance (Siomos et al 2008; Ghassemzadeh et al. 2008; Del Castillo et al. 2008; Recabarren et al. 2008; Tahiroglu et al. 2008). Relationship between Internet use and educational performance (Sahin & Ercan 2010). Internet usage and access to academic and entertainment networking (Tella, 2007; Anunobi, 2006; Papastergious & Solomonidou, 2005) revealed that Internet in relation to above variables go together.



Internet as a social technology gives rise to interpersonal relationships (Merkle 2000). Some studies found Internet as a contributory to psychological well-being (Weiser, 2002, and Wellman et al., 2001). Internet linking attitude has been observed with higher increase to social support (LaRose et al., 2001). Mitchell et al. (2009), revealed Internet as a valuable means to health promotion. Lewis et al. (2009) refer interactive health communication applications as effective for the improved and healthier lifestyle. On the other hand, some studies indicated that Internet use among students undermines well-being because: online connections are weaker than real-life connections; online connections are often used to replace real-life relationships and activities (Nie, 2001 & Weiser, 2001). Some even observe Internet usage as a causal factor for psychological harm among youth (Eastin & LaRose, 2000). Other studies suggested Internet with direct negative effects (Choi, 2007; Sirgy, Lee, & Bae, 2006), such as social isolation, depression, loneliness and difficulties with time management. Internet use has been found associated with negative personal and social developmental outcomes (Lloyd et al. 2007; Morgan & Cotton, 2003; Nalwa & Anand 2003; Hilly us, & Erbring, 2002).

Gender differences in Internet usage are other attractive concerns of the research studies. No gender variation in Internet usage has been confirmed (Jackson *et al.* 2001; Odell, Korgen *et al.* 2000). Both girls and boys are equally observed comfortable with positive feelings toward the Internet. Gender does not provide consistent evidence for the presence or otherwise in Internet usage (Durndell & Haag 2002; Jackson *et al.* 2001, Schumacher *et al.* 2001; Odell *et al.* 2000, Nachmias *et al.* 2000). On the other hand, (Mishra, Yadav & Bisht 2005; Ono & Zovodny 2003; Weiser 2000; Morahan-Martin & Schumacher 2000; Nachmias, Mioduser & Shemla 2000; Madell & Sherman *et al.* 2000; Shashaani 1997) reported a significant gender difference in Internet usage. Various studies have documented that boys use Internet more frequently with longer time consumption than girls (Gross, 2004; Haythronthwaite & Wellman, 2002; Subrahmanyam, Greenfield, Kraut, & Gross, 2001). Liu & Huang (2008) revealed that male/female differences in web searching materials and female readers have been found with a strong preference for paper as a reading medium than male readers. However, male readers have experienced a greater



sense of satisfaction to online reading. Researchers like (Chen & Peng, 2008; Lin & Yu, 2008; Dholakia, 2006; Hupfer & Detlor 2006; Joiner et al. 2005; Madden, & Hitlin, 2005; Garbarino & Strahilevitz's 2004; Griffiths, Davies, & Chappell, 2004; Jennings & Wartella, 2004; Korgaonkar, 2003; Jackson et al., 2001; Lenhart, Subrahmanyam, et al. 2001; Weiser 2000; Sherman et al. 2000; Odell et al. 2000; Wolin & Odell et al., 2000; Boneva, Kraut, & Frohlich 2001; Odell et al., 2000; Sherman *et al.*, 2000) reported that male and female differences in web searching appear to persist such as women are more into e-mail, chat, maintaining social values, search reference materials and educational purposes. Whereas, men tend to focus on: information about personal interests and entertainment, leisure, visiting sex sites, researching for purchases, checking the news, playing games, and listening to and copying music. Female students used the Internet for communicative and academic purposes more than male counterparts and male students used the Internet for a wider variety of leisure activities than female counterparts (Jones et al. 2009 & Liu & Huang 2008). Most studies indicated male domination in terms of Internet usage and attitude towards the Internet; some studies showed otherwise. So, with the increased role of modern technology in day to day lives of the youth and in the light of the inconsistent findings referred above further exploration is required in this direction.

Significance of the Study

Internet has been used for the last two decades in our society and we have a generation who have grown up with its routine usage. However, since its inception, Internet has not only brought convenience to mankind, but has given birth to a great deal of potential problems too. Despite the positive effects of Internet, there is growing literature on the negative effects of its use. Hicks (2002) indicated that Internet is a *double-edged sword*. Although some accept Internet as a panacea yet for others it appears in its negative growth. Researchers report that a group of students is interested in and competent with technology and a group of students' is not interested in and not very competent with technology (Vogel; Heinz 2000; & Minks 2000). Some students prefer to traditional print materials, despite the increasing prevalence of electronic sources (High& Beheshti, 2000).

Every year thousands of young students register themselves in Universities and all of them do not have the necessary skills to work with ICT resources available



to them. The gap in Internet usage is labelled as 'the *digital divide*' and it has been the subject of many scholarly debates. Studies conveyed that not all students are as inclined to integrate Internet use into their routine life; as is usually the case in educational debate, blame for this disparity has been most frequently attributed to deficits of skills, motivation and know-how etc on the part of students. Researchers have reasoned that some university students' (non) engagement with the Internet is influenced by perceptions of usefulness, ease-of-use and other psychological attitudes towards both technology and learning (Cheung and Huang, 2005; Hong *et al.*, 2003; Joiner *et al.*, 2006). Users and Non-users have different ideas of what the online world is like. Peter & Valkenburg (2004) advocate a 'digital differentiation' approach to replace that of the digital divide, because they believe the former attributes greater importance to the characteristics of the Internet itself, rather than the characteristics of the actual users. Brotcorne (2005) reported that students' use or not to use the Internet is not always due to a disadvantage but 'more due to matters of "*digital choice*" rather than "*digital divide*".

There is a research spanning several domains, disciplines, and approaches that has investigated' use of technology, but no work has focused on studying the influence of Use and Non-use of Internet on university students. With the surge in the use of information and communication technology, users and non-users of ICT can be considered to be more than just a simple anomaly, especially where the Internet is concerned. Internet research, therefore, is still in its infancy phase mostly among the higher education students. With regard to Internet usage a host of studies have been carried out on different categories of people. But university student population has not so far been specifically looked into. While scanning the literature, it appears that this field of research has been neglected hitherto. Besides, the investigator noticed that, there is no recent literature that bears testimony to the influence of Internet usage on university students in relation to their Lifestyle, academic achievement and attitude towards research. A gap in literature is observed by the present investigator, which led the investigator to proceed ahead by considering the Lifestyle, Academic achievement and Attitude towards research among university students in Kashmir (J&K).



Statement of the Problem

Internet Usage among University Students in Relation to their Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research

Objectives of the Study

The following objectives have been formulated for the present investigation:

- 1. To identify Internet-users and Internet Non-users.
- 2. To find and compare the Lifestyle of Internet-users and Internet Nonusers.
- 3. To find and compare the Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non-users.
- 4. To find and compare the Attitude towards Research of Internet-users and Internet Non-users.
- 5. To find and compare the Lifestyle of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the basis of gender.
- 6. To find and compare the Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the basis of gender.
- 7. To find and compare the Attitude towards Research of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the basis of gender.
- 8. To find and compare the Lifestyle of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on stream basis (Faculty-wise)
- 9. To find and compare the Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on stream basis (Faculty-wise).
- 10. To find and compare the Attitude towards Research of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on stream basis (Faculty-wise).
- 11. To find out the dominant set of factors of Internet-users and Internet Nonusers on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (separately)

Hypotheses

Following hypotheses have been framed for the present investigation:

- 1. There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internetusers and Internet Non-users on Lifestyle.
- 2. There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internetusers and Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement.



- 3. There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internetusers and Internet Non-users on Attitude towards Research
- 4. There will be a significant gender variation of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Lifestyle.
- 5. There will be a significant gender variation of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Academic Achievement.
- 6. There will be a significant gender variation of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Attitude towards Research.
- 7. There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internetusers and Internet Non-users on their Lifestyle on stream basis (Faculty wise).
- There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internetusers and Internet Non-users on their Academic Achievement on stream basis (Faculty wise).
- 9. There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internetusers and Internet Non-users on their Attitude towards Research on stream basis (Faculty wise).
- 10. The dominant set of factors of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research bear no similarity.

Research Design

Sample:

A sample of 600 Post Graduate students was drawn through stratified random sampling technique from the three faculties of University of Kashmir, (J&K) India. It needs to be mentioned that the subjects enrolled in 3^{rd} and 4^{th} semesters were considered as the sample for the present study. The procedure for the selection of the sample is reported as under:

Three Faculties viz. i) Faculty of Science, ii) Faculty of Social Science and iii) Faculty of Arts (five departments from each faculty) participated in the investigation. These departments are: Zoology, Chemistry, Botany, Physics and Home Science (*Faculty of Science*); Sociology, Economics, Political Science, History and Social Work (*Faculty of Social Science*); English, Urdu, Persian, Hindi and Linguistics (*Faculty of Arts*). 40 students each from both the genders (20 Internet-users and 20



Internet Non-users) were drawn randomly from each department with a total of 100 Internet-users and equal number of Internet Non-users from each faculty. The Table at Page No. 100 of Chapter III shows a detailed breakup in this regard.

Tools

Following standardised tools were used to collect the required data. Besides, an Information Blank was used to identify Internet-users and Internet Non-users. The details are given as:

- 1. A Self constructed *Information blank* for the identification of Internetusers and Internet Non-users.
- 2. Life Style Scale by S. K. Bawa and S. Kaur (LSS-BK,2010)
- 3. Attitude Scale towards Research by Vishal Sood and Y. K. Sharma (ASTR-SVSY,2012)
- **I. Information Blank:** This Information blank was developed by investigator with the purpose to identify the Internet-users and Internet Non-users.
- II. Life Style Scale (LSS–BK): This scale has been designed by S. K. Bawa and S. Kaur. It consists of 60 items representing six Dimensions as i) Health Conscious Life Style, ii) Academic Oriented Life Style, iii) Career Oriented Life Style, iv) Socially Oriented Life Style, v) Trend Seeking Life Style, and vi) Family Oriented Life Style.
- III. Attitude Scale towards Research (ASTR): This scale has been designed by Vishal Sood and Y. K. Sharma. It consists of forty two (42) items representing Four Dimensions, as (i) General Aspects of Research and Research Process, (ii) Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, (iii) Relevance of Research in Personal- Social Life and (iv) Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety.

Statistical Treatment

The data obtained was put to suitable statistical analysis by using various statistical techniques like percentage statistics (for asserting the different levels of Lifestyle, Attitude towards Research and Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non-users). Mean, Standard deviation (SD) and test of significance ("t"-test) were used in order to determine whether there is any significant difference between the Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the variables under investigation. Besides, that data collected was subjected to Factor analysis by utilizing the Principal Components Factor Analysis (PCFA).



Findings

The study emanated certain interesting and useful results. A brief reporting of these results is summarised under the following captions.

(A) Descriptive Analysis

Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Internet- users and Non-users)

(B) Sub-Group Analysis

- i) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Gender wise)
- ii) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Faculty wise)

(C) Comparative analysis

- i) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research
- ii) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Gender wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research
- iii) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research

(D) Factor Analysis

Dominant factors influencing:

- i) Internet-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research.
- ii) Internet-non-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research.

Section (A): Descriptive Analysis:

Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research

(Internet-users and Non-users)

The below recorded conclusions are draw with regard to this Section:

- 1. Percent-wise distribution of Internet-users and Internet Non-users, on various levels of Lifestyle revealed majority of Internet-users with *moderate level* of lifestyle in comparison to Internet Non-users.
- 2. The study concluded that Internet-users, in comparison to Internet Non users, exhibited higher academic achievement. The percent wise distribution revealed the major percentage of Internet-users in *first division* category.



3. The study revealed majority of Internet-users *moderately favourable* on attitude towards research as against to their comparable group.

Section (B): Sub-Group Analysis

i) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Gender wise)

The sub group analysis led to the following conclusions:

- 1. Percent-wise comparison of male and female Internet-users on Lifestyle revealed majority of the female Internet-users on *above average level* as against to their male counterparts.
- 2. The comparison between male and female Internet Non-user group on Lifestyle revealed a majority of female Internet Non-user group in *high level* category of Lifestyle as compared male Non Internet-user group.
- 3. The study concluded that the percent-wise distribution of male and female Internet-users on academic achievement indicated a higher frequency of female Internet-users in *first division* category as against to their male counterparts.
- 4. The percent-wise comparison of Internet Non-user group from both the genders on academic achievement revealed females with satisfactory results as compared to male group. Majority of female Internet Non-users were placed in *first division* category.
- 5. The study was concluded with the observation that both the genders from Internet-users' group were *moderately favourable* on attitude towards research.
- 6. The findings revealed that a considerable percentage of male Internet Non-users had a *moderate level* of attitude towards research in comparison to female Internet Non-users.

Sub-Group Analysis on:

ii) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Faculty wise)

The faculty wise comparison revealed the following broader conclusions:

1. Internet Non-users from *Science stream* had *above average level* of Lifestyle as against the Internet-users of same stream.



- 2. The percent-wise comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users belonging to *Social science stream* on Lifestyle was found significantly higher (above average) in case of Internet-users on Lifestyle.
- 3. The study found that on *high level* category, the lifestyle of Internet Non-users from *Arts stream* was higher as against Internet-users.
- 4. The percent wise comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Science stream* found a maximum percentage from Internet-user group with first *division*.
- 5. The comparison between the Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Social science stream* on academic achievement revealed a large percentage of Internet-users with *first division* as compared the Internet Non-users.
- 6. It was concluded that Internet Non-users from *Arts stream* were considerably in higher percentage with *first division* as against the Internet-users.
- 7. Percent-wise comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users belonging to *Science stream* found a *moderate level* of attitude towards research among Internet-users in comparison to Internet-Non users.
- 8. While comparing the Internet-users and Internet Non-users belonging to *Social science stream* on attitude towards research, it has been observed that a significant percentage of Internet Non-users found their place on *unfavourable level* category as against the Internet-users.
- 9. Percent wise comparison of *Arts Stream* Internet-users and Internet Non-users on attitude towards research revealed large percentage of Internet-users as *moderate level* in comparison to Internet Non-users.

Section (C) Comparative Analysis

(i) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on:

Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research:

This section is reported with the following conclusions:

- 1. Internet-users and Internet Non-users were significantly different on all the dimensions including the composite score of lifestyle.
- The study found Internet-users with good adaptation towards Health Oriented Lifestyle, Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle and Trend Oriented Lifestyle.



- 3. Internet Non-users were found inclined towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle. However, the overall results revealed Internet-users with better adaptability on lifestyle than their comparable group.
- 4. A significant difference between the Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement was confirmed. This confirmation supported Internetusers' group with higher academic achievement.
- 5. Internet-users and Internet Non-users differed significantly on all the four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. The study observed Internet-users with a favourable Attitude towards the: General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life. However, in one dimension i.e. Difficulties in Research and Possession of Research Anxiety could not be established among Internet-users.

(ii) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Gender wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research:

Gender wise comparison emanated the following broader conclusions:

- Male and female Internet-users differed significantly on three out of six dimensions of Lifestyle. The findings concluded that female Internet-users had excellent adaptation towards i) Academic and ii) Trend Oriented Lifestyle. Whereas, male Internet-users were found with a favourable tendency in the adaptation of better Career Oriented Lifestyle.
- Both the groups under investigation were found equally inclined towards Health Oriented Lifestyle, Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle. Overall results favoured female Internet-users with a better tendency in the adaptation of lifestyle than their comparable group.
- 3. The Male and female Internet Non-users differed significantly on three out of six dimensions of Lifestyle. Male Internet Non-users were found with better adaptation towards Health Oriented Lifestyle. Whereas, female Internet Nonusers were equally inclined towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle.
- 4. Both the groups were similar on Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle and Trend Oriented Lifestyle. Overall results revealed equal inclination of both the groups towards life style.



- 5. Male and female Internet-users on Academic Achievement were found significantly different from each other. The results favoured female Internet-users with higher academic achievement.
- Male and female Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement were found significantly different from each other. The results favoured female Internet Non-users with higher academic achievement.
- 7. Male and female Internet-users differed significantly on three out of four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. Male Internet-users were found with favourable tendency on General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety.
- 8. Both the groups were observed with similar inclination towards the Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life. Overall results revealed male Internetusers with a favourable leaning towards Research in comparison to their comparable group.
- Male and female Internet Non-users were significantly different on two out of four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. Female Internet Non-users' showed favourable tendency towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process.
- 10. The study found male Internet Non-users favourably inclined towards the Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life.
- Both the groups had a similar inclination towards the Usefulness of Research in Professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety.
- 12. The overall results revealed both the groups of Internet users and Internet Nonusers with an equal tendency towards their lifestyle.
- (iii) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research:

The conclusions deduced in this section are put as:

1. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Science stream* differed significantly on four out of six dimensions of lifestyle. Internet-users were found with a tendency to adapt better Academic Oriented Lifestyle. On the other hand, Internet Non-users were found with excellent adaptation towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle, Trend Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle.



- 2. The dimensions of Health Oriented Lifestyle and Career Oriented Lifestyle were not found in any way different between both the groups of subjects from *science stream*.
- 3. The overall results revealed that Internet Non-users from *science stream* had a tendency to adapt better lifestyle than their comparable group.
- 4. Internet-users and Non-users from *Social Science stream* were found significantly different from each other on all the six dimensions of Lifestyle. Internet-users have shown good adaptation towards Health Oriented Lifestyle, Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle, and Trend Oriented Lifestyle. Whereas, Internet Non-users were found with higher inclination towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle.
- 5. The overall results revealed the Internet-users from *Social Science stream* with higher leaning on lifestyle than their comparable group.
- 6. The study concluded that Internet-users and Non-users from *Arts stream* were significantly different from each other on four dimensions of Lifestyle. Internet Non-users from *Arts stream* were found better on Health Oriented Lifestyle, Socially Oriented Lifestyle, Trend Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle. However, both the groups reported similarity towards the Academic Oriented Lifestyle and Career Oriented Lifestyle.
- 7. The overall results revealed Internet Non-users from *Arts stream* with an excellent adaptation towards lifestyle than their comparable group.
- 8. It was concluded that Internet-users and Internet Non-users belonging to *Science stream* were different from each other on Academic Achievement. Better grades and higher Academic Achievement favoured Internet-user group.
- 9. A significant mean difference on Academic Achievement between the Internetusers and Internet Non-users from *Social Science stream* was confirmed. This difference favoured the Internet-user group with higher grades and Academic Achievement.
- 10. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Arts stream* were found different on Academic Achievement. Observation of this mean difference has gone in favour of Internet Non-user group, who were seen higher on Academic Achievement.
- 11. It was found that Internet-users and Non-users (*Science stream*) were significantly different on two dimensions of Attitude towards Research.



Internet-user group was found favourable on both the dimensions i.e. General aspects of Research and Research Process and Usefulness of Research in Professional Career. However, both the groups could not be differentiated on Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety.

- 12. The overall results revealed Internet-users (*Science stream*) with a favourable Attitude towards Research in comparison to their comparable group.
- 13. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Social science stream* were seen significantly different in three out of four dimensions on Attitude towards Research. Internet-users were found with favourable attitude towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in Professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. On one dimension i.e. Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life, the difference between the two groups could not be established.
- 14. The overall findings revealed Internet-users (*Social science stream*) with a favourable Attitude towards Research as against to their comparable group.
- 15. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Arts stream* differed significantly in one dimensions of Attitude towards Research. Internet-users were found with a favourable condition towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process. In rest of the three dimensions of Attitude towards research i.e. Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, Relevance of Research in Personal and Social life and Difficulties in Research and Research anxiety, the differences between the two groups could not be established.
- 16. The overall results revealed that Internet-users (*Arts stream*) were favourable on the Attitude towards Research than Internet non user group.

Section D: Factor Analysis

i) Dominant factors influencing Internet-users on: Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research

The following conclusions are drawn by applying factor analysis:

1. The factor analysis led to the emergence of three factors in case of Internet-users with 74 % of the total variation in data. Each of the variables that loaded on the First factor with a correlation (r) of $0.853 \le r \le 0.906$ and this First factor is



designated as *"Contemporary Lifestyle with Career and Physical Efficacy"*. This factor was found more influential among the Internet-users group with high factor loadings.

- 2. The Second factor that loaded with correlation (r) as $0.717 \le r \le 0.903$ is designated as "*Academic Attainment and Research Affinity*". This factor is the second influential factor of Internet-users.
- 3. The variables that loaded on the Third factor with a correlation (r) coefficient of $0.676 \le r \le 0.717$ is labelled as *"Research Connivance in Routine Life"*. This is the third but least influential factor among Internet-users.
- 4. It is to be recorded factors "Contemporary lifestyle with Career and physical efficacy" and "Academic attainment and research affinity" exhibited a greatest variability among Internet-users.
- Last identified factor i.e. "*Research connivance in routine life*" emerged as the 3rd factor which exhibits low variability among Internet-users.
- ii) Dominant factors influencing Internet Non-users on: Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research:
- 6. Three factors emerged among Internet Non-users with 76 % of variance. Each of the variables that loaded on the First factor has a correlation (r) coefficient as 0.701 ≤ r ≤ 0.922. Therefore, this factor is labelled as *"Socio-familial Involvement and Professional Interest"* and is reported as the most influential factor among Internet Non-users group. This factor is the second influential factor of Internet Non-users.
- The Second factor on which the variables that loaded on this factor has found a correlation (r) coefficient as 0.510 ≤ r ≤ 0.815. This factor is designated as *"Health Efficacy with Research Perception"*.
- The variables that loaded on the third factor with a correlation (r) coefficient as 0.412 ≤ r ≤ 0.831. Therefore, the factor is labelled as *"Research Acquaintance for Existence"*. This is the third and least influential factor among Internet-users.
- 3. The factor analytical method found Internet Non-users group with the greatest variability in "Socio-familial involvement and professional interest" and "Health efficacy with Research perception".



4. The last identified factor i.e. *"Research acquaintance for existence"* emerged as the 3rd factor which exhibited a low variability among Internet Non-users.



ue to the enormous development of technologies, the present era can be called the Age of Technology. The most profound changes in the past decade, has been the widespread proliferation of information and communications technologies (UNICEF, 2011). It is believed that technological advancements continue to progress at a rapid rate. However the technology that was a luxury a few years ago is now considered a requirement. The main changes, this technology has caused, have been summarized by "Marshal McLuhan" as the term of "*universal village*" that people, all around the globe, can communicate as easily as the live in a village (Farshbaf, et. al. 2009). The fact that our world has been turning into an information-based world, the value of information increases; the acquisition of information in the right place and at the right time is of vital importance for individuals and society. The widespread use of ICT in all areas has a direct effect upon the way in which the world is perceived. The permeating presence of telematic networks in all scopes of life allows unlimited access to information and a flexibilization of time and space barriers. The last two decades have witnessed a revolution caused by the rapid development of Information and Communication Technology (ICT). It is difficult and impossible to imagine future that is not supported, in one way or another, by Information and Communication Technology (ICT). While looking into the current widespread diffusion and use of ICT in modern societies, especially by the young the so-called *digital generation* then it should be clear that ICT will affect the complete way of life today and in the future. (ICT) at present is influencing every aspect of human life. The way the different fields operate today is vastly different from the ways they operated in the past. ICT plays salient role in work places, business establishments, education, and entertainment. Moreover, ICT proves catalyst for change; change in working conditions, handling and exchanging information, teaching methods, learning approaches, scientific research,



and in accessing information. According to Blurton, (2010), the power of information technology has been significantly stronger due to its presence is *anytime-anywhere*. It has the ability to transcend time and space. Fabunmi, (2012) quoted.....

'Information and Communication Technology (ICT) is the means of accessing or receiving, storing, transferring, processing and sending ideas, perception or information through computers and other communication facilities'.

Technological advancement gives rise to so many ICT tools which seem to be central to contemporary societies and therefore referred this era as information technology age determined by *knowledge society*. It is reported that ICTs in general and the *Internet* in particular is one of the most important and complex innovations of mankind. The role of Information and Communications Technology (ICT) in human development has received growing attention due to the growing proliferation of the Internet, convergence in Information technology and telecommunication technologies. Creation of the Internet has brought about a change in lifestyle of the people which is reported to rely on Internet. The role of Information and technology (ICT) in human development has received momentum due to growing proliferation of the Internet. ICT has been viewed as a cluster of associated technologies defined by their functional usage in information access and communication of which one embodiment is the Internet (Ogunsola & Aboyade, 2005). Being a newly established dimension of modern technology in the contemporary world, Internet plays a vital role in the change and evolution of lives of the people in present society. From its beginning, it has grown like an octopus to affect different spheres of human endeavour. It has become a necessary tool, so that removing it from life is not imaginable (Aslvyn, 2001). It has become a global source of information accessible at *anytime* by *anyone* from *anywhere* on this planet. It has converted the whole world into a global information web. Internet has changed our lives in a revolutionary way regardless of any geographical boundaries. Due to Internet use, people across the globe have become part of a networked society, whereby time and distance have lost their meaning (Holtz 2002). This indicates that communication has shifted from the 'oneto-many' to 'many-to-many. It is arguably one of the most significant technological developments of the late 20th century and a mechanism for information dissemination and a medium for collaborative interaction among and between the individuals and their computers without the geographical limitations associated with space (Leiner,


et.al. 2000). It is a 'live' but constantly 'moving', theoretically borderless, potentially infinite space for the production and the circulation of information. So, the Internet is one of the greatest recent advancement in the world that has fostered the process of making the world a *global village*. Spring (1994) quoted.....

"The revolution will not be televised, but the proceedings will be available online." Quoted from Whole Earth Review

The Internet has come with an evolution that cannot be compared with the existing technologies that existed before. It is a new and innovative medium that can completely change the lives of people much as television did in fifties. The Internet is only two and half decade old, but it is already the key catalyst of the most extensive and fastest technological revolution in history. The Internet changes people's lives in terms of reaching, disseminating, creating, and evaluating a huge amount of information easily and so rapidly. Shitta (2002) asserted that the Internet is a communication super highway that links, hooks and focuses the entire world into a global village, where people of all races can easily get in touch, see, or speak to one another and exchange information from one point of the globe to another. The Internet is referred to as an *ocean of information* and knowledge which is now globally used in every facet of human endeavour. It is one of the facilities through which information and knowledge can be stored, arranged and transmitted return to its users quickly, timely, and accurately (Adegbija & Daramola, 2007). It is also regarded as a powerful communication medium due to its unique characteristics. It includes interactivity, hypertextuality and multimediarity (Severin & Tankard 2001). These characteristics help users to be active and to exchange the roles in their mutual discourse. Peter Cochrane, (1998) predicted what the world was heading towards in the 21st century by saying, "If you are not online, you don't exist" (Seitel, 2001). It is beyond doubt that the Internet has emerged faster than any other communication channel and has cogently changed our mundane life.

Since Internet appeared before the general public in early 1990s, and its growth rate has been seen unusual. Its penetration had far surpassed the diffusion speed of the traditional media. Internet took nearly three years to reach 50 million users, as compared to radio, and television which reached to general public with 38 and 13 years respectively (Molosi, 2001 & Dholakia, 2004). The changes brought about by the Internet surpassed the impact of television and revived the effects of the



printing press. Internet being a global network interlinking millions of computers all over the globe and provides an infinite variety of contents as well as a diverse range of applications (Goggin & Griff, 2001). It is becoming a widely accepted channel for information exchange and powerful networking because it contains the biggest resource of information in the entire world and it enables people to obtain an interactive mechanism to instantly communicate with each other through the Internet using a range of applications. voice-over-Internet-protocol (VOIP), checking traffic news, purchasing cinema tickets, and carrying out online share trading, downloading music and video, chatting and playing games, email, and have access to the encyclopaedia, newspapers, bulletin boards, video arcade, hyper mails, broadcast stations, the movies, mail order, music entertainment, etc, all at one stop in a global village (Kuhlemeier, 2007; Wishart, 2007). It provides that store of information which is not possible for any single entity to hold or manage. Ani (2005) quoted......

The Internet is a network of linked computers which are located at different points all over the world that provides easy communication between persons and organizations no matter where they are located.

The 'Internet' is formed by conjoining two words that imply an international network: Inter "international" and Net "network" (Isman, 2003). The Internet therefore can be defined as an international computer network of information available to the public through modem links (Bassey, 2003). The word Internet emanates from the words "Internet Connection Network", connecting computers around the world by the use of a standard protocol (Greenfield, 1999). IT Encyclopaedia (2001) in the same vein defines Internet as an essentially whole bunch of computers connected together by wires which they can talk over. Ogedebe (2004) Internet is a large computer network formed out of some thousands of interconnected networks, and it supports a whole range of services such as electronic, file transfer protocol, database access and many others. DiMaggio et al, (2001), the Internet is "electronic network of networks that links people and information through computers and other digital devices allowing person-to-person communication and information retrieval." Nwafor & Ezejiofor (2004) observe that the Internet is not a single network of computers but a network of nets, a large network that connects many smaller networks to one another. The advent of the computer and the Internet has brought a whole new world in terms of gathering, disseminating, creating, and criticizing



information and communicating with people. On the other hand, the "Internet" is a "giant network which interconnects innumerable smaller groups of linked computer networks" or which virtually covers the entire globe. On this network, the World Wide Web provides a global platform for information storage, resource sharing, communication, research, entertainment, education and business transactions etc. The web is actually a collection of electronic documents that are stored on computers throughout the world (World Wide Web, 2002; Howe 2007). Through the use of a web browser these documents can be easily accessed by anyone who knows what to look for and are frequently identified through the use of search engines designed to access these documents based on key words (Search Engine, 2009, Schneider, et.al. 2006). Ezomo (2006) asserts that Internet is the gateway for libraries and information centers to enter the electronic information era and provides information generated by different organizations, institutes, research centers, and individuals all over the world. Nowadays, with the popularization of the network, the on line life is not just for those computer geeks. Also, the Internet network is widely used by people all over the world. More and more people are accustomed to search resources from the Internet which is not easy to realize without the mature network technology. It seems no matter what difficulties people meet, the first reaction is almost to ask Google or Wikipedia. Michael Hart's (1995) pointed out "for the first time we actually have the opportunity for a whole world's population to share not only air or water, but also to share the world of ideas, of art or of music and other sounds...anything that can be digitized. In fact, it is certainly true that life online is inescapable, especially in the information explosion society. The Internet can supply numerous information resources which is renewed and up to date. For instance, you can read the newspaper and books in the online library for free instead of buying a new one. This is very attractive to Netizen ('Netizen', which means net citizen) especially for students. That is why today, the Internet has linked thousands of nations and enterprises across the world. Hence, the world which appears physically large has been made too small by Internet and reference to it as "global village". In addition, Chou (2001) indicated that the most appreciated Internet features included interactivity, simplicity, and availability, viz-a-viz abundant and updated information. In fact, the attractiveness of Internet has increased as a result of its availability, accessibility, and affordability. Matisse Enzer glossary of Internet terms (2000-2008) revealed.....



Internet: As a wide-area network connecting millions of computers globally for the purpose of allowing people to access information contact each other and share information resources

The Internet developed from a United States Department of Defence project (Dawson, 2005). During the Cold War there was concern that in the event of a nuclear attack, US communication systems could be knocked out by missiles hitting key communication centres. The initial core of what would become the Internet was the network that was designed by the defence ministry of America to help informing in the military and top secret projects. The network was linked to some other networks while continuing its work consider its high efficiency, and the scientists as well as research institutions were soon attracted to that. The rudimentary network was abandoned by the American Government but this developed form of network is now transmitting so much diverse and expanded information all over the world to millions of users (Sedigh, 1996). The Internet was originally developed in the 1960s, when several computer scientists were hired by Pentagon at the U.S. Defence Department headed by Dr. Robert W. Taylor (Schneider, Evans, & Pinard, 2006), to build a system to decentralize communication network primarily for military purposes. There was therefore a need to develop a distributed system that could withstand such destruction. In late 1960s, the Internet (under its original name Advanced Research Projects Agency Network-ARPANET) was designed (Hinson & Amidu 2005). ARPANET developed out of the government's effort to connect computers together throughout the country. The main purpose of ARPANET was to secure communication between military organizations and safely store large amounts of critical information in the event of a nuclear holocaust (Bogard, 1996). The researchers soon realised the importance of networking and by 1986, the U.S. National Science Foundation network NSFNET established to extend the network to more research institutions. ARPANET ceased to exist in 1990. Over time the network grew rapidly to interconnect numerous universities, research centers as well as commercial organization. Thereafter, the word and use of the INTERNET expand globally. In 1989, the World Wide Web (WWW) went global, and brought about the instantaneous access of information to every corner of the planet. Internet spread rapidly across the globe and grew to one million users in 1992 (Giovannetti, Kagami & Tsuji, 2003). It has been providing a novel type of communication that enables the



user to access large amounts of information with a touch of a finger. The number of Internet-users started to increase in 1993 and has steadily increased since that time. The greatest increase in the number of users accessing the Internet began in 1999. Since then, the continual improvement of the Internet technology has provided an extraordinary level of public accessibility to a wide range of forms of communication, e.g. intra-organisational and inter-organisational email; data storage, management and transfer; social websites like Face book; text messaging such as Twitter, and so forth. Due to the development and spread of cheaper and more user-friendly computer technology and software (e.g., portable computers, Microsoft Word etc), the use of the Internet has increased dramatically. The remarkable growth in the Internet's functionality, capacity, accessibility and convenience, these improvements have encouraged more people to use it more often, and it has become a powerful application in modern society. The Internet access and usage in the world has been proliferating year by year, conservative estimates put the number of Internet-users worldwide. The Internet is estimated to be growing at a rate of 10.15 per month with numbers rising from about 56 million Internet-users worldwide in 1995-96 (Daly 2000), and increased 150 million at the end of 1998 and 200 million people in 1999 and at 500 million by the year 2000 to 2001(Castells, 2001) with an associated exponential growth in the number of web sites. According to the Computer Industry Almanac (2009) the worldwide number of Internet-users surpassed one billion in 2005 (up from 45 million in 1995 and 420 million in 2000). By March, 2006, there were over a billion Internet-users worldwide (Internet World Stats, 2006). The number of Internet-users grew by 114 percent when compared with the figure in 2000 (Central Intelligence Agency, 2006; Internet World Stats, 2006). Burns (2006) predicted that the adoption of various information technologies, including Wi-Fi connectivity, RSS feeds, blog authoring and podcasts, will drive Internet usage worldwide. Statistical research tell us that Approximately 1.11 billion users in 2007, 1.67 billion in 2009, and 1.97 billion in 2010 (Miniwatts Marketing Group, 2010), indicating an upward trend in the number of digitally literate people. Such a rapid growth has been interacted with people's needs and motivation. Within a decade, from 2000 to 2011 the number of Internet-users globally rose from 360 million to 2.267 billion and by the end of June 2012 there were over 2.4 billion Internet-users in the world (Internet world Stats, 2012). The number of Internet-users in the world has



experienced a growth of 480.4% between 2000 and 2011 with the number of Internetusers around the world estimated to be over 2 billion people within a world population of approximately 6.93 billion by March 31, 2011 (World Internet-users and Population Stats 2011). In 2010, the world's Internet use was 28.7% of the population. While this may not seem like a very large portion of the world's population, the growth in Internet use worldwide has increased dramatically from 2000- 2011. In recent years, the number of Internet-users has increased worldwide. The growth of Internet use in Asia is higher than that in Europe and North America. Around 40% of the world population has an Internet connection today. In 1995, it was less than1%.The number of Internet-users has increased tenfold from 1999 to 2013.The first billion was reached in 2005. The second billion in 2010. The third billion is expected by the end of 2015.

India stands fourth in the world after US, China and Japan in terms of the Internet-users (Internet World Stats, 2010b). In India, the major group of Internetusers belongs to the academic community as the Internet came to India primarily for academicians through Educational and Research Network (ERNET).Internet came to India in the early 1990s for a restricted group of users through some leading Internet Service Providers (ISPs). The Education and Research Network (ERNET), National Informatics Centre Network (NICNET) and Software Technology Parks of India (STPI) have been offering Internet services with very different charters and growth histories. ERNET was designed to provide Internet access to the Indian educational and research institutions, NICNET was designed to provide Internet access primarily to Government departments and STPI was permitted to serve only the software exporters falling under the Software Technology Park scheme of the Department of Electronics. Later on, Videsh Sanchar Nigam Limited (VSNL), Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL) and Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL) entered into the market. The Indian Internet services market was opened for private sector participation in November 1998. India's first private ISP is "Satyam Online" launched by Satyam Info way. Thereafter, Sify, Airtel, Netcom, Reliance and Hathway became the major private ISPs of India.

The Internet services were introduced in the *Kashmir Valley* during 1994-95 by Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL). With the passage of time, three more privately owned ISPs- IPEAKS, SLICNET and INFONET were registered but only



IPEAKS was operational till 1997, (Chawla, 2003). Presently, six ISPs namely BSNL, AIRTEL, AIRCEL, IDEA, Tata Indicom, Reliance, and Vodafone are operational in the Kashmir Valley. The Commercial Cyber Cafes are also available in all the major towns of the Valley. The population composition of the Internet-users ranges from decision makers to commoners, professionals to students, business giants to common workers, producers to consumers, irrespective of age, gender, generation, religion, region, race and colour. The highest percentage of Internet-users belongs to younger generation. Since its inception, the Internet has grown exponentially over the years and has emerged as the foremost healthy source of disseminating information to a large audience, transcending the limitation of time and space. There has been remarkable growth in the Internet's functionality, capacity, accessibility and convenience. These improvements have encouraged more people to use it more often (Leiner *et al.*, 2000; Singh, 2002).

The first decade of the 21st has seen dramatic changes due to the exponential proliferation of the Internet in all aspects of life. What has been called the digital culture has had an extensive influence on education. Internet use has become very popular in many areas including *education* in recent years. It has affected the field of education at all grade levels (Sati and Khalid, 2002). The widespread availability of resources on the Internet and their potential used in educational settings has driven much debate its usability (Sinha, 2004). The use of the Internet in education allows a wide range of international resources to be accessed. Resources can be very well organized on the Internet, which allow for easy information access and exchange (Hicks, 2002). Internet can be used as a supplement to traditional instructional methods, to complement a lecture; instructors may ask students to find specified web sites to gain more in-depth knowledge about a particular topic (Robinson, 2005). Integrating Internet, mobility, and multimedia as well as other software powerful facilities lead to tremendous potential in education process with special impact on students, lecturers, and researchers. It has made considerable and dramatic impact on contemporary educational practice (Chou, et al., 2002; Havick. 2000; Tsai.2001). For example, the Web-based learning where educators integrate the Internet into instructional practice can not only provide learners with distant, interactive, broad, individualized and inquiry-oriented learning activities, but also promote their knowledge construction and meaningful learning (Leflore, 2000). Learners consider



Internet as the main and initial source of information (Tuncer, et al. 2011). As the Internet is broadly used for educational purposes; learners may have more rich experiences of utilizing the Internet. Levin (2003) stated the Internet as a new invented technology that holds the greater promise humanity has known for learning and universal access to quality education. As an educational tool Internet lets access to inexpensive, global, interactive and intensive computer communication and it also enables the student to improve his/her learning experience (Deniz & Coskun 2004). The comprehensive literature available shows that the Internet has the following functions in education: (i) storehouse of information, (ii) communication without boundaries, (iii) online interactive learning, (iv) electronic/online research, (v) innovation in the new world, (vi) improve interest in learning, (vii) global education, and (viii) information catalogues. As the Internet have many potentials and functions. Fuchs (2008) expressed:

The Internet is the global techno–social system that is based on a global, decentralized technological structure consisting of networked computer networks that store objectified human knowledge

The Internet has experienced vast expansion in recent years, leading to its extensive use by people from all generations. People in different age groups and jobs, students and academicians using the Internet because it is the easiest, fastest, and cheapest ways of accessing necessary information. For a generation of young people, technology has assumed a substantial stake in their social and educational lives. According to Chan & Fang (2007) found that Internet is used for different purposes by young people such as making friends, shopping, listening to music, having fun, doing homework, and finding information for further education. Internationally, there are many surveys on the use of the Internet, and nearly all find that Internet use is most prevalent amongst younger, more educated people (Hoffman, Novak & Schlosser, 2000). Chan & Fu (2009) Internet searching helps university students to boost their intellectual development and job preparation. Due to the endless nature of information resources on the Internet. Researches indicate that seeking information on the Internet has become the first choice option for many people, especially for students (Cole et al., 2003; Lawrence & Giles, 1999). About half of the students begin using computers during their undergraduate years, and nearly two-thirds of them make use of Internet for educational purposes (Usta & Yildirim, 2007). Students



accepted that the Internet is more informative, useful, less expensive, time saving .It has made a tremendous impact on the academic activities of the students. Students use the Internet activities (facilities) especially for seeking homework and their projects by using search engines. Glenda *et al.* (2006) some of the most important reasons why students go online include research, school assignments, e-mails and chatting. Ibegwam (2004) that majority of the students used the Internet for academic purposes. They use e-journals, e-libraries, e-books, and online databases as academic resources for their related courses (Shahin & Ercan, 2010). New times are characterised by new ways of learning, primarily through use of the Internet (Kerry, 2000; Moor & Zazkis, 2000). The Internet is a relatively new channel for scholarly resources, and contains vast quantities of information that vary a great deal regarding its contents, aim, target group, reliability etc. Hence, it is important that the end-user is aware of the diverse information available on the Internet, and educated in the criteria by which the information content should be assessed (Chapman, 2002).

Today's students are believed to integrate technology in all aspects of their lives for varied purposes, particularly socializing, entertaining and shopping (Asselin, Moayeri, 2008) as well as doing homework (Lenhart & Hitlin, 2005). Students have easier access to a wider range of material, and can established links between different information in variety of ways. Adeya & Oyelaran-Oyeyinka (2002) noted that the Internet will increase student access to education, improve curriculum and quality of instruction and increase the productivity of academic publications. It allows learners to ask questions or share ideas with teachers and friends via electronic mail (James, 2001), to do hands-on activities using Internet-based manipulative (Crawford, 2003), to engage in collaborative-projects with other students in different countries (James, 2001), to collaborate in discussion forums (Yang, 2002), to ask questions directly to experts, or to obtain primary resources (Kerry, 2000). Anything from discussions to research based activities with off country studying is possible. It allows students to broaden their academic experience, access important information and communicate to others within academic community. Ojedokun (2001) noted that the Internet has many benefits in the academic cycle, including provision of round-the-clock access to a wide variety of information sources globally and the ability to discuss and share experience. Through the Internet, many different activities can be assigned to the students, which will enhance their education. With the Internet activities, which



previously required students to be physically present in the classroom, can now are performed virtually without attending classrooms (Bellon, 2002; Foster, 2003). All of these are new ways of learning which were unknown two decades ago. Dehmler (2009) asserts that students today are growing up in an interconnected, networked world; they have unprecedented access to modern technologies and are use them in expected and unexpected ways.

Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has now broadened the horizon of the opportunities among institutions of higher learning, giving hopes to members of the academic communities to cooperate with their counterparts all over the world (Collis & Wende, 2002; OECD, 2005), and strengthened their mandate of teaching and carrying out research (CHEPS, 2000). Internet use has become a way of life for the majority of higher education students all around the world. It affects the way people learn especially in higher learning institutions (Edmunds & Conole, 2010). It serves as a useful tool in support of the various educational activities that ranged from research to teaching. It also enables scholars and academic institutions to disseminate information to a wider audience around the globe through websites (Luambano & Nawe 2004). Students prepare course assignments, make study notes, tutor themselves with specialized multimedia, and process data for research projects. Most of them exchange emails with faculty, peers, and experts working at distance places. They keep up to-date in their fields on the Internet, accessing newsgroups, bulletin boards, listservs, and web sites posted by professional organizations. Usun (2003) indicated that Internet is appealing to higher education for a number of reasons: it reduces the time lag between the production and utilization of knowledge; it promotes international co-operation and exchange of opinions; sharing information and it helps to promote multidisciplinary research. Students receive the opportunity to use the Internet to seek and obtain scholarly material. Wilkinson et al. (2003) reports that most of the links between universities home pages were associated with information on research or education. Omidian (2011) identified that university students prefer to use the Internet for their information need more than traditional print sources due to being quickly and easily valuable resource. It has been seen that students utilize the Internet for the university education all over the globe (Isman & Dabaj, 2004). Students use Internet because of the perceived effectiveness of the facility in information access on assignments and research projects. It is common to



say that more than 50 percent of students' assignments are based on information from the Internet (Norzaidi & Salwani, 2008a, b). Thus, today, academic life without the access to the Internet is hardly imagining (Spennemann et al., 2007). However, much still is unknown about how university students use the Internet information systems for academic work (Aiken et al., 2003). As a matter of fact, majority of higher institutions of learning have now established their online presence with their researchers and students also having access to journals, magazines, newsletters and books (Jagboro, 2003). There are great possibilities for higher education at all levels through the use of the Internet because curricula can be developed collaboratively and educational materials distributed and updated more cheaply, offering additional ways for students to Interact with their study materials as well as their instructors. There are also pressures to make learning more flexible even for those students who have access to the Internet on a university campus (Brown, 2001). Further, there are multiple forces driving Internet expansion in higher education including globalisation and the need for workforce training, learner on-demand services, digitisation, knowledge explosion, and cost effectiveness (Bates, 2000). University students showed a positive attitude toward using the Internet as a teaching and learning tool. Technologies like the Internet to accelerate university students' learning enhance and democratize access to educational opportunities, and support interactivity, interaction, and collaboration (Draper & Brown 2004; Oliver 2006). Schrofer (2007) stated that university students take responsibility more for determining educational learning strategies and think that the reason for this is the quality of the information obtained from Internet is getting higher. Mathew & Schrum (2003) found that university students use the Internet for communicating with the professors through emails by asking for clarification or reporting information, e-mailing papers, and getting feedback. Secondly, they use the Internet to get materials (web links, notes, practice, quizzes, hints for test etc.) from professional websites, checked grades, and accessed resources from Web CT. Adegboji & Toyo (2006) concerned that Internet contributed significantly to the ease of research through downloading course related materials. They relied mostly on Internet sources for the big projects they downloaded study aides.

In today's fast changing world, research has become one of the most important intellectual possessions for every human being to change his way life in accordance to *Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.* 13



the needs and demands of the society. It is a key ingredient in shaping up the world. It opens new frontiers to many fields like, education, business, economics, medicine and science. Truly, research in itself had made a significant contribution in man's giant leap towards the future. Internet has emerged as a formidable social and cultural institution of global proportions facilitating access to a wealth of information on the web for the academic society to support their academic and research activities. The use of information technology has been reported to increase the research productivity of scholars (Misra & Satyanarayan, 2001). Information is just a 'finger touch' away from the user and it would not be inappropriate to say that the Internet has become the biggest global digital information library, which provides the fastest access to the right kind of information in nano-seconds to end user at any time and at any place in the world. With the advent of Internet, a significant transition can be seen in the academic communities' approach and the way they seek information and the methods they employ for teaching and learning activities. The principal functions of Internet are increasing the means of researches, facilitating the communication and enabling data share. Agarwal & Dave (2009) reported that students depend on the Internet as a veritable source of research information. Kumar & Kaur (2006) indicated that Internet resources are now preferred source of research information to the print resources among the students. Kamba (2008) maintains that the Internet has not only reduced the need to store information resources but has also increased the output of research publications globally. Jagboro (2003) Internet was the fourth most important resources for materials among the postgraduate students with respondents using the Internet to access research materials and for email. Internet use for academic activities would improve significantly with more access in departments and faculties. Fasae & Aladenyi's (2012) stated that students use the Internet for research more than they use it for communication and entertainment. Massaquoi (2006) also confirms that 84 percent of journal articles and 97 percent of completed research works are now available on the Internet. He adds that making use of the Internet helps in conducting research, publishing articles and exchanging ideas. Similarly, Yusuf (2006) stated that the Internet provides wide range opportunities for easy access of relevant and current literature, wide range of instruments, online opportunity for validation of instrument, simulation of an on-going research, and so on. He further adds that collaboration of research (trans-institutional, trans-national and trans-continental) is possible, and wide



range of opportunities exist for the dissemination of research findings (journals, personal web page, foundations/organizations' web pages and so on). The only way to pursue knowledge is through research and the Internet is having a profound impact on the research process and dissemination of information. The Internet therefore, be described as a 'sea of information' and 'reservoir of information' containing texts which are not housed between library and bookshop walls and subject areas span across all fields of knowledge. Restrictions created by distance, availability and access to information have to a large extent been removed. More information continues to become available in electronic format as this medium is embraced by publishers, museums and archives (Schmidt, 2003). It contains more information than the world's largest libraries (Emeagwali, 2000). With access to the Internet one can retrieve information from the world's largest information database. Also, thousands of libraries are connected to the Internet, permitting even casual users to access their catalogues and request learning material through interlibrary programs. In addition to those information services, the number of on-line journals, newspaper and trade magazines increase each month. Much of the information in these publications is free. It is a virtual treasure trove of information. Any kind of information on any topic under the sun is available on the Internet. It is a truly "open technology", allowing users with any hardware and software to derive the necessary information from the network, independently from the location of data and knowledge bases. Hence, Internet can therefore be described as a *super highway* of information carrier, where information seekers on any subject or area of discipline can obtain current and useful information and knowledge. In the academic perspective, the Internet host and allow access to subject gateways, databases and professional websites which contain various types of scholarly resources like electronic copies of journals, articles, books, datasets, short communications, formula, monographs, encyclopaedia, dictionaries, instructional notes, informative web-pages, with numerous links to search and research related websites. Consequently, researchers all over the world are taking advantage of the Internet. "The Internet has revolutionized our lives!" often heard exclamation.

The Internet has added a lot to our lives and has also made a certain things disappear. The Internet can be beneficial for students as it allows them to obtain relevant academic information; it also offers other possibilities that may be harmful to



their academic experience. In the literature, there are studies about Internet and its effects on students, the relationship between educational performance and Internet addiction (Siomos et al., 2008; Ghassemzadeh et al., 2008; Del Castillo et al., 2008; Recabarren et al., 2008; Tahiroglu et al., 2008). Sahin, Balta & Ercan (2010) found strong relationship between Internet use trends and educational performance, and wrong use of the Internet can cause a major decrease in students' academic performance. Anunobi (2006) reflected that majority of university students used Internet for academic purposes and minimum students used it for entertainment purposes. Kumar & Kaur (2006) students are the most frequent users of the Internet. They used the Internet mainly for educational purposes rather than for entertainment. Papastergious & Solomonidou (2005) majority of the students searched the web for information about school courses, while fewer of them engaged in communication activities via chat, email or video conferencing and in web page creation. Suhail & Bargees (2006) Internet usage impacts education in a positive way by increasing communication with classmates and professors, increasing access to libraries and educational databases, and improving study hours and study habits. Some studies have suggested a positive association between students' Internet use and their learning. Jackson et al. (2006) students, who used the Internet more, scored higher on standardized test of reading achievement and had higher grades. Similarly, Turner & Farmer (2008) students' outcomes in term of grade, of the Internet-based multimedia classroom, seen with 36 percent increase in grades, and a 56 percent reduction in failures. The significant drop in failure rate could be attributed to the integrated blending of online and in class format through the cyber classroom, since most failures were due to external problems and commitments. However, some other investigators have found negative effects of Internet use on academic outcomes (Choi, 2007; Sirgy, Lee, & Bae, 2006). Some studies found that computer and Internet has become important tools for students' communication and entertainment; however, it has not yet become a useful tool for their study (Zhang & Jia, 2002). Galuszka (2007) technologies, such as the Internet and computers, were not in widespread use for academic purposes. Some studies focused on the general pattern of the Internet usage among students found that students tend to use the Internet less for academic purposes. A study carried out by Pew Internet and American Life project (Asfaw & Bo, 2003) that college students use the Internet more for social activities like



communicating with friends than for academic-related tasks. Pierce & Vaca (2008) reported significantly lower grades of Internet-users than those who did not use the service. However, Kuh & Hu (2001) argues that surfing the Internet for course material had positive effect on intellectual development and vocational preparation, in addition to personal development of college and university students. A significant difference in academic performance between students have Internet based infrastructure and access on their campus and those that do not (Osunade *et al.* 2009). Tella (2007) was also found most of the respondents reported using the Internet for the purpose of obtaining course related information and that the Internet contributes significantly to their academic performance. Among college students, however, searching information online about course materials helps boost intellectual development and facilitates preparation for future jobs. On the other hand Luban (2000) Internet had positive influence on the number of sources found and quality of the students' written work.

Students are lured by easy access and often do not question the value or quality of material. Most of the students are careless about the reliability of the information available on Internet (Weitzner 2007). There are not necessarily quality or authenticity checks on information on the Internet. Misrepresented, fake, and pirated literature causes problems for researchers and students. There are sites that many users may find offensive, as well as instructions for carrying out violent or illegal acts. This has a bad effect on their grades when they use more accessible and less secure Internet sites in such kind of courses and projects (Yasar & Tuncay, 2010). However, researches indicate that students do not have enough ability and knowledge to search for information on the web (Wallace & Kupperman, 1997), which ends up obtaining a large amount of irrelevant information about their studies. They pay little attention to what the information is (e.g., the source, date, and reliability) focusing instead on what it says. This strategy is similar to the "copy-paste" strategy (Bereiter & Scardamalia 1989). In accord with this conception, most of these students accepted what they found on the Web as true, with no consideration of the source or purpose of the information. This brings about some important and interesting issues with it. The Internet is a 'chaotic' library because it displays no discernible order, classification or categorization. It therefore poses a challenge on the students' ability to distinguish



between information from refereed scholarly journals available digitally and the digital equivalent of vanity press publications.

However numerous students have positive perception about the quality of learning through the Internet and also identified online interactive learning, electronic research, innovation, communication and global education (Muniandy, 2010). Majority of the students have positive attitude about Internet (Asan & Koca (2006). Majority of students opine that Internet is a universal digital library which provides fastest way to reach knowledge. The idea that is learning is constructive process widely accepted; learners do not passively receive information but instead actively construct knowledge. Through the constructivist approach, integrating Internet to the education is so easy and effective. Some students strongly prefer using the Internet as their primary information source (Gibson & Mazur, 2001). One reason students give for preferring the Web over traditional print materials; they feel they can locate information faster when using the Internet (Vansickle 2002).

It has been observed that excessive online stay closely linked to low academic performance (Kubey, Lavin, & Barrows, 2001).Students who use the Internet "excessively" experience a decline in their study habits and grades (Young, 1996). Studies revealed that excessive Internet use is linked to loss of sleep. Besides, feeling that life without the Internet would be boring. Few students who use the Internet perceive they have a negative impact on their academic performance their grades, their health, or their social lives (Scherer, 1997; Anderson, 2001). Excessive use of Internet has been associated to problems with maintaining daily routines, school performance, and family relationships (Rickert, 2001). Chen & Peng (2008) non-heavy Internet-users have better relationship with administrative staff, academic grades and learning satisfaction than heavy users, and claimed that the heavy Internet-users were likely to be depressed than non-heavy users. Social network websites grab attention of the students and then divert it towards non-educational, unethical and inappropriate actions including useless chatting, time killing by random searching and not doing their jobs (Kuppuswamy & Shankar 2010). Students are seems connected with each other for sharing their daily learning experiences (Liccardi et al., (2007). reported that social networking websites keep them in touch with friends (Madden, 2007). On the other hand Greenhow & Robelia (2009), Madge et al. (2009) & Selwyn (2009) revealed that social networking websites serve educational goal as connects students



through such informal methods. Lampe et al. (2008) reported that social networking websites enable collaborative sense making among students as it is used by majority of students. A number of studies have found relationship between social media and student commitment in higher education. Nicole et al. (2007) found strong link between social networking websites and students involvement. Such connections could help students in term of home assignments and projects in terms of job, internship and other opportunity. Madge et al. (2009) argue that often students use social networking websites to discuss their academics issues formally and informally and also to interact with their instructors, teachers and professors. Research examining student instructor relationships suggests that professors who have online profiles with high disclosure levels are associated with increased student motivation (Mazer et al., 2007) and that self-disclosures decreased uncertainty, increased student motivation, and created more positive attitudes toward both the course and the professor (Sullivan et al., 2004). In addition to its popular acceptance, the Internet is rapidly becoming an integral part of the daily lives of students. Since the Internet has become an essential component of students everyday life throughout the world. So an information world, called the *cyber world*, comes into being between the social and physical worlds. The number of people using Internet is growing day by day most of them accepts that Internet is a revolutionary new medium that has changed our lifestyle one way or the otherway. Daramola (2004) maintains that an observable trend in the Internet is that more and more resources are moving to it. The spectacular increase in the use of the Internet has stimulated research on its impact on our everyday lives. New technology brings the new lifestyle to people mostly to the students. Internet already has the ability to influence so much in our daily lives (Bloch, 2007; Driskell & Lyon, 2002; Rohlinger & Brown, 2009; Tufekci, 2008). It has significantly impacted the lifestyle of everyone; changing the way people work, live and learn (Gates, 2000).

Researchers have studied the relationship of new technologies on interpersonal communication and relationships. Merkle (2000) reported that Internet as a social technology give rise to interpersonal relationships. The online social interaction seems to affect the people. McKenna et al. (2002) found that Internet use reduces feelings of loneliness by increasing users' social circles and helping them to become less socially anxious. Selfhout *et al.* (2009) explored that use of the Internet for communication



predicted less depression among the youngsters who have low friendship quality and played a role in the well-being of the users. Some studies found Internet as contributory to psychological well-being (Weiser, 2002, and Wellman et al., 2001). Internet communication has been shown to increase measures of social support (LaRose et al., 2001). Brignall & Valeyb (2005) observed that using Internet among youngsters has increased greatly by communicating through the Internet. Among users, greater use of the Internet was associated with increased contact with family members and an increased participation in online communities. Hoffman & Venkatesh (2004) point out the Internet-users had more total contact with family members than Internet Non-users. Many Internet-users believe that using the Internet has improved their lives in this way, even providing an essential link to other. Some studies suggest that Internet-users have higher levels of community and political involvement (Wellman, 2001) and have higher levels of generalized trust and larger social networks (Cole et al., 2000). Internet-users are reported to spend three times more time in attending social events than Internet Non-users (Neustadtl & Robinson, 2002). Internet-users actually have the larger social networks, it allows them to stay in touch with family and friends and, in many cases, extend their social networks (Howard et al. (2001). McKenna (2002) stated that people use the Internet to form new relationships online. Growth of the Information Technology caused an increment on use innovative applications, in order to promote behaviours related to healthy lifestyle (Crutzen et al., 2008). Rice (2006) consider that the use of Internet as information source regarding healthy lifestyle. Mitchell et al. (2009) the Internet has been acknowledged as a valuable means of health promotion; with information in web spread throw static health educational sites, peer support groups, online health consultations and delivery of Internet interventions. Lewis et al. (2009) refer that interactive health communication applications are effective for increasing knowledge and may improve outcomes, regarding the adoption of healthier lifestyle.

On the other hand studies indicated that Internet use undermines well-being because online connections are weaker than real-life connections, or because online connections are often used to replace real-life relationships and activities (UCLA Internet Report 2001). Some even go so far as to implicate Internet use as a causal factor for psychological harm among users (Eastin & LaRose, 2000). Yet other studies suggest that the Internet can have direct negative effects such as psychological



problems including social isolation, depression, loneliness, and difficulties with time management (Choi, 2007). Katz et al. (2001) stated that the more time Internet-users spent on-line; the more likely they were to belong to off-line religious, leisure, and community organizations, compared to nonusers. Nie & Erbring (2000) argued that the Internet was creating a "lonely crowd" in cyberspace, because Internet use "necessarily" takes time away from family and friends. They also revealed that heavy Internet use resulted in less time spent with one's family and friends. It has been vilified as a powerful new tool for the devil, awash in pornography, causing users to be addicted to hours each day of "surfing" hours during which they are away from their family and friends, resulting in depression and loneliness for the individual user, and further weakening neighbourhood and community ties. Nie (2001) arguing that time is a limited commodity, so that the hours spent on the Internet must come at a cost to other activities. Internet use has been found to be associated with negative personal and social developmental outcomes (Lloyd et al., 2007). Therefore, time spent on online activities may cut other activities such as reading and social interaction, which are essential to normal development (Morgan & Cotton, 2003; Nie, 2001; Hillygus, & Erbring, 2002; Weiser, 2001). Internet use as linked to the quality of social relationships. Certain studies reveal that Internet use lowers the quality of social relationships (Morgan & Cotten, 2003). Yet other studies, reported that there have been no linkage found between the two (LaRose, Ghuay, & Bovin, 2002; Sanders, Field, Diego, & Kaplan, 2000). Some researchers believed that Internet is making people isolated, depressed and lonely. People who use Internet remain cut off their environment and lose face to face relations which are strong by spending time in virtual reality with unknown people, which results in weaker relations. Some other researchers supports that people become more social, have chance to meet variety of people of their interests without any time and space barrier. Some found Internet as neutral without any significant affect.

Gender differences in Internet usage has remained a matter of concern to researches are another attractive concern of the research studies (Hupfer & Detlor, 2006). Shaw & Gant (2002) found that no gender differences are detected when participants are involved in various online activities such as synchronous and dyadic chat sessions. Jackson *et al.* (2001), Odell *et al.* (2000), Nachmias *et al.* (2000) Schumacher *et al.* (2001) & Durndell & Haag (2002) does not provide consistent

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



evidence for the presence or otherwise of a gender gap in Internet use across different groups of males and females. Some studies indicate male domination in terms of usage and attitude towards, the Internet. Weiser (2000) observed that there is significant gender difference in Internet usage. Males tend to be more familiar with the computers and Internet as compared to females. Similarly Morahan & Schumacher (2000) observed that males were more likely to be pathological Internetusers than females. Nachmias & Shemla (2000) reported that gender differences exist in the use of the Internet with a higher and more extensive usage by males when compared to females. Males were found to spend more of their time on the Internet, indicating preferred locations for use, resource downloading, website creation and participation in discussion groups. Sherman et al. (2000) supported the bias towards males. More males tend to use the World Wide Web; they are also more likely to have their own e-mail addresses and web pages and spend longer hours than females surfing the Internet. He further reported that males, other than for e-mail, used the technology more often and had more positive attitudes than females. The bias is seen even though both girls and boys are equally comfortable and show positive feelings toward the Internet Moreover, Bimber (2000) gender differences exist due to socioeconomic status, in which men and women may differ in technology adaptation which in return influences computers and Internet access and usage. He further argued that women are substantially less likely to be frequent users, equally likely to be infrequent users, and more likely to be intermediate users. Ono & Zovodny (2003) females to be less frequent and less intense users of the Internet. Mishra & Bisht (2005) majority of the students used the Internet in which male students use Internet in greater numbers than females. Numerous studies have documented that overall, boy's use the Internet more frequently, for longer and for a wider variety of uses than girls do (Gross, 2004; Haythronthwaite & Wellman, 2002; Subrahmanyam, Greenfield, Kraut, & Gross, 2001).

It has been found that a number of studies revealed certain types of gender differences in various domains of the life. Men and women use the Internet for different purposes. Odell *et al.* (2000) the gap in use of the Internet among male and female students has nearly closed, there remain differences in how male and female students use the Internet. Researchers have shown little difference in the amount of time men and women spend online, yet they have consistently found that men and



women differ in their reasons for accessing the Internet. Hupfer & Detlor (2006) reported that male and female differences in web searching appear to persist such as women are more into e-mail, chat, and search reference materials about medical and government information whereas men tend to focus on information about investment, purchase and personal interests. Garbarino & Strahilevitz's (2004) females perceived Internet as a tool of maintaining social values. Significant difference between male and female Internet-users in terms of online health information users (Lorence & Park 2007). Males were more likely to be Internet-users but in terms of online health information users, females were the dominant users. However, Wolin & Kargaonkar (2003) gender differences in beliefs, attitudes, and behaviour towards web advertising reported a slight difference that males are likely to browse the Internet for functional and entertainment purpose while females are more into shopping reasons. Moreover, Niemivirta (1997) there is a difference in academic interest between genders; males are more extrinsically motivated while females are more intrinsically motivated in terms of furthering their education. On the other hand, Heimrath & Goulding (2001) female students felt that the Internet was too big and unstructured thus, searching the Internet difficult, not enjoyable and will use it only when unavoidable whereas male students were happy to search the Internet for relevant information.

Men were more likely than women to use the Internet for purposes related to entertainment and leisure, whereas females use it primarily for interpersonal communication and educational assistance Weiser (2000). Sherman *et al.* (2000) further supported the Internet gender gap among students by comparing the usage patterns of male students participated more in surfing, newsgroups and chat groups, while female students reported significantly higher e-mail use. Similarly Odell *et al.* (2000) men reported greater use of the Internet for visiting sex sites, researching purchases, checking the news, playing games, and listening to and copying music, whereas more women used the Internet for e-mail and school-related research. Female adolescents use the Internet to search for information and likely to use the Internet for educational purposes (Chen & Peng, 2008). On other hand male adolescents use the Internet to play games. Similarly, men surfed the Internet for entertainment or fun more than did women and male students' downloaded music and videos more than did their female counterparts (Jones *et al.*, 2009). Tsai & Lin (2004) gender differences in perceptions of the Internet among adolescents, males perceived its use



as a source of enjoyment or "toy", while females took a more practical approach and perceived it as a "tool", "technology" or "tour" (providing the ability to navigate around different sites and people). With respect to other uses of the Internet, there is evidence that some of these too are gendered. So the notion of Internet use among males is more task-oriented than women's, and the tendency for women to use e-mail more accords with their greater interpersonal orientation (Jackson et al., 2001). Jones et al. (2009) demonstrating that female college students used the Internet for communicative and academic purposes more than did their male counterparts, while male students used the Internet for a wider variety of leisure activities than did female & Huang (2008) male/female differences in web searching counterparts. Liu materials by focusing on the online reading environment shows that there is a significant difference between genders in which female readers have a strong preference for paper as a reading medium than male readers. On the other hand male readers have greater sense of satisfaction with online reading. Thus there are some significant differences between male and female behaviour in the online reading environment. In relation to the different purposes of Internet use, studies show gender differences in a range of topics of interest. Women tend to go online for a narrower range of topics, such as health and religion, while men tend to engage in a broader range of activities (Fallows, 2005). Similarly, Jones et al. (2009) reported that male students pursue a wider variety of activities including games, sports, technology, politics, personal finance and adult content than do their female counterparts. While some studies indicated gender differences in Internet abuse .Males were more likely to become Internet abusers than females (Bayraktar & Gun, 2007; Frangos & Kiohos, 2010; Tahiroglu et al., 2008; Yang & Tung, 2007). Research shows that males are more likely to frequent sexual websites than females are (Doring 2010; Mitchell et al., 2003). This difference could mean that males are exposed to more alternative sexual material when they go online, than females are. Gender difference was also found to be significant in the students' confidence about computers and stereotypical views of computer users (Chen & Tsai, 2007). Concern about gender inequality has now shifted from access to intensity. Skills do play an important role in framing gender inequalities in terms of Internet usage. Skills are the user's ability to locate content online effectively and efficiently. Therefore, men and women may differ significantly in their attitudes towards their technological abilities (Hargittai & Shafer, 2006).

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



Significance of the Study

Information and communication technology has been a significant research area for some time, but its nature has changed considerably since the Internet became prominent just over a decade ago. The significance of present study is the fact that nowadays the Internet is pervasive in the lives of individuals, institutions, and societies all over the world, so in India. The recent decades have witnessed a dramatic increase in the use of the Internet and computer technologies which become a common instrument in our daily living and have a significant influence on quality of life (Israel, 2000). The Internet has been used for last two decades in our society and we have a generation of students, who grew up with the Internet. Since its inception, it is generally acknowledged that its appearance, not only brings convenience to mankind, but also may cause a great deal of potential problems. The benefits of the Internet have been widely researched. Despite the positive effects of Internet, there is growing literature on the negative effects of its use. Many researchers herald the Internet to be beneficial and educational (Donnerstein & Smith, 2001 & Hitlin & Rainie, 2005; Pew Internet and American Life Project 2005b). Nevertheless, concerns about online risks and consequences are increasing (Byun et al., 2009; The Star, 2009; The Strait Times, 2009b). However it cannot be believed that Internet is beneficial under every circumstance and situation, regardless of its regulation. Hicks (2002) revealed Internet as a *double-edged sword*; some accept it as a panacea while others are appealing its negative growth.

Undoubtedly, appropriate attitude toward the Internet is a prerequisite for successful Internet based instruction. Attitude towards a new technology plays an important role in its acceptance and usage (Liaw, 2002). Researchers that there is a group of students interested in and are competent with technology and also a group of students not interested in and not very competent with this technology (Vogel & Heinz 2000; Minks 2000). Some students prefer to reference only traditional print materials, despite the increasing prevalence of electronic sources (Large & Beheshti, 2000). Majority of students tend not to synthesize the information in their research (Guinee, & Langlais, 2003). Students report that they don't copy from the Web or that they are less likely to copy from the Web than from traditional print sources. However, students are still reliant on their library as a physical space for the discovery of research content (Nicholas & Rowlands 2008). The benefit from the huge resources



that exist on the Internet, students must necessarily have information technology literacy. Every year thousands of young students register at universities. It becomes clear that not all of them have the necessary skills to work with all of the ICT resources available to them. The gap in Internet usage is labelled as 'the digital *divide'*. Indeed, upon closer inspection many of the studies actually convey a sense that not all students are as inclined to integrate Internet use in their studies as might be assumed. As is usually the case in educational debate, blame for this disparity has been most frequently attributed to deficits of skills, motivation and know-how on the part of students, For example, some researchers have reasoned that university students' (non) engagement with the Internet is influenced by perceptions of usefulness, ease-of-use and other psychological attitudes towards both technology and learning (Cheung & Huang, 2005). Peter & Valkenburg (2004) advocate a 'digital differentiation' approach to replace the digital divide. Cushman & Klecun (2006) suggest replacing the term 'digital divide' with that of 'digital exclusion', to better assess the complex nature of the processes involved in understanding the use and nonuse of ICT. A new type of digital exclusion is emerging due to this variation of usage and appropriation. Brotcorne (2005) says use or not to use the Internet was not always due to a disadvantage but 'more due to matters of "digital choice" rather than "digital divide".

On the other hand, Hinson & Amidu (2005) analysed that lack of electronic literacy skills among the university students was a great obstacle in using Internet resources. This paints a gloomy picture of low levels of Internet skills and literacy because the natural assumption is that university students should be at the forefront of development and must be skilled in how to use the Internet. Ngulube *et al.* (2009) found that there was limited use of the Internet due to the students' poor level of network literacy. Luambano & Nawe (2004) reported that majority of university students were not using the Internet due to the inadequacy of computers and lack of skill in Internet use. Sinha (2008) reported ICT and Internet-Non-users have different ideas of what the online world is like. Generally, Internet Non-users are tempered by fears that the Internet is a dangerous place that its cost is beyond their reach, its content holds little meaning for them, and that they do not want to waste precious time online. Horrigan (2009) claimed that the main reason behind the



student's Internet Non-use was a lack of interest in using the Internet, as they considered it irrelevant to their daily lives. Other criteria included cost, availability and usability. In this way, Internet Non-use may be explained by a negative attitude towards ICT, as well as the perceived lack of pleasure or 'behavioural control' that reflects a desire to control the use of certain technological tools. The prevailing understanding is that they are students who, for one reason or another, have not yet gained access to the benefits that a technical application has to offer.

Over the last 15 to 20 years research has focussed on the use of the Internet by various sectors of society. These researches have considered a wide range of subjects. The impact of Internet use is being investigated increasingly, and researchers addressed greater number of related issues, like syndrome of intense preoccupation with using the Internet, excessive amounts of time spent online, compulsive use of the Internet, difficulty in managing the time spent on the Internet, feeling that the world outside of the Internet is boring, becoming irritated if disturbed while online etc. The resources of the Internet give enormous scope for a richer academic experience for students but also potentially offer a vast range of distractions. There is a large body of research spanning several domains, disciplines, and approaches that has investigated' use of technology, but no work has focused on studying the comparative Use and Non-use of Internet among higher education students. With regards to Internet use and Non-use, proportions of studies have been conducted on different categories of people but university student population have not been looked. With the surge in the use of information and communication technology, Users and Non-users of ICT can be considered to be more than just a simple anomaly, especially where the Internet is concerned. Internet usage based research is therefore still in its infancy, mostly among the higher education students as far as the concrete interests of both Users and Nonusers are concerned. In light of the fact, it was found that there is paucity of research linking to Internet usage among University students. Also the investigator noticed that, there is no recent literature that documents the influence of Internet usage on university students in relation to their Lifestyle, academic achievement and attitude towards research. So from the forgoing discussion, a gap in knowledge is observed by the present investigator, which needs to be filled by this present study. Therefore, there is a critical need to have standardized and more reliable research in this area as a way of advancing the Internet usage and providing an insight to determine the



Lifestyle, academic achievement and attitude towards research among university students in Kashmir (J&K).

Statement of the Problem

Internet Usage among University Students in Relation to their Lifestyle, Academic achievement and Attitude towards Research

Objectives of the Study

The following objectives have been formulated for the present investigation:

- 1. To identify Internet-users and Internet Non-users.
- 2. To find and compare the Lifestyle of Internet-users and Internet Non- users.
- 3. To find and compare the Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non- Internet-users.
- 4. To find and compare the Attitude towards Research of Internet-users and Internet Non- users
- 5. To find and compare the Lifestyle of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the basis of gender.
- 6. To find and compare the Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the basis of gender.
- 7. To find and compare the Attitude towards Research of Internet-users and Internet Non- users on the basis of gender.
- 8. To find and compare the Lifestyle of Internet-users and Internet Non- users on the basis of their stream differences.
- 9. To find and compare the Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the basis of their stream differences.
- 10. To find and compare the Attitude towards Research of Internet-users and Internet Non- users on the basis of their stream differences.
- 11. To find out the dominant set of factors of Internet-users and Internet Nonusers on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (separately)

Hypotheses

Following hypotheses have been framed for the proposed investigation:

- 1. There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non- users on their Lifestyle.
- 2. There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and



Internet Non-users on their Academic Achievement.

- 3. There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Attitude towards Research
- 4. There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Lifestyle on the basis of gender.
- 5. There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Academic Achievement on the basis of gender.
- 6. There is significant difference between the Mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Attitude towards Research on the basis of gender.
- 7. There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non- users on their Lifestyle on the basis of stream differences.
- There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Academic Achievement on the basis of stream differences.
- There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non- users on their Attitude towards Research on the basis of stream differences.
- 10. The dominant set of factors of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research bear no similarity.

Operational Definition of Variables

The variables under investigation are:

- 1. Internet Usage
- 2. Lifestyle
- 3. Academic Achievement
- 4. Attitude towards Research

Internet Usage:

The Internet is a vast computer network that connects computer networks and organizational computer facilities around the world (Random House Dictionary, 2005). Internet usage has been defined as the interconnected system of networks that connects computers and Internets around the world via the Internet Protocol. For the purpose of this study Internet usage has been defined as using of laptop or desktop computer. Thus, other devices, such as cell phones, I- pods have been excluded from this definition. Therefore, for the purpose of present study, the Internet usage includes



the experience and knowledge of the University students' towards using Internet. However in the present investigation Internet usage has been labelled with the following nomenclature - *Internet-users* and *Internet Non-users*.

Internet-Users:

Internet-users are those who have direct access to the worldwide network and have their own skill and exposure to use the Internet. One cannot access Internetbased resources without the adequate Internet skills (Okello-Obura & Magara 2008). Tella & Ayeni (2007) argue that students" ability to find and retrieve information effectively is a transferable skill. In order to make use of the growing range of Internet resources, students must acquire and practice the skills that are necessary to exploit them. In addition, students should be network literate. Network literacy has been defined as the ability to: participate in the emerging knowledge networks on the Internet and has a deep understanding of the logic or protocols of these networks. This means that students should understand how to participate on the Web by writing and connecting the public sphere (Eziani 2011). Network literacy for students consists of knowledge of network information and skills to locate, select, evaluate and use the network information. (Asemi & Riyahiniya 2007). Keeping in view the above obersevations an Internet user is considered as an active participant of Internet based activities in a versatile way.

In the present study *Internet-users* are those university students who have direct access to the worldwide network with their own exposure and skill in Internet usage through laptop or desktop computer and have minimum of one year's experience in the field. The similar procedure for the identification of Internet-users has also been adopted by a number of researchers in the field (Eynon & Helsper, 2011; Cushman & Klecun, 2006; Selwyn, 2003, 2004; UCLA Internet study 2001).

Internet Non-users:

Non-users usually are fairly well informed about the Internet despite the fact that they do not use it. Closely related to underlying reasons and motivations for the Non-usability of Internet are attitude towards technologies, as well as perceptions and experiences. The conscious or unconscious decision to be a non-user can be fuelled by many reasons, such as those who are not online is actually lacking desire, do not want the Internet, do not feel that they need it, do not feel that it holds anything of interest or value for them, economic constraints, discomfort with using technologies, not



seeing any benefit or avoiding some degree of reliance on technologies. Abudullakutty (2009), studied the digital divide among students pursuing higher education, pointed out the gulf between the haves and have nots. A high percentage of students studying for graduate and post graduate courses do not have any basic knowledge of Internet and are unable to make use of its immense possibilities in higher education. The widely assumed negativity of Internet non-use makes off liners behind and is perceived as outsiders (Klecun, 2008). Sally Wyatt (2003) presented a model that divides non-users into "have-nots" and "want-nots" and also emphasises that non-use does not only cover people who never gained access to some technology but also the behaviour of non-use may be an act of active resistance or passive avoidance. The motives for non-use are manifold and reach from a delayed adoption through a perceived lack of value for the individual to pure disinterest in the services offered. Studies on non adopters of digital technologies usually attempt to find out why some students choose not to be connected and find no uniform reason. But they have shown that socio-economic status and associated costs of adopting new technologies are less significant than factors such as: skills and efficacy (World Internet Project, 2010), motivation and disinterest (Verdegem & Verhoest, 2009; Zickuhr, 2010), and attitudes and personal traits (Davis, 1989; Matei & Ball-Rokeach, 2003; Stanley, 2003; Vishwanath & Golohaber, 2003). The lack of use among nonusers can be explained by the lack of knowledge of Internet tools (Mike Cushman & Ela Klecun, 2006). Non-users" have been variously labelled and constructed as subjects of research: dropouts (Katz, Rice & Aspen, 2001), laggards (Goldenberg & Oreg, 2007), unadopters (Dailey et al., 2010), narrow frequent users, occasional users and non-users (Selwyn et al., 2005; Selwyn, 2006), unengaged and marginalized (Longley et al., 2006), non- or sporadic users (Brandtzaeg, Heim & Karahasanovic, 2010) and lapsed users (Eynon & Geniets, 2012). Such people are hard to understand as a collective, as well, since many move back and forth between being users and non users (Mehra, Merkel & Bishop, 2004). Keeping in view the above observations Internet Non-user is reported to be unfamiliar with the Internet based activities and do not have an exposure to the online world and have never consciously accessed the Internet.

In the present study *Internet-Non-users* have been considered those university students who lack a direct access to the worldwide network and have not their own *Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.* 31



exposure and skill to use Internet. Besides non-users are the respondents who never used the Internet or did not list any Internet activities. The same procedure has also been adopted by a number of researchers in the (Grant, 2012; Eynon & Geniets, 2012; Chen, Su-Yen; Fu, Yang-Chih, 2009 Hargittai, 2007; Morris, et al. 2007; Suhail & Bargee, 2006; Selwyn, 2006; Mitra, et al., 2005; Selwyn et al., 2005; Robinson, et al., 2004; Ono & Zavodny, 2003; Katherine Allen et al. 2003; Sally Wyatt, 2002); Katz & Aspden, 1997).

Lifestyle:

Lifestyle is a way of living of individuals, families and societies, which is manifested in coping with their physical, psychological, social, academic and economic environment on day to day basis. Lifestyle is defined as a way of living: the things that a particular person or group of persons usually does. It is based on individual's choices, characteristics, personal preferences and circumstances. It is a way of life or style of living that reflects the attitudes, habits or possessions and values of a person or group. It defines the attitudes, values and somewhat exhibits the social position. Moreover, it also includes pattern of social relations, consumption, entertainments and dressing style. It reflects person's views, habits and etiquettes and the way of life which has direct influence on the type of service. Thus, lifestyle can be defined as "a pattern of an individual's living expressed through his/her activities, interests and opinions.

In the present study, Lifestyle has been considered as dominant set of scores as measured by Lifestyle Scale by S. K. Bawa and S. Kaur (LSS–BK).

Academic Achievement:

Academic achievement refers to the degree or level of success or proficiency attained in some specific area concerning scholastic or academic work. Besides, knowledge attained and skills developed in the academic subjects by the students are referred as academic achievement. It depends on the ability to read, comprehend, and communicate at high levels (Holcomb, Castek, & Johnson, 2007). It is considered as the mean of the total examination scores or marks obtained by the sample groups in examination. It could be more than the total sum of examination marks, but only this dimension is more clear and measurable than any other. It is perhaps for this reason that almost all the researchers have considered marks in an examination as an index of



one's academic achievement. So, academic achievement has been measured in terms of aggregate of marks percentage obtained by the students.

Academic achievement in the present study has been assessed on the basis of aggregate percentage of marks secured by the students in their two consecutive examinations i.e. aggregate percentage of marks in two semesters conducted by the University of Kashmir (J&K). This procedure has also been adopted by a many of researchers as: (Sugra, 2004; Mir, 1996; Matoo, 1994; Chanda, 1984; Zargar, 1980; Mehta, 1980).

Attitude towards Research:

Attitude is the readiness to act in a certain ways to certain issues. It, therefore, refers to one's positive or negative judgment about a concrete subject. Attitude is not an innate tendency rather it is learnt. More recent research indicates that attitude represents a summary evaluation of a psychological object and is described both internally and externally in dimensions such as good-bad, likeable-dislikeable, harmful-beneficial, and pleasant-unpleasant. Attitudes whether positive or negative affect a particular subject. Ajzen & Fishbein, (2000) reported "An attitude as a predisposition to respond favourably or unfavourably to an object, person, or event. As implied in this definition, attitudes possess cognitive (beliefs, knowledge, and expectations), affective (motivational and emotional), and performance (behaviour or actions) components." So, attitude is a settled way of thinking or feeling about someone or something, typically one that is reflected in a person's behaviour.

On the other hand, Research means a systematic investigation, including research development, testing and evaluation, designed to develop or contribute to generalizable knowledge. So, attitudes toward research have been defined as a person's general evaluation or feeling towards research. The attitude towards research basically means a detailed study of thinking, feeling and the person's behaviour towards research. It also specifies how a person is acting in the research field and what importance is given to him in different aspects of research. A positive attitude hampers the efforts in research both technical proficiency and interpersonal relationships. The attitude towards research. It also specifies how a person is acting in the research field and what importance is given to the detailed study of thinking, feeling and the person's behaviour towards research. It also specifies how a person is acting in the research field and what importance is negative to both technical proficiency and interpersonal relationships. The attitude towards research. It also specifies how a person is acting in the research field and the person's behaviour towards research means a detailed study of thinking, feeling and the person's behaviour towards research. It also specifies how a person is acting in the research field and what importance is given to the different aspects of research by him? The



literature shows that many studies are designed on identifying attitudes towards research from different perspectives such as practitioners (Bjorkstrom & Hamrin, 2001; administrators, faculty and teachers (Ladebo, 2003; Tercanlioilu, 2004; Vyas, 2007), and students (Lazar, 1991; Papanastasiou, 2005).

In the present study, Attitude towards Research refers to the dominant set of scores as measured by Attitude Scale towards Research by Vishal Sood and Y. K. Sharma (ASTR–SVSY).

Delimitation

Keeping in view the time and resources at the disposal of the Investigator, the present investigation was delimited to the Post graduate students of Kashmir University (J&K).



n this chapter an attempt has been made to present a brief review of (/ the researches available in the present field of investigation. It is an admitted fact that new vistas of knowledge cannot be explored unless we look into the past. Therefore, it is essential to scan the previously work carried out and accordingly address the areas which have not been hitherto looked into. In this chapter, the investigator has tried to addresses various issues related to finding appropriate literature and look for the reliable and valid literature. As reported above, an investigator has to move ahead for every piece of ongoing research to connect his endeavour with the work already done. This exercise culminates him to attain the overall relevance and purpose of his field of inquiry. The review of literature, thus, becomes a link between the research proposed and the studies already conducted in the field. There are probably three stages in most of the reviews. First, find information. Next, appraise what has been found for relevance and robustness and finally, synthesize findings into a set of collective conclusions. Survey of related literature is an essential requirement to the actual planning and execution of any research voyage. It serves multiple purposes and is of prime importance for a welldesigned research study. It gives an overview of a specific field of inquiry and provides information about the *design*, the *sample* and the *research tools* employed by the other investigators. It helps the future investigators to state the problem, to weigh its significance, to work out for data gathering devices, suggest research design, to identify sources of data, to make effective statistical analysis, to arrive at logical conclusions and to avoid duplication. It asks questions concerning about the prevailing theories and hypotheses, the key researchers, the current state of the research, and the methods and methodologies being used. The review of related



literature is a sort of formal training, which enables the researcher to understand an idea's genetic roots, and understand the "current conceptual landscape". In other words, the literature review shows the potential researcher how prevailing ideas fit into his own thesis and how his thesis agrees or differs from them. It is not merely a summation of the existing work; its purpose is to analyze critically the applicable "*published body of knowledge*" in order to establish the current knowledge of that topic. It also satiates the existing literature in a broader scholarly and historical context. Thus, the review of related literature is an essential aspect of a research problem as it is a step of scientific method; it forms the foundation upon which all the future works are to be built. Mouton (2006) summarises the reasons why literature reviews are important as:

(i) to ensure that one does not merely duplicate an existing study, (ii) to find out the most recent and authoritative theories about the subject, (iii) to find out what the most widely empirical findings in the study field are (iv) to find out the available instrumentation that has proven validity and reliability and (v) to find out what the most widely accepted definitions of key concepts in the field.

Hart (1998) defines it as:

"The selection of available documents (both published and unpublished) on the topic, which contain information, ideas, data and evidence. [This selection is] written from a particular standpoint to fulfil certain aims or express certain views on the nature of the topic and how it is to be investigated, and how the effective evaluation of these documents in relation to the research is proposed".

Literature review does not and cannot refer to every piece of literature in the field. Rather, a literature review is organised according to the research objective. It is a conceptually organised synthesis which ultimately provides a rationale for further research. Selection of limited number of works that is central to our area rather than trying to collect a large number of works that are not as closely connected to our topic area. Hence, an exhaustive literature search has been carried out by the investigator for the present study. In order to understand and review the existing literature for the study in hand, the researcher consulted different sources as research materials, which include monographs, conference proceedings, websites, various books, magazines, periodicals articles, journals, dissertations, handbooks, encyclopaedia, thesis and information from Internet sources as reference material etc. and had gone through the



content to abreast himself about the related studies. So, the study of related literature places the researcher in a better position only to interpret the significance of his own results.

In the present research, the investigator has scanned and reported most of the relevant studies done in India and abroad in the field of Internet usage among university students. The Internet is a complex, virtual, educational, psychological and social medium. To date, a complete understanding of its impacts is unclear. Thus, the Internet is an exciting and challenging research subject. The researcher reviewed literature that is related directly to the objectives and provides a sound conceptual, theoretical and practical understanding of Internet usage among university students. Therefore, in order to prepare a base for defining the problem precisely, making interpretation of data meaningful and drawing comparisons among similar studies. The present investigator studied the related literature extensively. The review provided an insight into various dimensions of the problem under investigation and related issues at different stages. In this attempt, the investigator was selective and reviewed researches, which had a direct bearing on the present study. The present chapter provides a thumbnail account of such studies, their ambit and outcomes. In this chapter, review of related literature published in the area is presented in chronological order. The available researches, which are directly or indirectly relevant to the present field of investigation, have been classified under six sub-headings as:

2.1 Studies on Internet-users and Internet Non-users:

2.2 Studies on Internet Usage and

- A) Life Style
- **B) Attitude Towards Research**
- C) Academic Achievement
- D) Gender and
- 2.3 Studies on Related Variables

2.1 Studies on Internet-users and Internet Non-users:

Ali Zarqa (2014) evaluated the university students' use of the Internet and their perceptions with regard to online academic life. Findings revealed that Internet use for academic purposes has both positive and negative aspects. Gender difference among students' perceptions about the use of the Internet in their academic activities has



been observed. Both the genders expressed that Internet plays a positive role in their academic activities. However, female students have been found with more positive perceptions about its use in their education than males. It has also been found that Internet-users and non-users have different perceptions about its use. The non-users disagree with the scope of Internet in the academic activities, while the users agree that the Internet has a positive role in students' academic pursuits.

Cliff & Nicole Ellison (2013) used the survey data which is reported to have been collected from a sample of 614 non-academic staff at a large Midwestern university. Researchers explore the demographic and cognitive factors that predict whether a person chooses to join Face book. Findings revealed that older adults and those with higher perceived levels of bonding social capital are less likely to use the Site. The Internet non-users have expressed concerns about privacy, context collapse, limited time, and channel effects in deciding about not to adopt Face book. Finally, comparison of non-adopters to adopters was seen to differ on three dimensions - perceiving bridging, and social capital. Moderate users often experienced social capital outcomes similar to, or worse than, non-users. Besides, heavy users reported higher perceived bridging and bonding social capital than either group.

Ibia & Ekott (2013) investigated the Internet usage and the development of social skills among youth. Gender and age differences, differences in the degree of social involvement, social tolerance, patterns of behaviour between Internet-users and nonusers and the relationship between Internet usage and social skills development was investigated. The survey research design was adopted. A sample of 500 also undergraduate students was drawn by adopting stratified random sampling technique at equal gender basis from 5 out of 11 faculties of the University of Uyo, Nigeria. Internet Usage and Social Skills Development Questionnaire (IUSSDO) with reliability coefficient of .73 was used to gather the data for the study. The t-test, oneway analysis of variance (ANOVA) and Pearson's Product Moment Correlation were used. Results indicated significant gender and age differences in Internet usage; significant differences in social skills development, social tolerance and pattern of behaviour between Internet-users and non-users were observed. While a strong relationship was established between Internet usage and the social skills development. It was also observed that Internet usage negatively affected social skills development of youths.




Narimani et al. (2013) carried out a 'Comparative Study on Mental Health and Aggression' of the two groups of student's using and not using Internet. The studies on population of 120 subjects have been chosen by adopting the multistage cluster sampling procedure. A self constructed questionnaire (Ahvaz Aggression Scale) has been used to collect the data. T- test, two-way analysis of variance and Pearson correlation through the SPSS software have been used. The results showed a significant difference between the means of two groups (using Internet and not using) on mental health and aggression. The students using Internet have been observed with more unfavourable mental health and aggression control than the students of not using category.

Orose Leelakulthanit (2013) conducted a study on life satisfaction, psychological and spiritual characteristics, satisfaction with various domains of life, and the demographic characteristics of individuals living in Thailand. Adult Internet-users and non-Internet-users in Thailand were interviewed. Multiple regression analyses were applied. Results showed that the Internet-users were found to be more satisfied with their lives than the non- Internet users. Internet-users value optimism, personal health, and self positively whereas; consumption of goods was valued negatively. The non-Internet users' value optimism, internal locus of control, and family positively, whereas, being moderate and social life were valued negatively. Furthermore, it was found that the Internet-users could live their lives in the way they valued, except for the aspect of the consumption of goods. Non-Internet users, on the other hand, felt that they were not able to live their lives in the way they valued, except for the aspect of family and social life.

Pavica Sheldon (2012) reported differences between users and non-users of social network sites on sensation seeking, life-position indicators, shyness, and loneliness. Using data from a survey of adults 19–76 years old, results revealed that compared to an average Face book user, a non-user is significantly older and scores higher on shyness and loneliness, is less socially active, and less prone to sensation seeking activities. Face book, has not been reported as a substitute channel of communication for those who are shy and lonely and lack face-to-face interactions.

Soudeh & Masoud (2011) compared the sensation seeking and five big factors of personality between Internet dependent and non-dependent users. A sample of 179 undergraduate students (109 female and 70 male) were selected from University of



Tehran using cluster sampling and based on upper and lower limits, 29 students from each group were investigated. IAT, SSS-V and NEO-PI-R were used as research tools. The findings revealed that sensation seeking of Internet dependents was significantly different from the non-dependents ones. The inter-net dependents showed significantly higher scores on subscales - Thrill and Adventure seeking, Noninhibition and Boredom susceptibility as compared to non-dependents.

Sujatha (2011) analyzed the patterns of use of the Internet among 335 teachers and students of the five colleges in Mangalore city. The study investigated the level of academic community's access to the Internet, reasons for non-use of Internet, satisfaction with the Internet facilities provided in these institutions as well as the problems faced in the use of the Internet. The study revealed that the level of student's access to the Internet was low and the major reason was that at the time of the study, computers with Internet facilities were inadequate. The findings also revealed that the rate of Internet use was more among the teachers and students of Commerce and Science faculty as compared to the faculty of Arts. However, majority of the students expressed their interest in the use of the Internet and its resources and were enthusiastic in improving their skills in the use of the Internet.

Zarqa Ali (2011) aimed to find out the perception of male and female students regarding the role of the Internet in changing their relationships with the opposite sex, family members and anonymous people. As a matter of collective perception, students agreed that the Internet played a role in changing relationships with the opposite sex, family members and anonymous people; however, they expressed no opinion about the role of the Internet in increasing romantic relationships. The results revealed that the Internet has brought family members closer to each other, enhancing the unity among them and strengthening the family ties which have increased the sense of responsibility among youth. The perception of males and females was not significantly different from each other. However, the perception of users and non-users of the Internet was different. The non-users disagreed that the Internet had a role in changing relationships, while users were in agreement on its role in bringing change to youngsters' relationships.

Elisabeth et al. (2009) showed that *Attitude* as a variable plays an important role in explaining the adoption and diffusion of new technologies. This study presents data from a 2007 telephone survey in Austria and describes the attitude structure of users



and non-users by means of a representative random sample (N=529). The tripartite definition of attitudes serves as a useful heuristic in structuring the analysis. The findings revealed the differences between users and non-users concerning their attitude towards the Internet and new technologies. Age and level of education proved to be major determinants of attitude patterns.

John & Steven Martin (2009) analyzed differences between Internet-users and nonusers. Researchers used a targeted module of IT-relevant questions added to the 2000, 2002, 2004 and 2006 samples in the General Social Survey (GSS) and devote particular attention to the issue of whether Internet use is associated with more or less diverse or 'liberal' political opinions and how these associations have changed since 2000. In general, the study found that i) differences between user and non user seem to exist and ii) Internet-users were more supportive on diverse and tolerant points , and iii) Internet-users were consistent with the premise that going online is a way of expressing openness to opposing points of view and new experiences. However, the differences were often non-monotonic. Moreover, there were differences for some racial/family/sexual/political attitudes but not on other patterns that do not fit easily under standard labels such as liberal, conservative or even libertarian. Internet-users also expressed slightly more optimistic and sociable attitudes on certain other GSS questions. On most GSS items, difference could not found between Internet-users and non-users.

Shu Ching & Tung (2007) investigated the difference between Internet addicts and non-addicts in Taiwanese high schools, and focused specifically on their Internet usage patterns, and gratification and communication pleasures. A sample 1708 high school adolescents were drawn for data collection. 236 subjects 13.8% were identified as addicts by using the eight-item Internet addiction Diagnostic Questionnaire designed by Young. The results revealed that Internet addicts spent many hours online than the non-addicts. Notably, surfing with a social/entertainment motivation and gratification was positively correlated with Internet addiction. Furthermore, Internet addicts obtained markedly higher overall PIUST scores and scored higher than non-addicts on four subscales (tolerance; compulsive use and withdrawal; related problems, including family, school, health, and other problems; interpersonal and financial problems). While Internet addicts perceived the Internet to have significantly more negative influences on daily routines, school performance, teacher and parental



relation than non-addicts, both Internet addicts and non-addicts viewed Internet use as enhancing peer relations. Moreover, students with personalities characterized by dependence, shyness, depression and low self-esteem had a high tendency to become addicted.

Alan & Robinson (2002) used survey data collected from the year 2000 General Social Survey (GSS). It included old questions on the extent of social visiting and new questions on the extent of social networks. The results provide little support to conclude that Internet-users and electronic mail users, with longer hour's usability, prove less active or more constricted to social lives than non-users. Little evidence of reduced social contact in relation to levels of social visiting in comparison to 1998 or to earlier GSS surveys has also been established. No difference, in the overall visiting of lesser v/s greater v/s non-Internet-users has also been reported. Internet-users have been seen to spend more evenings with friends than nonusers and fewer evenings with relatives and neighbours. There was no decline in the number of people contacted by traditional communication channels among the respondents who contacted more people by email, or who used the Internet excessively. There was more evidence to support the Newtonian model of increased social life among Internet-users than the evidence of any displacement effect.

Ofosu (2001) compared the Internet-dependent and non-Internet-dependent university students regarding their perception about social support focusing on the factors like self-esteem, shyness, loneliness, gender and the level of dissociation. The Internet dependents showed more perceived social support than non-Internet dependents. This revealed that the Internet dependents felt more inclined towards the use of Internet. They were seen to search for the social support and were lacking in their conventional face to face relationships with their family and friends. The majority of the participants asserted that their Internet-based social interactions were not up to the mark and were less meaningful than their real life interactions. However, 10% respondents reported that their on-line interactions were better and more meaningful than their real life social interactions. Almost eighty five percent participants expressed that they preferred their off-line interactions to their Internet-based interactions. The researcher confirmed that there was a strong association between Internet-dependence and vice-versa. The respondents' lack of social support from friends and family in the real life appeared the cause of their dependence on the



Internet. They expected perceived social support for compensation of the missing social support in their real life. Internet-dependents exhibited more shyness and were more conscious of self-esteem than the non-Internet dependents. Internet dependents expressed significantly more social loneliness than family or romantic loneliness as compared to non-Internet dependents. The male participants were more inclined in Internet dependence than female participants.

2.2 A) Studies on Internet and Life Style

Nasir Younis (2014) intended to assess the healthy lifestyle habits among Mosul University Students and examined the relationship between the university students' characteristics and healthy lifestyles habits. Cross-sectional survey design was applied to assess the healthy lifestyle habits among Mosul University Students. Random sample consisted of 400 students (Male and Female) from Mosul University with specialty difference as 'College of Medicine, College of Dentistry, College of Nursing, College of Pharmacy, College of Fine Arts, College of Education, College of Basic Education and College of Law' from the end stage in University. Period of data collection was first December 2013 which extended to the terminal date of February 2014. An interview technique method was followed for the data collection. The data were analyzed through the application of the descriptive and inferential statistical data analysis. The results indicated that university students had a low score in the total healthy lifestyle habits, demonstrating females as higher than those of males.

Pramod & Raju (2014) carried out the study to i) find whether there exist any relationship between Problematic Internet usage and the general health and ii) find out whether there exists any significant difference between Internet-users in their Problematic Internet use on the basis of general health. For this purpose, the data were collected from 1093 Internet-users by administering Problematic Internet use Questionnaire and General Health Questionnaire. Correlation and one-way ANOVA and Pearson's product-moment correlation statistical techniques were used. The results indicated the existence of a significant positive relationship between Problematic Internet use and the absence of general health. The one- way ANOVA results revealed that Problematic Internet use was found to be high among Internet-users with low general health.

Azizah et al. (2013) studied the impact of Internet addiction among Malaysian university students. Research methodology used in this study was by distributing



survey questions to 653 university students from five different universities in Malaysia. Four possible impacts were measured which included: Academic Performances, Relationships, Personality and Lifestyle. The findings showed that the Internet addiction cause problems with respondents' academic performances, having bad personality and practicing an unhealthy lifestyle. There were significant differences in academic performance, personality and lifestyle between "Average user" and "Excessive user".

Binnaz et al. (2013) examined the relationship between university students' Internet use and loneliness and social self-efficacy. The sample of the study consists of 507 university students. To determine i) students' degree of Internet use, Young's (1998) 'Internet addiction Scale', by Bayraktar (2001), ii) the degree of loneliness 'UCLA Loneliness Scale' and iii) the degree of social self-efficacy, Smith- Betz's (2000) 'Social Self-efficacy Perception Scale adapted by Turkish Palanci (2002) were used. The results suggested a meaningful relationship between Internet use and loneliness scores. However, no relationship was observed with the social self-efficacy scores. On the other hand, it has been found that students with a higher score on Internet use have a higher degree of loneliness when compared to students with moderate and low degree of Internet use.

Chih Hung et al. (2013) aimed to examine the temporal relationship between problematic Internet use (PIU) and lifestyle changes during the first year among college youth. Cross-lagged analysis of panel survey data collected from Taiwanese college youth (387 males and 370 females) was applied. Structural equation modelling was adopted to test several nested cross-lagged relationship models. The results showed that four measures of lifestyle changes and PIU were moderately to highly stable across one year. Moreover, PIU in freshman year predicted negative changes in lifestyle in the subsequent year, which included reduction of physical and social activities, irregular diet and unhealthy sleep. Lifestyle changes in freshman year, in contrast, did not predict PIU in subsequent year.

Cynthia Shuster et al. (2013) explored the development of online, technology-based, nutrition, health, and fitness education challenges using social media as a means of helping users to develop healthy lifestyle changes. Participants completed pre assessments and post assessments to determine overall program impact and to self-report perceptions of knowledge gained and practice/behaviour change. Results



indicated that participants gained knowledge on nutrition, health and fitness topics while making strides towards lifestyle changes and adoption of healthy habits. It was also observed that although healthier eating habits were developed yet physical activity was increased with many participants losing weight. Ease of participating was the most reported reason for participating in the challenges.

Derbshire et al. (2013) evaluated the problematic Internet use and associated risks in college students. A sample of 2108 college students (56.9% female) was examined using a self-report Internet survey concerning demographic characteristics, Internet use, health behaviour, psychosocial functioning, and psychiatric co-morbidities. The IAT was used to determine the levels of problematic Internet use (limited / none or almost no use), mild use (typical user), moderate use (occasional problems) and severe use (frequent, serious problems)) and the MINI for testing for psychiatric problems. Results revealed that 237 students (12.9%) met criteria for limited Internet use, 1502 (81.8%) for mild Internet use and 98 (5.3%) for moderate to severe Internet use. Variables have been seen significantly associated with greater frequency of Internet use including lower grade point, average, less frequent exercise, higher PHQ scores (indicative of greater depression symptoms) and higher perceived stress scores.

Karl Peltzer et al. (2013) determined the associations between heavy Internet use and health-promoting behaviour, health risk behaviour and health outcomes among university students. The sample included 860 undergraduate university students chosen at random from University in Thailand. Of the participants, 27.3% were male and 72.7% were female in the age range of 18–25 years. Overall, students spent on average, 5.3 hours per day on the Internet, and 35.3% engaged in heavy Internet use (6 or more hours per day). In multivariate logistic regression, adjusting for socio demographics, lack of dental check-ups, three health risk behaviours (sedentary lifestyle, illicit drug use and gambling) and three health outcomes [being underweight, overweight or obese and having screened positive for post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD)] were found to be associated with heavy Internet use.

Rozita Jamili et al. (2013) explored the perspectives about the effects of Internet usage on students' personal and social behaviours along with the impact of these usages on their academic performance. To explore students' Internet usage behaviours and predicting outliers in student's community, investigators developed Web based data mining tool named Education Data Miner (EDMiner). This research study was





conducted with a sample of 5210 students from one engineering college in India during 36 months continually. The primary focus of this study was to extract Internet usage pattern of students by exploring proxy server access log files. These patterns were then used for identifying outliers in students' community by using clustering methods of factor analysis. Further, the relationship between Internet usage behaviours and various Academic and Non-academic activities were explored. Results revealed that 35 percent belongs to Websites under Extra-Curricular category. Whereas in case of curricular Websites, the results reported to be 24 percent. Moreover, results show higher average time spent on Internet results non-participation in other activities. This non-participation in other activities may prove to be an indicator for loneliness of these individuals.

Vasilis Gialamas et al. (2013) investigated students' perceptions about the impact of Internet usage on their learning and future jobs. The sample consisted of 448 students from the Early Childhood and Primary Education Departments at the National University of Athens, in Greece. Results showed that most of the students believe that Internet use in university study makes learning more interesting and effective, and that possessing Internet skills will assist their future job prospects. Results further shown that the more the years of digital experience and the higher the frequency of Internet usage, the more positive were students' perceptions regarding Internet's impact on their learning and future jobs. More years of digital experience resulted in less perceived complexity.

Ilknur & Yildirm (2012) examined the relation between problematic Internet use and healthy lifestyle behaviours among a sample of 1000 students from seven high schools in Sivas, Turkey. Data were collected using the problematic Internet usage scale and health promotion lifestyle profile. Results revealed that among male students, levels of problematic Internet use were significantly high in individuals using the Internet every day, those connecting to the Internet at home and those who use the Internet at least 5 hrs a day. Even though a weak negative correlation between problematic Internet use and healthy lifestyle behaviours was observed, gender and daily Internet use time also appeared to affect healthy lifestyle behaviours.

Keshtiaray & Akbarian (2012) qualitatively assessed the Internet users' experiences of cultural changes. The type of method is phenomenological. Research participants were 14 university students from Khorasgan Islamic Azad University with intensity



case sampling. The subjects were introduced by the administrator of the Internet site. Data collection was conducted through a semi-structured interview and the same were analyzed by Colaizzi 7-step method. Findings of this study, after excluding common codes, included 236 concept codes that represented the experiences of participants in this study. These are classified in three main themes as: 1- Change of Values such as Opinions, Beliefs and Morality (" Change of Beliefs " and " Lack of the Observation of Moral Laws"), 2- Norm Change ("Life Style Changing" that come from Change of Tasks Doing Way, Change of Communication Way, Accelerate of knowledge exchanging and Social Participation Changing and " Change of Identity "that come from False Freedom and Corruption, Distrust, Social Change and Change of Wearing Mode) and 3-A Change in Verbal Symbols ("Influence of English Words in Farsi"and" Getting Loan Terms from the Internet"). These findings indicate that students have acquired a lot of positive and negative experiences while using the Internet which have affected the norms, ideas, beliefs, ethics and verbal symbols showing cultural changes in the society which mostly affect the young.

Ligang Wang et al. (2012) explored the association between Internet use and adolescents' lifestyles. With data from a cross-sectional survey conducted in China in 2009, a model revealing the effects of Internet use on adolescents' lifestyles was established from a series of hierarchical regression analyses. Results shows that certain Internet habits, such as excessive online time, accessing the Internet in an Internet bar, and using the Internet for catharsis, are related to poor lifestyle habits in adolescents; however, using the Internet for purposes such as gaining knowledge and finding information positively predicts healthy lifestyles in adolescents.

Rina Dave (2012) carried out the research to find the habits of Internet-users (university student). Efforts are on to find the search requirements related to the use of the Internet information. Data were collected by using a questionnaire and follow-up interviews with Internet-users from students. It is revealed that the students are getting quality information through the Internet. They use the Internet in different ways, such as accessing to online journals, downloading software or text, chatting, discussion, E-mail services and for finding related references. It was unveiled that the Internet services are normally used for projects. Also it is observed that the Google and Yahoo search engines are more widely used compared to other search engines. The analysis reveals that majority of Internet-users always find useful information on the Internet



and believed that quality information is available on the Internet and finally, the studied population use print, online and offline form of information for updating their subject knowledge.

Aysegul & Nevin Kilic (2011) aimed to find out the purpose and prevalence of the Internet usage among university students, and to study some individual variables such as personality factors, psychological symptoms and social support in relation to Internet addiction. In addition, the relationships between Internet addiction and demographical variables have been explored. The sample consisted of 1198 university students, 672 female and 525 male, from state and private universities in Istanbul and Ankara. Internet Addiction Scale, Big Five Personality Inventory, Social Support Inventory, Brief Symptom Inventory and demographical information form had been used as measurement devices. It has been found that the mean duration the students spent for Internet in a day is 1.53 hour; 18.89 percent of the students could be defined as Internet addict and male students were found to have higher addiction scores than female students. In addition, the students from higher SES were found to have higher Internet addiction scores than the students from lower SES. The regression analyses results showed that the daily time spent for Internet (duration) and using Internet for social interaction, being in higher SES, to have lower life satisfaction and lower selfcontrol and to have higher neuroticism, anxiety and somatisation predict Internet addiction among university students.

Paulo Pinheiro et al. (2011) evaluated differences among people in the use of new information technologies as information source on Physical activities (PA), regarding their perceptions of benefits of an active lifestyle and characteristics of adequate physical activity to health improvement. The study included a randomly recruited sample of 879 subjects (53% males; 47% females), age 42.3 ± 19.4 years old. A survey was designed to (1) identify main information sources; (2) relate perceived knowledge and PA information sources; (3) relate knowledge retention on adequate PA for health benefits and PA information sources; (4) relate perceived necessity of more information regarding PA and information sources and (5) relate PA levels and information sources. Results show that generically, groups show no statistical difference, regarding perceptions of the benefits of an active lifestyle and characteristics of adequate physical activity, so, new information technologies exposure do not change significantly knowledge on physical activity/health relation.



This result should promote a reflection regarding what kind of information and technology should be considered, to increase active lifestyle adherence.

Richard Belanger et al. (2011) examined the relationship between different Internetuse intensities and adolescent mental and somatic health. Data were drawn from the 2002 Swiss Multicenter Adolescent Survey on Health, a nationally representative survey of adolescents aged 16 to 20 years in post-mandatory school. From a selfadministered anonymous questionnaire, 3906 adolescent boys and 3305 girls were categorized into 4 groups according to their intensity of Internet use: Heavy Internetusers (HIUs; >2 hours/day), regular Internet-users (RIUs; several days per week and \leq 2 hours/day), occasional users (≤ 1 hour/week), and non-Internet-users (NIUs; no use in the previous month). Health factors examined were perceived health, depression, overweight, headaches and back pain, and insufficient sleep. In controlled multivariate analysis, using RIUs as a reference, HIUs of both genders were more likely to report higher depressive scores, whereas only male users were found at increased risk of overweight and female users at increased risk of insufficient sleep. Male NIUs and female NIUs and occasional users also were found at increased risk of higher depressive scores. Back-pain complaints were found predominantly among male NIUs. Study provides evidence of a U-shaped relationship between intensity of Internet use and poorer mental health of adolescents. In addition, HIUs were confirmed at increased risk for somatic health problems.

Shields & Kane (2011) evaluated the relationship between frequency of Internet use (and types of use) and several social and psychological variables, alcohol and drug use, and academic achievement among 215 students at an urban, commuter university. Results revealed that frequency of Internet use was not related to symptoms of depression, but three of the types of use (starting the day on the Internet, visiting news sites, viewing videos) reduced symptoms of depression. Internet use was generally related to more face-to-face interaction, suggesting that Internet use is used to augment rather than replace social interaction. However, the significant relationships between Internet use and quality of relationships with parents and significant others tended to be negative. These results are discussed in relation to "The Rich Get Richer" and the "Social Compensation" approaches. Binge drinking and drug use were related to Internet use that might be used to promote social activities. Visiting a sexually explicit web site was the exception, and suggests it could serve a purpose



similar to substance use. Grade point average (GPA) was both positively and negatively associated with specific types of Internet use, but the most surprising finding was a positive association between GPA and visiting sexually explicit sites.

Vida Fallahi (2011) concentrated on the effects of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) on the youth behaviours. According to some studies people who have been using Internet more or in another word addicted to the net, are faced to the social isolation. To test the relationship between these two factors, ICT and social behaviour, a random sampling included 500 people were selected from the society of Shiraz University students. UCLA Loneliness Scale (Russell, 1996) and Young Scale for Internet addiction (Young, 1998) used for to data collection. The Results indicated that %13.2 of student's are addicted to the net and more result showed significant difference between differed users groups. Addicted group are more alone than other groups.

Yair Hamburger & Hayat (2011) analysed results from the World Internet Project, comprised of representative samples from 13 countries (22,002 participants). Thus creating an exceptional international representative sample. In order to achieve a comprehensive understanding of the Internet's influence over individuals' social lives; it is essential to consider the different types of social connections that might be influenced by the Internet. Influence of Internet use over social interactions in separate life domains (e.g. with family members; friends; colleagues). Analysis confirms that Internet usage can actually enhance the social lives of its users. Qualifications to the research are discussed while highlighting the different life domains in which we found significant correlations between Internet usage and increased social interactions.

Ju, Sun (2009) assessed students' Internet use behaviours and to determine the extent that Chinese college students' Internet use impact on their health and study. For this study, survey of college students that examines the nature of their Internet use is conducted. A statistic analysis about Chinese college students' Internet use behaviour is presented. The statistic results indicate that many college students in China used the Internet frequently and spent long hours online. The college students using Internet for entertainment has a large proportion in their Internet activities. College students use sex or violence Web-sites maybe have a significant impact on their health and study. A significant fact is that some students use Internet all-night, they are



infatuatedly online so that forget to eat and sleep. Some students are accustomed to using Internet by skip classes. These Internet use behaviour will seriously influence their study in campus.

Kim et al. (2009) examined the correlation of heavy Internet use and determine the associations of heavy Internet use with various health risk behaviours and healthpromoting behaviours among Chinese adolescents, an anonymous, self-administered health behaviour questionnaire was completed by 2427 matriculates into a Hong Kong university (mean age=18.9 years) and returned at compulsory health examination. Of students, 14.8% reported heavy Internet use (>4h/day) and such use was associated with lower likelihood of engaging in health-promoting activities such as exercising and seeking medical care. At the same time, heavy Internet use was correlated with multiple risk behaviours such as skipping meals and sleeping late as well as poorer health outcomes such as higher likelihood of being overweight or having hypersomnia. Given the double burden of poorer health outcomes and less health-promoting behaviour, heavy Internet-users represent a particularly challenging group for adolescent health promotion.

Louis Leung (2009) carried out the exploratory research is to examine the interlinkage among Internet connectedness, information literacy, and quality of life. Results based on a probability sample of 756 Internet users, found that Internet connectedness is not related to quality of life. However, there is a significant relationship between Internet connectedness and information literacy, and a strong link between information literacy and life quality.

Mohseni et al. (2008) investigated social isolation of Internet-users and type of their Internet use. There have been hopes and fears of the Internet's social impact since it emerged. Among different social impact this study focuses on the impact of Internet on people's social connection. The main question of this study is that whether Internet use affects people's social ties? A sample of 204 cybercafe users in Tehran was nominated to participate in the survey. Results indicated 66% of respondents found friends on Internet and 50% have met these friends out of Internet. Time spent online during the day has a negative relationship with social isolation. Analyzing the findings, it is appeared that the both Internet use and social use of Internet will be slightly associated with reduced level of social isolation.



Neil Selwyn (2008) used survey data collected from 1222 undergraduate students studying at UK higher education institutions; this study addresses students' engagement with the Internet as a source of academic information for their studies. In particular this study explores how academic use of the Internet is patterned by a range of potential influences such as students' wider Internet use, access and expertise, their year of study, gender, age, ethnic and educational background. Results revealed that students' academic Internet use is most strongly patterned along the lines of gender and subject-specialism rather than other individual characteristics or differences in technology access or expertise.

Gordon & Syed (2007) investigated the Internet use and well-being among college students, with focus on frequency of use. This study aimed to determine what students use the Internet for and how each of these affects their performance in college. A survey was performed on a representative sample of undergraduate students. This study identifies the top five types of Internet use reported by students in the sample. The five types identified were: emailing friends, getting help with school work, talking with friends, emailing family, and instant messaging. These uses did not differ significantly between genders. Frequency of Internet use was not found to be correlated with any of the well-being measures. It was found that the amount of time spent online was significantly associated with social anxiety. The findings in this study suggest that the specific type of Internet use relates to depression, social anxiety and family cohesion much more so than does frequency of use. It was also found that the Internet has become an important aspect of college students' lives. It was revealed that students mainly used the Internet to email family and friends, IM, talk with friends, and get help with school work. This shows that students were drawn to the Internet primarily as a means of communication with friends and family.

Cam Escoffery et al. (2005) examined the Internet use, health-seeking behaviours, and attitudes related to the use of the Internet to obtain health information among college students. The authors surveyed 743 undergraduate students at 2 academic institutions. Results showed that 53% of the respondents indicated that they would like to get health information online, and 28% reported that they would like to attend a health program online. Overall, 74% of the students reported having ever received health information online, and more than 40% reported that they frequently searched the Internet for information. They used various search engines and multiple Web sites



to find health information. Issues related to the credibility of the information on health Web sites were crucial considerations for students. The study also found differences in Internet use for health information by gender and by level of Internet experience.

Dennis & Moore (2004) investigated the relationships between the levels of identity development, Internet use and social anxiety among a sample of 161 older adolescents/young adults aged between 18 and 25. Results indicated that, for males only, higher levels of social anxiety and less mature identity statuses were associated with more frequent Internet use, specifically time spent in chatrooms, online browsing for personal use, and games. For females (who were in this sample less socially anxious, more identity-developed, and lower users of the Internet than males), social anxiety and identity status were not significantly associated with time spent online.

Itamar et al. (2003) examined the benefits of a dialogue with Making Better Career Decisions MBCD, by analyzing 712 users' perceptions of its contribution to their career decision-making process, and locating variables associated with these perceptions. A pre-dialogue and a post-dialogue questionnaire were used to collect the users' perceptions of its benefits and measure the change in the degree of decidedness. Perceived benefit was derived from participants' ratings of the degree of progress they had made in their career decision-making process, whether they had learned about additional factors to be considered and their career-related preferences, as well as their ratings of the quality of the list of "promising" career alternatives presented to them during their dialogue with MBCD. This composite perceived benefit was found to be positively associated with the users' decidedness at the completion of the dialogue with Making Better Career Decisions MBCD. Users' satisfaction with the length and variety of their personal "promising alternatives" list was associated with a higher perceived benefit.

Samuel and Tatia Lee (2001) determined the patterns of computer usage among adolescents and to examine whether computer usage is associated with less physical activity and social support among adolescents. 2110 secondary school students (52% boys and 48% girls) in Hong Kong completed a set of questionnaires to measure their computer usage and lifestyle. Mean age of the respondents was 14.16 years). Computer usage was taped by asking the students to indicate how much time (in minutes) they spent on the computer each day for doing homework assignments; playing computer games; "surfing" the Internet; and communicating with others. The



students also provided information on their social-physical lifestyle. T-tests and analysis of variance were used to examine group differences. Pearson product moment correlations were used to explore relationships between computer usage and lifestyle. Results revealed boys who use computers for doing homework, "surfing" the Internet, and communicating with others engage in more social-physical activities than others. Boys who use computers to play games tend to be more socialbehaviourally inactive. For girls, patterns of computer usage are not related to lifestyle. Computer users tended to engage in social-physical activities more frequently and had higher social support than nonusers. But among computer users, the amount of time spent daily on the computer was not associated with lifestyle. Instead, patterns of computer usage are more related to lifestyle and the relationship is moderated by gender.

2.2 (B). Studies on Internet and Attitude towards Research

Amadi & Ogunkunle (2014) determined the application of and preference for information and communication technology (ICT) among vocational education students in Niger Delta area of Nigeria. A structured questionnaire was administered to eighty students in the study area. Data was analyzed with the use of frequency, percentage and mean. The findings revealed that the application of and preference for information and communication technology was important in learning vocational education subjects. Approximately 90% of the respondents use World Wide Web (www) in their learning process. Also, 86.3% of the respondents use word processing in learning. The students use word processing for writing research projects and in taking notes in class. In the same vein, 81.3% of the respondents use a chat room for learning. Respondents agreed with the statement that ICT is used for writing research papers and agreed that Power point is useful in seminars and workshop presentations. Respondents also agreed that ICT is used for storing information based on speed and accuracy.

Abimbola & Airen (2013) investigated the influence of gender on the use of ICT among undergraduates in two university libraries in Nigeria. Undergraduates from three faculties were randomly selected to give a sample of 223, which is 30% fraction of the total population of 12,353. Questionnaire method was used for data collection. Results revealed that the undergraduates use ICT for the research purpose in addition to supportive course of study.





Bandele & Adebule (2013) investigated the patterns of graduate students' attitude to research in order to have insight into how they carried out their research work. The study employed the research design of the survey type. A sample of three hundred and sixty students from three faculties, Education, Arts and Social Sciences was selected using stratified random and judgemental sampling techniques. A 35 item questionnaire tagged University Graduating Students' Attitude towards Research Work (UGSATRW) served as instrument for data collection. The findings revealed that research work makes the students anxious, nervous, bored, and scared and that they would not have enrolled for the course if given opportunity. Also, the findings showed that, irrespective of type of gender and faculty of the students, a similarity in their pattern of attitude to research work. It can be concluded that almost all the graduating students had negative attitude towards research work.

Odede Israel (2013) investigated the attitudes of undergraduates in Delta and Edo states towards educational use of the Internet. The instrument used in collecting data was the questionnaire. 238 copies of the questionnaire were administered to the sample size which consists of undergraduates' information science students in Delta and Edo states. The questionnaire contained 8 items that have been structured to elicit information representing the undergraduates' attitude towards the educational use of the Internet since attitude are not directly observable, but can be inferred from responses given that show some state or disposition that has been engaged. The five items that met with the strongest agreement from the sampled undergraduates are 'the Internet is as important as other research tools' (91. 6%), 'using the Internet easier than using the library' (91.2%), 'Internet is a universal digital library' (90.8%), 'Internet can allow you to do more imaginative work' (88.2%), 'Internet has a potential to be an effective teaching/training tool' (87.8%). This finding revealed that undergraduates have positive attitudes towards educational use of the Internet.

Ibegwam et al. (2012) examined the utilization of Internet by post graduate students for research. The citation analysis method was employed to discover the extent of Internet sources use in the Thesis and Dissertations (TDs) written and submitted to the MOUAU Library. Results revealed on the whole, a total number of 327 TDs was studied representing all the submissions from 22 departments of 6 different colleges in MOUAU offering Master and Doctor of Philosophy programmes from the year 2000 to 2010. It was observed that Internet use in the Thesis and Dissertations (TDs)



studied was poor and insignificant in comparison to other sources of information used by the postgraduate students.

Thomas Babalis et al. (2012) examined the relationship between research attitude and innovative-creative thinking, as well as, the differences among men and women. The results indicated in-significant differences between men and women in the innovative-creative thinking. On the other hand, significant differences revealed between men and women regarding research attitude. Conclusively, the women showed a more "conservative" attitude preferring works characterized by explicit instructions and clear goals, while men showed that they choose works in which they have the opportunity to make personal decisions, indicating a preference on nonintegrated research works.

Alison & Eisenberg (2011) analysed college students' everyday life informationseeking behaviour and is based on findings from 8,353 survey respondents on 25 U.S. college campuses. A large majority of respondents had looked for news and, to a slightly lesser extent, decision making information about purchases and health and wellness within the previous six months. Almost all the respondents used search engines, though students planning to purchase something were more likely to use search engines, and those looking for spiritual information were least likely to use search engines. Despite the widespread use of search engines, the process of filtering relevant from non-relevant search results was reportedly the most difficult part of everyday life research. As a whole, these students used a hybrid information-seeking strategy for meeting their everyday life information needs, turning to search engines almost as much as they did to friends and family.

Chinwe Nwezeh (2010) assessed the impact of Internet resources and the evaluation of their usefulness on teaching, learning and research among university students. This study is based on a descriptive survey using questionnaires for data collection. The respondents constitute students (750) and academic staff (115) from OAU. Descriptive statistics (frequency counts and percentages) were used to analyze the data. Findings revealed that a majority of the surveyed academic staff and the students found the Internet to be very useful. Internet resources mostly used by both groups were e-mail and the World Wide Web (WWW). Search interfaces were used for looking for research information. It was discovered that the users were not given adequate user education to enable them make use of the Internet resources available.



Kaan & Gozen (2010) investigated the factors affecting students' attitudes towards participation in a scientific study based on their viewpoints. Data has been collected via a survey, which aims to gather information about the socio-demographic information of the individuals, the characteristics of the researcher, the characteristics of the assessment tool and the psychological traits of the individual, from a total of 86 students attending at Ankara University Faculty of Educational Sciences in the 2009-2010 academic years. The findings of the study reveal that there may be a relation between some variables and the university students' attitudes towards participation in scientific studies.

Milan & Katerina (2010) focussed on students' scientific competencies, measured their knowledge and provided questionnaires focussed on different aspects of life. This study based on the programme for International Student Assessment. One aspect was students' experience with information and communication technology (ICT). A secondary analysis of variance of the Czech Republic data (N=5,932 students) was conducted using the science knowledge test score and ICT familiarity items. The main result was that students who were connected in some way with ICT achieved better scores on the science knowledge test in comparison with students who were not. Furthermore, students whose ICT activity was connected with the educational process achieved a higher score in comparison with students whose ICT activity was not connected with the educational process.

Negahban Bagher (2010) assessed the extent of utilization and familiarity in accessing digital technologies of information among 97 post graduate students. The results revealed that in familiarity with accessing digital sources, more familiarity was found in journals on the Internet and less familiarity was observed for encyclopaedia on net, directories and yellow pages and digital libraries. The selected sample had more familiarity with book search and book shops on net, Internet relay chatting and email and less of teleconferencing on the net. Research scholars had higher familiarity with book search and book shops on the Internet than students.

Rehman Kashif et al. (2010) investigated Internet usage by students of the University, whether it is an effective learning tool for students and teachers and also examines the level of use Internet and whether the Internet is useful for distance learners. The sample of the data is taken from the universities of the twin cities (Islamabad and Rawalpindi). The quantitative technique for data analysis was SPSS.



The results revealed that most students find that the Internet knowledge is essential for students and teachers. Above all respondents in the questionnaire that students feel comfortable using the Internet and provides substantial information and half of those surveyed felt that Internet use is difficult in school. Results show that the Internet is easier to use then the collection of research tools, while the Internet is very important.

Biradar & Sampath (2008) investigated Students and Faculties' searching behaviour and the Internet use of search engines for retrieval of scholarly information. The study investigated the use of search engines, use of popular search engines, factor that influenced on search engines use, use of search strategy for information retrieval and also to know the methods of learning search strategy by students and faculties in the university background. 120 questionnaires were distributed to students and faculties of Kuvempu University, Shimoga. Of these, 100 users filled and returned the questionnaires. Equal number of students and faculties and also equal proportion of science and social science department's respondents were considered for the study.96% of faculties and 76% of students used Internet for different purposes. Many of the respondents reported that the information available on the Internet had proved to be a great asset and they responded that with Internet resources their professional competence were improved and they were abreast with the latest information. The most popular used search engines by students and faculties were Yahoo and Goggle. The factors influenced on the use of search engines were search engines popularity, more information and user friendliness.

Margam Madhusudhan (2008) focused on the use of e-resources by 64 research scholars and students of Kurukshetra University. It was found that the e-resources could be good substitutes for conventional resources, if the access was fast, and more computer terminals were installed to provide fast access to e-resources. Google was the most widely used search engine for locating information electronically.

Khare et al. (2007) examined to i) ascertain the knowledge of users about the Internet resources, ii) identify the popular search engines, iii) determine the level of their satisfaction with the services, and iv) suggest ways of providing better Internet services to users. Questionnaire was the methodology adopted for the study. A sample of 100 Ph.D. scholars representing 10 scholars from each of the ten faculties. It was found that 66% of research scholars use Internet and 34% were non users of Internet. Results revealed that the purposes of the users of Internet were educational, job



search, entertainment, communication and business. E-mail was the most commonly used Internet services and there were no users of TELNET and USENET service. Google, Yahoo, Web crawler were the most used search engines. The difficulties faced by research scholars in using the Internet were technical problems, language related problems and network related problems. Regarding the satisfaction with the information retrieved from the Internet, 42.42% users were of the view that retrieved information was not pin-pointed, 30.30% believed that information is sufficient, 19.7% believed that is not fully sufficient and 7.58% users believed that 50 retrieved information from the net was not sufficient for their research purpose.

Mahajan Preeti (2006) analysed the use of the Internet by the researchers at Punjab University, Chandigarh in all the three field of knowledge sciences, social sciences and humanities, so as to determine its influence on their academic life. 200 questionnaires were distributed, 80 researchers in sciences, 80 to researchers in social sciences and 40 to researchers in humanities. 80% of science researchers and 90% of social science researchers used Internet at their respective departments. But in the case of humanities researchers' cyber cafes were the Internet accessing point. 90% of science, 30% of social science and 5% of humanities researchers use Internet for academic purpose. The study revealed that researchers in sciences are more positive about Internet use and its impact on their educational needs. All the science researchers had gone online to access information from the e-journals that were available through the university library whereas only 40% in the social sciences and 5% in humanities were using online journals. Researchers use electronic resources more than paper resources as they were confident to find resources through Internet rather than paper resources. The other purposes of using Internet were document delivery services, online job seeking, publishing research papers in e-journals etc. The majority of researchers in all fields who used Internet for accessing information use search engines like Yahoo, Google, Infoseek and AltaVista. Most (99%) of the science researchers and 50% of the social science researchers agreed that Internet had a positive impact on their study and research, while researchers in humanities did not agree with the above statement.

Oghenevwogaga et al. (2005) explored how students are increasingly using the Internet to support instruction and research needs in addition to heavy e-mail usage. A questionnaire was used to survey a sample of students about their Internet practices.



Finding revealed that students are now coming to university with more background in technology and the role of the Internet and other ICTs. The demand for Internet service will continue to grow and how the university should respond to meet this greater demand is the focus of this research. The extension of this research suggests more positive impact from the Internet in almost every aspect of academic life.

2.2. (C). Studies on Internet and Academic Achievement

Eshaghali Azizi (2014) who assessed relationship between Internet competency (IC) and academic achievement (AA) among science students in bachelor level with various combination of subjects. This was a correlation study with prediction and analytical research. A total of 254 science students in bachelor level of final year were drawn randomly from the four chosen. One college under each type: Private Aided College, Private Unaided College, Government College and Mysore University Constituent College. One of chosen using convenience sampling technique. The IC questionnaire prepared by the researcher employed to assess IC in total and component wise. The data analyzed using Pearson's Correlation Coefficient and Multiple Regression. The findings indicated that component of information search significantly and negatively correlated with AA of science students in bachelor level. Further results showed that in total there was no significant positive relationship between Internet competency (IC) and academic achievement (AA) of Science Students in Bachelor Level.

Fauzi et al. (2014) assessed the students durations spent on the Internet for academic and non-academic purposes based on a survey on 1675 students randomly selected from five different fields of study, viz. social sciences, sciences, and engineering, agriculture and computer sciences. On average, the participants accessed the Internet 4.48 hours per day. There were also significant differences in the time spent using the Internet among students in different fields of study, with computer science students spending more time online (5.61 hours per day) than the others. In terms of Internet use for academic purposes, students in social sciences, agriculture and computer sciences scored the highest. In an analysis involving all the students in this study, the total time on the Internet was found to be weakly correlated with the time spent online specifically for academic purposes. For social science students, a low but significant positive correlation existed between the overall time spent online and the time spent on the Internet for academic research. In a similar analysis carried out for science



students, a negative low correlation was observed. In the fields of agriculture, engineering and computer sciences, however, no correlation was found between Internet access duration and the use of the Internet for academic purposes. The very low correlations encountered above, even though statistically significant, showed that students who spent more time on the Internet did not make much greater use of it for academic purposes as compared with students who used the Internet less.

Ibrahim & Mehmet (2014) analyzed the students' academic performance by comparing the blended learning environment and traditional learning environment. The investigator intended to find whether there exists any significant difference in the academic achievement grade dispersions between male-female students. The study has been carried out in 2010-2011 academic year first semester biology courses. For the study, two quantitative courses sections have been selected among the classes formed by secondary school senior students. Cluster analysis has been conducted to provide the objectivity when forming the experiment and control groups. The study has been conducted with 54 participants, 19 males and 8 females for the experiment group and 18 males and 9 females for the control group. The experiment group continued its education in blended learning environment and the control group continued its education in traditional learning environment. The created learning environments have focused the genetics topic of the biology course and lasted for 6 weeks. During the study, pre-test and final-test have been used for the academic achievement analysis. The results revealed that a significant difference could not be found between the two groups at the end of the pre-test applied to experiment and control groups. Besides, in accordance with the averages of the final test grades, the experiment group has been found to be more successful than the control group. In both the learning environments, female students have turned out to be more successful than the male ones.

Magwa Simuforosa (2013) provided an overview of the impact of modern technology on the educational attainment of adolescents. The purpose was to examine the relationship between adolescent usage of computers and academic performance. Within the qualitative research the case study design was adopted. Interviews and focus group discussions were the primary tools used to gather data. The study found out that modern technology impacts learning both positively and negatively.





Sunday Paul (2013) investigated the relationship between Internet browsing and students' achievement in Agricultural Science. A sample of 300 students was drawn from 10 schools from the five local government areas of Ogbomoso. Internet Browsing Pattern Questionnaire (IBPQ) and Agricultural Achievement Test (AAT) were used to collect data. Cronbach alpha correlation coefficient of 0.807 (IBPQ) and 0.9531 (AAT) were estimated for the instruments. Four research questions were answered. Descriptive statistics and Pearson product moment correlation were used to analyze data. Results revealed that majority of the students have access to the Internet. Most of the students that have access to the Internet browse more for non-educative information (socio-networking sites).The relationship between Internet browsing and students' achievement in Agricultural Science through positive are not significant.

Anomo & Oyenuga (2012) determined the impact of the use of Internet on technical college vocational students' academic performance, Nigeria. The purpose of the study among other things focuses on identifying the attitudes of students toward the use of Internet; to determine the purpose of Internet usage by students; to find out the intensity of Internet usage by students and to find out whether the use of Internet improves the academic performance of students or not. Survey method was adopted. Data were collected from one hundred and forty (140) technical college students in seven (7) technical colleges, Nigeria. Means and standard deviation were used to answer the research questions. Interviews were also conducted with students to compliment the data collected The findings of the study reveals that most of the secondary school students access computer connected to the Internet through the use of the cyber cafe or settings open to the public; the students spend more of their time outside the school and their homes to use the Internet; female students are more disposed to the use of the Internet for social networking than their male counterparts; most of the special sites students visit on the Internet are not for academic engagements or school work; most of the devices used are connected to the Internet through the use of modem and the use of Internet technology show significant relationship with students academic achievement and it motivates the students to get along with schoolwork.

Horzum & Mehmet Baris (2012) determined the effect of web based instruction on students' web pedagogical content knowledge, academic achievement and the general satisfaction of the course. The study was planned and completed according to pre test



and post test with control group experimental design. The study was carried out on 29 students. The web content knowledge of the students in both group showed significant change after the experimental procedure. The web pedagogical content knowledge and the attitudes towards web based instruction of the experiment group were found to be higher than control group after the course. Also the academic achievement of experiment group was higher than control group and there was no difference in course satisfaction.

Ela Goyal et al. (2011) examined the satisfaction and usability of Internet usage on students' assignment completion tasks and their performance. Using the extended task-technology fit (TTF) model. In the extended TTF model, technology resistance and technology usage was also considered. The study was conducted at a management institute in Mumbai and questionnaires were distributed to 221 post-graduate students. The results indicate that technology satisfaction and the Internet usage significantly explains the variance on students' performance. Task-technology fit is the predictor for Internet usage, whereas it is not a predictor for technology resistance. Technology Satisfaction is the predictor of Technology resistance, student's performance and Internet usage. Internet usage is the predictor of Technology satisfaction and student's performance. Since these factors are found to have a significant relationship with students' performance, the management and decision makers in universities and institutes need to give higher importance as to how students could use the Internet efficiently and effectively.

Scott et al. (2011) carried out an empirical investigation of the academic performance and the web-usage pattern of 2153 undergraduate students. Data from university proxy logs allows us to examine usage patterns and compared this data to the students' academic performance. The results showed a small but significant (both statistically and educationally) association between heavier web browsing and poorer academic results (lower average mark, higher failure rates). In addition, among good students, the proportion of students who are relatively light users of the Internet is reported significantly greater than would be expected by chance.

Zainol Bidin et al. (2011) aimed to investigate the factors influencing students' intention to use the Internet for academic purposes amongst 204 final year business students in public universities in Malaysia. This study integrated theory of planned behaviour (TPB) and theory of acceptance model (TAM) as the base model toward



that purpose. The research model employs the variables from both theories namely attitudes, subjective norms, perceived behavioural control, perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, intention, and behaviour. A multiple regression analysis provides empirical support for the applicability of integration of TPB and TAM in predicting students' intention to use the Internet for academic purposes. Results of the study showed that attitudes, perceived behavioural control, and perceived usefulness are statistically significant in influencing intention to use the Internet for academic purposes. It can be concluded that students' intention to use the Internet for academic purposes could be predicted from their attitudes, perceived behavioural control, and perceived usefulness at 49% level.

Zhu Yu et al. (2011) investigated the relationship between vocational students' information seeking activities on the Internet, academic self-efficacy and academic performance. Researchers propose that academic self-efficacy (both mediates and moderates) has the relationship with Internet information seeking and academic performance. Using survey data from 295 vocational high school students. Results revealed that the positive effect of Internet information seeking to students' academic performance is mediated through academic self-efficacy. Academic self-efficacy, at the same time, moderates the relationship between Internet information seeking to academic performance such that students' with low academic self-efficacy benefit more from Internet information seeking in regard to their academic performance.

Ahmet Aypay (2010) examined the ICT usage and academic achievement of Turkish students in Programme for International Student Assessment (PISA) 2006 data. The sample of the study included 4942 students from 160 schools. Frequencies, independent samples t-tests, ANOVAs, Pearson correlation coefficients, exploratory factor analysis, and regression analysis were used. A high percentage of students reported that they had access to computers. From the exploratory factor analysis, two factors were emerged: Computer usage for software purposes and computer usage for entertainment and Internet purposes. The factors found to be reliable. There was no significant relationship found between students ICT skills and academic achievement. The Turkish students were found to be similar in the general PISA findings. SES and gender differences were found.

Fariborzi Khodadadi (2010) determined the relationship between the amount of Internet usage and academic achievement in higher Education in Iran. This research



was a descriptive Correlational study. The participants in this study were students who were studying in the second semester 2007/08 in the Islamic Azad University-Mashhad Branch in Iran. SPSS version 16 was used for analyzing the data of study. The validity and reliability (=0.83) of instrument were tested. The result indicates that there was no significant relationship between the amount of using Internet and the academic level of student. Also, there was no significant relationship between the amounts of using Internet by instructors in class presentations or conferences and his/her help to students to know how to use Internet in the course affairs, students' tendency in competing, cooperation and participation in academic discussion with the amount of using Internet. However, there was a positive relationship between their attitude towards the effects of using database and digital library in learning the course content with the amount of using Internet. Finally, the finding displays there were not significant differences about the academic achievement between students who use Internet for learning the course and students who did not. The study reveals that maybe students who use Internet, they spent time for doing other tasks than the course.

Shamimul & Hasan Fouj (2010) explored the relationship between ICT and the performance of students at the undergraduate level. The research sample was taken from a group of undergraduate students studying BBA at ASA University Bangladesh (ASAUB). The study found that the impact of ICT on the academic performance of the students was very negligible. The findings also reveal that majority of the students are in the dark about the potential role of ICT in their academic life. Moreover it has been found in the research that the ICT access provided to the students are not utilized to enhance academic performance but it is rather a source of recreation.

Adel & Mounir (2008) examined the relationship between the use of information and communication technologies (ICT) and student performance in higher education. This study aims to summarise the main findings of the literature and to give two complementary explanations. The first explanation focuses on the indirect effects of ICT on standard explanatory factors. Since a student's performance is mainly explained by a student's characteristics, educational environment and teachers' characteristics, ICT may have an impact on these determinants and consequently the outcome of education. The differences observed in students' performance are thus more related to the differentiated impact of ICT on standard explanatory factors. The



second hypothesis advocates that ICT uses need a change in the organisation of higher education. While ICT equipment and use rates are growing very fast in the European Union, the adoption of complementary organisational designs is very slow and differs from one institution to another. This may explain the observed differences in students' achievement.

Alodied et al. (2008) explored the extent and effects of Intranet use on Ajman University students' achievement and self-confidence. This study used the quantitative method. Fifty-eight male and female students taking the Modern Education Technology course at Ajman University participated; 29 of them were put into the control group, and the other half in the experiment group. The study found that experiment group used the Intranet and more often than the traditional group. Students in the control group and the experimental group had a positive, high level of confidence in all items. Also, the study found that there was no significant difference in achievement based on the number of hours spent using the intranet; also, there is no significant difference in self-confidence or achievement between male and female students in the control group. In addition, the study found a weak correlation between self-confidence and achievement.

Chen & Peng (2008) examined the relationships between university students' Internet use and students' academic performance, interpersonal relationships, psychosocial adjustment, and self-evaluation. The study was based on data drawn from a national survey of college students in Taiwan. A stratified sample of 49,609 students (2005-2006 academic year juniors) was randomly selected from 156 universities (174,277 students). Students completed a questionnaire online. The results show that Heavy Internet-users and non heavy Internet-users differed significantly on a number of dimensions. Non heavy users had better relationships with administrative staff, academic grades, and learning satisfaction than heavy Internet users. Heavy users were more likely to be depressed, physically ill, lonely, and introverted than nonheavy Internet-users.

Yavuz et al. (2008) investigated the factors that affect learners' academic achievement and attitudes in web based education. 127 students enrolled in the e-MBA Masters Degree of Bilgi University constituted the study group of the research. A survey method was used for the study and the data were collected by a Demographic Information Questionnaire and Web Based Education Attitudes Scale



was administered to the e-MBA students. Then, the e- MBA Degree average course grades (GPA) were obtained from the department to determine academic achievement of the students. Results revealed that web based education have positive effects on the improvement of academic achievement. The effect of web based education on attitude toward learning suggested that web use had positive effects mainly on motivation for learning and interested in the lessons.

Qiping et al. (2007) analysed the performance of two groups of students studying in the traditional mode and the online mode in a master's program delivered by a Department of Computing at a university in Hong Kong. Over 2,000 students have participated in the study between 2000 and 2004. This study includes a comparison of the results between different delivery modes of study each year as well as between different classes over the 4-year period. Although traditional mode students have achieved a slightly better performance in examinations in comparison to online mode students, the research concluded with insignificant differences in overall performance among the students.

Kubey & Barrows (2001) intended to i) to find out the evidence which support the prevalence of Internet dependency among college students ii) ascertain whether Internet dependency is associated with self-reported academic problems. The study was conducted on students (N = 572) at Rutgers University who completed a 43-item questionnaire about their Internet use, study habits, academic performance and personality. 53 students (9%) reported that they might have become "a little psychologically dependent on the Internet" and could be considered Internet dependent; 80 students (14%) reported that their "schoolwork had been hurt" because of time spent online and could be regarded as experiencing Internet-related academic problems. Results further revealed Internet-dependent students were more likely to experience Internet-related academic problems than students who were not dependent on the Internet. In addition, Internet-dependent students reported spending significantly more time online as compared to students who were not Internetdependent and students with Internet-related academic problems reported spending significantly more time online as compared to the total sample. Furthermore, students with academic problems reported that they stayed up late, felt tired on the next day and missed class due to their use of the Internet. While female students accounted for



two-thirds of the sample, male participants made up almost half (49%) of the Internetdependent group.

Norshuhada Shiratuddin (2001) determined the effect of Internet instructional method on students' performance; two groups of unrelated students over a period of two semesters in Multimedia Design course offered at the School of IT, University Malaysia were used as samples. One group was taught with conventional teaching method and the other with Internet based electronic book. As this was a first attempt in deploying Internet in teaching environment, it was primarily employed as educational means of web courses and supplements to courses. This study reports a personal experience and a case study of implementing Internet based electronic book and the effect it has on students' performance in the course. Through hypotheses testing, it is conclude that employing Internet in educational settings proves to have significant effect on students' performance.

2.2. (D). Studies on Internet and Gender Differences

Amanda et al. (2013) who carried out the research to take a contemporary look at the gender differences. Using an online survey, investigators asked participants about their experiences with multiple forms of mediated communication: social networking sites, e-mail, video calls, instant messaging, texting, and phone calls. Results indicated that women, compared to men, are generally more frequent mediated communication users. Compared to men, women prefer and more frequently use text messaging, social media, and online video calls.

Ann & Maltby (2013) analysed the impact of the Internet on men's and women's lives. A content analysis of 200 postings from men and 200 from women, on the topic of "has the Internet changed your life" invited by a news website, was undertaken then examined for gender differences. Results showed more women's postings mentioned having made new friends or having met their partner, renewing old friendships, accessing information and advice, studying online, and shopping and booking travel online, while more men's postings mentioned that the Internet had helped or given them a career, positive socio-political effects, and negative aspects of the technology. The results are interpreted as supporting the view that the Internet represents an extension of broader social roles and interests in the "offline" world.

Chih-Hung & Gwung (2013) expressed the effect on the interpersonal relationships in terms of peer, parent-child, teacher-student, and net-friend from the gender



difference and various Internet usage perspectives. Data were gathered from 444 college students for structural equation modelling analysis. The results of this study revealed that Internet usage on social interaction and information seeking can positively affect all kinds of interpersonal relationships. Online game playing can enhance net-friend relationship, but is harmful to teacher–student relationship. Surprisingly, video watching can positively affect peer and parent–child relationships. Besides, through the intermediation of higher game playing, males have lower extent of teacher–student relationship and higher level of net-friend relationship. Contrarily, through the intermediation of lower video watching, males have lower extent of peer relationship and parent–child relationship.

Patrick et al. (2013) attempted to study the gender differences in urban adolescents Internet access, usage and motives. Data were collected from 914 students in Malaysia. Factor analysis revealed that eroticism, entertainment, social–interaction, shopping and information/surveillance are the key drivers for adolescence Internet usage. No differences between boys and girls were detected in Internet accessibility and home computer ownership. Boys and girls differed in their intensity of usage, place of access and their motivations to use the Internet. Girls were more motivated by social–interaction, shopping and surveillance/ information, while boys were more motivated by eroticism and had a higher tendency to be addicted to the Internet. However, boys and girls did not exhibit any significant differences in online entertainment motivation.

Anna Bujala (2012) carried out the research based on the Polish edition of the World Internet Project 2011 indicate gender differences both in the intensity of Internet usage and the ways in which it is used. Women spend less time online, have shorter experience online, and express less openness towards online relationships or services. The main gender difference in the kinds of activities undertaken online concerns entertainment-men engage much more often in activities such as playing games, listening to music or the radio, watching films, or looking for humorous content than women do. Having said that, it should be noted that the differences are not dramatic, indicating the small size of the "gender gap" among Polish Internet users.

Tao Hu et al. (2012) attempted to study the gender differences among college students in their usage perceptions of the Internet. A multiple-variable logistic model was proposed and tested using data gathered from 805 college students. The results of



the study suggest gender differences in usage perceptions of the Internet can be detected among college students. Specifically, the differences are reflected in that male college students have a higher level of perceptions of Internet self-efficacy, experience, and information overload than females.

Yousef Eyadat (2012) determined the level of Internet use as it varies by gender among university students in Jordan. A random sample of 278 students from one university of Jordan. Results of the study indicated that university students under study experienced excessive use of the Internet as indicated by the overall mean value and the results indicated that the university students under excessive use of the Internet neglect household responsibilities and neglect exams and courses to spend more time online. Results also indicated that there were no significant differences in the excessive use of the Internet based on differences in gender.

Christy & Lee (2011) explored the gender differences in student acceptance of an Internet-based learning medium (ILM). Specifically, the gender differences in the relative impact of both extrinsic and intrinsic motivations, as well as the social influence on student acceptance of an ILM. A total of 504 students participated in this study. Results revealed that attitude has the strongest direct effect on behavioural intention for both male and female students. Perceived usefulness influences attitude and behavioural intention to use an ILM more strongly for male students than it influences female students, whilst subjective norm is a more important factor determining female students' intention to use an ILM than it is for male students.

Loan, F.A. (2011) identified the gender variability in the Internet use of college students. The stratified sampling technique was employed to select students and data was collected via a questionnaire. The study confirms the existence of gender differences in the Internet use of the college students. However, the differences are slight for most uses. In comparison, more male students are frequent users of Internet than females. Female students use the Internet more than males for information and education whereas male students use the Internet more than females for communication and entertainment. Neither male nor female students record high use the Internet sources like online libraries, databases, e-books, e-journals, wikis, and blogs. The study also finds that both male and female students face problems like information overload and information pollution while searching the Internet, though



with slight variations. Finally, the problem of Internet illiteracy is found to be more common in female students than in their male counterparts.

Wong Su et al. (2008) carried out to investigate the gender disparity in Internet usage and the attitudes among 152 student teachers (80 females and 72 males) at a public Malaysian university. Results revealed no gender disparity in Internet usage; the female student teachers were found to spend as much time using the Internet as their male counterparts. The results also revealed that the students exhibited positive attitudes toward the Internet regardless of gender.

Alan & Zsolt (2005) analysed the gender experiences of computer self efficacy, computer anxiety and attitudes towards the Internet. Seventy-four female and 76 male Romanian university students, from a wide mixture of courses, completed a Computer Self Efficacy Scale, a Computer Anxiety Scale, and an attitude to the Internet Scale and gave information about their use of the Internet. Significant zero order correlations were obtained with the relationships being between higher computer self efficacy, lower computer anxiety, more positive attitudes towards the Internet and longer reported use of the Internet. Significant gender effects were found throughout, with males tending to report greater computer self efficacy, lower computer anxiety, more positive attitudes towards the Internet than females. However, regression analysis indicated Internet experience (use) was the only variable independently linked to gender.

Ann Brit (2005) investigated how attitudes towards the Internet technology differ between boys and girls, and how this affects their critical approach when seeking information. The approach is ethnographic, and the material was collected by means of observations, conversations, questionnaires, interviews, computer logs and reading documents. The analyses were made with the help of software for qualitative analysis, where all sentences both from interviews and field notes were coded. Some analyses were strictly quantitative and compared data from coded qualitative material with questionnaires and computer logs in a database sheet. Others were of qualitative nature and based on selected material from the coded texts. Results indicated that it cannot be seen that boys and girls have different interests in the Internet technology in practice. But boys talk about their knowledge to a greater extent, and this interplays with their reflections about the Internet's reliability.



Richard Joiner et al. (2005) investigated the effects of gender, Internet anxiety, and Internet identification on use of the Internet. The study involved 608 undergraduate students (490 females and 118 males). Researchers surveyed the students' experience with the Internet, as well as their levels of Internet anxiety and Internet identification. Results revealed gender differences in participants' use of the Internet. Males were proportionally more likely to have their own web page than were females. They used the Internet more than females; in particular, they were more likely to use game websites, to use other specialist websites, and to download material from the Internet. However, females did not use the Internet for communication more than males. There was a significant positive relationship between Internet identification and total use of the Internet. Controlling for Internet identification and Internet anxiety, study found a significant and negative correlation between gender and use of the Internet.

Madell & Muncer (2004) determined whether or not a gender difference exists in the Internet use activity and to inform later studies of more specific aspects of this activity among the English secondary school students. I300 students aged between 11 and 16 years old, were selected for the study. Among the respondents 50.5% were males and 49.1% were females. Questionnaires were distributed to the respondents for collecting data. In gender wise distribution 85.7% males and 80.2% females had used Internet. Respondents who were not using Internet stated that lack of access to Internet facility, lack of interest or motivation, lack of knowledge about how to use the Internet, cost of computer hardware and software and lack of time. For non-usage of Internet by gender wise distribution, girls were more likely to give the reason, "no one in house hold knows how to use it" than boys. In the use of E-mail, there was not a significant difference between the genders. However males were significantly more likely than females to use the Internet for the www. With regard to gender differences, it was found that the number of hours per week that males used the Internet was significantly higher than the number that females used it. Boys were more likely than girls to use the Internet for playing or downloading music, browsing to find out information about goods and services, buying or ordering goods, tickets or services, down loading software, including games and also using the net for accessing government or official services. However girls used the Internet more than boys for using E-mail, finding information related to education and using chat rooms or sites. There were significant



gender differences in finding out about new web sites/web pages via hyperlinks from other web pages, from Internet search engines and from Internet directories. Boys were more likely to use these methods than girls. More boys than girls were using Internet. But girls were more confused than boys while using Internet. Males did not perceive the Internet to be any more important in their lives than females.

Eric Weiser (2000) assessed the gender differences in specific uses of the Internet. The survey included 19 items and was made available to Internet users. For comparison, a paper-and-pencil version was administered to several hundred introductory psychology students. Numerous gender differences in preferences for specific Internet applications emerged. Results showed that males use the Internet mainly for purposes related to entertainment and leisure, whereas women use it primarily for interpersonal communication and educational assistance. However, additional analyses showed that several gender differences were mediated by differences in age and Internet experience.

Odell et al. (2000) used survey data collected from college students of institutions of higher learning in Georgia, considers these questions: (1) Has the gender gap in Internet use narrowed among college students to the same extent as it has in the general adult population? (2) Do female students differ from males in how they spend their time on the Internet? (3) Does family income, parental education or type of college influence female college students' use of the Internet? Results indicate that while the gender gap in use of the Internet has nearly closed, differences still remain in how male and female undergraduates use the Internet.

2.3. Studies on Related Variables

Abdullah et al. (2014) investigated 210 Jordanian English as a foreign language (EFL) student' perceptions use of the Internet for both general purposes (e.g., e-mail, chat, aimless browsing, games, and music) and EFL learning purposes (e.g., practicing various language skills, vocabulary, and structure through instructional software). The findings revealed that 47% of the sample reported using browsers to view documents, while slightly smaller percentages reported using the Internet for personal purposes, mailing lists and discussion groups, and e-mail. Furthermore, the majority of the respondents reported never or rarely using the Internet for any EFL learning purposes, except for 58% and 52% respondents, who reported using it for developing speaking skills through chat and locating authentic texts, respectively. The



findings further revealed a low correlation between the students' use of the Internet for general and EFL learning purposes. Class level, but not gender, was found to significantly affect the students' use of the Internet.

Bahman et al. (2014) noticed the amount of Internet usage and its effective factors among high school students of Khafr County (Fars Province) in the educational year of 2009-2010. The population of this descriptive survey research included all the male and female students of Khafr County. The sample of this study included 340 students of which 153 were males and 187 were females. To describe, categorize, and summarize the data, descriptive statistics that included simple frequency distribution tables were used and to investigate the hypotheses and theoretical model testing of the study, referential statistics of Kendall tau correlation coefficient was used. The results showed that the students used Internet in so many cases and that there is significant relationship between Internet dependence and educational downfall, leisure time, communicating with others, tendency to aggression, social isolation, and life satisfaction.

Shabana et al. (2014) focused on the trends of using Internet by the students of Sargodha University. It also examined the gender difference regarding Internet usage. The sample of the data was taken from the University of Sargodha. A survey of 252 students both male and female was randomly selected to participate in the study. The result of the study showed that most of the students of university consider Internet as a tool for information. They use it for study purposes. They think that Internet is an easier way to get information then library.

Razaque et al. (2013) examined the 200 students and the result revealed that, 36.5% of the students use Internet for entertainment. While 42.2% of the respondents use Facebook. However, 65.5% use Google website for searching the articles, reports and other material for their class assignments. The use of Facebook result showed that 42.2% of the respondents use Facebook. The result revealed that most of the students use Internet for entertainments and obtaining the information for making their assignments of the class.

Jalalinejad et al. (2012) investigated the prevalence of Internet addiction among the girls and boys university students and also the relationship between Internet addictions with anxiety. Participants were 330 students who randomly selected from different universities. The Questionnaires of Internet addiction and anxiety scale were


used as instruments for data collection in this study. The data were analyzed using mean, standard deviation, t-test and regression analysis. The results of this study demonstrated that prevalence of Internet addiction among boys' were more than girls and in science and engineering students were more than arts and humanities students. There was a significant difference among these four groups in anxieties.

Ofodu Graceful Onovughe (2012) examined the Internet use and reading habits of higher institution students in Ekiti State. The study was conducted using a descriptive survey research method. The population for the study consisted of one state university, one private university and a federal polytechnic. The simple random sampling technique was used to select the sample that was used for the study. 266 first year students from higher institution were randomly selected. This cut across all disciplines ranging from arts to science to engineering and social sciences, inclusive of both sexes. The survey instrument was a questionnaire titled 'Internet use and reading habits of higher institution students in Ekiti state'. All data were analyzed using simple percentages. Finding revealed that a large percentage of the respondents generally enjoy reading and it could be safely said that the reading culture of the students is favourable since the advent of Internet. It also reveals that large number respondents actually engage in activities that may not add value to their academic performance.

Ayyad, Khayrat (2011) compared the Internet usage vs. traditional media usage among university students of the University of Sharjah (UOS) in the United Arab Emirates. It adopts the 'uses and gratification' approach to explain how students are goal-oriented in their use of mass media and the Internet. A questionnaire was designed and tested on a sample of 270 students of the UOS. The questionnaire included 21 questions covering patterns of using traditional media (television, radio and newspapers) and the use of the Internet among students. Findings of the study show that patterns of exposure to mass media and new media among the students reflect the importance of the Internet in comparison to traditional media. All students access the Internet extensively and use it to gratify their personal needs, social needs and educational needs. Findings also show that the Internet has effects on students' exposure to traditional media. This finding indicates that while the effect of the Internet on watching TV and reading newspapers is obvious, its effect on listening to radio is moderate. The Internet is seen as one of the most important mediums and a



threat to traditional mass media. As for the differences between male and female students, findings of the study show that the gender of students has an obvious affect on his/her usage of mass media and the Internet. As for the Internet, while the main reasons for accessing the Internet among male student are to communicate through e-mails and to follow up current affairs, female students use the Internet mostly to entertain themselves and to search for information related to their studies.

Hatice Odaci (2011) designed a study to assess whether academic self-efficacy and academic procrastination can act as predictors of problematic Internet use among university students. The study group consisted of 398 students attending education, medicine, architecture and economics programs at the Karadeniz Technical University in Turkey. The Problematic Internet Use Scale, Academic Self-efficacy Scale, Academic Procrastination Scale and a Personal Data Form were used as scaling instruments. Pearson's correlation coefficient, multiple regression analysis, independent samples *t*-test and one-way ANOVA were used to analyze the data collected. The results show a significant negative correlation between academic self-efficacy and problematic Internet use, while the relation between problematic Internet use and academic procrastination was not statistically significant. Furthermore, academic self-efficacy was determined to be a significant predictor of problematic Internet use.

Munur & Tugun (2011) identified the university students' Internet usages. It's a type of descriptive study. This research has been existence about 169 students whose studying at Near East University. There are 35 questions to identify the student's demographical profiles in this questionnaire. After the accumulation of this questionnaire the data has been coded and has been analysed by SPSS statistics programme. Also frequency analysis has been done for all variabilities. Results revealed that the huge percentage of the students is using the Internet for researching and no differences found between the university's departments Internet usages.

Silvia & Tsai (2011) investigated the students' perceptions of three aspects of learning collaboration, self-regulated learning (SRL), and information seeking (IS) in both Internet-based and traditional face-to-face learning contexts. A multi-dimensional questionnaire was designed to evaluate each aspect in terms of perceived capability, experience, and interest. The analyses explore (1) potential differences of students' perceptions between Internet-based and face-to-face learning environments





and (2) potential differences in the three aspects in relation to learners' attributes and the use of the Internet and enrollment in online courses. This study surveyed students in a higher education institute who had had experiences with Internet-based and faceto-face learning. The results showed that students perceived higher levels of collaboration (capability only), SRL (capability and experience) and IS (capability, interest, and experience) in Internet-based learning than in traditional learning environments. In terms of students' education level, graduate students perceived higher levels of capabilities and interests in some of the aspects, than undergraduate students. In addition, for Internet-based learning, significant differences in collaboration and SRL were found derived from time spent on the Internet related to learning; and students' perceptions of collaboration, SRL, and IS were all positively correlated to students' online course-taking experience.

Shakes (2010) studied the attitudes of students at the Islamic University of Bahawalpur, Pakistan towards learning through the Internet. A structured questionnaire was used for data collection. It was found that a vast majority of the students learnt how to use the Internet by themselves or with the assistance of their friends. The findings showed that their attitude towards the Internet was very positive and they used it mainly for study purpose. They used online databases, dictionaries, encyclopaedias and online courses. Google was the most popular search engine for retrieving information on the Internet.

Sudhier & Seethalekshmi (2011) examined the use of e-resources by the students and research scholars of Faculty of Arts in the University of Kerala. 127 questionnaires were distributed among the respondents from the six departments of the faculty of Arts, out of which 120 were returned. Results show that 56.67% of the respondents use Internet for educational purposes and 19.16% of respondents use Internet for checking e-mail. Google is the most preferred search engine for the most of the respondents. Yahoo is their second choice. The purpose for the use of e-resources revealed that 49.2% respondents use e-resources mainly for academic purposes, 27.5% respondents for seminar presentations and 11.7% use for project works. The study revealed that Internet resources are the most used e-resources among the respondents from the Arts Faculty.

Maharana et al. (2010) designed a study to find the necessity and usage of the Internet and e-resources by 91 students undertaking the master's course in Business



Administration in Sambalpur University, Orissa, India. The investigation result showed that majority of the students have a long experience of using Internet for 2-4 years and all were more or less aware of the applications of Internet technology. More than half of the students surveyed in the study strongly felt that management study would be severely affected without the use of the Internet and e-resources.

Michael et al. (2008) aimed to assess the level of penetration of Internet usage among undergraduate students in Nigeria using Obafemi Awolowo University as a case study. Result showed that about 92% of undergraduate students have embraced the Internet and are using it consistently. The online mean time is 3.5hrs/week while on the average, undergraduate experience of Internet usage is about 4years. Results revealed that the students use the Internet mostly for e-mail, information search and online chatting; all of these were found to have significant impact on their academics and social life. Further analysis revealed that gender attitude is also an important issue; male students use it more than the non-science based students.

Mohammad Nazim (2008) focused the results of a survey conducted at Aligarh Muslim University (AMU) to determine the extent to which Internet-users are aware and make use of the Internet resources and services. The study examines the information searching behaviour of Internet users. A questionnaire and follow-up interviews with the postgraduate students, research scholars and academic staff were conducted to collect data. A total of 489 questionnaires were distributed to the selected sample of eight faculties; 405 valid samples were collected. The data were analyzed according to the background of Internet users, Internet information searching behaviour, use of Internet resources and services, quality of Internet information, problems of the Internet access and need for Internet literacy. The study found that the majority of respondents had a 5 year history of Internet access. The academic staff spent more time on the Internet than the students and research scholars. Although Internet search engines were the preferred information searching tool, other methods such as databases, gateways and World Wide Web (WWW) were also used. Online journals and databases were the preferred information sources among the Internet users. Respondents chose e-mail, WWW and search engines as important Internet services. About 60% of respondents believed that the good quality of information on the Internet made it a useful tool for education and research. Slow



speeds, lack of training and information overload were indicated as some of the factors affecting Internet usage.

Odunlade (2008) identified the extent of students' access to and use of the Internet by science undergraduate students of university of Ibadan and university of Lagos as a case study. The study also aimed at comparing the rate of use among this group of students and determines which is mostly used between the Internet and the Library. The research showed that majority of science undergraduate students do make use of the Internet because it was considered to provide wide coverage of information, contains adequate and current information, it is quickly and easily accessible, it provided electronic journals. The studies further revealed Net provided the student resource to carry out assignment enhances their knowledge and allow them to communicate faster. It was discovered that though a greater percentage of the reasons were inadequacy of library materials, obsolete materials and poor library conditions.

Sakina et al. (2008) presented the results of a survey of the undergraduate, graduate and post graduate students of the University of the Punjab, Lahore, Pakistan. The objective of the study was to explore the Internet use behaviour of students. The results show that most of the students use this technology for course related reading and research needs. They use it at the University Library's Digital Lab Unit as well as their departments and homes. A large number of them have learnt to use the Internet tools by themselves, or relying on assistance from friends without attending any formal training programs. Ease of work and time saving are the reasons of Internet use among university students. Google as a search engine and Yahoo as an email service are the most popular among students.

Arulchelvan (2007) analysed the patterns of Internet usage among different categories of students. Examining notions on the possession, purpose, frequency, timing and duration of usage of Internet in higher education, the study also assessed the outcomes indicated by user satisfaction. The study found that Internet enjoys high popularity among students for educational usage and that its effectiveness is satisfactory the online contents match the curriculum requirements.

Beverly et al. (2007) assessed the Internet use, abuse, and dependence. Sample comprised of 411 undergraduate students. Results revealed that 90% participants reported daily use of Internet. Approximately half of the sample met the criteria for



Internet abuse, and one-quarter met the criteria for Internet dependence. Men and women did not differ on the mean amount of time accessing the Internet each day; however, the reasons for accessing the Internet differed between the two groups. Depression had a correlation with high frequency usage of Internet to meet people, socially experiment, and participate in chat rooms, and with less frequent face-to-face socialization. Besides, individuals meeting criteria for Internet abuse & dependence endorsed more depressive symptoms, more time online, and less face-to-face socialization than did those not meeting the criteria.

Ammobi Chinwe (2006) identified the rate and purpose of Internet use by students in order to be well positioned to provide effective Internet services to them. The study was conducted on 1200 students of Federal University of Technology Nigeria. Questionnaire was randomly distributed to 1200 students out of which 67.6% were returned. The survey showed that 95.5% male and 90.4% female students had used Internet. Most (50.2%) of the students accessed Internet only once in a week and only 3.5% used Internet daily. Students used Internet for the purposes such as entertainments and sports, academic purposes, correspondences and social and business purposes. The areas of academic activities these students focused on the Internet included according to their responses are knowledge improvement, collection of materials for assignment and collection of materials for research, projects and assignment. The enumerated purposes were achieved through accessing and downloading academic material, access and downloading software, visiting other university sites and sending or receiving e-mails.

Anasi (2006) examined the pattern of Internet use by undergraduate students at the University of Lagos, Nigeria. It revealed that the level of Internet use is low among undergraduate students from both the Faculty of Education and Faculty of Law. It also revealed that though majority of the students browse the Internet many of them cannot design search strategies. However, the study showed that Internet use has very high impact on the academic/career related activities of the students.

Kumar and Kaur (2005) analysed the Internet use in the Engineering Colleges of Punjab, India. Questionnaire was employed to sample opinion of 474 students. It was revealed that 30.8% of the students have 2 - 4 years of experience in using the Internet followed by 1 - 2 years with 27.4%. A majority of the respondents used the Internet located at the college; use Internet for education and research purposes, while



half of them use it for communication purpose. More than half of the students use the Internet for consulting technical reports. It was further indicated that the major problem faced by the users was slow access speed of the Internet. In comparing Internet with conventional documents, 91.6% of the respondents noted that the Internet is easy to use, 89.1% agreed that it is informative and 88.1% felt it is time saving.

Chung-Chuan Yang (2000) discussed whether academic homosexual individuals perceive the Internet to be more fair and impartial in terms of news reporting than traditional mass media and to investigate why they use the Internet. This study employs a questionnaire survey method to collect data in Taiwan. The quantitative survey data (N=701), from a self-completed questionnaire using modified snowball sampling technique. Principal component analysis with Varimax rotation led to seven factors that account for 66.31% of the variance. These factors are social interaction and information, entertainment and relaxation, personal revelation, preference, privacy and escapism, pass time and, novelty-seeking. Correlation analyses also suggested those respondents' demographics, Internet usage frequency and, time are associated with their use motivation.

Anderson (2001) identified how the students' use of Internet has affected their academic and social lives. Investigator surveyed 1300 college students in classrooms at 8 academic institutions, 7 in the United States and 1 in the Ireland. Investigator motivated to do the research by some case studied and data were collected through open-ended questionnaires. Results found that, one-tenth of college students are dependent on Internet. Nearly 10% of Internet using college students spends enough time online. Their usage meets criteria for Internet dependence. Results also showed that, students majoring in the hard sciences i.e., Chemistry, Math, Engineering, Physics and Computer Science spent significantly more time online than other students.



Overview

The overview of related literature involves locating, reaching and evaluation of research as well as the reports of casual observation and the opinions that are related to the researchers' planned research project. Overview provides a comprehensive coverage of the researches related to the topic. Investigator relatively to frame a summary of the previous researches which indicate the areas of agreement or it is presumed that the survey of related studies will make the present investigation more direct and to the point. The general purpose of the overview is to help the researchers develop a thorough understanding and insight into work already done on the areas left untouched and unexplored. One hundred twenty-two studies have been discussed in the present chapter under six captions, but the divergent results have come out. Besides, number of studies which also have shown contradictory results. The comprehension of all these studies present as under:

1. Studies on Internet-users and Internet Non-users

Few studies have been conducted on Internet-users and Internet Non-users as:

Ali, Zarqa (2014) revealed Internet-users and non-users with different perceptions. The non-users disagree with the scope of the Internet in their academic activities while the users agree that the Internet has a positive role in academic pursuits. Cliff & Nicole Ellison (2013) compared non-adopters against users on three dimensions of use. Light users often experience social capital outcomes similar to, or worse than, non-users, and heavy users reported higher perceived bridging and bonding social capital than either group. Ibia & Ekott (2013) indicated significant gender and age differences in Internet usage; significant differences in social skills development, social tolerance and pattern of behaviour between Internet-users and Non-users while a strong relationship were established between Internet usage and social skills development. It has also been observed that Internet usage negatively affected social skills development of youths. Narimani et al. (2013) showed that there is a significant difference between the means of two groups, using Internet and not using, and the variables of mental health and aggression. Results revealed that students using Interne report more unfavourable mental health and aggression control than the students not using. Orose Leelakulthanit (2013) revealed the Internet-users as more satisfied with their lives than the non-Internet users. Internet-users value optimism, personal health,



and self positively. The non-Internet users' value optimism, internal locus of control, and family positively, whereas being moderate user, social life were valued negatively. Pavica Sheldon (2012) compared average Face book users and Non-users, concluded that Non-users are significantly higher on mean scores on shyness and loneliness. Non-users, on the other hand are reported less socially active, and less prone to sensation seeking activities. Soudeh & Masoud (2011) found sensation seeking of Internet dependents significantly different from non-dependents. Internet dependents showed significantly higher scores on subscales of thrill and adventure seeking no inhibition and boredom susceptibility compared with non-dependents. Sujatha (2011) revealed the rate of Internet use more among the students of Commerce and Science faculty as compared to the faculty of Arts. However, majority of the students expressed their interest in the use of the Internet and its resources and seemed to be enthusiastic in improving their skills in the use of the Internet. Zarga Ali (2011) revealed that the Internet has brought family members closer to each other, enhancing the unity among them and strengthening the family ties which have increased the sense of responsibility among youth. The perception of males and females was not significantly different. However, the perception of users and nonusers of the Internet was different. Elisabeth et al. (2009) revealed age and education as major determinants of attitude patterns towards Internet and new technologies. The influence of the affective component has to be especially emphasized, not only when overcoming the initial obstacle of getting online, but also when it comes to willingness to learn and become a sophisticated user (second order digital divide). John & Stven Martin (2009) found Internet-users expressed most general social Survey items, however, either there were no differences between Internet-users and non-users, or the differences could be explained by age, education, race, and gender or income factors. Pierce (2008) found that those who used various communication technologies had significantly lower grades than those who did not. Teens who used various communication technologies while doing their homework reported having lower grades than those who did not use the technology while doing their homework. Shu Ching & Tung (2007) revealed that Internet addicts spent almost twice as many hours on line on average than the non-addicts. Internet addicts obtained markedly scored higher than non-addicts on four subscales (tolerance; compulsive use and



withdrawal; related problems, including family, school, health, and other problems; interpersonal and financial problems). While Internet addicts perceived the Internet to have significantly more negative influences on daily routines, school performance, teacher and parental relation than non-addicts. *Alan & Robinson (2002)* found Internet-users reported spending more evenings with friends than nonusers and fewer evenings with relatives and neighbour. *Ofosu (2001)* revealed Internet dependents showed more perceived social support than non-Internet dependents. Internet dependents felt more inclined to use the Internet to search for the social support that they were lacking in their conventional face to face relationships with their family and friends. It has been observed that there was a strong association between Internet-dependence and dissociation. Internet dependents expressed significantly more social loneliness than family or romantic loneliness as compared to non-Internet dependents.

2. Studies on Internet and Life Style

Various studies have been conducted on Internet and lifestyle as:

Nasir Younis (2014) reported university students with a low score in the total healthy lifestyle habits and female with higher than those of male. Azizah et al. (2013) revealed that, Internet addiction causes lower academic performances, bad personality and unhealthy lifestyle. There were significant differences in academic performances, personality and lifestyle between "Average user" and "Excessive user". Binnaz et al. (2013) revealed that there is a meaningful relationship between Internet use and loneliness scores, whereas no relationship was observed with social self-efficacy scores. On the other hand, students with a higher score on Internet use have a higher degree of loneliness as compared to students who have moderate and low degree of Internet use. Chih Hung et al. (2013) showed that problematic Internet use predicted negative changes in lifestyle including a reduction of physical and social activities, irregular diet and unhealthy sleep. Cynthia Shuster et al. (2013) indicated that students gained knowledge on nutrition, health and fitness topics while making strides towards lifestyle changes and adoption of healthy habits from online, technology. Derbshire et al. (2013) revealed that greater frequency of Internet use included lower Grade Point Average, less frequent exercise (indicative of greater depression symptoms) and higher Perceived Stress Scores. Karl Peltzer et al.(2013) revealed that there are three health risk behaviour (sedentary lifestyle, illicit drug use and



gambling) and three health outcomes [being underweight, overweight or obese and having screened positive for post-traumatic stress disorder] were found to be associated with heavy Internet use. Rozita et al. (2013) revealed that the Internet usage adversary affects the academic performance. Moreover, results show higher average time spent on Internet did result into nonparticipation in other activities, which are very essential for the growth of the students. Vasilis Gialamas et al. (2013) showed that students believe that Internet use in university study makes learning more interesting and effective, and that possessing Internet skills will assist their future job prospects. More the years of digital experience higher the frequency of Internet usage. Ilknur & Yildirm (2012) found weak negative correlation between problematic Internet use and healthy lifestyle behaviour, gender and daily Internet use time also appeared to affect healthy lifestyle behaviour. Keshtiaray & Akbarian (2012) indicated that university students have acquired a lot of positive and negative experiences while using the Internet which have affected the norms, ideas, beliefs, ethics and verbal symbols. Ligang Wang et al. (2012) revealed that certain Internet habits, such as excessive online time, accessing the Internet in an Internet bar, and using the Internet for catharsis, are related to poor lifestyle habits in adolescents; however, using the Internet for purposes such as gaining knowledge and finding information positively predicts healthy lifestyles in adolescents. *Rina Dave* (2012) revealed that the majority of Internet-users always find useful information on the Internet and believed that quality information is available on the Internet. They use the Internet in different ways, such as accessing to online journals, downloading software or text, chatting, discussion, E-mail services and for finding related references. It was unveiled that the Internet services are normally used for projects. Also it is observed that the Google and Yahoo search engines are more widely used compared to other search engines. Aysegul & Kilic (2011) showed that the daily time spent for Internet (duration) and using Internet for social interaction, being in higher socio-economic status to have lower life satisfaction and lower self-control and to have higher neuroticism, anxiety and Internet addiction among university students. Paulo et al.(2011) revealed that new information technologies exposure do not change significantly knowledge on physical activity/health relation Richard et al. (2011) examined heavy Internet-users of both genders were more likely to report higher



depressive scores, whereas only male users were found at increased risk of overweight and female users at increased risk of insufficient sleep. Male non-Internetusers and female Internet-users and occasional users also were found at increased risk of higher depressive scores. Shields & Kane (2011) found frequency of Internet use was not related to symptoms of depression, but three of the types of use (starting the day on the Internet, visiting news sites, viewing videos) reduced symptoms of depression. Internet use is used to replace social interaction. However, the significant relationships between Internet use and quality of relationships with parents and others tended to be negative. Vida Fallahi (2011) indicated that some students are addicted to the net and more result showed significant difference between differed users groups. Addicted group are more alone than other groups. Yair et al. (2011) revealed that Internet usage can actually enhance the social lives of its users. Different life domains in which significant correlations between Internet usage and increased social interactions was found. Ju Sun (2009) indicated that the college students using Internet for entertainment maybe have a significant impact on their health and study. A significant fact is that some students use Internet all-night, they are infatuatedly online so that forget to eat and sleep and skip classes and this behaviour will seriously influence their study. Kim et al. (2009) confirms heavy Internet use was associated with lower likelihood of engaging in health-promoting activities such as exercising and seeking medical care which results skipping meals and sleeping late as well as poorer health outcomes. Louis Leung (2009) found that Internet connectedness is not related to quality of life. However, there is a significant relationship between Internet connectedness and information literacy, and a strong link between information literacy and life quality. Mohseni et al. (2008) revealed that time spent online during the day has a negative relationship with social isolation. It is appeared that the both Internet use and social use of Internet will be slightly associated with reduced level of social isolation. Neil Selwyn (2008) found students' academic Internet use is most strongly patterned along the lines of gender and subject-specialism rather than other individual characteristics or differences in technology access or expertise. Gordon & Syed (2007) found that the amount of time spent online was significantly associated with depression and social anxiety. Cam Escoffery et al. (2005) showed that majority of the students indicated that they would like to get health information online, and



attend a health program online. The study also found differences in Internet use for health information by gender and by level of Internet experience. *Dennis & Moore* (2004) indicated that, for males only, higher levels of social anxiety and less mature identity statuses were associated with more frequent Internet use. For females (who were in this sample less socially anxious, more identity-developed, and lower users of the Internet than males), social anxiety and identity status were not significantly associated with time spent online. *Itamar et.al* (2003) revealed that composite perceived benefit was found to be positively associated with the Internet users' decidedness at the completion of the dialogue with making better career decisions. *Samuel and Tatia Lee* (2001) revealed computer users tended to engage in social-physical activities more frequently and had higher social support than Nonusers. But among computer users, the amount of time spent daily on the computer was not associated with lifestyle. Instead, patterns of computer usage are more related to lifestyle and the relationship is moderated by gender.

3. Studies on Internet and Attitude towards research

Some studies have been conducted on Internet and attitude towards research as:

Amidic et al. (2014) who revealed that the application of and preference for information and communication technology was important in learning vocational education subjects. Students use World Wide Web (www) in their learning process and use word processing for writing research projects and in taking notes in class. They also agreed that ICT is used for storing information based on speed and accuracy. Abimbola & Airen (2013) revealed that the undergraduates used ICT for research purpose and to support course of study. Bandele & Adebule (2013) revealed that research work makes the students anxious, nervous, bored, and scared and that they would not have enrolled for the course if opportune. Irrespective of type of gender and faculty of the students they are similar in their pattern of attitude to research work, almost they had negative attitude towards research work. Odede Israel (2013) found students have positive attitudes towards educational use of the Internet and used it as important tool for research and they believed that 'using the Internet is easier than using the library. Ibegwam et al. (2012) revealed that Internet use in the Thesis and Dissertations studied was poor and insignificant in comparison to other sources of information used by the postgraduate students. This is contrary to the



findings in some recent studies where graduate students were reported to have made high use of the Internet for Thesis and Dissertations research. Thomas et al. (2012) indicated insignificant differences between men and women in the innovative-creative thinking. On the other hand, significant differences revealed between men and women regarding research attitude. Alison & Eisenberg (2011) revealed that students used a hybrid information seeking strategy for meeting their everyday life information needs, turning to search engines almost as much as they did to friends and family. Chinwe, Nwezeh (2010) revealed that a majority of the surveyed academic staff and the students found the Internet to be very useful. Both groups used World Wide Web for research information. Kaan & Goksu (2010) revealed that there may be a relation between some variables and the university students' attitudes towards participation in scientific studies. Milan & Vickove (2010) found that students who were connected in some way with ICT achieved better scores on the science knowledge test in comparison with students who were not. Students whose ICT activity was connected with the educational process achieved a higher score in comparison with students whose ICT activity was not connected with the educational process. Negahban & Bagher (2010) revealed that students have more familiarity was found in journals, book search and book shops on the Internet and less familiarity was observed for chatting, email, encyclopaedia, directories and yellow pages. Rehman et al. (2010) revealed that most students are comfortable using the Internet and provide substantial information and easier to use then the collection of research tools. Biradar et al. (2008) found that the information available on the Internet had proved to be a great asset. The most popular used search engines by students and faculties were Yahoo and Goggle. Margam (2008) found that the e-resources could be good substitutes for conventional resources. Google was the most widely used search engine for locating information electronically. Khare et al. (2007) found that majority of research scholars use Internet and less percentage of research scholars were non users of Internet. The purposes of the users of Internet were educational, job search, entertainment, communication and business. Some believed that information is sufficient and some users believed that retrieved information from the net was not sufficient for their research purpose. Mahajan (2006) revealed that researchers use electronic resources more than paper resources as they were confident to find



resources through Internet rather than paper resources. The other purposes of using Internet were document delivery services, online job seeking, publishing research papers in e-journals etc. Most of the science researchers and social science researchers agreed that Internet had a positive impact on their study and research, while researchers in humanities did not agree with the above statement. *Oghenevwogaga et al.* (2005) revealed that students are now coming to university with more background in technology and the role of the Internet and other ICTs. The demand for Internet service will continue to grow and how the university should respond to meet this greater demand.

4. Studies on Internet and Academic Achievement

Several studies have been carried out on Internet and academic achievement as:

Eshaghali Azizi (2014) indicated that component of information search is significantly and negatively correlated with academic achievement of science students with different combination of subjects. No significant relationship between Internet competency and academic achievement of science students was established. Fauzi et al. (2014) found computer science students spending more time online than the others. Social science students, a low but significant positive correlation existed between the overall time spent online and the time spent on the Internet for academic research. Science students, a negative low correlation was observed. In the fields of agriculture, engineering and computer sciences, however, no correlation was found between Internet access duration and the use of the Internet for academic purposes. Ibrahim & Demirkolb (2014) revealed that the academic performance of the students from the blended learning environment group has been found more successful than the students from traditional learning environment group. In both of the learning environments, female students have turned out to be more successful than the male students. Magwa Simuforosa (2013) found out that modern technology impacts learning both positively and negatively. Sunday Paul (2013) revealed that most of the students that have access to the Internet browse more for non-educative information (socio-networking sites). The relationship between Internet browsing and students' achievement was not significant. Anomo & Oyenuga (2012) revealed that female students are more disposed to the use of the Internet for social networking than their male counterparts; most of the special sites students visit on the Internet is not for academic



engagements. Use of Internet technology show significant relationship with students' academic achievement. Horzum & Baris (2012) revealed pedagogical content knowledge and the attitudes towards web based instruction of the experiment group were found to be higher than control group after the course. Also the academic achievement of experiment group was higher than control group and there was no difference in course satisfaction. Ela Goyal et al. (2011) indicated that technology satisfaction and the Internet usage significantly explains the variance on students' performance. Technology Satisfaction has been found the predictor of Technology resistance, student's performance and Internet usage. Internet usage is the predictor of Technology satisfaction and student's performance. Scott et al. (2011) found small but significant (both statistically and educationally) association between heavier web browsing and poorer academic results (lower average mark, higher failure rates). Zainol et al. (2011) revealed that attitude, subjective norms, and perceived behavioural control are statistically significant in influencing intention to use the Internet for learning purposes. Students' intention to use the Internet for academic purposes could be predicted from their attitude, subjective norms, and perceived behavioural control. Zhu et al. (2011) revealed that the positive effect of Internet information seeking to students' academic performance is mediated through academic self-efficacy. Academic self-efficacy, at the same time, moderates the relationship between Internet information seeking to academic performance such that students' with low academic self-efficacy benefit more from Internet information seeking in regard to their academic performance. Ahmet Aypay (2010) revealed that there was no significant relationship found between students ICT skills and academic achievement. Fariborzi & Khodadadi (2010) found that there was no significant relationship between the amount of using Internet and the academic level of student. There were not significant differences about the academic achievement between students who use Internet for learning the course and students who did not. Shamimul & Hasan Fouj (2010) revealed that majority of the students are in the dark about the potential role of ICT in their academic life. Moreover it has been found in the research that the ICT access provided to the students are not utilized to enhance academic performance but it is rather a source of recreation. Adel & Moony (2008) revealed that the student's performance is mainly explained by a student's characteristics, educational



environment and teachers' characteristics; ICT may have an impact on these determinants and consequently the outcome of education. The differences observed in students' performance are thus more related to the differentiated impact of ICT on standard explanatory factors. Alodied et el. (2008) found that there was no significant difference in achievement based on the number of hours spent using the intranet; also, there is no significant difference in self-confidence or achievement between male and female. Yavuz et al. (2008) revealed that web based education have positive effects on the improvement of academic achievement. The web based education had positive effects mainly on motivation for learning and interested in the lessons. Chen & Peng (2008) revealed that Non-heavy Internet-users had better relationship with administrative staff, academic grades and learning satisfaction than heavy Internet users. Heavy Internet-users were more likely than non-heavy Internet-users to be depressed, physically ill, lonely and introverted. Web based education had positive effects mainly on motivation for learning and lessons interest. *Qiping et al.* (2007) found traditional mode students have achieved a slightly better performance in examinations in comparison with online mode students, the research concludes that there are no significant differences in overall performance between the students. Kubey & Barrows (2001) revealed that students with academic problems reported that they stayed up late, felt tired the next day and missed class due to their use of the Internet. Norshuhada Shiratuddin (2001) confirmed that employing Internet in educational settings proves to have significant effect on students' performance.

5.Studies on Internet and Gender Differences

A significant number of studies have been conducted on Internet and gender differences as:

Amanda et al. (2013) who indicated that women, compared to men, are generally more frequent mediated communication users. Compared to men, women prefer and more frequently use text messaging, social media, and online video calls. *Ann & Maltby* (2013) showed more women's postings and made new friends, renewing old friendships, accessing information and advice, studying online, and shopping, while more men's postings mentioned that the Internet had helped or given them a career, positive socio-political effects, and negative aspects of the technology. *Chih-Hung & Gwung* (2013) found that Internet usage on social interaction and information seeking



can positively affect all kinds of interpersonal relationships. Males have lower extent of teacher-student relationship and higher level of net-friend relationship than females. Patrick et al. (2013) revealed that boys and girls differed in their intensity of usage, place of access and their motivations to use the Internet. Girls were more motivated by social-interaction, shopping and surveillance/ information, while boys were more motivated by eroticism and had a higher tendency to be addicted to the Internet. Anna Bujala (2012) indicated gender differences both in the intensity of Internet usage and the ways in which it is used. Women spend less time online, have shorter experience online, and express less openness towards online relationships or services. Whereas as men engage much more often in activities such as playing games, listening to music or the radio, watching films, or looking for humorous content than women do. Tao et al. (2012) found gender differences are reflected in that male college students have a higher level of perceptions of Internet self-efficacy, experience, and information overload than females. Yousef Eyadat, (2012) indicated that the university students under excessive use of the Internet neglect household responsibilities and neglect exams and courses to spend more time online. There were no significant differences in the excessive use of the Internet based on differences in gender. Christy & Lee (2011) revealed that attitude and behavioural intention to use an Internet-based learning medium, more strongly for male students than it influences female students, whilst subjective norm is a more important factor determining female students' intention to use an Internet-based learning medium than it is for male students. Loan (2011) found female students use the Internet more than males for information and education whereas male students use the Internet more than females for communication and entertainment. Neither male nor female students record high use the Internet sources like online libraries, databases, e-books, e-journals, wikis, and blogs. Wong et al. (2008) revealed no gender disparity in Internet usage; the female students were found to spend as much time using the Internet as their male counterparts. The results also revealed that the students exhibited positive attitudes toward the Internet regardless of gender. Alan & Zsolt (2005) significant gender effects were found throughout, with males tending to report greater computer self efficacy, lower computer anxiety, more positive attitudes towards the Internet and longer use of the Internet than females. Ann Britt (2005) indicated that it cannot be



seen that boys and girls have different interests in the Internet technology in practice. But boys talk about their knowledge to a greater extent, and this interplays with their reflections about the Internet's reliability. Richard et al. (2005) revealed that males were proportionally more likely to have their own web page than were females. They used the Internet more than females; in particular, they were more likely to use game websites, to use other specialist websites, and to download material from the Internet. Madell & Muncer (2004) with regard to gender differences, males were significantly more likely than females to use the Internet for the WWW. Boys were more likely than girls to use the Internet for playing or downloading music, browsing to find out information about goods and services, buying or ordering goods, tickets or services, down loading software, including games and also using the net for accessing government or official services. However girls used the Internet more than boys for using E-mail, finding information related to education and using chat rooms or sites. *Eric Weiser* (2000) showed that males use the Internet mainly for purposes related to entertainment and leisure, whereas women use it primarily for interpersonal communication and educational assistance. Odell et al. (2000) indicated that while the gender gap in the use of Internet has nearly closed.

Studies on Related variables

Various studies have been carried out on Internet usage among students as:

Abdullah (2014) who revealed that majority of students using browsers to view documents, while slightly smaller percentages reported using the Internet for personal purposes. *Bagman et al.* (2014) indicated significant relationship between Internet dependence and educational downfall, leisure time, communicating with others, tendency to aggression, social isolation, and life satisfaction. *Shabana et al.* (2014) revealed that most of the students of university consider Internet as a tool for information. They use it for study purposes. They think that Internet is an easier way to get information then library. *Razaque et al.* (2013) revealed that most of the students and obtaining the information for making their assignments of the class. *Jalalinejad* (2012) demonstrated that prevalence of Internet addiction among boys' university students was more than girls and in science and engineering students was more than art and humanity students. *Maria et al.* (2012)



Internet-users found fairly high level of risk of Internet attitudes and behaviour. Ofodu Graceful (2012) revealed that university students generally enjoy reading and it could be safely said that the reading culture of the students is favourable since the advent of Internet. It also reveals that large number respondents actually engage in activities that may not add value to their academic performance. Ayyad, Khayrat (2011) found students access to Internet extensively and use it to gratify their personal, social and educational needs. While the main reasons for accessing the Internet among male student are to communicate through e-mails and to follow up current affairs, female students use the Internet mostly to entertain themselves and to search for information related to their studies. Hatice Odaci (2011) revealed a significant negative correlation between academic self-efficacy and problematic Internet use, while the relation between problematic Internet use and academic procrastination was not statistically significant. Munur & Tugun (2011) revealed that the huge percentage of the students is using the Internet for researching. Silvia & Tsai (2011) revealed that students perceived higher levels of collaboration in Internet-based learning than in traditional learning environments. In terms of students' education level, higher education students perceived higher levels of capabilities and interests in Internetbased learning. Sudhier & Seethalekshmi, (2011) revealed that most of the students used Internet for educational purposes. They used e-resources mainly for seminar presentations and for project works. Shakeel & Rubina (2010) revealed that students' attitude towards the Internet was very positive and they used it mainly for study purpose. They used online databases, dictionaries, encyclopaedias and online courses. Google was the most popular search engine for retrieving information on the Internet. Maharana et al. (2010) revealed that students strongly felt that study would be severely affected without the use of the Internet and e-resources. Michael et al. (2008) revealed that the students use the Internet mostly for e-mail, information search and online chatting; all of these were found to have significant impact on their academics and social life. Male students appear to use the Internet more than their female counterparts; just as science based students use it more than the non-science based students. Nazim (2008) revealed that online journals and databases were the preferred information sources among the Internet users. Majority of respondents believed that the good quality of information on the Internet made it a useful tool for education and



research. Odunlade (2008) showed that students do make use of the Internet because it was considered to provide wide coverage of information, contains adequate and current information, it is quickly and easily accessible, it provided electronic journals that could be purchased online and so on. Sakina et al. (2008) showed that most of the students use this technology for course related reading and research needs. Ease of work and time saving are the reasons of Internet use among university students. Arulchelvan (2007) found that Internet enjoys high popularity among students for educational usage and that its effectiveness is satisfactory the online contents match the curriculum requirements. Beverly et al. (2007) found depression was correlated with more frequent use of the Internet. Dependence on Internet endorsed more depressive symptoms, more time online, and less face-to-face socialization. Ammobi, Chinwe (2006) students used Internet for various purposes. The areas of academic activities these students focused on the Internet included according to their responses are knowledge improvement, collection of materials for assignment and collection of materials for research, projects and assignment. Anasi (2006) revealed that Internet use has very high impact on the academic/career related activities of the students. Kumar & Kaur (2005) revealed a majority of the respondents involved in the use of the Internet for education and research purposes, while many of them use it for communication purpose and for consulting technical reports. Anderson (2001) found one-tenth of college students dependent on Internet. Nearly ten percent of college students have been to spend enough time online. Their usage meets criteria for Internet dependence. Students from hard sciences i.e., Chemistry, Math, Engineering, Physics and Computer Science spent significantly more time online than other students.

It is observed that in these studies different methodologies have been used and different aspects of Internet use and Non-use have been dealt with. After reviewing all these studies, a clear idea is arrived to carry out the present study.



Conclusions

This chapter reviews thoughts and inputs of various researchers in the field of Internet-use and Non-use among students around the world in order to gain insight into various variables which form the basic constructs of this study. It identifies and discusses the various variables for the present study, which form the basis for setting objectives and formulating hypotheses. These studies provide conceptual framework, historical perspective of Internet usage among "university students".

The present investigator consulted various studies carried out during the past few decades on Internet usage has been systematically presented in the preceding pages. These researches have considered a wide spectrum of areas viz.a.viz. variables. Hence, these research studies formulated a strong foundation to the structure and the contour of the present study. The present study differs from the earlier ones with respect to the purpose, region and conditions in which it has been conducted. But there seems no such research endeavour which could directly appraise about the Internet usage and Internet Non-usage among university students and its influence on the variables under investigation. In fact, no such effort seems to have been reported so far to undertake a factor analytical type of investigation on Internet usage among university students on various dimensions of lifestyle and attitude towards research. Therefore, it can be concluded that the scope of research is unlimited and beyond imagination. Thus, on the basis of review and conclusions drawn, a fresh relook and filling up the existing gap in research related the Internet usage among university seems to be genuine and the present study is a direction in this regard.



esearch is considered as an endeavour to arrive at answers to intellectual and practical problems through the application of scientific and logical methods. The present chapter deals with the methods that the researcher has used in order to collate and evaluate the data in accordance with the goals of the study. Methodology is like a strategy or plan for achieving some goal; methods are the tactics that can be used to service the goals of the methodology.The research methodology is the specification of method of acquiring the information needed to structure or solve the problem. Methodology refers to ways of obtaining, organising and analysing data. Polit & Hungler (2004) reported, "Methodology refers to the process of following the steps, procedures and strategies for gathering and analysing the data in a research investigation. It is a framework of theories and principles on which methods and procedures are based (Holloway, 2005). Methodology as coherent group of methods that complement one another and that have the ability to fit to deliver data and findings that will reflect the research question and suit the researcher purpose (Henning, 2004).

Any study cannot be meaningful unless the scientific techniques such as tests and tools are administrated accurately. The systematic knowledge gained and collected around the facts pushes off the clouds of ignorance. This amounts to proper selection of research tools which helps to increase the existing fund of knowledge. Before conducting a scientific research, one must formulate a proper paradigm to collect the relevant information and to analyse it in a meaningful way. The appropriateness of investigation depends on the tools of data collection, representativeness of the sample and the statistical devices which one employs to analyse the data and to arrive at reliable and valid conclusions and generalizations. The nature of the problem



determines which basic design is most appropriate and how the design should be tailored to meet the needs in investigation. Therefore, before embarking on any research problem, it is of paramount importance for a prospective researcher to look into it from various angles so that logical conclusions become possible.

Research design refers to the structure of the given enquiry. It is a logical matter rather than a logistical one. It refers to the overall strategy that researcher chooses to integrate in different components of the study in a coherent and logical way, thereby, ensuring how effectively a researcher addresses the research problem; it constitutes the *blueprint* for the collection, measurement, and analysis of the data in a scientific way. It is a blueprint for conducting the study (Burns & Grove, 1998). It gives an outline of everything from defining the problems viz. a.viz. the objectives to the final analysis of data. It has been argued that the central role of research design is to minimize the chances of drawing incorrect and causal inferences from data. It is a master plan which specifies the methods and procedures for collecting and analysing the required information in a research study. It is an outline of any research study which forms the basis to the investigator from the formulation of hypothesis and its operational implications to the final analysis of data. It constitutes decisions regarding what, why, where, when and how of an inquiry or a research study. Parahoo (1997) describes a research design as, "a plan that describes how, when and where data are to be collected and analysed". Polit et al. (2001) speaks about research design as, "the researcher's overall efforts for answering the research question or testing the research hypothesis." Research design can be thought of as the *structure* of the research - it is the "glue" that holds all of the elements in a research project together. Finally, the selection of a research design is based on the nature of the research problem or the issue to be addressed, the researchers' personal experiences, and the audiences for the study.

In this regard Kerlinger (1986) recommends,

"....A research design is a plan, structure and strategy of investigation so conceived so as to obtain answers to research questions or problems. It expresses both the structure of the research problem and the plan of investigation used to obtain empirical evidence on the relations of the problem. It describes the procedures for conducting the study, including when, from whom and under what conditions data were obtained. It is a complete scheme or programme of the research".



Accordingly Burns and Grove (2003) States,

"Designing a study helps researchers to plan and implement the study in a way that will help them obtain the intended results, thus increasing the chances of obtaining information that could be associated with the real situation. Methodology includes the design, setting, sample, methodological limitations, and the data collection and analysis techniques in a study. This is the know-how of the scientific methods and techniques employed to obtain valid knowledge".

In the words of O'Leary (2004),

"Methodological design is the plan for conducting a study that includes methodology, methods and tools involved in quantitative or qualitative research. It can be described as the framework associated with a particular set of paradigmatic assumptions that can be used to conduct research".

This chapter discusses some paradigms and different research approaches which have been used in previous and similar studies. Based on the above observations, the investigator continued with the appropriate procedure for the present investigation. The research methodology and designs for the study were chosen in order to achieve the set objectives. The rationale for each choice is explained and discussed in terms of research process which involves the description of the research approach, study setting, design, population, selection of the sample, the sampling technique, procedure of data collection, the instrument to be used, development and validation of the instruments, their administration and statistical techniques used for data analysis.

Research Design:

Sample

A sample of 600 post graduate students (300 Internet-users and 300 Internet Nonusers) were selected through stratified random sampling technique from various departments of three faculties (faculty of Science, faculty of Social science and faculty of Arts) of University of Kashmir, (J&K) India. It needs to be mentioned that the subjects (Internet-users and Internet Non-users) enrolled in 3rd and 4th semesters have been considered as the sample for the present study. The procedure for the selection of the sample for the present investigation is discussed as under:

The sample for the present study was obtained from the three faculties (Faculty of Science, Faculty of Social science and Faculty of Arts). It comprised of 15 departments with a representation of five departments from each faculty. These



departments are: Zoology, Chemistry, Botany, Physics and Home Science (*Faculty of Science*); Sociology, Economics, Political Science, History and Social Work (*Faculty of Social Science*); English, Urdu, Persian, Hindi and Linguistics (*Faculty of Arts*). It is pertinent to mention here that 40 students from both the genders (20 Internet-users and 20 Internet Non-users) were drawn randomly from each sample department with a total of 100 Internet-users and 100 Internet Non-users from each faculty. The below given table shows the breakup of the sample subjects on gender and faculty basis.

Faculty	Department	Male +Female Users	Internet User	Male +Female Non-Users	Internet Non-user	Total
	1. Zoology	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	2. Chemistry	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
Science	3. Botany	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	4. Physics	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	5. Home Science	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
Total		50+50	100	50+50	100	200
	1. Sociology	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
Social	2. Economics	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
Social	3. Political Science	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
Science	4. History	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	5. Social Work	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	Total	50+50	100	50+50	100	200
	1. English	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	2. Urdu	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
Arts	3. Persian	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	4. Hindi	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
	5. Linguistics	10+10	20	10+10	20	40
Total		50+50	100	50+50	100	200
Grand Total		150+150	300	150+150	300	600

Sample Breakup

The above break-up is further explained in the flowchart that follows:

Research Methodology & Procedure



Flow chart of the Sample Subject

٨

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



Selection and Description of Tools

The tools for the present study were selected in a manner so as to achieve an optimum level of confidence for the direction and steps to be adopted by the investigator. The investigator, after screening a number of available tests, adopted the following standardised tools to collect the relevant and required data. Besides, an Information blank was administrated for the identification of Internet-users and Internet Non-users. The details are given as:

- 1. A Self constructed *Information blank* for the identification of Internet-users and Internet Non-users.
- 2. Lifestyle Scale by S. K. Bawa and S. Kaur (LSS-BK, 2010)
- 3. Attitude Scale towards Research by Vishal Sood and Y. K. Sharma (ASTR-SVSY, 2012).
- **I. Information Blank:** This Information blank was developed by the investigator with the purpose to identify the Internet-users and Internet Non-users. For details about Internet-Internet-users and Internet Non-users, Refer Chapter 1, Page: 29-31.
- II. Lifestyle Scale (LSS-BK): This scale has been designed by *S. K. Bawa and S. Kaur*. It is standardized on students of higher education. This scale consists 60 items with the inclusion of six Dimensions as i) Health Conscious Life Style, ii) Academic Oriented Life Style, iii) Career Oriented Life Style, iv). Socially Oriented Life Style, v) Trend Seeking Life Style, and vi) Family Oriented Life Style. The dimensions are explained as:
 - i) Health Conscious Lifestyle: The lifestyle in which the individual always remains conscious for keeping himself/herself physically fit and fine.
 - **ii)** Academic Oriented Lifestyle: It refers to the lifestyle of an individual who always remains involved in his/her academic field.
 - **iii)** Career Oriented Lifestyle: An individual's lifestyle said to be career oriented when he/she is always curious to gain more and more knowledge in his career.
 - **iv) Family Oriented Lifestyle:** A person is always in close touch with his/her family and shares each & every moment of his/her daily activities with family.
 - v) Socially Oriented Lifestyle: An individual, who always participates in social activities and is always keen to do good for society.



vi) **Trend Seeking Lifestyle:** An individual, who is keen to adopt new fashion and always willing to update himself with new trends.

Version and Applicability:

The scale has been standardised in three versions, i.e., English, Hindi and Punjabi. It can be used to know the lifestyle of persons from 16 years and onwards.

The Draft of the Scale: After deciding the six dimensions of the scale, a total number of 117 items were constructed. These 117 items were sent to nine experts in the field of educational research.

The Face Validity: As per the suggestions and the opinions received from experts, to whom the draft of scale was sent, 57 items were deleted and 15 items were modified. Dimension-wise draft, modified and final number of items has been given in Table 1.

		Table 1			
Sr.No	Dimensions of Scale No. of Items in Preliminary Draft		No. of Items Deleted	No. of Items Modified	No. of Items Retained
I.	Health Conscious Lifestyle	21	10	3	11
II.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	24	15	2	9
III.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	20	11	3	9
IV.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	17	9	4	8
V.	Trend Seeking Lifestyle	14	3	2	11
VI.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	21	11	1	12
	Total	117	57	15	60

Thus, the Lifestyle Scale contains 60 valid items belonging to six different dimensions of lifestyle. The final form of the test has been prepared with 60 items (43 positive and 17 negative) in all and the distribution of items as per dimensions is given below as:



Sr. No	Dimensions	Type of items	Items No.	Total Item/s			
т	Health Conscious Lifestyle	Positive	4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11	11			
1.	Thearth Conscious Enestyle	Negative	1,2,3,7	11			
п	Academic Oriented	Positive	2,5,6,7,8,9	00			
11.	Lifestyle	Negative	1,3,4	09			
ш	Caroor Oriented Lifestyle	Positive	2,3,4,5,6,8,9	00			
111.	Career Oriented Eriestyle	Negative	1,7	09			
117	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	Positive	2,3,4,5,6,8	00			
1.	Socially Offented Lifestyle	Negative	1,7	08			
V	Trend Seeking Lifestyle	Positive	1,2,4,5,6,7,9,10,11	11			
•	Trend Seeking Enestyte	Negative	3,8	11			
VI	Family Oriented Lifestyle	Positive	1,3,5,6,8,9,11,12	12			
v 1.	Tuning oriented Enestyle	Negative	2,4,7,10	12			
Total No. of Items 60							

Fable 2	2
----------------	---

•

Reliability:

- a) **Test-Retest Method:** Test-Retest method was applied to determine the reliability of the scale. It was administered to 200 students of higher education. Reliability coefficient has been found to be 0.96. The reliability index is .98.
- **b) Internal Consistency:** The reliability of the scale pertaining to lifestyle was also determined by using internal consistency method. To find out the internal consistency in each sub-scale, correlation coefficients were calculated between each sub-scale and total score of the whole scale, as shown in Table 3.

Sub-Scale	Coefficient of Correlation
Health Conscious Lifestyle	0.766
Academic Oriented Lifestyle	0.707
Career Oriented Lifestyle	0.819
Socially Oriented Lifestyle	0.793
Family Oriented Lifestyle	0.656
Trend Seeking Lifestyle	0.747

Table 3: Coefficient of Correlation

Thus, lifestyle scale with 60 items was found to be valid and reliable to measure lifestyle of an individual.

Discrimination Index: To calculate discrimination index, Lifestyle scale was administered to 1001 male and female students of higher education.

Ó

The Table 4 shows the discrimination index of the items in lifestyle scale. The items with 'D' value .20 of a scale have been retained in the test, as all the items were found with positive 'D' values. Thus, all the 60 items were finally retained in the scale.

Item	Discrimination	Item	Discrimination	Item	Discrimination	Item	Discrimination
No.	Index	No.	Index	No.	Index	No.	Index
1.	0.21	16.	0.33	31.	0.55	46.	0.53
2.	0.24	17.	0.24	32.	0.61	47.	0.49
3.	0.27	18.	0.50	33.	0.61	48.	0.39
4.	0.29	19.	0.49	34.	0.54	49.	0.41
5.	0.28	20.	0.43	35.	0.53	50.	0.52
6.	0.32	21.	0.57	36.	0.54	51	0.56
7.	0.26	22.	0.56	37.	0.54	52.	0.49
8.	0.21	23.	0.43	38.	0.45	53.	0.51
9.	0.29	24.	0.66	39.	0.46	54.	0.54
10.	0.39	25.	0.52	40.	0.56	55.	0.56
11.	0.42	26.	0.44	41.	0.54	56.	0.58
12.	0.45	27.	0.36	42.	0.49	57.	0.50
13.	0.41	28.	0.45	43.	0.51	58.	0.49
14.	0.38	29.	0.52	44.	0.39	59.	0.46
15.	0.42	30.	0.45	45.	0.48	60.	0.35

 Table 4: Discrimination Index

Scoring Procedure and Scoring Key: The scale contains of 60 items. Each item has five optional responses i.e., Strongly Agree, Agree, Indifferent, Disagree and Strongly Disagree. The respondent has to select one option out of the given five options: There are 43 positive items and 17 negative items. The positive items are scored as 4,3,2,1,0 and negative items are scored as 0,1,2,3,4 for the responses *Strongly Agree, Agree, Indifferent, Disagree and Strongly Disagree*.

Table 5: Positive and Negative Items

Sr.No	Type of item	Strongly Agree	Agree	Indifferent	Disagree	Strongly Disagree
1.	Positive	4	3	2	1	0
2.	Negative	0	1	2	3	4

The Norms: For the purpose of preparing Standard Score Norms (z-Scores), the mean and standard deviation for each dimension and total scale were calculated which are being presented in Table 6.



Sr. No.	Dimensions	Mean	SD					
i.	Health Conscious Lifestyle	21.93	7.86					
ii.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	20.72	6.42					
iii.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	24.19	4.17					
iv.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	19.6	7.56					
V.	Trend Seeking Lifestyle	27.97	8.53					
vi.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	32.49	6.23					
	Total Lifestyle Scale	147.00	20.60					

Table 6: Means and Standard Derivation

Table 7: Norms for interpretation	of Lifestyle	Scale	Status	(i)	Full	Scale	and	(ii)
All the Dimensions								

Sr.No.	Range of Raw Scores	Category	Level of Life Style Status
1	196 and above	Α	Very high level Adapting the style
2	184.195	В	High level Adapting the style
3	172.183	С	Above Average level Adapting the Style
4	156.171	D	Moderately Adapting the Style
5	144.155	E	Below Average level Adapting the Style
6	132.143	F	Low level Adapting the Style
7.	131 & below	G	Very low level Adapting the Style

III. Attitude Scale towards Research (ASTR): This scale has been designed by Vishal Sood and Y. K. Sharma. This scale has been designed to measure the attitude towards research among post graduate students, M. Phil, and Ph. D. students, students aspiring for Ph. D., teacher educators, college and university teachers. The scale consists of forty two (42) items with Four Dimensions, viz. (i) General Aspects of Research and Research Process, (ii) Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, (iii) Relevance of Research in Personal- Social Life, (iv) Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. The dimensions are explained as:

(i) Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process:

This dimension includes statements indicating inclinations of respondents with respect to concept of research, research process, current scenario of research



works, role of supervisor in research works, the relationship between research student and supervisor, publication of research findings etc.

(ii) Attitude towards Usefulness of Research in Professional Career:

This dimension comprises of the statements concerning respondents' predispositions or feelings with regard to significance and usefulness of research and research findings in their professional life and career.

(iii) Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life:

This dimension of attitude is related to students' and teachers' notions or ideas about relevance of research and research-related activities in their personal and social life. This dimension deals with application of research methods/processes and findings to solve daily problems in one's personal-social life.

(iv) Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety:

Under this component, those statements were included which reflects the respondents' dispositions at the time of planning or conducting research activities. It shows students' and teachers' feelings of anxiety, tension or easiness as well as difficulties faced by them when they are asked to engage themselves in different sort of theoretical and practical research-related activities.

Technique Employed for Construction of Attitude Scale:

The method of summated ratings' as given by Likert (1932) had been employed for constructing the present scale. Each item/ statement of the scale is to be rated on five consecutive points i.e. *strongly agree, agree, undecided, disagree* and *strongly disagree*. An individual respondent's score on the attitude scale is the sum total of his /her ratings on all statements / items.

Construction

After carrying out critical discussions with research experts, research scholars, college and university teachers, teacher educators and keeping in view the four dimensions of attitude towards research, the investigators developed the attitude scale by employing following steps:

Item Pool — Initially, a list of 69 items / statements were pooled after getting the statements of opinion from research experts, research scholars, college and university teachers and teacher educators. The statements were prepared in English language. The draft statements were arranged randomly and given to research experts from



different fields to critically judge and evaluate the content accuracy, relevance-and coverage. The research experts were requested to adopt following criteria for evaluation of draft statements.

Mark '0' for 'Unacceptable' Item.

Mark '1' for item that 'may or may not be accepted'.

Mark '2' for 'Acceptable' Item.

Thus, on the basis of above criteria and getting a minimum of 80% consensus of experts in respect of each item, two items were rejected and some items were modified. The assistance of language experts was also sought in order to check the linguistic accuracy and editorial quality of statements. Thus, the preliminary draft (try-out form) was prepared which contained a total of 67 items/statements. The distribution of these 67 items in four different dimensions of attitude towards research was as follows: (i) General aspects of research and research process-20, (ii) usefulness of research in professional career-15, (iii) relevance of research in personal and social life - 13 and (iv) Difficulties in research and research anxiety - 19. Out of these 67 statements, 41 were of positive (favourable) nature and remaining 26 statements were of negative (unfavourable) type.

Try-out of the Scale: The preliminary draft of the scale was administered on a sample of 160 individuals who were students of M. Ed., M. A. (Education), M. A. (Psychology), M. Phil, and Ph. D. students, teacher educators and college teachers of Himachal Pradesh. The sampling was done by employing stratified sampling technique and it was assured that every stratum of population must get its representation in the sample. The scoring of positive and negative items was done in the following manner:

Nature of Item	Strongly Agree	Agree	Undecided	Disagree	Strongly Disagree
Positive	5	4	3	2	1
Negative	1	2	3	4	5

Table 1: Scoring System

Selection of Statements: On the basis of the scores obtained by the respondents on all statements, the scales were arranged in descending order. Then, top 43 individuals (top 27 percent) with highest total scores on the scale and the bottom 43 respondents (bottom 27 percent) with lowest total scores on the scale were extracted out to form



two criterion groups in order to evaluate each individual item of the scale as suggested by Edwards, 1957. Afterwards, means and standard deviations were computed for each individual item separately for top 27% and bottom 27% group of respondents. Finally, the t-value for all the 67 statements was calculated and only those statements were retained for final form of the scale which were having t-value equal to or greater than 1.75. A `t-value' equal to or greater than 1.75 indicates that the average response of the top and bottom groups of respondents to a statement differs significantly. Thus, on the basis of this, out of 67 statements, 25 statements were rejected and remaining 42 items were selected for final form of attitude scale. The t-values in respect of 67 statements are given in Table 2.

Item No.	t-value	Item No.	t-value	Item No.	t-value	Item No.	t-value
1	1.891	18	3.301	35	2.29	52	2.33
2	2.304	19	2.59	36	1.34	53	1.57
3	2.566	20	2.86	37	3.16	54	2.61
4	1.10	21	1.38	38	1.78	55	1.9
5	0.00	22	3.36	39	2.39	56	2.38
6	2.74	23	0.77	40	1.64	57	1.18
7	1.68	24	1.31	41	1.16	58	0.31
8	3.43	25	2.29	42	0.53	59	0.00
9	2.39	26	3.16	43	1.89	60	2.77
10	1.89	27	1.93	44	2.56	61	3.23
11	0.53	28	1.78	45	2.80	62	1.19
12	1.37	29	1.45	46	1.03	63	4.16
13	1.33	30	3.39	47	4.12	64	1.98
14	2.566	31	4.07	48	2.71	65	0.53
15	3.77	32	2.304	49	1.76	66	1.37
16	2.804	33	1.39	50	1.10	67	2.80
17	1.98	34	1.33	51	1.89	68	

Table 2: t-values in respect of 67 Statements of Attitude Scale (Try-out Form)

Note: Items shown in Bold indicate rejected items (t < 1.75)

The final form of the scale thus comprised of 42 statements out of which 26 were of positive (favourable) type and remaining 16 items were of negative (unfavourable) type. The distribution of these statements (both favourable and unfavourable) carried out in four dimensions of attitude towards research is provided in Table 3.



Table 3: Distribution of Statements (both favourable and unfavourable) in FourDimensions of Attitude towards Research

Sr. No.	Dimension	Nature of Item	Item wise Sr. No.		Total
1	General Aspects of Research	Favourable	22, 24, 36, 37, 41	5	15
	and Research Process	Unfavourable	1,7,8,11,12,16,21,25,29, 31	10	15
2	Usefulness of Research in	Favourable	3, 10, 13, 32, 33,39	6	08
	Professional Career	Unfavourable	5, 38	2	00
3	Relevance of Research in	Favourable	9, 14, 15, 18, 26, 35, 40	7	08
	Personal-Social Life	Unfavourable	42	1	Vð
4	Difficulties in Research and	Favourable	2,4, 17, 19,23 27, 28, 30	8	11
	Research Anxiety	Unfavourable	6, 20, 34	3	11
Total Favourable Items (Positive)				26	12
Total Unfavourable Items (Negative)				16	42

Scoring Procedure

ASTR is a self-administering and self-reporting five point scale. Items of the scale are in statement from requiring information for each item on either of the five options on a continuum as follows; Strongly Agree, Agree, Undecided, Disagree and Strongly Disagree.

The items are scored in such a manner that if the answer to a positive item is Strongly Agree', a score of 5 is given; for 'Agree', a score of 4; for 'Undecided' option, a score of 3; for 'Disagree', a score of 2 and for 'Strongly Disagree' option, a score of 1 is awarded. On the other hand, in case of negative items, the above scoring procedure is completely reversed. The scoring procedure is as given in Table 1.

In the Test Booklet, after the negative items serial number, a star (*) has been put to indicate that the nature of that item is negative. Serial number without (*) are positive items.

The sum of scores on all statements of the scale is considered as respondent's total attitude score. The score on the scale can range from 42 to 210. The higher total score on the scale will reflect favourable attitude towards research and vice-versa. There is no time limit for giving responses to all items of the scale.

Reliability

The reliability of the scale was established by: (i) Test-Retest method, and (ii) Split-Half method. For this, the scale was administered on a sample of 100 individuals who were post-graduate students (M. Ed. and M. A.), teacher educators, college teachers, M. Phil, and Ph. D. students from the field of behavioural sciences. These respondents


were different from those who were earlier selected for carrying out item analysis of the scale.

(i) **Test-Retest Reliability:** This type of reliability was computed by applying 'Product Moment Correlation' method. For computing test-retest reliability of the scale, a time gap of one month was given between testing and retesting stage. The product moment correlation 'r' *i.e.* reliability index, between two testing was 0.739 which is significant at .01 level of significance and scale has high reliability.

(ii) **Split-Half Reliability**: The split-half reliability of the scale was also estimated by employing 'Product Moment Correlation' method. For this, the scale was divided into two halves by adopting odd-even procedure. The split-half reliability coefficient came out to be 0.63. After applying Spearman Brown Prophecy formulae, the reliability index for whole of the scale (complete scale) was found to be 0.773. This value is significant at .01 level of significance that the scale is internally consistent to measure attitude towards research.

(iii) Internal Consistency: The internal consistency of the scale was estimated with the help of coefficients of correlation (product moment correlation) between total score on the scale and score on each of four dimensions of attitude scale towards research. The values of correlation coefficients representing internal consistency of the scale are given in Table 4.

Sr. No	Dimension	'r' value
I.	General aspects of research and research process	0.34*
II.	Usefulness of research in professional career	0.52*
III.	Relevance of research in personal and social life	0.44*
IV.	Difficulties in research and research anxiety	0.58*

 Table 4: Correlation Coefficients showing Internal Consistency of Scale for

 Attitude towards Research (N = 100)

* Significant at 0.01 level of significance

Validity

(i) Content Validity: The content validity of the scale was established by carrying out critical discussions with the research experts at the time of development of preliminary draft of attitude scale. The experts were of the opinion that the statements of the scale are fully adequate and relevant to measure the attitude towards research. In addition to this, only those items were retained in the preliminary draft of attitude scale for which there



had at least 80% agreement amongst experts with regard to relevance of items to the attitude towards research. Thus, the scale possessed adequate content validity.

(ii) Item Validity: The scale can be considered to be valid enough in terms of item validity because only those items were retained in the final form of the scale which were having-t-value greater than 1.75 (highly discriminating items).

(iii) Intrinsic Validity: The correlation coefficients computed between scores on each of four dimensions and total score of attitude towards research ensured internal consistency of the scale. Also, the split-half reliability coefficient of 0.773 was also appreciable and ensured intrinsic validity of the scale.

(iv) Face Validity: The face validity refers to know whether present scale for attitude towards research looks valid to the subjects who take it (Anastasi, 1970). The face validity was established by having the reactions of research experts, teacher educators and college and university teachers towards present attitude scale. They were of the opinion that present scale seemed to be valid enough for measuring Attitude towards Research.

(v) Cross Validity : Each sample of respondents for carrying out item analysis, establishing reliability and for developing norms respectively was different entirely from one another so as to avoid the chance errors of carry over effect and hence, this ensured cross validity of the scale.

Norms: The scale was administered on 272 individuals who were college and university teachers from different faculties, teacher educators and students of M. Ed., M. A. (Education and psychology), M. Phil, and Ph. D. courses in various faculties. These respondents belonged to colleges and universities of the state of Himachal Pradesh and Punjab. The selection of these respondents was made by following stratified random sampling technique and it was ensured that the sample (for whom present scale is mainly intended) should be appropriate in terms of its adequacy and representativeness. On the basis of data collected, the certain descriptive statistics were calculated which are given in Table 5.

Mean	Median	Mode	S.D.	Q.D.	Skewness	Kurtosis	Ν
163.51	166.03	171.08	15.94	11.465	-0.474	0.264	272

Table 5:

The possible range of scores on this scale is 42 to 210. The score of the individual forms the raw score for this scale.



Sr. No.	Range of Raw Scores	Category	Level of Attitude Towards Research
1.	196 and above	Α	Extremely favourable
2.	184.195	В	Highly favourable
3.	172.183	С	Above Average favourable
4.	156.171	D	Moderately favourable
5.	144.155	Е	Unfavourable
6.	132.143	F	Highly Unfavourable
7.	131 & below	G	Extremely Unfavourable

 Table 6: Norms for Interpretation of Level of Attitude towards Research

Applicability and Usefulness of Scale

The scale is fairly reliable and valid to measure attitude of post graduate students, school teachers, M. Phil, and Ph. D. research scholars, college and university teachers towards research and research related activities. The present scale can be employed to compare the attitude of different categories of respondents classified on the basis of different socio-demographic as well as other independent variables.

Procedure

For the purpose of the present study, the sample subjects were contacted personally by the investigator. Three faculties of University of Kashmir were the main focus-Sciences, Social sciences and Arts. 600 respondents, 200 from each faculty were identified as Internet-users (N=300) and Internet Non-users (N=300) and this identification was made with the help of self constructed *Information Blank* which had two parts: **Part A** pertaining to demographic information and **Part B** about the Internet-usability and Non-usability (See Appendix Page No. I). Before administering the above Information Blank, the investigator tried to build the rapport with the sample subjects and assured them that their responses shall be maintained under confidentiality norms.

Thereafter, the respondents were further administered: (1) *Lifestyle Scale* which measures the lifestyle of students in six different dimensions (i) Health Conscious Life Style, ii) Academic Oriented Life Style, iii) Career Oriented Life Style, iv). Socially Oriented Life Style, v) Trend Seeking Life Style, and vi) Family Oriented Life Style and (2) *Attitude towards Research Scale* to find the research attitude of the subjects under investigation in four different dimensions like (i) General Aspects of



Research and Research Process, (ii) Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, (iii) Relevance of Research in Personal- Social Life, (iv) Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. Besides, the academic achievement of the subjects was obtained and recorded from the respective departments. Finally, the test booklets were collected and the responses recorded therein by the subjects were scored according to the instructions given in the respective manuals of the tests. For details about the Scales (see Appendix Page No. II-IX).

Statistical Treatment

Keeping in view the objectives of the study, the data obtained was put to suitable statistical analysis by using various statistical techniques like percentage statistics (for asserting the different levels of Lifestyle, Attitude towards Research and Academic Achievement of Internet-users and Internet Non-users). Mean, Standard deviation (SD) and test of significance ("t"-test) was used in order to determine whether there is any significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on the variables under investigation. Besides, that data collected were subjected to factor analysis by using the Principal Components method of Factor Analysis (PCFA). The data, thus statistically categorized, is presented in the subsequent chapter.



Data analysis is considered to be important step and heart of the research in any research endeavour. The process of data evaluation with analytical and logical reasoning leads a researcher to examine each of its components. The foremost task before the investigator, after the collection of data, is its compilation and careful tabulation which finally leads us to meaningful inferences. Data analysis is a process of assigning meaning to the collected information to determine the conclusions, significance, and implications of the findings. Data collected by the researcher needs to be scientifically and systematically processed or analyzed so as to achieve the objectives of investigation. Besides, data analysis is referred to calculations and computations based on certain parameters viz.viz. searching for pattern of relationships which exist in the variables and thereafter tested in the light of hypotheses. It is to be noted that collection of data merely presents a stock of facts unless it is scientifically analysed. Analysis is the process of breaking up the whole study into its constituent parts. It is a process of inspecting, cleaning, transforming, and modeling the data with the objective of discovering useful information. Therefore, the purpose of analysis of data is to reduce it to an intelligible and interpretable form so that the relations of research problems can be studied and tested and conclusions drawn. Data analysis refers to the process of generating value from the raw data (Johnson & Christensen 2004). The purpose of the data analysis phase is to transform the data collected into credible evidence about the development of the intervention and its performance.

In this regard Burns & Grove (1998) opine, "Data analysis is a mechanism for reducing and organizing data to produce findings that require interpretation by the researcher".



According to De Vos (1998) "Data analysis entails that the analyst break down data into constituent parts to obtain answers' to research questions and to obtain answers to research questions and to test hypothesis".

This chapter is comprised with the analysis and interpretation of the collected data on variables: a) Life style, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research. An attempt has been made by the investigator to evaluate these variables on a sample of 600 students drawn from various faculties of the University of Kashmir. Since the main focus of the investigation is on Internet usage in relation to the above reported variables. Therefore, the investigator, as reported in chapter third, identified Internetuser and Internet Non-user students. Thereafter, administered research tools on the sample subjects to arrive at definite conclusions. The data analysis for the present research was done quantitatively with the help of descriptive statistics and inferential statistics, techniques like percentage statistics, and the test of significance. Besides, data collected were subjected to factor analysis utilizing Principal components factor extraction and orthogonal rotation by the Varimax criterion (with Kaiser Normalization). Principal component method of factoring was used while Kaiser-Mayer-Olkin (KMO) measure of sampling adequacy was applied to test whether the partial correlations among variables are small. Bartlett's Test of Sphericity was carried out to confirm multicolinearity between the variables. Varimax criterion was applied so as to delineate the pattern of variation in the variables rather than among Internet-users and Non-users. Absolute values of coefficients that are less than 0.600 were suppressed. Thus, only factor loadings of 0.600 and above were assumed to be interpretable. This statistical analysis of data is presented here in the tabular, diagrammatically and graphical forms. The analysis of data in this chapter is carried out as per the following arrangement:

Section A: Descriptive Analysis

- A1: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (*Overall Groups*)
- A2: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (*Internet-users and Non-users*)

A3: Sub-Group Analysis

- i) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research *(Gender wise)*
- ii) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (*Faculty wise*)

Section B: Comparative Analysis

B1: *Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on:*

a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research

B2: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Gender wise) on:

a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research

B3: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on:

a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research

Section C: Factor Analysis

- **C1:** Principle component Factor Analysis of *Internet-users on* various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research.
- C2: Principle component Factor Analysis of *Internet Non-users* on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research

Table Details:

- Table No.4.00:Showing the Percent-wise Distribution of the overall Sample on
Different Levels of Lifestyle (N=600)
- Table No.4.01:Showing the Percent-wise Distribution of the overall Sample on
different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=600)
- Table No.4.02:Showing the Percent-wise Distribution of overall sample on
different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=600)
- Table No.4.03:Showing the Percent-wise details of Internet-users and Non-users
on different levels of Lifestyle (N=300 each)



- Table No.4.04:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and
Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement
(N=300 each)
- Table No.4.05:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Attitude towards Research
(N=300 each)
- Table No.4.06:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and FemaleInternet-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.07:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and FemaleInternet Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.08:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and FemaleInternet-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement(N=150 each)
- Table No.4.09: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.10: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.11:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and FemaleInternet Non-users on different levels of Attitude towardsResearch (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.12: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Nonusers on different levels of Lifestyle (Science Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.13: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Nonusers on different levels of Lifestyle (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.14:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Lifestyle (Arts Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.15:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (Science
Stream; N=100 each)



- Table No. 4.16:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (Social
Science Stream N=100 each)
- Table No.4.17: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Nonusers on different Levels of Academic Achievement (Arts Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.18:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (Science
Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.19:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (Social
Science Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.20:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Attitude towards Research
(Arts Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.21:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Lifestyle
(N=300 each)
- Table No.4.22:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Academic
Achievement (N=300 each)
- Table No.4.23:Showing the Significance difference between the Mean Scores of
Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Attitude towards
Research (N=300 each)
- Table No.4.24:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Male and Female Internet-users on Lifestyle (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.25:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Lifestyle (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.26:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Male and Female Internet-users on Academic Achievement
(N=150 each)



- Table No. 4.27:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Academic
Achievement (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.28:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Male and Female Internet-users on Attitude towards Research
(N=150 each)
- Table No.4.29:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Attitude towards
Research (N=150 each)
- Table No.4.30:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Interne-users and Non-users on lifestyle (Science Stream;
N=100 each)
- Table No.4.31:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Non-users on lifestyle (Social Science
Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.32:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Non-users on lifestyle (Arts Stream; N=100
each)
- Table No.4.33:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Non-users on Academic Achievement
(Stream wise Comparison; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.34:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research
(Science Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.35:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research
(Social Science Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.36:Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores
of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research
(Arts Stream; N=100 each)
- Table No.4.37:KMO measure of sampling adequacy and Bartlett's test of
sphericity (Group Internet Non-users)



- Table No.4.38: Showing the Total Variance Explained of Internet-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)
- Table No.4.39Showing the Un-rotated and Rotated Factor Matrix of Internet-
users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards
Research (N=300)
- Table No.4.40:Showing the Rotated Factor Matrix with Blocked out Values
(Extraction Method) of Internet-users on various dimensions of
lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)
- Table No.4.41:KMO measure of sampling adequacy and Bartlett's test of
sphericity (Group Internet Non-users)
- Table No.4.42: Showing the Total Variance Explained of Internet Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)
- Table No.4.43:Showing the Un-rotated and Rotated Factor Matrix of Internet
Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude
towards Research (N=300)
- Table No.4.44:Showing the Rotated Factor Matrix with Blocked out Values
(Extraction Method) of Internet Non-users on various dimensions
of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)



SECTION – A: DESCRIPTIVE ANALYSIS

A1- Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Overall Groups)

Table No. 4.00: Showing the Percent-wise Distribution of the overall Sample onDifferent Levels of Lifestyle (N=600)

Category	Lifestyle Status	Ν	%age
Α	Very High Level of Life Style	37	6.17
В	High Level of Life Style	137	22.83
С	Above Average level of Life Style	204	34.00
D	Moderate level of Life Style	148	24.67
Ε	Below Average level of Life Style	56	9.33
F	Low Level of Life Style	15	2.50
G	Very Low Level of Life Style	3	0.50
	Total	600	100

Fig. No. 1: Showing the Overall Percent-wise of total Sample on Different Levels of Lifestyle (N=600)





Table No.	.4.01:	Showing	the	Percent-w	vise	Distribut	ion (of th	e overall	Sample or	n
different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=600)											

Level of Academic Achievement	Ν	%age
Distinction	12	2.00
1 st Division	426	71.00
2 nd Division	132	22.00
3 rd Division	30	5.00
Total	600	100

Fig. No. 2: Showing the overall Percent-wise Status of total Sample on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=600)





Table	No.4.02:	Showing	the	Percent-wise	Distribution	of	overall	sample	on
	different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=600)								

Category	Levels of Attitude Towards Research	Ν	%age
Α	Extremely Favourable	21	3.5
В	Highly favourable	29	4.8
С	Above Average Favourable	36	6.0
D	Moderately Favourable	217	36.2
E	Unfavourable	186	31.0
F	Highly Unfavourable	99	16.5
G	Extremely Unfavourable	12	2.0
	Total	600	100

Fig. No. 3: Showing the overall Percent-wise Status of total Sample on different levels of Attitude towards Research of (N=600)





A2: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Internet-users and Non-users)

Table No.4.03: Showing the Percent-wise details of Internet-users and Non-users
on different levels of Lifestyle (N=300 each)

Category	Levels of Lifestyle Status	IUs		INUs		
		N	%age	N	%age	
Α	Very High Level of Life Style	25	8.33	12	4.00	
В	High Level of Life Style	81	27.00	56	18.67	
С	Above Average level of Life Style	117	39.00	87	29.00	
D	Moderate level of Life Style	61	20.00	87	29.00	
E	Below Average level of Life Style	15	5.00	41	13.67	
F	Low Level of Life Style	1	0.33	14	4.67	
G	Very Low Level of Life Style	0	0.00	3	1.00	
	Total	300	100	300	100	

Acronyms: IUs = Internet-users INUs =Internet Non-users





Table No.4.04: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and
Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic
Achievement (N=300 each)

Levels of Academic Achievement	Π	Js	INUs		
Levels of Academic Acide venicit	Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Distinction	09	3.00	3	1.00	
1 st Division	255	85.00	171	57.00	
2 nd Division	24	8.00	108	36.00	
3 rd Division	12	4.00	18	6.00	
Total	300	100	300	100	

Acronyms: IUs =Internet-users INUs =Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 5: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=300 each)







Table No.4.05: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=300 each)

Category	Levels of Attitude Towards	1	Us	INUs		
cutegory	Research	Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Α	Extremely Favourable	18	6.00	03	1.00	
В	Highly favourable	24	8.00	05	1.67	
С	Above Average Favourable	27	9.00	09	3.00	
D	Moderately Favourable	120	40.00	97	32.33	
Ε	Unfavourable	81	27.00	105	35.00	
F	Highly Unfavourable	30	10.00	69	23.00	
G	Extremely Unfavourable	0	0.00	12	4.00	
	Total	300	100	300	100	

Acronyms: IUs =Internet-users

INUs =Internet Non-users







A3: Sub-Group Analysis

i) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Gender wise)

 Table No.4.06: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)

Category	Levels of Lifestyle Status	Μ	IUs	FIUs		
Cuttgory	Levels of Lifestyle Status	Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Α	Very High Level of Life Style	15	10.00	22	14.66	
В	High Level of Life Style	33	22.00	51	34.00	
С	Above Average level of Life Style	45	30.00	60	40.00	
D	Moderate level of Life Style	22	14.66	7	4.67	
Ε	Below Average level of Life Style	19	12.66	06	4.00	
F	Low Level of Life Style	15	10.00	03	2.00	
G	Very Low Level of Life Style	01	0.67	01	0.67	
	Total	150	100	150	100	

Acronyms: MIUs =Male Internet-users FIUs =Female Internet-users

Fig. No. 7: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internetusers on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)





Table No.4.07: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and FemaleInternet Non-users on different levels of Lifestyle (N=150 each)

Category	Levels of Lifestyle Status	MI	NUs	FINUs		
		Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Α	Very High Level of Life Style	09	6.00	18	12.00	
В	High Level of Life Style	43	28.67	48	32.00	
С	Above Average level of Life Style	33	22.00	26	17.34	
D	Moderate level of Life Style	27	18.00	15	10.00	
Ε	Below Average level of Life Style	10	6.67	08	5.33	
F	Low Level of Life Style	24	16.00	30	20.00	
G	Very Low Level of Life Style	04	2.66	05	3.33	
Total		150	100	150	100	

Acronyms: MINUs = Male Internet Non-users FINUs =Female Internet Non-users





Table No.4.08:Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female
Internet-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement
(N=150 each)

Levels of Academic Achievement	M	IUs	FIUs		
	Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Distinction	09	6.00	12	8.00	
1 st Division	111	74.00	129	86.00	
2 nd Division	27	18.00	07	4.67	
3 rd Division	03	2.00	02	1.33	
Total	150	100.00	150	100.00	

Acronyms: MIUs =Male Internet-users FIUs =Female Internet-users

Fig. No. 9: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=150 each)





Table No.4.09: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female InternetNon-usersondifferentLevelsLevelsofAcademicAchievement(N=150 each)

Levels of Academic Achievement	MI	NUs	FINUs				
	Ν	%age	Ν	%age			
Distinction	08	5.33	11	7.33			
1st Division	72	48.00	96	64.00			
2nd Division	64	42.67	39	26.00			
3rd Division	06	4.00	04	2.67			
Total	150	100.00	150	100.00			

Acronyms: MINUs = Male Internet Non-users FINUs =Female Internet Non-users

Fig. No.10: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=150 each)





Table No.4.10: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and FemaleInternet-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research(N=150 each)

	Levels of Attitude Towards	Μ	IUs	FIUs		
Category	Research	Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Α	Extremely Favourable	06	4.00	08	5.33	
В	Highly favourable	13	8.66	18	12.00	
С	Above Average Favourable	36	24.00	38	25.33	
D	Moderately Favourable	63	42.00	50	33.34	
E	Unfavourable	21	14.00	27	18.00	
F	Highly Unfavourable	08	5.34	05	3.33	
G	Extremely Unfavourable	3	2.00	04	2.67	
	Total	150	100	150	100	

Acronyms: MIUs =Male Internet-users FIUs =Female Internet-users







Table	No.4.11:	Showing	the Percen	t-wi	se Compa	rison	of	Male a	and	Female
		Internet	Non-users	on	different	levels	of	Attitu	ıde	towards
		Research	n (N=150 eac	ch)						

Catagoria	Levels of Attitude Towards	Μ	INUs	FINUs		
Category	Research	N	%age	N	%age	
Α	Extremely Favourable	03	2.00	03	2.00	
В	Highly favourable	09	6.00	12	8.00	
С	Above Average Favourable	15	10.00	17	11.34	
D	Moderately Favourable	60	40.00	45	30.00	
Ε	Unfavourable	33	22.00	42	28.00	
F	Highly Unfavourable	24	16.00	27	18.00	
G	Extremely Unfavourable	06	4.00	04	2.66	
	Total	150	100	150	100	

Acronyms: MINUs = Male Internet Non-users FINUs =Female Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 12: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Male and Female Internet Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)





- A3 ii) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Faculty wise)
- Table No.4.12: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Lifestyle (Science Stream;
N=100 each).

Category	Levels of Lifestyle Status	SI	Us	SINUs		
Cutegory	Levels of Effestyle Status	N	%age	N	%age	
Α	Very High Level of Life Style	02	2.00	09	9.00	
В	High Level of Life Style	12	12.00	28	28.00	
С	Above Average level of Life Style	25	25.00	33	33.00	
D	Moderate level of Life Style	27	27.00	11	11.00	
E	Below Average level of Life Style	23	23.00	10	10.00	
F	Low Level of Life Style	09	9.00	08	8.00	
G	Very Low Level of Life Style	02	2.00	01	1.00	
	Total	100	100	100	100	

Acronyms: SIUs=Science stream Internet-users SINUs =Science stream Internet Non-users







Table No.4.13: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Nonusers on different levels of Lifestyle (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)

Category	Levels of Lifestyle Status	SSIUs		SSINUs	
		Ν	%age	Ν	%age
Α	Very High Level of Life Style	14	14.00	04	4.00
В	High Level of Life Style	17	17.00	12	12.00
С	Above Average level of Life Style	32	32.00	23	23.00
D	Moderate level of Life Style	30	30.00	29	29.00
E	Below Average level of Life Style	04	4.00	18	18.00
F	Low Level of Life Style	03	3.00	10	10.00
G	Very Low Level of Life Style	0	0.00	04	4.00
Total		100	100	100	100

Acronyms: SSIUs =Social science stream Internet-users SSINUs =Social science stream Internet Non-users







Table No.4.14: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Lifestyle (Arts Stream; N=100 each)

Category	Levels of Lifestyle Status	Α	IUs	AINUs	
Cutegory		N	%age	N	%age
Α	Very High Level of Life Style	05	5.00	11	11.00
В	High Level of Life Style	21	21.00	38	38.00
С	Above Average level of Life Style	23	23.00	29	29.00
D	Moderate level of Life Style	27	27.00	18	18.00
E	Below Average level of Life Style	16	16.00	04	4.00
F	Low Level of Life Style	05	5.00	0	0.00
G	Very Low Level of Life Style	03	3.00	0	0.00
	Total	100	100	100	100

Acronyms: AIUs =Arts stream Internet-users AINUs =Arts stream Internet Non-users







Table No.4.15: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and
Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement
(Science Stream; N=100 each)

Levels of Academic Achievement	S	IUs	SINUs		
	Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Distinction	09	9.00	05	5.00	
1 st Division	71	71.00	50	51.00	
2 nd Division	13	13.00	36	36.00	
3 rd Division	07	7.00	09	09.00	
Total	100	100.00	100	100.00	

Acronyms: SIUs =Science stream Internet-users SINUs =Science stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 16: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Science stream Internetusers and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Achievement (N=100 each)





Table No.4.16: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different Levels of Academic Achievement
(Social Science Stream N=100 each)

Levels of Academic Achievement	SSI	Us	SSINUs		
Levels of Academic Acine venicit	Ν	%age	Ν	%age	
Distinction	11	11.00	07	7.00	
1 st Division	81	81.00	60	60.00	
2 nd Division	06	6.00	29	29.00	
3 rd Division	02	2.00	04	4.00	
Total	100	100.00	100.00	100.00	

Acronyms: SSIUs =Social science stream Internet-users SSINUs =Social science stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 17: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Social science stream Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=100 each)





Table No.4.17: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different Levels of Academic Achievement
(Arts Stream; N=100 each)

Levels of Academic Achievement	A	lUs	AINUs		
	Ν	%age	N	%age	
Distinction	04	4.00	08	08.00	
1 st Division	43	43.00	55	55.00	
2 nd Division	39	39.00	30	30.00	
3 rd Division	14	14.00	07	7.00	
Total	100	100.00	100	100.00	

Acronyms: AIUs =Arts stream Internet-users AINUs =Arts stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 18: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Arts stream Internet-users and Non-users on different Levels of Academic Performance (N=100 each)





Table No.4.18: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (Science
Stream; N=100 each)

Category	Levels of Attitude Towards	SIUs		SINUs	
	Research	N	%age	N	%age
Α	Extremely Favourable	09	9.00	03	3.00
В	Highly Favourable	15	15.00	07	7.00
С	Above Average Favourable	25	25.00	11	11.00
D	Moderately Favourable	37	37.00	35	35.00
E	Unfavourable	10	10.00	32	32.00
F	Highly Unfavourable	03	3.00	10	10.00
G	Extremely Unfavourable	01	1.00	02	2.00
	Total	100	100	100	100

Acronyms: SIUs =Science stream Internet-users SINUs =Science stream Internet Non-users







Table No.4.19: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and
Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research
(Social Science Stream; N=100 each)

Category	Levels of Attitude Towards	SSIUs		SSINUs	
Category	Research	N	%age	N	%age
Α	Extremely Favourable	10	10.00	3	3.00
В	Highly Favourable	13	13.00	06	6.00
С	Above Average Favourable	27	27.00	20	20.00
D	Moderately Favourable	29	29.00	22	22.00
Ε	Unfavourable	15	15.00	37	37.00
F	Highly Unfavourable	4	4.00	08	8.00
G Extremely Unfavourable		02	2.00	04	4.00
	Total	100	100	100	100

Acronyms: SSIUs =Social science stream Internet-users

SSINUs =Social science stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 20: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Social science stream Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=100 each)





Table No.4.20: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Non-
users on different levels of Attitude towards Research
(Arts Stream; N=100 each)

Category	Levels of Attitude Towards	AIUs		AINUs	
	Research	Ν	%age	Ν	%age
Α	Extremely Favourable	08	8.00	02	2.00
В	Highly Favourable	12	12.00	07	7.00
С	Above Average Favourable	22	22.00	13	13.00
D	Moderately Favourable	44	44.00	35	35.00
E	Unfavourable	10	10.00	33	33.00
F	Highly Unfavourable	02	2.00	08	8.00
G	Extremely Unfavourable	0	0.00	02	2.00
Total		100	100	100	100

Acronyms: AIUs =Arts stream Internet-users AINUs =Arts stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 21: Showing the Percent-wise Comparison of Internet-users and Nonusers (Arts Stream) on different levels of Attitude towards Research (N=100 each)





SECTION - B: COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

B1: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on:a) Lifestyle b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research

Table No.4.21: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean ScoresofInternet-usersandInternetNon-usersonLifestyle(N=300 each)

Dimensions of Lifestyle		IU	S	INUs		t-vəluo
		Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	Health Oriented Lifestyle	30.06	3.138	29.13	2.195	4.24**
II.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	26.42	2.159	23.80	2.770	13.21**
III.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	24.94	3.478	22.39	3.290	8.88**
IV.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	22.30	1.599	24.29	1.657	14.82**
V.	Trend Oriented Lifestyle	19.93	2.836	17.62	3.137	9.93**
VI.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	36.31	3.448	39.93	3.142	13.37**
	Composite Score	159.95	8.125	157.16	6.890	4.62**

Note: **p<0.01

Acronyms: IUs =Internet-users INUs =Internet Non-users





&

Table No.4.22: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Internet-users and Internet Non-users on AcademicAchievement (N=300 each)

	Π	Js	INUs		t-value
Academic Achievement	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t vurue
	65.69	4.33	61.25	4.89	11.80**

Note: **p<0.01

Acronyms: IUs =Internet-users; INUs =Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 23: Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Internet Nonusers on Academic Achievement (N=300 each)





Table No.4.23: Showing the Significance difference between the Mean Scores ofInternet-users and Internet Non-users on Attitude towardsResearch (N=300 each)

Dimensions of Attitude towards		Π	Us	INUs		t_vəluo
Research		Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	General aspects of Research and Research Process	48.44	2.739	45.42	3.307	12.27**
II.	Usefulness of Research in Professional Career	33.74	1.904	30.62	2.826	15.73**
III.	Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life	31.87	2.173	30.66	2.875	5.98**
IV.	Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety	40.70	2.987	39.04	4.270	5.49**
	Composite Score	154.75	6.641	145.74	6.154	16.96 ^{***}

Note: **p<0.01

Acronyms: IUs =Internet-users INUs =Internet Non-users







B2: Comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Gender Wise) on: a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research

Table No.4.24:	Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Sco	ores
	of Male and Female Internet-users on lifestyle (N=150 each)	

Dimensions of Lifestyle		M	Us	FIUs		t-value
		Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t value
I.	Health Oriented Lifestyle	29.65	3.453	30.26	3.469	1.54*
II.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	25.09	3.342	26.62	3.009	4.31**
III.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	26.25	4.082	23.75	4.964	4.91**
IV.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	21.20	2.913	21.51	2.694	0.99*
V.	Trend Oriented Lifestyle	21.45	2.638	22.76	2.907	4.22**
VI.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	35.58	5.219	36.63	4.909	1.91*
Composite Score		159.21	11.706	161.53	11.426	1.74 [*]

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Acronyms: MIUs =Male Internet-users FIUs =Female Internet-users






Table No.4.25: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Male and Female Internet Non-users on Lifestyle(N=150 each)

	Dimensions of Lifestyle		NUs	FIN	t-value	
			S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	Health Oriented Lifestyle	27.80	3.619	25.30	4.275	5.10**
II.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	22.97	4.039	23.26	2.993	0.72^{*}
III.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	23.51	5.145	24.29	4.237	1.45*
IV.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	23.56	2.035	24.35	2.688	2.97**
V.	Trend Oriented Lifestyle	17.21	4.104	16.91	4.694	0.58^*
VI.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	37.83	4.944	40.59	3.072	5.87**
Com	iposite Score	152.88	9.583	154.70	8.942	1.62 [*]

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Acronyms: MINUs = Male Internet Non-users FINUs = Female Internet Non-users







 Table No.4.26: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores of Male and Female Internet-users on academic Achievement

(N=150 each)

	M	Us Fl		Us	t-value
Academic Achievement	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	e varae
	65.02	4.43	66.37	4.15	2.73**

Note: **p<0.01

Acronyms: MIUs =Male Internet-users FIUs =Female Internet-users

Fig. No. 27: Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet-users on academic Achievement (N=150 each)





 Table No. 4.27: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scores of Male and Female Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement (N=150 each)

	MI	NUs	FINUs		t-value	
Academic Achievement	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	e varae	
	60.03	4.62	62.49	4.88	4.48**	

Note: **p<0.01

Acronyms: MINUs = Male Internet Non-users FINUs =Female Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 28: Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet Nonusers on Academic achievement (N=150 each)





Table No.4.28: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Male and Female Internet-users on Attitude towards Research(N=150 each)

Dimensions of Attitude towards		M	IUs	FI	FIUs	
	Research	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	value
I.	General aspects of Research and Research Process	49.61	4.853	48.61	4.060	1.96***
II.	Usefulness of Research In Professional Career	32.77	3.603	31.57	4.636	2.65**
III.	Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life	30.77	4.282	30.62	5.096	0.30*
IV.	Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety	39.63	4.885	38.55	4.340	2.11***
Com	posite Score	152.78	10.467	149.35	11.240	2.74**

Note: **p<0.01; ***p<0.05; *Insignificant

Acronyms: MIUs =Male Internet-users FIUs =Female Internet-users







Table No.4.29: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Male and Female Internet Non-users on Attitude towardsResearch (N=150 each).

Dim	ensions of Attitude towards	MI	NUs	FINUs		
	Research	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	General aspects of Research and Research Process	43.88	4.327	45.71	3.895	3.87**
II.	Usefulness of Research In Professional Career	30.79	3.808	30.87	3.741	0.16^{*}
III.	Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life	32.01	4.578	30.43	4.212	3.13**
IV.	Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety	39.64	3.354	38.88	3.882	1.79^{*}
	Composite Score	146.32	8.887	145.89	9.275	0.40 *

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Acronyms: MINUs = Male Internet Non-users FINUs = Female Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 30: Showing the Mean Comparison of Male and Female Internet Nonusers on Attitude towards Research (N=150 each)





B3: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on: a) Lifestyle, b) Academic Achievement and c) Attitude towards Research

Table No.4.30: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Interne-users and Non-users on Lifestyle (Science Stream;
N=100 each)

	Dimensions of Lifestyle		Us	SINUs		t-value
	Dimensions of Enestyre	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	Health Oriented Lifestyle	28.85	3.465	28.51	3.828	0.70^{*}
II.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	25.34	2.771	22.96	3.750	5.21**
III.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	22.22	5.508	21.48	3.940	1.07^{*}
IV.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	21.15	2.641	23.31	1.785	7.40**
V.	Trend Oriented Lifestyle	16.89	4.682	21.59	3.854	7.71**
VI.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	35.61	5.574	38.82	4.291	4.74**
	Composite Score	150.06	12.049	156.67	9.031	4.62**

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Fig. No. 31: Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on Lifestyle (Science Stream; N=100 each)



Acronyms: SIUs =Science stream Internet-users SINUs =Science stream Internet Non-users



Table No.4.31: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Internet-users and Non-users on lifestyle (Social ScienceStream; N=100 each)

	Dimensions of Lifestyle		Us	SSINUs		t-value
			S.D	Mean	S.D	t varue
I.	Health Oriented Lifestyle	29.40	3.210	26.22	3.799	5.84**
II.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	25.87	3.277	23.36	3.350	5.33**
III.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	24.85	5.102	23.36	4.700	2.20***
IV.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	24.45	2.354	22.16	2.092	6.65**
V.	Trend Oriented Lifestyle	19.37	5.557	17.00	3.715	3.63**
VI.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	35.01	5.595	38.96	5.183	5.82**
Com	iposite Score	158.95	11.090	151.06	8.763	5.89 ^{**}

Note: **p<0.01; ***p<0.05

Acronyms: SSIUs =Social Science stream Internet-users SSINUs =Social Science stream Internet Non-users







Table No.4.32: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Internet-users and Non-users on Lifestyle (Arts Stream;
N=100 each)

	Dimensions of Lifestyle		Us	AINUs		t-value
			S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	Health Oriented Lifestyle	28.34	3.710	30.70	3.512	4.85**
II.	Academic Oriented Lifestyle	24.62	4.185	24.19	3.164	0.86*
III.	Career Oriented Lifestyle	23.93	5.332	24.24	5.583	0.41*
IV.	Socially Oriented Lifestyle	21.51	3.070	23.41	2.113	5.10**
V.	Trend Oriented Lifestyle	15.59	3.890	20.23	4.909	7.52**
VI.	Family Oriented Lifestyle	37.69	3.425	39.85	3.298	4.57**
	Composite Score	151.68	11.932	162.62	10.085	8.53**

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Acronyms: AIUs =Arts stream Internet-users AINUs =Arts stream Internet Non-users







Table No.4.33: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Internet-users and Non-users on Academic Achievement(Stream wise Comparison)

Academic Achievement	IUs (N=100)		INUs (t-value	
Science Stream	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	
	66.71	4.15	61.81	5.25	7.33**
Social Science Stream	66.19	4.69	52.44	5.00	20.10**
Arts Stream	59.52	3.88	64.18	3.70	9.07**

Note: **p<0.01

Acronyms: IUs = Internet-users; INUs = Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 34: Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on Academic Achievement (Science Stream; N=100 each)







Fig. No. 36: Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on Academic Achievement Arts stream; N=100 each)





Table No.4.34: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research(Science Stream; N=100 each)

Dim	ensions of Attitude towards	SI	Us	SINUs		
Research		Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	General aspects of Research and Research Process	49.32	4.161	45.45	4.659	6.13**
II.	Usefulness of Research In Professional Career	33.05	2.664	29.03	4.305	7.28**
III.	Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life	29.96	4.616	30.35	4.865	0.61*
IV.	Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety	39.29	4.416	38.84	4.378	0.72*
Composite Score		151.62	10.079	143.67	10.848	5.37**

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Acronyms: SIUs =Science stream Internet-users SINUs =Science stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 37: Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research (Science Stream; N=100 each)





Table No.4.35: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research(Social Science Stream; N=100 each)

Dim	nensions of Attitude towards	SS	IUs	SSINUs		
Research		Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	General aspects of Research and Research Process	48.67	5.057	43.83	4.438	6.88**
II.	Usefulness of Research In Professional Career	32.91	4.040	27.90	4.054	7.80 ^{**}
III.	Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life	32.01	4.877	31.12	4.774	1.33*
IV.	Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety	40.66	4.535	37.16	4.109	5.63**
	Composite Score	154.25	9.867	140.01	9.968	10.15**

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Acronyms: SSIUs =Social science stream Internet-users SSINUs =Social science stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 38: Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research (Social Science Stream; N=100 each)





Table No.4.36: Showing the Significance of difference between the Mean Scoresof Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research(Arts Stream; N=100 each)

Dim	Dimensions of Attitude towards		Us	AINUs		t voluo
	Research	Mean	S.D	Mean	S.D	t-value
I.	General aspects of Research and Research Process	49.35	4.222	45.11	3.269	8.22**
II.	Usefulness of Research In Professional Career	32.62	4.129	32.46	3.960	0.26*
III.	Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life	31.58	3.210	32.19	3.454	0.17^{*}
IV.	Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety	38.21	4.130	37.77	4.592	0.75*
	Composite Score	151.76	9.493	147.53	7.500	3.61**

Note: **p<0.01; *Insignificant

Acronyms: AIUs =Arts stream Internet-users AINUs =Arts stream Internet Non-users

Fig. No. 39: Showing the Mean Comparison of Internet-users and Non-users on Attitude towards Research (Arts Stream; N=100 each)





SECTION - C: FACTOR ANALYSIS

C1: Principle component Factor Analysis of Internet-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research

*Table No.4.37: KMO Measure of Sampling Adequacy and Bartlett's Test of Sphericity (Group Internet-users)

Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin Measure of	.814	
	Approx. Chi-Square	1954.802
Bartlett's Test of Sphericity	df	45
	Sig.	.000

*For further understanding of results see correlation matrix (Appendix).

Table No.4.38: Showing the Total Variance Explained of Internet-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

Variables	Communalities		Initial Eigenvalues			Extra	xtraction Sums of Squared Loadings			Rotation Sums of Squared Loadings		
variables	Initial	Extraction	Total	% of Variance	Cumulative %	Total	% of Variance	Cumulative %	Total	% of Variance	Cumulative %	
HOLS	1.000	.829	4.200	42.003	42.003	4.200	42.003	42.003	3.255	32.547	32.547	
AOLS	1.000	.858	2.181	21.815	63.818	2.181	21.815	63.818	3.024	30.239	62.787	
COLS	1.000	.842	1.117	11.170	74.988	1.117	11.170	74.988	1.220	12.201	74.988	
SOLS	1.000	.825	.949	9.486	84.474							
TOLS	1.000	.853	.551	5.510	89.984							
FOLS	1.000	.472	.337	3.370	93.354							
AGARRP	1.000	.619	.195	1.949	95.304							
AURPC	1.000	.536	.180	1.801	97.104							
ARRPSL	1.000	.865	.155	1.552	98.656							
ADRRA	1.000	.800	.134	1.344	100.000							

Extraction Method: Principal Factor Analysis

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.

Fig. No. 40: Showing the Scree Plot Graph which Represents the Eigenvalues against all the Factors of Internet-users (N=300)



Table No.4.39: Showing the Un-rotated and Rotated Factor Matrix of Internetusers on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

Variables	Un-rotate	d Factor I	Matrix ^a	Variables	Rotated Factor Matrix ^a			
	1	2	3	variables	1	2	3	
COLS	.791	.454	.102	TOLS	.906	174	.055	
TOLS	.785	.487	.022	COLS	.888	183	.139	
HOLS	.782	.454	.107	HOLS	.882	176	.143	
ARRPSL	747	.549	.066	ADRRA	.853	021	268	
AOLS	739	.550	.094	AOLS	162	.905	117	
SOLS	730	.539	.033	ARRPSL	168	.903	145	
AURPC	491	.452	.301	SOLS	163	.877	173	
ADRRA	.596	.616	257	AURPC	045	.717	.139	
AGARRP	.335	064	.709	AGARRP	.208	105	.752	
FOLS	.037	221	.649	FOLS	118	031	.676	

Extraction Method: Principal Factor Analysis. 3 Factors extracted. Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization. Rotation converged in 4 iterations

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



Table No.4.40: Showing the Rotated Factor Matrix with Blocked out Values
(Extraction Method) of Internet-users on various dimensions of
Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

Variables	Rotated Factor Matrix ^a							
v al lables	1	2	3					
TOLS	.906							
COLS	.888							
HOLS	.882							
ADRRA	.853							
AOLS		.905						
ARRPSL		.903						
SOLS		.877						
AURPC		.717						
AGARRP			.752					
FOLS			.676					

Extraction Method: Principal Factor Analysis. Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization. Rotation converged in 6 iterations



Fig. No.41: Showing the Results of the Total Variance Explained by the extracted Factors and the Analysis of each of the 3 Factors Clusters of Variables Proffers a recipe for Naming the Factors of Internet-users (N=300)



Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.





Fig. No. 42: Showing a Clear Pattern of the Loadings, with all Variables Identified with 3 Factors of Internet-users (N=300)

Acronyms:

(1)HOLS= Health Oriented Lifestyle. (2) AOLS=Academic Oriented Lifestyle. (3) COLS=Career Oriented Lifestyle. (4) SOLS=Social Oriented lifestyle. (5) TOLS=Trend Oriented lifestyle. (6) FOLS=Family Oriented lifestyle. (7) AGARRP=Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process. (8) AURPC=Attitude towards Usefulness of Research in Professional career. (9) ARRPSL=Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life. (10) ADRRA=Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety



C2: Principle component Factor Analysis of Internet Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research

*Table No.4.41: KMO Measure of Sampling Adequacy and Bartlett's	's Test of Sphericity (Group Internet Non-users)
---	--

Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin Measure of	.772	
	Approx. Chi-Square	1945.063
Bartlett's Test of Sphericity	df	45
	Sig.	.000

*For further understanding of results see correlation matrix (Appendix)

Table No.4.42: Showing the Total Variance Explained of Internet Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards

Research (N=300)

V	Communalities		Initial Eigenvalues			Extra	xtraction Sums of Squared Loadings			Rotation Sums of Squared Loadings		
Variables	Initial	Extraction	Total	% of Variance	Cumulative %	Total	% of Variance	Cumulative %	Total	% of Variance	Cumulative %	
HOLS	1.000	.829	3.746	37.463	37.463	3.746	37.463	37.463	3.307	33.074	33.074	
AOLS	1.000	.785	2.316	23.160	60.622	2.316	23.160	60.622	2.308	23.084	56.158	
COLS	1.000	.774	1.541	15.410	76.033	1.541	15.410	76.033	1.987	19.875	76.033	
SOLS	1.000	.769	.920	9.196	85.229							
TOLS	1.000	.787	.370	3.700	88.928							
FOLS	1.000	.918	.342	3.421	92.350							
AGARRP	1.000	.798	.263	2.629	94.978							
AURPC	1.000	.899	.223	2.227	97.206							
ARRPSL	1.000	.845	.210	2.096	99.302							
ADRRA	1.000	.200	.070	.698	100.000							

Extraction Method: Principal Factor Analysis





Table No.4.43: Showing the Un-rotated and Rotated Factor Matrix of InternetNon-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitudetowards Research (N=300)

Variables	Un-rotated	Factor M	atrixª	Variables	Rotated I	actor Matri	ix ^a
	1	2	3		1	2	3
FOLS	.925	137	.209	FOLS	.922	095	.245
AURPC	.923	139	.168	AURPC	.901	092	.280
SOLS	.785	013	.390	SOLS	.877	009	.002
TOLS	.651	.030	.602	AOLS	.701	.510	182
AOLS	.586	.530	.401	HOLS	139	.815	.381
AGARRP	263	.850	.072	AGARRP	207	.809	316
HOLS	.105	.744	514	COLS	.394	.765	.183
COLS	.491	.724	095	ARRPSL	.248	304	.831
ARRPSL	.565	434	.581	TOLS	315	105	.823
ADRRA	.120	.085	422	ADRRA	081	.153	.412

Extraction Method: Principal Factor Analysis. 3 Factors extracted. Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization. Rotation converged in 6 iterations.





Table No.4.44: Showing the Rotated Factor Matrix with Blocked out Values
(Extraction Method) of Internet Non-users on various
dimensions of lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

Variables	Rotated Factor Matrix ^a							
	1	2	3					
FOLS	.922							
AURPC	.901							
SOLS	.877							
AOLS	.701	.510						
HOLS		.815						
AGARRP		.809						
COLS		.765						
ARRPSL			.831					
TOLS			.823					
ADRRA			.412					

Extraction Method: Principal Factor Analysis. Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization. Rotation converged in 6 iterations **Ö**.

Fig. No. 44: Showing the results of the Total Variance Explained by the extracted Factors and the analysis of each of the 3 Factors clusters of variables proffers a recipe for naming the Factors of Internet Non-users (N=300)



Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



Fig. No. 45: Showing a clear pattern of the loadings, with all Variables identified with 3 Factors of Internet Non-users (N=300)

Component Plot in Rotated Space

Acronyms:

(1)HOLS= Health Oriented Lifestyle. (2) AOLS=Academic Oriented Lifestyle. (3) COLS=Career Oriented Lifestyle. (4) SOLS=Social Oriented lifestyle. (5) TOLS=Trend Oriented lifestyle. (6) FOLS=Family Oriented lifestyle. (7) AGARRP=Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process. (8) AURPC=Attitude towards Usefulness of Research in Professional career. (9) ARRPSL=Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life. (10) ADRRA=Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety



valuation does not end just with the data collection and analysis to find out mean value or degree of satisfaction. Some value judgments should be made according to the evaluation criteria. At the same time, in order to make the useful recommendations, the factors that affect the results should, however, be carefully analyzed. Evaluation follows the process from "data collection" through "data analysis" to "interpretation and discussion of results". So, the foremost task before the investigator, after the collection of data, is its compilation and careful tabulation followed by logical analysis and interpretation. This process leads the investigator to draw the meaningful inferences. Interpretation and discussion is a process by which meaning is attached to data. It is a process of making sense of numerical data that has been collected, analyzed and presented. It refers to the task of drawing inferences from the collected facts after an analytical or experimental study (Kothari, 2010). It is only through interpretation that the researcher can expose relations and processes that underlie his findings. Therefore, the purpose of data interpretation is to reduce it into an intelligible and interpretable form so that the relations of research problems can be studied tested and finally conclusions are drawn. On the other hand, when the researcher interprets the research results, he studies them for their meaning and implications (De Vos, 1998). It is further noted that the interpretation phase is to transform the data collected into the credible evidence about the development of the intervention and its performance. It is transformation of the collected information into credible evidence. Two steps are noted in the interpretation process: i) making value judgments about a project and ii) drawing of conclusions based on those judgments. In fact, it is a search for a broader meaning of the research findings which represent the application of deductive logic to the research process. The task of interpretation and discussion has two major aspects



i) the effort to establish continuity in research through linking the results of a given study with those of another and ii) the establishment of some explanatory concepts (Kothari 2010).

Interpretation and discussion of the research based observation is the central objective of any investigation. An investigator can better be appreciated in his stepwise stages of interpretation that can make others to understand the real significance of his research findings. Thus, interpretation and discussion is the device which explains, 'what has been observed by the researcher in the course of the study'. It also provides a theoretical base which may serve a sharp line for further researches. The present investigation provides an overall perception of the variables under investigation and has systematically been oriented in accordance with the research objectives and hypotheses (**Refer Page: 2**). For this purpose, the data collected was subjected to statistical treatment. Percentage and inferential statistical procedure was carried out to test the hypotheses and finally, the Principle Component Factor Analysis (PCFA) was used in line with the framework of the research study. Therefore, the present chapter is devoted to interpretation and discussion of the results which has been done objective wise. Keeping this criterion in view, the results obtained are interpreted and discussed in different captions which are delineated as:

SECTION A: DESCRIPTIVE ANALYSIS

A1: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Overall Groups)

The data presented in **Table No. 4.00** shows the percent-wise distribution of the sample subjects (N=600) on different levels of lifestyle. A perusal of this table reveals that 6.17% of total sample were found in the category of *very high level* of lifestyle. 22.83% subjects were found to adapt *high level* of lifestyle. 34% subjects were found to adapt *above average level* of lifestyle. The table further reveals that 24.67% were reported to adapt *moderate level* of lifestyle. However, 9.33% subjects were found to *adapt below average level* of lifestyle and a meager percentage, (2.50%) and (0.50%) is observed in the category of *low level* and *very low level* of lifestyle respectively. The overall results reveal that highest percentage of sample subjects are placed in the *above average* category of lifestyle status followed by *moderate* and *high level* life style. The results are further represented in the pie-chart (**Fig.1**). A perusal of **Table No. 4.01** signifies the overall percent-wise distribution of the total sample under



investigation on different levels of Academic Achievement. It is observed that out of total sample, 2% are reported to be as distinction holders. The highest percentage in the category of first *division holders* is seen to be 71%. The analysis further reveals 22% students with second division and remaining 5% with third division. Therefore, overall percentage status reveals that a majority of the subjects exhibited good academic achievement. The results are further substantiated in the Figure.2. While discussing the percent wise status of the total sample on different levels of attitude towards research (Refer Table No. 4.02) indicates the overall percentage status of total sample on different levels of attitude towards research. The table reveals that 3.5% subjects are reported with *extremely favourable* attitude towards research. The results further reveal that 4.8% have highly favourable attitude towards research. 6% subjects seem to be with averagely favourable, 36.2% as moderately favourable, and 31% as unfavourable on attitude towards research. The results further revealed 16.5% with highly unfavourable and 2% with extremely unfavourable level of attitude towards research. The overall results revealed that a significant percentage of the subjects under investigation in the category of *moderately favourable* level on attitude towards research. The (Fig.3, Page: 124) gives the further understanding of the results.

A2: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research

(Internet-users and Non-users)

Table 4.03 gives details about the percent-wise distribution of Internet-users and Non-users on different levels of lifestyle. It has been revealed that in case of Internet-users the highest percentage (39%) seems to fall in the category of *above average level* of life style. 27% in the category of *high level* and 20% are reported to have inclination towards *moderate level* of life style. However, a small percentage of Internet-users i.e. 8.33% and 5% are reported in *very high* and *below average level* on life style respectively. Only 0.33 subjects of Internet-users have been reported to adapt a *low level* of life style. Whereas, in case of Internet Non-users, the percentwise adaptability on lifestyle emerged as: 29% from each level as *above average* and *moderate level*, 18.67% as *high level*, 13.67% as *below average*, 4.67% as *low level* and 4% as *very high*. None of the Internet-users has been found in the category of *very low level* of lifestyle. However, only 1% from Internet Non-users category is



reported to have leaning on very low level of life style. The comparative percent-wise distribution of the two groups under discussion revealed that a significant percentage of Internet-users are in the category of *above average level* of lifestyle. Therefore, it can be said that Internet usage is an important factor that influences the lifestyle of the university students. For further understanding see the figural representation (Fig.4) With regard to percent wise comparison of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on academic achievement (Refer Table 4.04). The data revealed that in case of Internetusers, 85% are reported with first division, 8% with second division, 4% with third division and 3% with distinction. Whereas, 57 % subjects from Internet Non-user group are reported with first division, 36% with second division, 6% with third division and a negligible percentage (one Percent) with distinction. From these results it can be observed that Internet-users in comparison to Internet Non-users have an increasing trend in their academic achievement. Internet-users and Internet Non-users were further classified on different levels of attitude towards research (Refer Table **4.05**) and it is revealed that 6% subjects Internet-users were observed to have extremely favourable attitude towards research as compared to Internet Non-users whose percentage is seen to be relatively as low as 1%. The results further revealed that 8% subjects with Internet usage were found to have highly favourable attitude towards research, whereas 1.67% Internet Non-users fall in this category. The results further showed 9% subjects from Internet-user group with above average level attitude towards research, which seems to be higher (3%) than Internet Non-users. The result also revealed 40% Internet-users with moderately favourable attitude towards research, which is comparatively, higher than Internet Non-users (32.33%). However, 27% subjects with Internet usability have been found with unfavourable attitude towards research whereas, comparatively a higher percentage (35%) of Internet Non-users are observed to fall in this category. It is worth to mention that only 10% Internet-users as compared to 23% Internet Non-users have been found to possess highly unfavourable attitude towards research. None of the Internet-users could be placed in the category of *extremely unfavourable level* on attitude towards research, except the Internet Non-users with 4% subjects. Percent-wise distribution of the two groups under discussion revealed that majority of Internet users fall in *moderate level* of attitude towards research as against to their counter parts.





Therefore, it can be said that Internet usage is an important factor that influences the attitude towards research of the subjects under reporting. The results are further presented in bar diagram (**Fig. 6**).

- A3: Sub-Group Analysis
- i) (a) Lifestyle (b) Academic Achievement and (c) Attitude towards Research (Gender wise)

(a) Lifestyle: (Gender wise)

While analyzing the percent-wise comparison of male and female Internet-users on different levels of lifestyle (Refer Table 4.06). It could be noted that 10% Internetusers from male group were found to adapt very high level of lifestyle, whereas, in case of Internet-users from female group, relatively a higher percentage (14.66 %) is reported in this category. The data further reveals that 22% male Internet-users were found to adapt *high level* of lifestyle as compared to female Internet-users, whose percentage in this category is reported to be relatively higher (34%). The data further reveals that in case of male Internet-users, 30% were found to adapt the above average level of lifestyle, which is also relatively lower (40%) than female Internetusers. However, moderate level of lifestyle favours male Internet-users with 14.66% as compared to female Internet-users who are reported to be 4.67%. The data further confirms that 12.66% Internet-users from male group are seen to adapt *below average level* of lifestyle which seems to be higher as compared to female Internet-users (4%). It has been observed that 10% Internet-users (male group) have leaning towards the *low level* of lifestyle as compared to female Internet-users, whose percentage came out to be 2%. Both the genders are observed with similar percentage (0.67%) in the adaptation of very low level of lifestyle. Percent-wise comparison of the two groups reveals that a significant percentage of female Internet-users fall in above average level of lifestyle as against male Internet-users. Therefore, it can be said that gender difference is an important factor that influences the lifestyle of university students. The results are further shown in the **Fig.7**).

In order to find the percent wise classification (**Refer Table 4.07**) of the male and female Internet Non-users on different levels of lifestyle. It could be noted that 6% male Internet Non-users are reported to adapt a *very high level* of lifestyle, whereas, 12% Internet Non-users from female group fall in this category. 28.67% male Internet Non-users are reported to adapt *high level* of lifestyle as compared to female



Internet Non-users who are reported to be 32%. Description of the results further shows that 22% male Internet Non-users are found to adapt *above average level* of lifestyle as compared to female Internet Non-users whose percentage is seen comparatively lower i.e. 17.34%. However, *moderate level* of lifestyle favours male Internet Non-users corresponding to 18% as compared to 10 % of female Internet Non-users. The data further confirms that 6.67% (male) and 5.33% (female) Internet Non-users are reported to adapt *below average level* of lifestyle. It is worth to mention here that in case of male Internet-users 16% are reported to adapt *low level* of lifestyle has been reported in case of both the genders with 2.66% (male) and 3.33% (female). Percent wise comparison of these two groups under discussion revealed that both the groups experience to some extent similar lifestyle status. Therefore, it can be concluded that gender does among Internet Non-users differentiate them in their lifestyle. The (**Fig. 8, Page: 129**) gives further understanding of the results.

(b) Academic Achievement (Gender wise)

The results presented in **Table 4.08** give information about the academic achievement of Internet-users (See Page: 130) on gender basis, it has been noted that male group of Internet-users are seen as distinction holders and this percentage came out to be 6%. 74% are found to be with *first division*; 18% with *second division* and the rest 2% with third division. Whereas, the academic achievement of female group of Internetusers emerged as: 8% with distinction; 86% with first division; 4.67% with second division and 1.33% with third division. From these results it can be inferred that gender superiority seems to exist between the groups of the Internet-users as far as academic achievement is concerned. However, the results reveal that female Internetusers excel in comparison to male Internet-users in their Academic achievement. Further, the percent wise distribution of male and female Internet Non-users on academic achievement has been carried out (Refer Table 4.09) and the results reveal that in case of male Internet Non-users, 5.33% are reported to be with *distinction*, 48% with first division; 42.67 % with second division and remaining 4% with third division. Whereas, the academic achievement in case of female Internet- Non-users emerged as: 7.33% as distinction holders; 64% with first division; 26% with second *division* and 2.67% with *third division*. The overall results conclude that female group



of Internet Non-users exhibited better academic achievement as compared to their counterparts. The **Fig.10** substantiates these findings for further understanding.

(c) Attitude towards Research (Gender wise)

While analyzing the percent wise distribution of male and female Internet-users on different levels of attitude towards research (**Refer Table 4.10**), the results reveal that 4% subjects from the group of male Internet-users were found *extremely favourable* on attitude towards research and 5.33% female Internet-users are reported to fall in this category. The data further reveals that 8.66% male Internet-users reported a highly favourable attitude towards research, which is comparatively lower than the female Internet-users (12%). The two groups were also found with similar distribution on *above average* and *favourable* level of attitude towards research with percent wise distribution of 24% and 25.33% respectively. Description of the results further depicts that 42% from male Internet-users' group and 33.34% from female Internet-users' group were found to have a moderately favourable attitude towards research. However, it has been observed that 14% male Internet-users are unfavourable on attitude towards research as compared to female Internet-users whose percentage on this level came out proportionally higher i.e. 18%. It is worth to be mentioned here that 5.34% male Internet-users are found highly unfavourable on attitude towards research as compared to female Internet-users, whose percentage is reported to be 3.33%. On *extremely unfavourable* level of attitude towards research, both the groups (Male=2% and Female=2.67%) were found approximately similar. Percent wise comparison revealed that majority of Internet-users (male group) exhibited a moderate level of attitude towards research as against the female Internet-users. Therefore, it can be said that gender influences the Internet-users in their attitude towards research. Further, percent wise comparison of male and female Internet Non-users on attitude towards research was carried out (Refer Table No.4.11) and it has been revealed that on *extremely favourable* level of attitude towards research, the percentage of both the genders is observed to be similar. The data further reveals that 6% subjects from the male non Internet-user group and 8% females from the same group were found highly *favourable* on attitude towards research. It has also been observed that both groups (Male= 10%; Female= 11.34%) are slightly similar in their percent wise distribution on the *above average* level favourable attitude towards research. Description of the



results further depicts that 40% male Internet Non-users and 30% female Non-users were found with *moderately favourable* on attitude towards research. Whereas, 22% male Internet Non-users are reported *unfavourable* on attitude towards research as compared to female Internet Non-users whose percentage is observed to be higher 28%. The two groups are also found with near similarity (Male=16%; Female=18%) in percent wise distribution on *highly unfavourable* level in the attitude towards research. It is worth to mention that only 4% male Internet Non-users, as compared to 2.66% female Internet Non-users, were found to have *extremely unfavourable* on attitude towards research. Percent wise comparison of the two groups revealed that majority of Internet Non users (male group) exhibited a *moderate level* of attitude towards research. Therefore, it can be inferred that gender difference among Internet Non-users in attitude towards research differentiate the subjects under investigation. The **Figs. 11 and 12 (Page: 133 and 134)** gives further understanding of the results.

- A3: Sub-Group Analysis
- ii) (a) Lifestyle (b) Academic Achievement and (c) Attitude towards Research (Faculty wise)

(a) Lifestyle (Faculty wise)

The sub group analysis on the variable lifestyle between Internet-users and Internet Non-users was carried out faculty basis. The results of which are given in Table No. 4.12 (Chapter 4th). The discussion of the results revealed the percent wise distribution of Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Science stream) on different levels of lifestyle. A perusal of this table reveals that 2% in case of Internet-users were found to adapt very high level of lifestyle whereas, 9% Internet Non-user group were found comfortably placed in this category. The data further reveals that in case of Internet user group, 12% have the high level adaptability on lifestyle as compared to Internet Non-users whose percentage is comparatively higher (28%). The observation of the results observed 25% Internet-users (Science stream) with above average level adaptability on lifestyle as against the 33% Non-users in similar category. The analysis further exhibits that in case of Internet user group, 27% adapt moderate level of lifestyle as compared to Internet Non-users with 11% distribution. However, in case of Science stream Internet-users, 23% were found with below average level adaptability on lifestyle, as against the Internet Non-users who are reported to be 10%. The two groups (user and non-user) were found almost equally similar on low



level of lifestyle with 9% and 8% distribution respectively. It is worth to mention here that on very low level distribution of lifestyle, both groups have been seen to adapt almost similar lifestyle with a percentage ration of 2: 1 respectively. Percent wise comparison of the two groups under discussion revealed a significant trend in case of Science stream Internet Non-users as against to Internet-user group. While discussing the percent wise comparison of Internet-users and Non-users belonging to Social science stream on different levels of *lifestyle*, Table No.4.13 reveals that highest percentage (32%) of Internet-users from this stream have are placed in the *above* average level of Lifestyle as compared to 23% Internet Non-users from the same stream. The results further reveal that in case of Internet-users of social science stream, 30% are reported with a *moderate level* of adaptability on lifestyle in comparison to Internet Non-users whose percentage came out to be 29%. The percentwise details in case of Internet-users from social science stream group in rest of the categories are: 17% as high level; 14% very high level; 4% below average and 3% low *level style*. None of the subjects could be placed in the category of *very low level* life style. However, in case of Internet Non-users group from the stream under discussion, the percent-wise details are: 18% as below average, 12% as high level, 10% as low level, and 4% as very high level on life style. Percentage comparison of the two groups reveals that a significant distribution of Internet-users from Social science stream reflects their presence on the *above average level* of life style. Further, percent wise comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Arts Stream) on different levels of lifestyle has also been carried out. The results of which are reported in Table 4.14 (Chapter 4th Page: 136). Analysis of the results reveals that in case of Arts stream Internet-users, 5% are reported with very high level adaptability on lifestyle as compared to the Internet Non-users, whose percentage is observed to be 11%. The analysis further shows that 21% from Internet-users and 38% Internet Nonusers fall in the category of high level on lifestyle. Besides, in case of Internet-users, 23% were found to adapt *above average level* of lifestyle as compared to Internet Non-users whose percentage is found to be 29%. However, 27% and 18% subjects from Internet-user and Non-user group were reported to fall in the moderate level of lifestyle respectively. The data further reveals 16% Internet-users with below average *level adaptability* of lifestyle as compared to Internet Non-users, whose percentage is





observed to be 4%. It is observed that 5% subjects belonging to Arts stream (Internetusers) are reported to fall in the *low level* of lifestyle and none of the Internet Nonusers could be placed in same category. It is also reported that 3% from Arts stream Internet-user group were found in *very low level* placement on lifestyle and none of the Arts stream Internet Non-users could find their entry in this category. Percentage comparison of the two groups reveals that a significant percentage of Internet Nonusers from Arts stream reflect their existence on the *high level* option of lifestyle. Therefore, it can be inferred that Internet usage is an important factor that influences the lifestyle of Arts stream university students. These finding has also been reflected in **Figs. 13, 14 and 15**.

(b) Academic Achievement (Faculty wise)

While discussing the academic achievement of Internet-users and Non-users belonging to Science stream (Refer Table 4.15), it has been observed that 9% subjects from Internet-user group (Science Stream) were distinction holders; 71% with first division; 13% with second division and the remaining 7% with third *division*. The same table shows the percent-wise distribution on performance standard of Internet Non-users from the same stream as: 5% distinction holders; 51% first divisioners; 36% second division and 9% third division. From these results it can be inferred that Internet-users from Science stream excel in comparison to the Internet Non-users of the same stream in their academic achievement. Further, the percent wise comparison on academic achievement of Internet-users and Non-users (Social science stream) reported in Table 4.16 (Page: 138) reveals 11% Internet-users in the category of distinction holders; 81% with first division; 6% with second division and remaining 2% with *third division*. Whereas, the percent wise distribution of Internet Non-users from the same stream emerged as: 7% distinction holders. The results further revealed 60% subjects with first division; 29% with second division and 4% with *third division*. From these results, it has been revealed that Internet-users from Social science stream excel in comparison to Internet Non-users in their academic achievement. While analyzing the percent wise distribution of Internet-users and Internet-Non-users (Arts stream) on academic achievement (Refer Table 4.17), it is revealed that in case of Internet-users, 4% are seen as distinction holders; 43% as first divisioners; 39% with second division and 14% with third division. Whereas, the



percent-wise results in case of Internet Non-users emerged as: 8% with *distinction*; 55% with *first division*; 30% with *second division* and 7% with *third division*. Percent wise comparison revealed that majority of Internet Non-users (Arts Stream) exhibited better academic achievement in comparison to Internet-users of same stream. The graphical reporting also shows this differentiation in **Figs. 16, 17and 18.**

(c) Attitude towards Research (Faculty wise)

A perusal of Table 4.18 gives the percent wise classification of Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Science stream group) on different levels of attitude towards research, the results of which are given in **Table 4.18**. The figures reveal that 9% Internet-users from science stream were found to have *extremely favourable* attitude towards research, as compared to the Internet Non-users whose percentage is reported to be 3%. The data further reveals that 15% subjects from Science stream Internetusers and 7% Internet Non-users were found to have highly favourable attitude towards research. 25% subjects from Science stream Internet-users were found above average on attitude towards research as compared to Science stream Internet Nonusers, whose percentage is seen to be 11%. The results further depict that 37% Internet-users and 35% Non-users from the same stream are seen to have *moderately* favourable attitude towards research. However, unfavourable level of attitude towards research, Science stream Internet-users have been reported to be 10% as compared to Internet Non-users (32%). It is further observed that 3% subjects from Internet user category were highly favourable on attitude towards research in comparison to Internet Non-user group which corresponded to 10%. In *extremely unfavourable* level on attitude towards research, the two groups were found to be somewhat similar with 1^{\%} and 2^{\%} respectively. Percent wise comparison of the two groups under discussion revealed a significant percentage of Internet-users from the Science stream experience *moderately favourable* attitude towards research in comparison to Internetuser group. Therefore, it can be inferred that Internet usage is an important factor that influences the attitude towards research among Science stream Internet-users. While discussing the percent wise comparison of Internet-users and Non-users belonging to Social science stream on different levels of attitude towards research (Refer Table No. 4.19). It could be noticed that 10% subjects from Social science stream Internetusers group were found *extremely favourable on* attitude towards research, as



compared to Internet Non-users whose percentage distribution accounted to 3%. In the same table, 13% Internet-users and 6% Internet Non-users were found as highly favourable. 27% subjects belonging to Internet-users group and 20% from Non-users group were found with above average level on attitude towards research. Description of the results on attitude towards research further exhibited 29% (Internet-users) as moderately favourable as compared to Internet Non-users who were reported to be 22%. However, the percent wise distribution as unfavourable between users and non users on attitude towards research came out to be 15% and 37% respectively. It is worth to mention that only 4% Internet-users (Social science stream) had highly unfavourable attitude towards research as compared to Internet Non-users of the same stream (8%). On *extremely unfavourable level*, the two groups were found to have somewhat similar attitude towards research i.e. (2%) and (4%) respectively. Percentage comparison of the two groups reveals that a significant percentage of Social science stream Internet-users fall in unfavourable level of attitude towards research as against Social science stream Internet Non-users. Therefore, it can be inferred that Internet usage is an important factor that influences the attitude towards research among Internet-users and Internet Non-users. Further, percent wise comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Arts Stream) on different levels of attitude towards research has also been calculated. The results of which are reported in Table No. 4.20 (Chapter 4th). The results reveal that 8% Internet-users were found to have *extremely favourable* attitude towards research than Non-user group, who are reported to be 2%. The results further reveal 12% subjects with highly favourable attitude towards research in comparison to Internet -Non-users group (7%). 22% Internet-users and 13% Internet Non-users were found to have above average favourable attitude towards research. Description of the results further exhibit 44% subjects moderately favourable on attitude towards research in comparison to Nonusers who are reported 35%. However, in unfavourable level of attitude towards research, the Internet-user group corresponded to 10% as compared to Internet Nonusers who were observed to be higher i.e.33%. It is worth to mention that only 2% Internet-users and 8% Internet Non-users were found with highly unfavourable attitude towards research. None of the Internet-users could be placed in the extremely unfavourable level, whereas only 2% of Internet non-users claim their presence on the



same level. Results concluded that a significant percentage of Arts stream Internetusers experience *moderately favourable* attitude towards research as against Arts stream Internet Non-users. Therefore, it can be inferred that Internet usage is an important factor that influences the attitude towards research of Arts stream Internetusers. For further understanding of the results see figural representation (**Chapter 4**th,

Figs. 19, 20 and 21).

SECTION B: COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

B1: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on: (a) Lifestyle(b) Academic Achievement and (c) Attitude towards Research

(a) Lifestyle:

The comparative analysis of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on different components of lifestyle is reported in Table No.4.21. A fleeting look on this table reveals a significant mean difference between the two groups on all the six dimensions of lifestyle. An examination of the table further reveals that both the groups (Internet-users and Internet Non-users) differ significantly on the dimension of Health Oriented Lifestyle. The mean score in case of Internet-users is reported to be higher (M=30.06) as compared to Non-users (M=29.13). The obtained 't'-value came out to be significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t = 4.24). From these results, it is revealed that the Internet-users seem to adapt a better Health Oriented Lifestyle. The two groups are also seen to differ significantly on Academic Oriented Lifestyle. The mean score of Internet-users came out to be 26.42 and in case of Internet Non-users the mean score is reported to be 23.80. The obtained 't'-value (t=13.21) is reported to be significant at 0.01 level of confidence. It indicates that Internet-users have an adaptation to better Academic Oriented Lifestyle. The two groups were further compared on Career Oriented Lifestyle, and the mean score in case of Internet-users seem to be higher (M=24.94) than the mean score of Non-users (M=22.39). The obtained 't'-value is significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=8.88). The mean difference favours the Internet user group which indicates their inclination towards better Career Oriented Lifestyle. With regard to Socially Oriented Lifestyle, Internet Non-users have been found with higher mean score (M=24.29) than Internet-users (M=22.30). The obtained 't'-value came out 14.82 which is statistically significant at 0.01 level. It can be inferred that Internet Non-users adapt better Socially Oriented


Lifestyle. The table further reveals a significant mean difference between the two groups on Trend Oriented Lifestyle. Internet-user group is observed with a higher mean score (M=19.93) as compared to Internet Non-users (M=17.62) on this dimension. The mean difference is significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=9.93). However, this mean difference favours the Internet-user group in comparison to the Non-user group. Both the groups of subjects were further compared on the Family Oriented Lifestyle. The results revealed Internet Non-users with higher mean score (M=39.93) than the Internet-users (M=36.31) on this dimension. The obtained 't'value came out to be significant at 0.01 level of confidence ((t=13.37). It can be said that Internet Non-users have leaning towards better Family Oriented Lifestyle. Coming to the composite score of Lifestyle scale of the two group under investigation, the mean score of Internet-users is reported higher (M= 159.59) than Internet Non-users who are observed to be lower on this dimension (M=157.16). The obtained 't'-value came out to be 4.62 which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. This mean difference on composite score of lifestyle favours the Internet-user group. Therefore, it can be inferred that the Internet-users do have the claim in their better lifestyle. Besides, Internet-users were reported with better adaptability in Health, Academic, Career and Trend oriented Lifestyles. The findings revealed that Internetusers as: conscious in maintaining physical fitness, loaded with a fund of knowledge about health oriented issues, active in performing physical exercise to maintain their health, punctual in medical checkups by consulting health experts, engaged in dietary and hygienic related issues. Spending maximum time on studies like reading reference books along with text books, using frequent technological gadgets to get information, consulting library and watching academic programmes and good motivation for higher education have also been expressed by the Internet-user group. This group was also observed familiar about different career options as compared to non user ones. They were seen inquisitive in gaining knowledge pertaining to their career. Chatting on Internet, frequent involvement in going through the fashion magazines and preference for new fashioned outlooks was also found in case of Internet users. They were reported to be engaged in their daily mundane lives which include dress material, purchasing and enjoyment. They (Internet-users) were also observed to be



more conscious about career choices and were seen active in searching the right type of information which culminates in the solution of their academic problems.

In the light of these results reported above, the hypothesis number one (Refer Chapter-1), which reads as, "There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Lifestyle" stands accepted. As it has been found that both the groups of subjects are different with regard to different dimensions of lifestyle. The results are supported by a host of researchers in the field (Orose Leelakulthanit, 2013; Mitchell, et al. 2009; Lewis, et al. 2009; Asan & Koca, 2006; Chinwe, 2006; Escoffery et.al, 2005; Lloyd et al. 2007; Veenhof, 2006; Mesch, 2006; Morgan & Cotton, 2003; Kraut et.al, 2002; Ball, Kim & Matei, 2001; Katz et al., 2001; Lenhart, Rainie, & Lewis, 2001; Ofosu, 2001; UCLA Internet, 2001; Nie & Erbring, 2000). Orose Leelakulthanit, (2013) found Internet-users more satisfied with their lives than the Internet Non-users. Internet Non-users, on the other hand, were seen to lack the ability to live the way they ought to value it, except for the aspect of family and social life. The study also found Internet usage as a source for gaining knowledge and information besides, ensuring healthy lifestyles. Mitchell et al. (2009) revealed information technology as a means of innovative practice. However, in order to promote healthy lifestyle, Internet has been acknowledged as a valuable means of health promotion. The results also found that Internet-users gain knowledge on nutrition, health and fitness topics. Lewis et al. (2009) reported interactive health communication more effective for the upward increase of knowledge with regard to adoption of healthier lifestyle. Health information acquisition behaviour has also been confirmed by Internet usage. The findings also revealed Internet usage and medical information positively correlated. To be health conscious, holding stronger health beliefs, and engaging in health related activities have also been confirmed in case of Internet users. The findings also confirm Internet usage as: information gathering tool; and an active viable mechanism for health segment. Asan & Koca (2006) revealed that Internet usage proved a way of life for the majority of higher education students all around the world. For most university students the Internet proved a functional tool which greatly changes the interactive process with others. Chinwe (2006) also established that majority of the students use the Internet for academic purposes. Using e-journals, e-libraries, e-books,



and online databases as academic resources for their related courses has also been confirmed. A positive association between students' Internet use and their learning strength has been proved significantly. *Escoffery et.al* (2005) found students' Internet usage positively related to health information. Acquiring of health information `online and use of various search engines with multiple web sites has also been confirmed to be associated with Internet usage. On the other hand, Internet Non-users were found more inclined towards the Family and Socially Oriented lifestyles. It reflects that Internet Non-users remain in touch with the domestic affairs and share each and every moment of daily activity with their family members. Respect for their family setup and preference for family affairs has been the demand of Internet-users. Celebrating festivals, preference for tours with their family, participation in social activities and social gathering has also gone in their favour. In other words, Internet use minimises the participation of any one in major life activities like social relationships, attending friendship parties, and attending the family affairs. The main reason may be that the time spent on one activity can decrease the association of being on another activity. It has also been found that Internet use at home is negatively related with duration required to be spent with routine family affairs. Furthermore, the cause of sparing some time in familial matters was seen higher for Internet Non-user. Internet use (by students) on the quality of strong relationships with parents and friends has also been found negatively in agreement. Poor Internet usability has also been observed to be associated with better family and society relationships. Therefore, Internet not only becomes a replacement for social activities, but for the argument it becomes a replacement for the establishment of strong social relationships too. On the whole, it can be said that Internet use may lead to adverse effects and social damages among users. The results run parallel with the findings of Lloyd et al., (2007) who established negative effects of Internet usage to social isolation, depression, loneliness, viz.a.viz. time management. Besides, increase in virtual interaction decreases the direction in face-to-face interaction among people and this in turn may lead to social isolation and depression. Internet communication as an impoverished form of social exchange as compared to traditional face-to-face interactions has a negative association on neighbourhood and community ties. Online activities have also been reported to decrease the social interaction, which otherwise are essential for



normal development. Veenhof (2006) found that those who spent time on the Internet during the day seem low in the establishment of neighbourhood relations as compared Internet non-users. Mesch (2006) revealed that time spent with regard to online participation was negatively related to the time spent in face-to-face interaction. The investigator further reported that online communication was less useful than face-toface communication, and that Internet use was negatively related to the existing intimate relationships. Internet usage was found negatively related to family closeness, and positively related to family conflicts. Morgan & Cotton (2003) revealed that frequent online interaction decreases social support, family communication, and community participation. Kraut et.al (2002) found that the Internet use contributes a phenomenal decrease in the size of people's social circle because time used for the Internet seems to give rise to less social involvement. Ball, Kim & Matei (2001) reported that Internet-users spent a considerable amount of time on the Internet activities to ensure social interaction in other forms. Whereas, Internet Non-users spend good time on family activities. Katz et al. (2001) indicated that more the time Internet-users spent on-line; the more likely they are offline on religious and community organizations, as compared to nonusers. Internet-users were reported poor on: social tolerance, communication and quality social relationships. Lenhart, Rainie, & Lewis (2001) reported that Internet use does not help the students to improve their relationships with their parents and that the Internet demands time to be spent with their family members. Ofosu (2001) asserted that Internet-based social interactions were worse and less meaningful than the real life interactions. The researcher claimed that there is a strong association between Internet-dependence and dissociation. The respondents' lack of social support from friends and family in the real life was found to be contributory factor of their dependence on the Internet. Internet-dependents exhibited more shyness and were more conscious of their self-esteem than non-Internet dependents. Internet dependents expressed significantly more social and family loneliness as compared to non-Internet dependents. UCLA Internet (2001) reported that Internet use undermines well-being because online connections seem to be weaker than real-life connections. It has also been found that students with a higher score on Internet use had a higher degree of loneliness when compared to students who had a low degree or no use of Internet. Nie & Erbring (2000) reported that



Internet use "necessarily" takes time away from family and friends. It causes users to be addicted for hours on each day and is away from their family and friends, neighbourhood and community. The results further confirmed Internet use associated with negative personal and social developmental outcomes. These results contradict previous research which reports that: Internet-users express more positive pro-social attitudes (*Cole & Robinson*, 2002; Liang & *Wei*, 2002), frequent Internet use is associated with less pro-social attitudes (*Mesch*, 2001) than non-users. However, others suggest that Internet provides positive effects on socialization as it stimulates the closeness of existing interpersonal relationships by reducing restrictions of time and location (*Lenhart, Madden, & Hitlin* 2005; *Lenhart, Rainie & Lewis* 2001).

B1: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on:

(b) Academic Achievement:

Table No. 4.22 depicts the significance of mean difference between the Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement. A comparative look of this table reveals that there is a significant mean difference between the two groups under investigation on academic achievement. The obtained 't' value came out to be 11.80, which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. Mean difference favours the Internetuser group (M=65.69) as compared to Internet Non-users (M=61.25). So, on the basis of these results, it can be inferred that Internet-users have higher academic achievement than their comparable ones. It could be seen that Internet provides quick access to users in study material, scholarly list serves, and databases which are located at different geographically remote institutions. It works as a valuable information source for university students. The results also revealed that Internet allows university students to broaden their academic experience, access important information and communicate to others within academic community. Internet-users further expressed that the Internet is more informative, useful, less expensive and time saving. It can be used in such forms as: books, library resources, or even field trips. University students find Internet usage as more informative than other information resources. It has made a tremendous impact on the academic activities of the students. They may be using the Internet activities (facilities) especially for seeking homework with the help of some search engines. Internet usage is an additional support to learning activities over



traditional print materials. Results revealed that Internet enables students to enhance their academic excellence.

In the light of the results reported above, the hypothesis number two (Refer Chapter- 1), which reads as, "There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement." stands accepted. As it has been established that these groups are different from each other in their academic achievement. The findings are in agreement with the findings of a host of researchers in the field (Ali Zarqa, 2014; Ogedebe, 2012; Kashif & Nadeem, 2010; Boles, 2010; Shahin & Ercan, 2010; Osunade et al., 2009; Turner & Farmer, 2008; Oyedun, 2007; Schroder, 2007; Tella, 2007; Jackson *et al.*, 2006; Suhail & Bargees, 2006; Oliver, 2006; Zhao & Fitzgerald, 2006; Cheung & Huang, 2005; Isman & Dabaj, 2004; Hicks, 2002; Ojedokun, 2001).

Ali Zarqa (2014) found Internet-users and Internet Non-users with different perceptions. Internet usage as a healthy source to academic activities has not been agreed by the Internet Non-users. The popularity of Internet usage and offline and online educational gains were reported in agreement to each other. Ogedebe (2012) found that students in institutions of higher learning take advantage of the information available on Internet for their coursework. It was found to be a significant contributor to higher academic performance. Kashif & Nadeem (2010) indicated that students find the Internet more informative and unpaved to other information resources. They consider it easier than the written material. Majority of students feel comfortable and satisfied with the information they find on Internet. With the use of Internet learning process has become constructive because learners receive information actively rather than passive. Cooperative learning environment has also been seen as one of the offshoots of Internet usage. Boles (2010) found Internet as a powerful educational tool which affects students' performance. The investigator also found that students who use it one daily basis in the classroom or anywhere have excellent result than those who are otherwise. Internet-users are reported to be more motivated and successful than Internet Non-users. Shahin & Ercan (2010) noted that the students use the Internet for academic purposes. They use e-journals, e-libraries, e-books, and online databases as academic resources for their related courses. Osunade et al. (2009) found a significant difference between Internet-users and Internet Non-users on academic



performance and Internet access. Turner and Farmer (2008) revealed a higher learning outcome of students with Internet-based multimedia classrooms. 36 percent increase in grades, and 56 percent reduction in failures was also reported in the study. Oyedun (2007) observed that most of the university students found Internet services as a contributory factor of academic performance. Similar findings are reported by some other researchers (Suhail & Bargees, 2007). Schroder (2007) reported university students utilizing the services of Internet to communicate their teachers through emails; ask for clarification of their academic problems and get feedback. Tella (2007) found that most of the respondents use Internet for the purpose of obtaining course related information. Besides, the Internet usage has been found as a significant contributor to academic performance. Jackson et al. (2006) found that Internet and academic achievement in positive association. It was also found that students, with higher frequency on Internet, scored high on standardized test of reading achievement and had higher grades. Web based education was reported positive to satisfactory academic achievement. The effect of web based education, on attitude toward learning, suggested that web use has a positive effect mainly on motivation for learning and interest in the lessons. Other researchers are also in line with these findings (Oliver, 2006; Zhao & Fitzgerald, 2006; Cheung & Huang, 2005; Isman & Dabaj, 2004. Hicks, 2002; Ojedokun, 2001). However, other investigators have found negative effects of Internet use on academic outcomes (Choi, 2007; Sirgy, Lee & Bae, 2006). Some studies found computer and Internet as important tools for students' communication and entertainment (Zhang & Jia 2002). Galuszka (2007) revealed that the technologies, such as the Internet and computers, are not in widespread use for academic purposes. Some studies focused that students tend to use the Internet less for academic gains. Asfaw & Bo (2003) found that students use the Internet more for social activities like communicating with friends than for academic-related tasks.

B1: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on:

(c) Attitude towards Research:

The data presented in **Table No. 4.23** gives information about attitude towards research between Internet-users and Internet Non-users. The results revealed Internet-users with a higher mean score on General Aspects of Research and Research Process (M=48.44) as compared to Non-users who are reported to have obtained a low mean



score on the same dimension (M=45.42). The obtained 't'-value was observed to be significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=12.27). The mean difference goes in favour Internet-users. From these results, it is revealed that the Internet-users have a favourable attitude towards the General Aspects of Research and Research Process. On another dimension i.e. Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, Internetusers were found with a higher mean value (M=33.74) as compared to Internet Nonusers (M= 30.62). Both the groups were found to be different from each other at 0.01 level (t=15.73). It can be inferred that Internet-users have a favourable leaning towards the Usefulness of Research in Professional Career. Internet-users were again compared on Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life. The mean score in case of Internet-users was reported to be 31.87 and in case of Internet Non-users it came to be 30.66. The obtained 't'-value came out to be is 5.98, which is reported significant at 0.01 level of confidence. It can be said that Internet-users have superiority over Internet Non-users on Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life. A quick observation of the results presented in table under discussion further shows a significant mean difference between Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. Although the mean score of Internetusers (M=40.70) is seen slightly higher than Internet Non-users (M=39.04) on this dimension, but the obtained 't' value established a significant mean difference at 0.01 level of confidence (t=5.49). On this basis, it can be revealed that Internet-users do not experience Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. The analysis, on the basis of overall results (by considering Composite Score) of both the groups under discussion, has shown a higher mean score in case of Internet-users (M=154.75) as compared to Internet Non-users (M=145.74). The overall results favoured superiority of Internet-users on Attitude towards Research to Internet Non-users. Internet-users were found with a favourable tendency in the attitude towards research. So, it can inferred that Internet-users may be favourable towards: the General aspects of research and research process, Useful in research based career, Relevance of research in personal social life and sorting out difficulties in research and research anxiety. However, Internet Non-users did not show any favourable attitude towards any of the dimensions on attitude towards research. It may be inferred that that Internet-users' possess a favourable attitude towards the concept of research, research



process and current scenario of research activities. They believe that research work does not impose any extra workload on them. They have awareness about the importance of the position of the supervisor with whom the research work is carried out. Development of cordial relationship with their research supervisor during research period and publishing of research findings has been found in positive association among Internet user group. Essentiality to publish research findings, in order to enhance the authenticity and acceptability of research works within academic community has also been seen among Internet users. There is a strong belief among Internet-users that research requires an expert, accurate and systematic observation. Internet-users showed positive feelings towards the significance and usefulness of research and research findings in the field of their study besides, career and profession. Research as an essential requirement for the improvement of process and practice of education at any grade level has also been favourably expressed by Internet-user group. Research as an effective means in becoming a successful educator has also been expressed by Internet-users. They feel that research provides insight to solve the related issues of their career and profession. They are observed to be constructive about the relevance of research and research-related activities in their personal and social life. Further, they are seen favourable in their attitude towards the application of research methods. They feel that knowledge acquired through research is more useful in their lives as compared to knowledge gained through reading some literature. They are seen to utilize research approaches in their lives and consider that research as highly relevant and beneficial for their personal and social lives. They feel at ease by engaging themselves in different sorts of theoretical and practical researchrelated activities and are comfortable in performing research and scholarly activities. They understand the methodology of conducting research works, are aware about the steps to be followed in pursuing a small research project. On the other hand, Internet Non-users' attitudes towards research could not attribute them with positive feeling about research. Research as a herculean task was the opinion of Internet Non-users. Concepts of research and its importance in their personal and professional life were also reported by these subjects. So, it can be concluded that Internet has an impact on research interest of the university students. It heralded the development and implementation of new and innovative research strategies among higher education



students. Findings also focus that Internet usage is a functional tool, which changes the perception of users to interact with others as an when they embark in carrying studies. They use Internet to accomplish a wide range of academic tasks and prepare course assignments, make study notes and process the data for their research projects. The results have also shown that given the opportunity to use Internet helps the user to seek and obtain scholarly material. This opportunity may lead them to communicate each other: email details, mailing lists and finally formation of new groups and chat rooms besides, exchanging emails with the faculty members, peers, and experts at any distance. They are seen up to-date in their fields on the Internet, with a variety of web sites. Access to library catalogs, bibliographic databases, and other academic resources in text form, graphics, and imagery on the World Wide Web has been observed among Internet-users. The Internet-users have expressed their feeling that Internet usage may prove helpful to them in the compilation of data in time.

In the light of the results reported above, the hypothesis number three (Refer Chapter- 1), which reads as, "There is significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Attitude towards Research" stands accepted. As it has been observed that significant mean differences existed between the Internet users and non users. These results agree with the findings of other studies (Fasae & Aladenyi's, 2012; Sakina Bashir, 2011; Agarwal & Dave, 2009; Kamba, 2008; Tella, 2007; Adegboji & Toyo, 2006; Asan & Koca, 2006; Genoni, et al., 2006; Massaquoi, 2006; Penny, 2006; Yusuf, 2006; Cheung & Huang, 2005; Jagboro, 2003; Kode & Kode, 2003; Ramayah et al., 2003; Steve Jones & Madden, 2002; Kuh & Hu, 2001; NCES & CAUL, 2001; Nardi, 1996).

Fasae & Aladenyi (2012) observed that students use Internet for research more than for communication and entertainment. Students use Internet because of the perceived effectiveness of the facility in information access on assignments and research projects. *Sakina Bashir* (2011) revealed that university students use Internet technology for course related reading and research needs. *Agarwal & Dave* (2009) found that students depended on the Internet as preferred a source of research information. The findings further revealed that Internet usage is important and beneficial to research through the downloading of study materials. *Kamba* (2008)



revealed that the only way to pursue knowledge is through research and the Internet seems to have a profound impact on research process and dissemination of information. Tella (2007) reported that Internet is an important source of information for learning and research especially for the students in higher learning institutions. It allows students to broaden their academic experience, access important information and communicate with others within the academic community. Adegboji & Toyo (2006) revealed that Internet contributed significantly to the ease of research difficulties through downloading materials. Asan & Koca (2006) reported that Internet is appealing to higher education for a number of reasons: reduces the time lag between the production and utilization of knowledge; promotes international cooperation and exchange of opinions; sharing of information; and promoting multidisciplinary research. Genoni, et al. (2006) indicated that research scholars were positive regarding the usefulness of the Internet for research purposes and for expanding their scholarly community. Massaquoi (2006) also confirmed that 84 percent of journal articles and 97 percent of completed research works are now available on the Internet. He adds that making use of the Internet helps in conducting research, publishing articles and exchanging ideas. Penny (2006) reported that Internet is more informative, relatively fast and accessible 24 hours a day. It has a wide base that allows access to an enormous range of research information either as full publications, reports, summaries or abstracts. Yusuf (2006) stated that the Internet provides a wide range of opportunities for easy access of relevant and current literature, wide range of instruments, and online opportunity for validation of instrument, simulation of an on-going research, and so on. He further reported that collaboration of research (trans-institutional, trans-national and trans-continental) is possible. Cheung & Huang (2005) found that Internet usage among university level students' correlated positively with general learning and have positive attitude towards learning through the Internet. Jagboro (2003) asserted that the Internet was the fourth most important resources for material among the postgraduate students with respondents using the Internet to access research materials and for email. Kode & Kode (2003) revealed that the craving for the Internet stems from its central role in ICT with access to free online journals, magazines, and other information resources anytime and from anywhere for academic and research purposes. Ramayah et al.



(2003) found that most students use Internet because of the perceived effectiveness of the facility in information access on assignments and research projects. *Steve Jones & Madden* (2002) indicated that the Internet played an important role in universities student's education. It has had an impact on their university experience and acts as a functional tool which helps them to communicate with faculty and access library materials. University students use Internet technology for course related reading and their research needs. *Kuh & Hu* (2001) revealed that surfing the Internet for course material had positive net effects on intellectual development and vocational preparation, in addition to personal development of college and university students. *NCES & CAUL* (2001) reported that higher education students used Internet for course related research. They relied mostly on Internet sources for the big project they downloaded study aides from the Internet. *Nardi* (1996) revealed that Internet usage is expanding the boundaries of the research field, as this technology enables students to conduct qualitative research beyond the limits of real-time, single location, physical settings, into the realm of cyberspace.

B2: Comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Gender wise) on: (a) Lifestyle (b) Academic Achievement and (c) Attitude towards Research

(a) Lifestyle:

A close look of **Table No. 4.24** shows the significance of difference between the mean scores of male and female Internet-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle. The two groups have been found significantly different on three out of six dimensions of lifestyle. Analysis of data reveals that male and female Internet-users differ significantly on Academic Oriented Lifestyle. The mean score in case of female Internet-users is reported to be higher (M=26.62) than the group of male Internet-users (M=25.09). The obtained 't'-value is significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=4.31). It can be inferred that female group of Internet-users have shown good adaptation towards Academic Oriented Lifestyle. With regard to Career Oriented Lifestyle, the mean score of Internet-users has been seen to be higher (M=26.25) than the female group of Internet-users (M=23.75). The calculated 't'-value is significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=4.91). It may be inferred that Internet-users adapt a better Career Oriented Lifestyle. The Two groups are also reported to differ



significantly on Trend Oriented Lifestyle. The mean difference is statistically significant at 0.01 level of confidence by favouring female group of Internet-users with a higher mean value (M=22.76) than male Internet-users (M=21.45). The obtained 't'-value is came out to be 4.22 which favours in the establishment of favourable a Trend Oriented Lifestyle among the female subjects with Internet usability tendency. However, the results further report that in rest of the three dimensions of lifestyle i.e. Health Oriented Lifestyle, Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle; the difference between the mean scores of the two groups failed to arrive at any level of significance. This can be said that male and female group of Internet-users have more or less similar Lifestyle with respect to the Health, Socially and Family Oriented Lifestyle. Coming to results of male and female Internet-users on the composite score of Lifestyle scale, the mean difference could not be established. It can be inferred that both the groups have tendency towards to an equal extent in their lifestyle.

While comparing the lifestyle of male and female Internet Non-users (Refer Table **No.4.25**) the results revealed a significant mean difference between male and female Internet Non-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle. The two groups have been found significantly different on three out of six dimensions of lifestyle. The Table further reveals that the male group of Internet Non-users have a higher mean score (M=27.80) on Health oriented Lifestyle than female Internet Non-users who are seen to have obtained a lower mean score on this dimension (M=25.30). The obtained 't' value has been found significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=5.10). From these results, it is revealed that male Internet Non-users have better adaptation towards Health Oriented Lifestyle. On the other hand, two groups have been reported to differ significantly on the dimension of Socially Oriented Lifestyle. The mean score of male group of Internet Non-users has been seen lower (M=23.56) than the group of female Internet Non-users (M=24.35). However, this difference seems to favour female Internet Non-users at 0.01 level of confidence (t= 2.97). So, it can be inferred that the female Internet Non-users have a leaning to better Socially Oriented Lifestyle. On the 6th dimension of Lifestyle (Family Oriented Lifestyle) female Internet Non-users have been observed with a higher mean score (M=40.59) than male Internet Non-users (M=37.83). The calculated 't'-value is reported to be significant at 0.01 level (t=5.87).



It can be said that female Internet Non-users have an excellent adaptation towards Family Oriented Lifestyle. However, in rest of the three dimensions-Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle and Trend Oriented Lifestyle the difference between the mean scores turned out to be insignificant. This can be said that the male and female Internet Non-users have more or less similar lifestyle on these three dimensions of Lifestyle. With regard to the composite score of Male and Female Internet Non-users, the mean difference could not be established. It could be observed that both the groups have tendency towards to an equal extent in their lifestyle. It can be inferred that the two groups differ significantly from each other on three out of six dimensions of lifestyle, i.e. Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle and Trend Oriented Lifestyle. However, the two groups failed to arrive at any level of significance on overall lifestyle (composite score). Female Internet-users were found with better adaptability on Academic and Trend oriented lifestyle, whereas, male Internet-users have shown good adaptation towards better career oriented lifestyle. In rest of the three dimensions of lifestyle, the difference between the mean scores of the two groups could not be established. This can be said that male and female Internet-users have more or less similar lifestyle with respect to the Health Oriented Lifestyle; Family Oriented Lifestyle and Socially Oriented Lifestyle. While comparing the lifestyle of male and female Internet Non-users, it has been found that the two groups seem to be different from each other on three out of six dimensions of lifestyle, i.e. Health oriented lifestyle, Socially oriented lifestyle and Family oriented lifestyle. On the composite score, the mean differences between the two groups failed to arrive at any level of significance. Male Internet Non-users have been found inclined to better Health oriented lifestyle as compared Non-users. They were found inclined to Socially oriented and Family oriented lifestyle. In rest of the three dimensions i.e. Academic oriented lifestyle, Career oriented lifestyle and Trend oriented lifestyle, the difference between the mean scores of the two groups could not be established. So, it can be revealed that gender variation do not exist to differentiate the Internet-users and Internet Non-users on lifestyle at any level.

In the light of these results reported above, the hypothesis number four (Refer Chapter- 1), which reads as, "There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Lifestyle on the



basis of gender." rejected. The results are in consonance with findings of various researchers (Chen and Tsai, 2007; Durndell & Haag, 2002; Shaw & Gant, 2002; Jackson *et al.*, 2001; Houtz & Gupta, 2001; Tsai, Lin & Tsai, 2001; Lindsay & Larry, 2002; Odell, Korgen *et al.*, 2000).

Chen and Tsai (2007) found that online learning helps both male and female students in becoming imaginative and collaborative learners. It has been confirmed that any online learning experienced by any Internet user requires the interest and welfare of the students regardless of their gender. Durndell & Haag (2002) could not find consistent evidence between male and female Internet users. Shaw & Gant (2002) found no gender differences among on liners in dyadic chat sessions. Jackson et al. (2001) could not provide consistent evidence for the presence or otherwise of a gender gap in Internet use across different groups on gender basis. Houtz & Gupta (2001) found significant gender differences on the basis of ability to master technology skills. Both the genders, however, viewed computers as a useful tool and equally believed that computers with positive effects on them. Tsai, Lin and Tsai (2001) reported similar results in their study which showed no significant gender differences in the perceived usefulness of the Internet. Lindsay & Larry (2002) reported significant mean differences between men and women in using and communicating through Internet. Odell, Korgen et al. (2000) asserted no gender discrepancy in Internet usage among students. These researchers discovered Internet use as positively correlated with steep decline in communication between participant family members. They also found that participants using Internet were likely to experience a reduction in their local and distant social networks.

B2: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Gender wise) on:(b) Academic Achievement:

The result presented in **Table No. 4.26** depicts the significance of mean difference between the male and female Internet-users on academic Achievement. A comparative look at the table reveals that there is significant difference between the mean score of the two groups on academic achievement. The obtained 't' value came out to be 2.73, which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. However, this mean difference favours female Internet-users (M=66.37) as compared to male Internetusers (M=61.25). So, it can be said that the female Internet-users possess higher academic achievement than males. On the other hand the comparison between male



and female (Internet Non-user group) **Refer Table No. 4.27** depicts the significant difference between the mean scores of the two groups on academic achievement. The obtained 't' value came out to be 4.48, which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. Mean difference favours female Internet Non-user group (M=62.49) as compared to male Internet Non-users (M=60.03). So, it can be inferred that female Internet Non-users possess a higher academic achievement. The comparative analysis of Internet-users was carried out to find gender variation on academic achievement. The results revealed significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users on academic achievement. Female Internet-users were found to possess higher academic achievement as compared to male ones. While comparing the Internet Non-users from both the genders; it has been found that female Internet Non-users attained a higher Academic achievement.

In the light of these results reported above, the hypothesis number five (Refer Chapter -1), which reads as, "There will be a significant gender variation of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Academic Achievement" stands accepted. These results are in consistent with other researchers (Jones *et al.*, 2009; Chen & Peng, 2008; Liu & Huang, 2008; Ofcom, 2008; Harold & von Eye, 2008; Jackson *et al.*, 2006; Murphy & Beggs, 2003; Glenn, 2001; Weiser, 2000; Niemivirta, 1997).

Jones et al., (2009) reported that female university students use Internet for communication and academic purposes more than male counterparts. However, male Internet users are reported to use the Internet for leisure and entertainment more than female counterparts. *Chen & Peng* (2008) reported that female students use Internet to search information and use it for educational purposes. On the other hand, male students were observed to use the Internet for play games. *Liu & Huang* (2008) found gender differences in web searching materials, with focus on the online reading environment. The findings revealed a significant difference between Internet users and non users on gender basis. Female readers have been found with strong preference for paper as a reading medium than male readers. They were reported to use Internet for searching information of educational nature. *Ofcom* (2008) reported that girls are significantly different than boys in Internet usage for school work. That girls use ICT for educational purposes to a greater extent than boys. *Harold & von*



Eye (2008) indicated that girls are more frequently and intensely observed to use the Internet for online classes and cyber learning than boys. The findings found that females seem more likely than males in the use of the Internet for academic purposes. Jackson et al. (2006) focused on Internet use and suggested a positive causal relationship between Internet use and academic performance. Murphy and Beggs (2003) reported that girls were more positive than boys regarding the educational utility of the Internet. Glenn, (2001) concluded that web based education has a positive effect on the improvement of academic achievement. The effect of web based education on attitude toward learning suggested that web use had positive effects mainly on motivation for learning and interested in the lessons. In web based instruction, it is a fact that student' interests and needs vary greatly when compared with the traditional learning approaches. Weiser (2000) revealed that men were more likely than women in the use of Internet which may be related to entertainment and leisure. Females on contrary used it primarily for interpersonal communication and educational assistance. Niemivirta (1997) found that there is a difference in academic interest between genders with males more extrinsically motivated than females.

B2: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Gender wise) on:(c) Attitude towards Research

The data reported in **Table No.4.28** gives information about the mean comparison of Internet-users between male and female group of subjects on different dimensions of Attitude toward Research. Higher mean has been observed in case of male Internetusers (M=49.61) on General aspects of Research and Research Process as compared to female Internet-users (M=48.61). The obtained value is reported to be 1.96 which exceeds the table value at 0.05 level of confidence. From these results, is observed that male Internet-users seem to enhance the attitude towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process in a favourable agreement. With regard to the Usefulness of Research in professional Career, the mean score in case of male Internet-users is reported to be 31.57. The obtained 't' value has been found significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=2.65). From these results, it is revealed that the male Internet-users have a favourable attitude towards the Usefulness of Research and Research. The two groups were compared on the Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. The mean difference favoured the male group of Internet-users



(M=39.63) than the female Internet-users (M=38.55). The obtained 't'-value came out to be is 2.11 which is significant at 0.05 level of confidence. So, it can be said that male Internet-users do not complaint about the Difficulties in Research viz. a viz. Research Anxiety. Although a slight mean differentiation was observed between male and female Internet-users on Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life, yet this differentiation turned out to be insignificant (t = 0.30). With regard to the composite score on Attitude towards Research between the two groups under reporting, the male group of Internet-users was comparatively better (M=152.78) than the female group (149.35). Since the calculated 't'-value (t=2.74) exceeds the table value by a small margin, but was found to be significant at 0.05 level. It can, however, be safely concluded that composite score on attitude towards research led in the establishment of favourable attitude among male group. On the other hand, a careful glance of the results reflected in Table No.4.29 gives information about male and female Internet Non-users on attitude towards research. The two groups were found significantly different on General Aspects of Research and Research Process. The mean score in case of female Internet Non-users has been found to be higher (M=45.71) than the male Internet Non-users (M=43.88). The obtained 't' value on this dimension has reported a significant statistical mean difference (t=3.87). The findings revealed female Internet Non-users with a favourable attitude towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process. The mean comparison on third dimension i.e. Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life between Internet Non-user groups of both the gender revealed a significant difference. The mean score of male Internet Non-users is reported higher (M=32.01) in comparison to female Internet Non-users (M=30.43). The obtained 't' value is significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=3.13). So, it can be inferred that male Internet Non-users have favourable attitude towards the Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life. However, in rest of the two dimensions -i) Attitude towards the Usefulness of Research in Professional Career and ii) Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety, the difference between the mean scores of both the groups could not be established. This can be said that male and female Internet Non-users have more or less similarity on Attitude towards the Usefulness of Research in Professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. With regard to the Composite Score on attitude towards Research,



the two groups have been reported equally inclined to each other. Although the mean score in case of male Internet Non-users seems to be slightly higher (M=146.32) than female Internet Non-users (M= 145.89) yet this difference could not place any of the groups in order of superiority. It has been found that Male and female (Internet-user group) differ significantly on attitude towards research. Male Internet-users were found to have a favourable tendency towards the General aspects of research and research process, Usefulness of research in professional career and Difficulties in research and research anxiety. However, female Internet-users did not show any favourable attitude towards any of the dimensions on attitude towards research. It may be said that male Internet-users' shows favourable attitude towards the concept of research, research process, and current scenario of research works. They believe that research work does not impose any extra workload on them. They are well-known about the essentiality to publish the research findings in order to enhance the authenticity and acceptability of research works within academic community and have a strong feeling that research requires an expert, accurate and systematic observation and have positive feelings with regard to significance and usefulness of research in their professional life and career. They have positive feelings with regard to significance and usefulness of research and research findings is useful for their field of study and for their career and profession. They consider research skill would be helpful for their future and believe that research projects should be an integral part of every post graduate course. They have constructive outlook and feel that research is essential to improve the process and practice of education at any level. They think conducting research is an effective means to become a successful educator. They believe that research provides them insight to solve the related issues of their career and profession. They feel stress-free when they engage themselves in different sorts of theoretical and practical research-related activities. They feel comfortable to get engaged in research and scholarly activities and love to work on research projects and have much interest in research and research related activities. They understand the methodology of conducting the research works and are aware about the steps to follow in pursuing a research project. They easily understand research reports and engage themselves in discussions about research. In one of the dimensions, the difference between the mean scores of the two groups could not be established. This



can be said that both the groups have more or less similar Attitude toward the Relevance of research in personal social life. Both the groups were found to have constructive ideas about relevance of research and research-related activities in their personal and social life and have shown a favourable attitude towards the application of research methods/processes. They feel that knowledge acquired through research seems to be more useful as compared to knowledge gained through reading some literature. They try to employ research approaches in their lives and consider that research is highly relevant and beneficial for their personal and social lives. They also believe that society gets benefited from research and makes them systematic and hardworking in their daily life. While comparing the male and female Internet Nonusers on different dimensions of Attitude towards Research, (Page:151) the two groups were found significantly different from each other on two out of four dimensions of attitude towards research and in rest of the two dimensions; the mean difference between the two groups could not be established. The mean score of Internet-users (male group) is reported to be higher on Relevance of research in personal-social life and on the other hand, Internet Non-users (female group) were seen favourable towards the General aspects of research and research process. Constructive ideas about the relevance of research and research-related activities in personal and social life, knowledge acquired through research has gone in favour of male Internet users. They employed research approaches in their lives and feel research related activities as highly relevant and beneficial for their personal and social life. Whereas, female Internet Non-users were reported favourable towards the concept of research, research process, and current scenario of research works. The importance of the position of supervisor in research works, development of cordial relationship with the research supervisor during research process has been expressed by female Internet Non-users. They believed that research requires an expert, accurate and systematic observation. Publishing of research findings, to enhance the authenticity and acceptability of research works within academic community has also been reported to be in agreement with Internet Non-users (female group). With regard to other two dimensions i.e. Usefulness of research In professional career and Difficulties in research and research anxiety, the difference between the mean scores between the two groups could not be established. This can be said that male and



female Internet Non-users have more or less similar attitude towards the usefulness of research and research findings in their field of study, besides their career and profession. Both the groups consider research skill as helpful for their future and believe that research projects should be an integral part of every post graduate course. Both the groups had a feeling that research is essential to improve the process and practice of education at any grade level. Greater inclination to work on research projects and other research related activities has also been expressed by both the genders of this group under discussion. From the above discussion, it can be said that the Internet-users are significantly different on attitude towards research as compared to the Internet Non-users. The findings support previous claims of researchers with the observation that females are less frequent in Internet usage as compared to males, and that former have less positive attitudes, and greater anxiety towards technology. Both the genders, however, viewed computers and Internet as a useful means and equally believe that Internet and computers have positive effects on individuals and society. Female students have shown significantly lower confidence than males when it came to see their ability in using computers. Females were observed helpless, nervous and uncomfortable around the computers. Females tend to go online for a narrower range of topics, while males tend to engage in a broader range of activities. Females may not be looking for certain types of material on the Web; because they do not think they would be successful. Mean differences have been reported in attitudes toward Internet searching and Internet usage patterns between male and female although both genders have little difference in general attitudes toward the Internet. Males tend to be more familiar with the computers and Internet as compared to females. Male Internet-users perceived research relevance towards life significantly better than female students. Therefore, male and female may differ significantly in their attitudes towards technological abilities. In the light of these results reported above, the hypothesis number six (Refer Chapter -1), which reads, "There will be a significant gender variation of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Attitude towards Research." stands partially accepted. The results are supported by a host of researchers in the field (Saleem & Waheed, 2014; Saleem & Nasrrin, 2014; Butt & Shams, 2013; Anyira, 2013; Tao Hu et al., 2012; Lindsay, Breen & Jenkins, 2010; Correa, 2010; Jones et al., 2009; Meraz, 2008; Peng, Tsai & Wu, 2006;



Fallows, 2005; Richard Joiner *et al.*, 2005; Gross, 2004; Madell & Muncer, 2004; Cooper &Weaver, 2003; Ono & Zovodny, 2003; Williams & Coles, 2003; Ford & Mosa, 2001; Gardner & Schmitt, 2001; Heimrath & Goulding, 2001; Morahan Martin, 2001; Rahmani *et al.*, 2001; Delucchi, 2000; Gattiker & Bohmann, 2000; Nachmias & Shemla, 2000; Sherman *et al.*, 2000; Weiser, 2000; GVU Centre, 1998; Ford & Miller, 1996).

Saleem & Waheed (2014) confirmed different research preferences associated between male and female students. Similarly, male and female students reported different approaches in the accomplishment of their academic research. Saleem & Nasrrin (2014) also found gender as a significant contributory in research aptitude of university students. Butt & Shams, (2013) supported that males show positive attitudes towards research than the females. A possible reason for this finding may stem from the fact that males assume research as useful activity for their professional career. Anvira (2013) found a significant gender difference between male and female on use of Google. The difference is reported to favour male group. Tao Hu et al. (2012) found gender differences in Internet usage perceptions among university students. Specifically, the differences reflected the male university students with a higher level of perception on Internet self-efficacy, experience, and information overload than females. Significant gender effects were also found to exist among males with greater computer self efficacy, lower computer anxiety, more positive attitudes towards the Internet and longer use of the Interne than females. Lindsay, Breen & Jenkins (2010) revealed that females are usually supposed to look after domestic responsibilities, so they consider research subject as a degree requirement. The findings have further revealed that another reason of positive attitudes of males towards the research may be their higher inclination towards mathematics, statistics and economics than the females. *Correa* (2010) reported that males are more frequent and intense users of Internet than females and the former is observed to use more technology based classes which provide more opportunities for acquiring confidence and skills associated with digital technologies. Jones et al. (2009) reported that male students pursue a wider variety of activities including games, sports, technology, politics, personal finance and adult content than their female counterparts. Meraz (2008) asserted women with low technological aptitude with high level of anxiety.



Peng, Tsai & Wu (2006) found that students' Internet attitude is influenced by gender, self efficacy, and perceived Internet utility. While most students indicated a positive attitude toward the Internet and adequate Internet usage skills. Males tend to have a more positive attitude than females. Fallows (2005) revealed that the males use the Internet more than women for a wide range of activities. *Richard Joiner et al.* (2005) found that males were proportionally more likely to have their own web page than females. They use Internet more than females and are more likely to use other specialized websites to download material as compared to their female counterparts. Gross (2004) reported overall use of Internet with higher frequency in favour of females. Madell & Muncer (2004), however, found contradictory conclusions. More males tend to use the World Wide Web; are also more likely to have their own e-mail addresses and web pages and are seen to spend longer hours than females in surfing the Internet. Cooper & Weaver (2003) revealed that boys are attracted to and confident with computers, while girls develop negative attitudes, low interest, and anxiety. Ono & Zovodny (2003) reported that male students are more likely to use the Internet for research than their female counterparts. Males are observed to use Internet more frequently than the opposite gender. Male students adopt IT for academic research more enthusiastically. Similar findings have been given other researchers in the field (Wiliams & Coles (2003), Ford & Mosa (2001), Gardner & Schmitt (2001), and Heimrath & Goulding (2001). Morahan Martin (2001) confirmed that females are less experienced with ICT's and are more likely to have negative attitudes towards computers than males. Female students are seen to get Internet access less often, spend less time online and don't surf for different purposes than males. Further, male students in comparison to female ones preferred to study courses which require computer service, its programming and game playing. Rahmani et al. (2001) found male students engaged in effective search engines as against the females. Besides, effective searching database for research purpose on Internet has also been seen in favour of male students than females. Delucchi (2000) found that more females use Internet for e-mail and communication than male college students. The findings further reveal that higher frequency of males use Internet for research purposes, news items, playing games, and listening to music. Gattiker & Bohmann (2000) stated women with less positive attitude towards the Internet; besides, they were observed to





spend less time, and were more concerned about privacy issues than men. *Nachmias & Shemla* (2000) found gender differences in Internet usage with a higher participation of males in comparison to females. Males were also observed to spend more time on Internet with preferred locations, resource downloading, website creation and discussion participation. *Sherman et al.* (2000) further reported that males, irrespective of e-mail, used this technology more often and had more positive attitudes than females. *Weiser* (2000) established a significant gender difference in Internet usage. Males were reported more familiar to computers and Internet as compared to females. *GVU Centre* (1998) indicated that women had more difficulty and were less confident in finding information on the Internet than men. *Ford and Miller* (1996) suggested that women were more likely to be significant with greater levels of disorientation and disenchantment in relation to the Internet as compared to their counterparts.

B3: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on:

(a) Lifestyle (b) Academic Achievement and (c) Attitude towards Research:(a) Lifestyle

A perusal of Table No.4.30 depicts the significance of mean difference between Internet-users and Non-users belonging to Science stream on different dimensions of lifestyle. A comparative look of the table reveals significant mean differences between the two groups on four out of six dimensions of lifestyle. The data reveals that Internet-users from Science stream have obtained a higher mean score (M= 25.34) on Academic Oriented Lifestyle than Internet Non-users in the same stream (22.96). Both the groups have been reported to differ significantly on this dimension (t=5.21). It is inferred that Internet-users experience a better Academic Oriented Lifestyle. On Socially Oriented Life Style, Internet Non-users are reported to have a higher mean score (M=23.31) than Internet-users (M=21.15). The obtained 't'-value has been seen to be 7.40 which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. So, it can be inferred that Internet Non-users from Science stream have a tendency to adapt better Socially Oriented Lifestyle. On Trend Oriented Lifestyle, the mean scores of Internet Non-users have been found to be 21.59 which is higher than the mean score of Internet-users (M=16.89). The obtained 't'-value came out to be 7.71 which is statistically significant at 0.01 level. It can be inferred that Internet Non-users from Science stream have an excellent adaptation towards the Trend Oriented Lifestyle.



Besides, the two groups were reported significantly different on the Family Oriented Lifestyle. The mean score in case of Internet Non-users from Science stream seems to be higher (M=38.82) than the mean score of Internet-users (M=35.61). The obtained 't'-value has been found to be significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=4.74). It can be said that the group of Science stream Internet Non-users has better adaptability on Family Oriented Lifestyle. However, in rest of the two dimensions i.e. Health Oriented Lifestyle and Career Oriented Lifestyle, the differences between the mean scores of two groups under discussion turned out to be insignificant. Coming to the composite score on Lifestyle of the science stream Internet-user and Internet Nonuser group, it has been found that former group exhibited a higher mean score (156.67) than later (M=150.56). The obtained 't'- value has been reported to be significant at 0.01 level (t=4.62). On this basis, it has been found that the Internet Non-users from Science stream have a tendency towards a better lifestyle as against to their comparable group. While comparing the Internet-user and Internet-Non-user (Social science stream) on various dimensions of lifestyle, the results are reported in (Table No. 4.31, Page: 153). Findings revealed the mean comparison of the two groups (Internet-user and Internet-Non-user) belonging to Social science stream on Health Oriented Lifestyle. The mean score in case of Internet-users is reported to be higher (M=29.40) than the Internet Non-users (M=26.22). The obtained 't'-value is significant at 0.01 level of confidence (t=5.84). The findings revealed a better adaptation of Health Oriented Lifestyle in case of Internet Non-users. On Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Internet-users have shown a higher mean score (M=25.87) than the Internet Non-users belonging to Social science stream (M=23.36). The obtained 't'-value is reported to be 5.33, which is statistically significant at 0.01 level of confidence. It indicates that Social Science stream Internet-users have the better adaptability towards the Academic Oriented Lifestyle. The two groups under reporting were further compared on Career Oriented Lifestyle. The mean score in case of Internet-users and Non-users has been observed to be 24.85 and 23.36 respectively. The calculated 't'-value has been observed to be 2.20 (significant at 0.05 level). On the basis of the results, it can be inferred that the Internet-users from Social science stream have better Career Oriented Lifestyle. On Socially Oriented Lifestyle, Internetusers have exhibited a higher mean score (M= 24.45) than Internet Non-users



(M=22.16). The mean difference has been observed to be significant at 0.01 level (t=6.65) which signifies that Internet-users from Social science stream have better adaptability towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle. The two groups have again been observed to differ significantly on Trend Oriented Lifestyle at 0.01 level of confidence (t=3.63). As the Internet-users scored a higher mean value (M=19.37) in comparison to Internet Non-users (M=17.00) from the stream under discussion. On Family Oriented Lifestyle dimension, the mean score in case of Internet Non-users is reported to be higher (M=38.96)than the mean score of the Internet-users (M =35.01). The obtained 't' value has been observed to be 5.82, which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. It can be inferred that the Internet-users have a favourable adaptability towards Family Oriented Lifestyle. Coming to the composite Score of Life Style, the results revealed Internet-users with a mean score of 158.95 and Nonusers with a mean score of 151.06. The obtained 't'-value came out to be 5.89 which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. However, this mean difference between the two groups (Social science stream) favours the Internet-users. It can be observed that Internet-users have a tendency to adapted better lifestyle. Further, the comparison between the Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Arts stream), on various dimensions of lifestyle has been reflected in Table No. 4.32. A cursory look of the table reveals that on Health Oriented Lifestyle, the mean score in case of Internetusers is reported to be lower (M=28.34) than the mean score of Internet Non-users (M=30.70). The obtained 't'-value has been found to be 4.85, which is statistically significant at 0.01 level of confidence. It can be inferred that the Internet Non-users from Arts stream have better Health Oriented Lifestyle. On Socially Oriented Lifestyle, the Internet Non-users are reported to have a higher mean score (M=23.41) than Internet-users (M=21.51). The obtained 't'-value has been seen to be 5.10 which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. So, it can be inferred that Internet Non-users from Arts stream have a tendency to adapt better Socially Oriented Lifestyle. The results further reveal that on Trend Oriented Lifestyle, Internet Non-users have shown a higher mean score (M=20.23) than the Internet-users belonging to Arts stream (M=15.59). The obtained 't'-value is reported to be 7.52, which is statistically significant at 0.01 level of confidence. It indicates that Internet Non-users from Arts stream have the better adaptability towards the Trend Oriented Lifestyle. On the



Family Oriented Lifestyle, Internet Non-users have been observed with a higher mean score (M=39.85) than Internet-users (M=37.69). The calculated 't'-value is reported to be significant at 0.01 level (t=4.57). It can be said that Internet Non-users from Arts stream have an excellent adaptation towards Family Oriented Lifestyle. However, in rest of the two dimensions i.e. Academic Oriented Lifestyle and Career Oriented Lifestyle, the difference between the mean scores of the groups under discussion turned out to be insignificant. Coming to the composite score on Lifestyle of the Internet-user and Non-user (Arts stream), it has been found that Non-users exhibited a higher mean score (M=162.62) than Internet-users who are reported to be lower (M=151.68). The obtained 't'-value has been reported to be significant at 0.01 level (t=8.53). On this basis, it has been found that the Arts stream Internet Non-users have a tendency to towards better lifestyle. Results revealed that Internet-users and Nonusers from Science stream found a significant mean differences on various dimensions (including composite scores) of lifestyle. Science stream Internet Nonusers have been found with better adaptability in Academic oriented lifestyle, Socially oriented lifestyle, Trend oriented lifestyle and Family oriented lifestyle. Whereas, Science stream Internet-users were more adaptable on Academic oriented lifestyle. It can be concluded that Science stream Internet-users remain involved in academic field and are seen to spend maximum time on studies. Using Internet to get information and consulting library and watching academic programmes and good motivation for higher education has also been seen in agreement among science stream users. On the other hand, Internet Non-users (Science stream group) were found with higher tendency on Trend oriented lifestyle, Socially oriented lifestyle, and Family oriented lifestyle. It reflects that Science stream Internet Non-users may be keen to adopt new fashion roles and update themselves with new trends of their daily life routines like dressing, purchasing and enjoyment. They always remain in close touch with their family and shares each and every moment of daily activities within the family circles. Devoting of maximum time towards their family and maintenance of their family values have also gone in their favour. They (Internet Nonusers) participate in social activities and enjoy every social gathering and frequently consult their friends. They share things with others and always keep in mind the views of society while doing day-to-day activities and are: interested in social services; keen



to do good for society and interested in expanding their social boundaries. However, in rest of the two dimensions i.e. Health oriented lifestyle and Career oriented lifestyle, the differences between the mean scores of the two groups under discussion could not be established. This can be said that Science stream Internet-users and Nonusers had more or less similar lifestyle on these two dimensions. It can further be inferred that both groups are equally conscious in health related matters. Acquiring knowledge about health oriented issues and performing of physical exercise for the maintenance of their health and consulting physical experts for regular medical checkup was observed in case of both the groups and they were also seen very much conscious about the dietary and hygienic related issues in the maintenance of their health. They frequently interact with people related to their career and discuss career related concerns in selected areas of education. While comparing Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Social science stream group) on various dimensions of lifestyle, significant mean differences were reported to exist. Social science stream Internetusers were found to have a tendency for better lifestyle. They have been found with higher adaptability on Health, Academic, Career and Trend oriented lifestyle. On the basis of these findings, it can be deduced that Social science stream Internet-users seem to be conscious for: keeping themselves physically fit, and acquiring knowledge about health, and dietary and hygienic related issues. They remain involved in academic field and spend maximum time on studies with maximum usage of technology base facilities in order to get information. They are observed to be aware of different career options and seem to be inquisitive to gain knowledge about their career. Higher frequency of Internet based interaction with people related to their career, discussion about career related concerns have also been observed in their favour. On the other hand, Internet Non-users from the same stream have been found more inclined towards Family and Socially oriented lifestyles. The above results are concluded that Internet Non-users from Social science stream may be: aware about family affairs; share each and every moment of daily activities within their family setting. Devoting of maximum time towards their family, maintenance of their family values, participation in social activities and social gathering have also gone in their favour. Frequent consultation with their friends and sharing of things with others and to be punctual in putting their views in society has favourably seen to be associated



with Internet-Non-user group (Social science stream). They are also reported interested in: social services, doing well for the society and interested in expanding their social boundaries. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from Arts group (Refer Page: 154) have been compared on various dimensions of lifestyle. The two groups were observed significantly different on four out of six dimensions of lifestyle. Internet Non-users from (Arts stream) were found more inclined towards Health, Trend, Family and Socially oriented lifestyle. On this basis, it may be concluded that Internet Non-users (Arts stream) may be conscious in order to keep themselves active on health oriented issues e.g. performing physical exercise to maintain health and consultation with physical experts for regular medical checkup, dietary and hygienic related issues. The results further revealed that Internet Non- users belonging to the group under discussion devote maximum time towards the maintenance of family affairs and values. Higher participation in social activities and social gathering, sharing of things with others, and providing of solutions to societal matters has been found favourably among Internet Non-users. However, in rest of the two dimensions i.e. Academic and Career oriented lifestyle, the two groups failed to arrive at any level of significance, i.e. the difference between the mean scores could not be established. This can be said that Internet-users and Non-users belonging to Arts stream have more or less similar lifestyle on these two dimensions. It can be inferred that both the groups have similar involvement in academic field and library consultation. They seem to be familiar on different career options and are inquisitive in gaining the knowledge related to their career. The findings also confirmed that higher frequency to interact with people on career matters has gone in favour of the Internet Non-users. From the above discussion, it can be revealed that Internet-users (Social science stream) were found to have better lifestyle as compared to the Internet-users from Science and Arts stream. On the other hand, Internet Non-users from Science and Arts stream were found with better lifestyle as compared to Internet-users from the same stream. So, it can be inferred that lifestyle of Internet-users belonging to social science stream seems to be significantly better than Internet-user group of Science and Arts stream. In the light of these results reported above, the hypothesis number seven (Refer Chapter - 1), which reads as, "There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Lifestyle



on stream basis (Faculty wise)." stands accepted. These findings do not have any reference to any of the previous researches and therefore needs future research in the field to confirm the findings.

B3: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on:(b) Academic Achievement:

The data presented in Table No. 4.33 depicts the Stream-wise comparison between the Internet-users and Non-users on academic Achievement. A comparative look at the table reveals that Internet-users from Science stream are seen with higher mean score on academic achievement (M=66.71) than their comparable group under discussion (M=61.81). The calculated t value came out to be 7.33 which is significant at 0.01 level. It can be inferred that Internet-users from Science stream exhibit higher academic achievement than their comparable group. The table further reveals that Internet-users from Social science stream have a higher mean score (M=66.19) as compared to Internet Non-users (M=52.44). The calculated t value is reported to be 20.10 which is significant beyond 0.01 level. It can be inferred that Internet-users from Social science stream are better in their academic grades than Internet Non-users. The table further reveals that Internet-users from Arts stream are observed with lower mean score (M=59.52) than Internet Nonusers who are seen with a higher mean score (M=64.18). The calculated "t"-value has been observed to be 9.07 which is significant at 0.01 level. This can be inferred that Internet Non-users from Arts group exhibit higher academic achievement than their comparable group. Results from the table revealed that Internet-users from Science stream are reported with higher academic achievement as compared to Internet Non-users. While comparing the mean scores of Social science stream Internet-users and Non-users on academic achievement. It can be said that Internetusers have higher academic achievement than their comparable group. On the other hand, Arts stream Internet-users was reported with higher academic achievement. So, it can be said that Internet usage has a significant influence on different fields of studies. In the light of these results reported above, the hypothesis number eight (Refer Chapter - 1), which reads as, "There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Academic Achievement on stream basis (Faculty wise)." stands accepted. The results are supported by a group of researchers in the field (Omidian & Maleki,

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



2013; Omidian, 2011; Ming-der-Wu, 2010; Pradeepkumar & Panchanatham, 2010; Michael *et al.*, 2008; Biradar, 2006; Preeti Mahajan, 2006; King, 2007; Sam & Nor din, 2005; Anderson, 2001).

Omidian & Maleki (2013) indicated science students with higher proficiency in the use of the strategies of Internet search-engines than students who belonged to arts faculty. Omidian (2011) identified a low computer self efficacy and high computer anxiety among Arts group subjects as compared to science group. Ming-der-Wu (2010) showed that graduate students from humanities considerably prefer more print materials than electronic resources. Pradeepkumar & Panchanatham (2010) found that the Arts students did not concentrate more in using e-journals and e- books when compared to the science based students. Michael et al. (2008) revealed that science based students use Internet more than the non-science based students. Biradar (2006) revealed that the rate of Internet use is more among students of science, Life science, Engineering Technology and Management faculties as compared to the students of Arts, Social science, Law, Education and Commerce. Preeti Mahajan (2006) explored that Internet has a great effect on the academic atmosphere of the students. The students of the sciences were observed to use full Internet service. Students of humanities and social sciences considered their university library as the last choice for finding information. Whereas, most of the science students preferred to use Internet instead of library. However, students of social sciences and humanities were observed to use library more than the Internet. King (2007) reported that Arts students didn't know names of different search engines. They also didn't not use e-mail and the www as an information source. Sam & Nor din (2005) reported that the university students from the faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology were found to be online for longer duration than the students of the faculty of Social Science, Business studies, Arts, and Human Development. Anderson (2001) found Internet access time of students differed according to the field of study. It indicated that students seem to browse the Internet according to the nature of their course. The investigator further added that physical science students spend more time on searching related study material from the Internet as compared to Arts students.

B3: Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on:(c) Attitude towards Research:



Table No. 4.34 depicts the significance of mean differences between the Science stream Internet-users and Non-users on different dimensions of Attitude towards Research viz. General aspects of Research and Research Process and Usefulness of Research In Professional Career. It has been found that Internet-users belonging to Science stream had a higher mean score than the Internet Non-users. The mean scores of Internet-users were reported to be 49.32, 33.05 respectively, whereas, the mean value of Internet Non-users of the same stream on the above dimensions came to be 45.45 and 29.03. The table further shows that Internet-users and Internet Non-users of Science stream differ significantly from each other on these two dimensions with 't'values of 6.13 and 7.28 respectively. On relevance of Research in Personal and Social life, the mean score of Internet users is reported low (M = 29.96) as compared to Internet non users (M= 30.35). whereas, on Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety dimension, the mean score in case of Internet users is higher (M=39.29) as compared to Internet non users (M = 38.84). The 't''-values in these dimensions came out to be 0.61 and 0.72 (P < 0.01 and 0.05) respectively. The findings revealed that both the groups have similar inclination towards the Relevance of Research in Personal-Social life and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. Coming to the composite score of attitude towards Research, the results reveal Internet-users with a mean score of 151.62 and Internet Non-users with a mean score of 143.67. The obtained 't'-value came out to be 5.37 which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. However, this mean difference between the two groups favours the Internet-user group of Science stream. It can be observed that Internet-users of Science stream seem to be with favourable attitude towards research than their comparable group. The information reported in Table No. 4.35 depicts the significance of mean difference between the two groups of Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Social Science stream) on different dimensions of Attitude towards Research viz. General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in Professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. It has been found that Internet-users belonging to this stream had a higher mean score than the Internet Nonusers on the above dimensions and the obtained mean score in case of Internet-users were reported to be 48.67, 32.91 and 40.66 respectively, whereas, the mean value of Internet Non-users of the same stream were lower on these dimensions 43.83, 27.90



and 37.16. The table further shows that Internet-users and Internet Non-users of Social science stream differed significantly from each other on these three dimensions with 't'-values of 6.88, 7.80 and 5.63 respectively. However, on Relevance of Research and Research Anxiety, the mean difference could not be established at any level of significance. The 't'-value on this dimension came out to be 1.33 (P< 0.01 and 0.05). Analysis of data reveals that Internet-users seem to be with favourable attitude towards General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety than their comparable group. The findings further revealed that both the groups have not claimed to be superior to either of the groups on the Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life. Coming to the composite score of attitude towards Research, the results reveal Internet-users with a mean score of 154.25 and Internet Non-users with a mean score of 140.01. The obtained 't'-value came out to be 10.15 which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. However, this mean difference favours the Internet-user group belonging to Social science stream. It can be observed that Internet-users from Social science stream may be favourable on attitude towards research than their comparable group. While comparing the Internet-user and Internet-Non-user group (Arts stream) on various dimensions of attitude towards research Table No. 4.36, reveals statistically significant difference on General aspects of Research and Research Process. The mean scores of Internet-users on this dimension is reported to be 49.35 which is higher than the mean score of Internet Non-users from Arts stream (M=45.11). The 't'-value came out to be 8.22, which is significant at 0.01 level. It is inferred that Internet-users from Arts stream can be favourable on attitude towards General aspects of Research and Research Process. However, in rest of the three dimensions i.e. Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety, the mean scores of Internet-users were reported to be 32.62, 31.58 and 38.21 respectively, whereas, the mean value of Internet Non-users of the same stream came to be 32.46, 32.19 and 37.77, the mean differences failed to arrive at any level of significance. The 't''-values in these dimensions came out to be 0.26; 0.17 and 0.75. The findings revealed that both the groups have similar inclination towards the i) Usefulness of research in professional career, ii) Relevance of research in personal



social life and iii) Difficulties in research and Research Anxiety. Coming to the composite score of attitude towards Research, the results reveal Internet-users with a mean score of 151.76 and Non-users with a mean score of 147.53. The obtained 't'value came out to be 3.61 which is significant at 0.01 level of confidence. However, this mean difference favours the Internet-user group from Arts stream. It can be observed that Internet-users of Science stream may be favourable in attitude towards research than their comparable group. The results also revealed Internet-users and Non-users significantly different on various dimensions of Attitude towards Research (faculty wise). Internet-users from Science stream had been found favourable on Attitude towards Research with reference to: i) General aspects of research and ii) Research process and Usefulness of research in professional career. On the basis of these findings, it can be inferred that Science stream Internet-users may be favourable on attitude towards the concept of research, research process, and current scenario of research works. This group of Internet-users feels that research work does not impose any extra workload on them. They are well-known about the essentiality to publish their research findings in order to enhance the authenticity and acceptability of research works within academic community. Positive feelings with regard to the significance and usefulness of research in their professional life, field of study and career, research skill as helpful for their future and research projects as an integral part of every post graduate course has remained the demand of Internet users. They believe that research activity provides them insight to solve the related issues of their career and profession. However, in the rest of the two dimensions i.e. Relevance of research in personal-social life and Difficulties in research and research anxiety, the mean differences between the two groups failed to arrive at any level of significance. It can be inferred that both groups have more or less similar attitude towards Research on these two dimensions. Both the groups were found with positive feeling about the relevance of research and research-related activities in their personal and social life. Attitude towards the application of research methods/processes and findings solutions to routine type of problems have favourably been seen associated with science stream group (Internet-users and Internet Non-users). Both the groups (Internet user and non user) from science stream seem to have a common feeling that knowledge acquired through research may be more useful in their lives as compared to knowledge gained



through reading literature. The two groups are further observed to employ research approaches in their lives and consider that research is highly relevant and beneficial for their personal and social lives. They also feel that society gets benefited from research and makes them systematic and hardworking in their daily lives. They feel comfortable to get engaged in research and scholarly activities. Inclination towards research projects and interest in research and research related activities was observed with positive agreement between both the groups of subjects. While comparing the Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Social science stream) on various dimensions of lifestyle, it has been found that the two groups differ significantly from each other on attitude towards research and the difference favours the Internet user group. Internet-users of the stream were found favourable on attitude towards--i) General aspects of research and research process-ii) Usefulness of research in professional career and iii) Difficulties in research and research anxiety. It can be said that Internet-users from Science stream show a favourable attitude towards the concept of research, and research process. The study revealed that research work does not impose any extra workload to the subjects belonging to science stream. Science stream group of Internet-users has been reported in positive association with the significance and usefulness of research viz.a.viz. research findings. Research as an integral and essential component has been expressed by this group of subjects. They feel stressfree and comfortable when engaged in different sorts of theoretical and practical research-related activities. Work on research projects with devotion and interest has favoured the subjects under discussion. To feel at ease in arithmetic and statistical computation in research, Internet-users from science stream were seen very much confident in understanding research terminology. Besides, the findings revealed that understanding of methodology to carry research works and awareness about the steps to follow in pursuing any research project has gone in favour of Internet-users (Science stream). However, on Relevance of research in personal-social life, the differences between the two groups failed to arrive at any level of significance, i.e. the difference between the mean scores could not be established. This can be said that both groups belonging to science stream may be more or less similar on attitude towards the Relevance of research in personal-social life. Both the groups are reported with productive ideas about the relevance of research and research-related activities in



their personal and social life. Internet users and non users of science stream were seen equally inclined towards: employing research approaches in routine life and considering research as highly relevant and beneficial for one's personal and social life. While comparing the Internet-users and Non-users (Arts stream) on different dimensions of lifestyle, it has been found that the two groups differ significantly on attitude towards research. Arts stream Internet-users have been found favourably inclined towards General aspects of research and research process and were observed with the expression that research work does not impose any extra workload on them. They are well-known about the essentiality to publish the research findings in order to enhance the authenticity and acceptability of research work within academic community. They have positive feelings with regard to the significance and usefulness of research in their professional life and career. On rest of the three dimensions, the difference between the mean scores of the two groups could not be established. This can be attributed that Internet-use and Non-use could not establish any variation in Arts stream students with regard to Usefulness of research in professional career, Relevance of research in personal social life and Difficulties in research and research anxiety. It can further be concluded that the two groups have more or less similar Attitude towards research. From the above discussion it can be revealed that Internetusers of Science, Social science and Arts stream were found positive on attitude towards research as compared to the Internet Non-user group. So, it can be concluded that Internet use, among the university students with different streams, and attitude towards research is in positive association except for Internet Non-users. In the light of these results reported above, the hypothesis number nine (Refer Chapter - 1), which reads as, "There will be a significant difference between the mean scores of Internet-users and Internet Non-users on their Attitude towards Research on stream basis (Faculty wise)." stands accepted. The results are supported by a cluster of researchers in the field (Fauzi et al., 2014; Sudhier & Seethalekshmi, 2011; Siemens et al., 2010; Odunlade, 2008; Pruskil et al., 2009; Unnikrishnan et al., 2008; Horrigan, 2006; Mahajan, 2006; Kaur, 2005; Kumar & Kaur, 2004).

Fauzi et al. (2014) found Internet users from Social science with higher scores on academic attainments. For Social science students, a significant and positive correlation existed between the overall time spent through online basis and the time


spent on the Internet for academic research. Sudhier & Seethalekshmi, (2011) revealed that Internet resources are the most used e-resources among the students from the Arts Faculty. Most of the students use Internet for educational purposes and most preferred search engine for academic purposes, seminar presentations and for the project works. Siemens et al. (2010) found that science students were better on attitudes towards research. The findings further reveal that majority of the students expressed that the research seems to be beneficial to them in their career. They also found science students, with pre-medical background, significantly better on attitude towards research than those who belong to Arts subjects. Odunlade (2008) revealed that Science and Social science students do make use of the Internet; because it was considered to provide a wide coverage of adequate information. The study further revealed that (part of the benefits of the Net) provides the student with resources to carry out assignment which enhances their knowledge and allows them to communicate faster. It was also revealed that though a greater percentage of them patronize the library, the satisfaction required was not provided. Some of the reasons were: inadequacy of library materials, obsolete cataloging and poor library conditions. Pruskil et al. (2009) found that students who had high attitude towards science would tend to be highly involved in research activities. Unnikrishnan et al. (2008) found significant relationship between the study and the purpose of Internet use. Science students preferred Internet over text books because it accessed the latest knowledge. Horrigan (2006) reported Internet as a resource for news and information about science. The findings also confirmed that the convenience of getting scientific material on the Web opens doors to better attitudes and understanding of science. Mahajan (2006) revealed that students use electronic resources more than paper resources as they were confident to find resources through Internet rather than paper resources. The other purposes of using Internet were: document delivery services, online job seeking, publishing research papers in e-journals etc. Most of the science researchers and Social science students agreed that Internet had a positive impact on their study and research, while students in humanities did not agree. Kaur (2005) found that Internet as time saving, easy to use, more informative and more preferred. Nearly all the science students believed that they obtained more information which seems to be beneficial to their area of study. This may be due to result of various



Internet resources like scientific database, e-journals, e-books and technical reports available freely or through little subscription on the Internet. *Kumar & Kaur* (2004) found that majority of the Internet-users used it for educational and research purposes.

SECTION C: FACTOR ANALYSIS

Since one of the objectives of the present investigation was to find the dominant factors of lifestyle and attitude towards research of Internet users and non users, therefore, the collected information was subjected to Factor Analysis by utilizing Principal components of Factor extraction (PCFA) and Orthogonal rotation (Varimax criterion with Kaiser Normalization). Principal component method of Factoring was used while Kaiser-Mayer-Olkin (KMO) measure of sampling adequacy was applied to test whether the partial correlations among variables are small. Bartlett's Test of specificity was carried out to confirm multi-co-linearity between the variables. It examined whether the correlation matrix is an identity matrix. The principal components extraction was rotated to the terminal solution while *Varimax* criterion was applied to delineate the pattern of variation in the variables rather than among Internet-users and Internet Non-users. Absolute values of coefficients that are less than 0.600 were suppressed. This implies that only Factor loadings with 0.600 and above were assumed to be interpretable. Accordingly, the results inferred are discussed as:

C1: Dominant Factors influencing Internet-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

Table No. 4.37 shows the information of two tests that were used to verify if the PCFA employed in testing the hypothesis is appropriate. The two main tests in the table are: a) the KMO and b) Bartlett's Tests. The KMO value (0.814 as per Table 4.38) shows that the degree of common variance among the variables is quite high. The KMO index ranges from 0 to 1 and the sample can be considered suitable for PCFA if this index is equal or higher than 0.600 in the light of a high significance of the Bartlett's test of Sphericity (Chi-Square=1954.802, p=.000). Bartlett's test of Sphericity indicates that correlation coefficient matrix is significant as p. value is 0.000 which is less than .0.05 (P<0.05 assumed level of significance). Therefore, the results presented in the same table reveal that the data used is adequate enough to conduct the Principal Components Factor Analysis (PCFA).



The results presented in **Table No. 4.38** indicated that the 1st part of the table shows communalities which indicate the amount of variance in each variable that is accounted for. Initial communalities have been considered as the estimation of variance in each variable accounted for by all Factors (or components). Extraction communalities indicate the estimation of variance in each variable accounted for by the factors (or components) in the factor solution. The 2^{nd} part of the table shows the Initial Eigenvalues and the percentage of variance explained by each successive factor. Table shows the Eigenvalues and the percentage of variance explained just for the three factors of the initial solution that are regarded as important. The Scree plot (**Refer Fig. 40, Chapter 4**^{th)} reflects the results for further understanding. The Scree plot shows the Eigenvalues against all the Factors. The Scree plot becomes interesting as it flattens out (like the rubble that collects at the foot of a Scree), and this indicates very clearly which Factors account for a lot of the variance, and which account for little. The graph is useful for determining how many Factors to retain. It can be seen that the curve begins to flatten between 3 and 4 Factor number. Remaining 7 Factors have an Eigen value of less than 1, so only three Factors have been retained. A Scree plot has been used to identify and comment on Factors. It reflects each Factor on a chart, in descending order of magnitude. The observation reveals (Page: 161) that in the plot, Scree flattens out considerably after the first Factor, and then it levels out a little for the next 2 Factors, tailing downwards all the time. This suggests that the first Factor is the significant Factor in explaining the greatest amount of variance. Indeed, in using the Scree plot a 'bend in the elbow' of the data is noticed (after Factor one), and thereafter Factors placed above the bend in the elbow were considered for inclusion, and factors below the bend in the elbow were not considered. Third part of the table 4.38 dealt with the Extraction of Sums of Squared Loadings with two important pieces of information. First, in the column marked '% of variance' it shows how much variance is explained by each of the Factors identified (from the greatest amount of variance to the least amount of variance). This Factor analysis is based on three Factors due to greater Eigen values (> 1). It is to be noted that the first factor of the initial solution is much more important than the second and the second is more important than the third. However, in the right side part of the table 4.39 the Eigenvalues and percentage of variance explained for the two rotated factors are



displayed. So, the results in the same table reveals that the first Factor accounts for 42.003% of the variance in the total scenario in a very large amount, while the second Factor identified, accounts for only 21.815% and the third Factor with 11.170 % of the total variance. Each Factor is observed to be unrelated to the other, and the amount of variance in each Factor is also unrelated. The other Factor is independent to each other. It has been observed that how much variance in the total picture is explained by each Factor and which Factors possess the most and least explanatory power to explain the total scenario of 10 variables. Second, SPSS keeps a score of the cumulative amount of explanatory power of the 3 Factors identified. In the column, 'Cumulative %'tells us that in total 74.988% of the total picture (of the 10 variables) is accounted for explained by the 3 Factors identified. On the other hand, 'Rotation of Sums of Squared Loadings' (the fuller power of Factor analysis) is tapped thereby identifying more clearly the groupings of variables into Factors, and separating each Factor from the other much more clearly. With the Rotation of Sums of Squared Loadings, the percentage of variance explained by each Factor is altered, even though the total cumulative percentage 74.988% remains the same. The first Factor in the rotated solution no longer accounts for 42.003% as in the Extraction of Sums of Squared Loadings, but only 32.547% of the variance, and Factor 2, accounted for 21.815% of the variance in the Extraction Sums of Squared Loadings now accounts for 30.239% of the variance in the Rotated Sums of Squared Loadings. Factors 3 accounted for only just 11.170% of the variance in the Extraction Sums of Squared Loadings now accounts for 12.201% of the variance in the Rotated Sums of Squared Loadings. Further, Table No.4.40 shows the initial un-rotated Factor matrix which is computed to assist in obtaining a preliminary indication of the number of Factors to extract. The Factor matrix contains Factor loadings for each variable on each Factor. In computing the un-rotated Factor matrix, the researcher is simply interested in the best linear combination of variables-best in the sense that the particular combination of original variables accounts for more of the variance in the data as a whole than any other linear combination of variables. The un- rotated Factor solution may not provide a meaningful pattern of variable loadings. Generally, rotation will be desirable because it simplifies the Factor structure, and it is usually difficult to determine whether un-rotated Factors will be meaningful. The idea of rotation is to reduce the



number of Factors on which the variables under investigation have high loadings. Rotation does not actually change anything but makes the interpretation of the analysis easier. The Table No. 4.39 further shows the Factor loading/correlations for a rotated Factor solution. Comparing the graphs for the rotated and un-rotated solutions, it can be seen that the proximity of the points representing the variables to the axes (and the frame) have changed. This change was brought about by rotating the whole frame, including the axes, in a counter clockwise direction. In this case, the Varimax method was used; for each variable, this leads to maximize the loading on one Factor and to minimize the loadings on the other Factors. The Principal Components Factor Analysis (PCFA) was used as the extraction technique and Varimax was used as a method of rotation. Investigator took the threshold value of 0.600 for factor loading criterion. The table further shows the result of the extracted Factors. Loadings indicate the degree of correspondence between the variable and the Factor, with higher loadings making the variable representative of the Factor. Other variables from the list are some numerical distance away from the variables selected and also seem to be conceptually unrelated to the seven variables identified for inclusion in the Factor. The variables selected are high, close to each other and distant from the other variables. This distinguishes more clearly one Factor from another than the Extracted Sums of Squared Loadings. Rotation is undertaken on the basis of Varimax rotation. This maximizes the variance between Factors and hence helps to distinguish them from each other. In SPSS the rotation is called *orthogonal* because the Factors are unrelated to, and independent of, each other. Further analysis presented in Table No. 4.40 shows the loadings of the ten variables on the three Factors extracted. The higher the absolute value of the loading, the more the Factor contributes to the variable. The gap on the table represent loadings that are less than 0.600, this makes reading the table easier. Here the investigator suppressed all loadings less than 0.600 with the help of default setting SPSS to use the Kaiser stopping criterion (i.e., all Factors with Eigenvalues greater than 1) to decide how many Factors to extract. Analysis yielded a three-Factor solution with a simple structure (Factor loadings =>.600). This implies that there are three substantively meaningful uncorrelated pattern of relationship among the variables. For the first factor three variables that loaded significantly high on this factor i.e. Trend seeking



lifestyle (TOLS), Career oriented lifestyle (COLS), Health conscious lifestyle (HOLS) and Attitude towards difficulties in research and research anxiety (ADRRA) with factor loadings of 0.906, 0.888, 0.882 and 0.853 respectively. The variables that load significantly high on the second factor are mostly the variables that deal with Academic oriented lifestyle (AOLS), Attitude towards relevance of research in personal and social life (ARRPSL), Social oriented lifestyle (SOLS) and Attitude towards usefulness of research in professional career (AURPC) with factor loadings of 0.905, 0.903, 0.877 and 0.717 respectively. There are only two variables that loaded significantly high on the third factor i.e. Attitude towards general aspects of research and research process (AGARRP) and Family oriented lifestyle (FOLS) with factor loadings of 0.717 and 0.676 respectively.

Factor analysis of Internet-users (University students) created 3 Factors that included 10 types of information. The results represented in Fig. 41 (Page: 163) which show these groups by such names which Investigator assigned as well as the types of information in each group. Rotated Matrix of three Factors (clustering of items) shows the Factor loadings and percentage of variation for each variable and highlighted the Factor that each variable loaded most strongly. Factor 1 accounted for 32.54% of the variance. It has been found that four variables loaded strongly on Factor 1 and generated 90.6% of the variation in Trend Seeking lifestyle with Factor loading 0.906. The data further depicts that 88.8% of variation in Career Oriented Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.888. Further, 88.2% of variation in Health Conscious Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.882 and 85.3% of variation in Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety with Factor loading 0.853 was observed. Each of the variables that loaded on this Factor has shown a correlation (r): $0.853 \le r \le 0.906$ with the Factor. The researcher devised the name of this Factor as "Contemporary Lifestyle with Career & Health & Preferences." Factor 2 accounted for 32.54% of the variance. It was observed that four variables also loaded strongly on this factor which generated 90.5% of the variation in Academic Oriented Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.905. The 90.3% of variation in Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life with Factor loading 0.903 was also reported. It was also observed that 87.7% of variation in Social Oriented lifestyle with Factor loading 0.877 and 71.7 of variation in attitude towards usefulness of research in



professional career with Factor loading 0.717. Each of the variables that loaded on this Factor has a correlation (r): $0.717 \le r \le 0.905$ with the Factor. The researcher devised the name of this Factor as "Academic Attainment and Research Affinity." However, Factor 3 accounted for 12.20 % of the variance. The variables that load significantly high on this Factor generated 75.2 % of variation in Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process with Factor loading 0.752 and 67.6 % of variation in Family Oriented Lifestyle (Factor loading 0.676). It has correlation (r): $0.676 \le r \le 0.752$ with the variables that loaded on it. The researcher devised the name of this Factor as: "Research Convenience in Routine Life." For further understanding Refer Fig. 42 which shows a clear pattern of the loadings, with all items identified with 3 Factors; this result illustrates the benefits of rotation. Threedimensional chart that includes not only horizontal and vertical axes but also *depth* by rotating the plotted points through 90 degrees, then the effect of this would be to bring closer together those variables that are similar to each other and to separate them more fully in distance from those variables that have no similarity to them, i.e. to render each group of variables (Factors) more homogeneous and to separate more clearly one group of variables (Factor) from another group of variables (Factor). The process of rotation keeps together those variables that are closely interrelated and keeps them apart from those variables that are not closely related.

C2: Dominant Factors influencing Internet Non-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N=300)

Table No. 4.41 shows statistics of two tests that are used to verify if the PCFA employed in testing the hypothesis was valid based on data used. The two main tests in the table are the KMO and Bartlett's Tests. The KMO value (0.772 as per Table) shows that the degree of common variance among the variables is quite high. As reported in C2 above ,the KMO index ranges from 0 to 1 and the sample is considered suitable for PCFA if this index is equal or higher than 0.600. In the light of a high significance of the Bartlett's test of Sphericity (Chi-Square=1945.063, p=.000). Bartlett's test of Sphericity indicates that correlation coefficient matrix is significant as p value is 0.000 which is less than .0.05 (p<0.05 assumed level of significance). Therefore, the results presented in table 4.43 reveals that the data used is adequate enough to conduct the Principal Components Factor Analysis (PCFA). The results



presented in Table No. 4.42 indicated that the 1st part of the table shows communalities which indicate the amount of variance in each variable that is accounted for. Initial communalities are estimates of the variance in each variable accounted for by all Factors (or components). Extraction communalities are estimates of the variance in each variable accounted for by the factors (or components) in the factor solution. The 2nd part of the table showing the *Initial Eigenvalues* and percentage of variance explained by each successive factor. Table shows the Eigenvalues and percentage of variance explained for just the three factors of the initial solution that are regarded as important. The Scree plot (Refer Fig. 43) reflects the results for further understanding. The Scree plot graph shows the Eigenvalues against all the Factors. The Scree plot becomes interesting where it flattens out (like the rubble that collects at the foot of a Scree), and this indicates very clearly which Factors account for a lot of the variance, and which account for little. The graph seems to be useful for determining how many Factors to retain. It can be seen that the curve begins to flatten between 3 and 4 Factor number. Remaining 7 Factors have an Eigenvalues of less than 1, so only three Factors have been retained. A Scree plot can also be used at this stage, to identify and comment on Factors. It shows each Factor on a chart, in descending order of magnitude. In the above plot, Scree flattens out considerably after the first Factor, and then it levels out a little for the next 2 Factors, tailing downwards all the time. This suggests that the first Factor is the significant Factor in explaining the greatest amount of variance. Indeed, in using the Scree plot one perhaps has to look for the 'bend in the elbow' of the data (after Factor one), and then consider those Factors above the bend in the elbow as being worthy of inclusion, and those below the bend in the elbow as being relatively unimportant. Third part of the table in the section labeled Extraction Sums of Squared Loadings which contains two important pieces of information. First, in the column marked '% of variance' SPSS tells us how much variance is explained by each of the Factors identified, in order from the greatest amount of variance to the least amount of variance. This Factor analysis is based on three Factors, because these three Factors have Eigenvalues greater than one. So, here the first Factor accounts for 37.463% of the variance in the total scenario with very large amount, while the second Factor identified accounts for only 23.160% and the third Factor 15.410 % of the total



variance - a much lower amount of explanatory power. Each Factor is unrelated to the each other, and so the amount of variance in each Factor is unrelated, due to their independent nature with each other. The results observed that how much variance in the total picture is explained by each Factor and which Factors possess the most and least explanatory power to explain the total scenario of 10 variables. Second, SPSS keeps a score of the cumulative amount of explanatory power of the 3 Factors identified. In the column 'Cumulative %' tells us that in total 76.033% of the overall picture (of the 10 variables) is accounted for explained by the 3 Factors. On the other hand, 'Rotation Sums of Squared Loadings' (the fuller power of Factor analysis) is tapped thereby identifying more clearly the grouping of variables into Factors, and separating each Factor from the other much more clearly. With the Rotation Sums of Squared Loadings, the percentage of variance explained by each Factor is altered, even though the total cumulative percentage 76.033% remains the same. The first Factor in the rotated solution no longer accounts for 37.463% as in the Extraction Sums of Squared Loadings, but 33.074% of the variance, and that Factor 2, which accounted for 23.160% of the variance in the Extraction Sums of Squared Loadings now accounts for 23.084% of the variance in the Rotated Sums of Squared Loadings. Factors 3 accounted for only just 15.410% of the variance in the Extraction Sums of Squared Loadings and now account for 19.875% of the variance in the Rotated Sums of Squared Loadings. Further, Table No. 4.43 shows the initial un-rotated Factor matrix which is computed to assist in obtaining a preliminary indication of the number of Factors to extract. The Factor matrix contains Factor loadings for each variable on each Factor. In computing the un-rotated Factor matrix, the researcher is simply interested in the best linear combination of variables-best in the sense that the particular combination of original variables accounts for more of the variance in the data as a whole than any other linear combination of variables. The un-rotated Factor solution may not provide a meaningful pattern of variable loadings. Generally, rotation will be desirable because it simplifies the Factor structure, and it is usually difficult to determine whether un-rotated Factors will be meaningful. The idea of rotation is to reduce the number of Factors on which the variables under investigation have high loadings. Rotation does not actually change anything but makes the interpretation of the analysis easier. The same table further shows the Factor



loading/correlations for a rotated Factor solution. Comparing the graphs for the rotated and un-rotated solutions, it can be seen that the proximity of the points representing the variables to the axes (and the frame) have changed. This change was brought about by rotating the whole frame, including the axes, in a counter clockwise direction. In this case the Varimax method was used; for each variable, this seeks to maximize the loading on one Factor and to minimize the loadings on other Factors. The Principal Components Factor Analysis (PCFA) was used as the extraction technique and Varimax as a method of rotation refer table 4.43 for the result of the extracted Factors). Loadings indicate the degree of correspondence between the variable and the Factor, with higher loadings making the variable representative of the Factor. Other variables from the list are some numerical distance away from the variables selected and also seem to be conceptually unrelated to the seven variables identified for inclusion in the Factor. The variables selected are high, close to each other and distant from the other variables. This distinguishes more clearly one Factor from another than that undertaken in the Extraction Sums of Squared Loadings. Rotation is undertaken by Varimax rotation. This maximizes the variance between Factors and hence helps to distinguish them from each other. In SPSS the rotation is called *orthogonal* because the Factors are unrelated to, and independent of, each other. Table No. 4.44 shows the result of the extracted Factors. The table shows the loadings of the ten variables on the three Factors extracted. The higher the absolute value of the loading, the more the Factor contributes to the variable. The gap on the table represent loadings that are less than 0.600, this makes reading the table easier. Here the investigator suppressed all loadings less than 0.600 with the help of default setting SPSS to use the Kaiser stopping criterion (i.e., all Factors with Eigenvalues greater than 1) to decide how many Factors to extract. Analysis yielded a three-Factor solution with a simple structure (Factor loadings=>.600). This implies that there are three substantively meaningful uncorrelated patterns of relationships among the variables. For the first factor, three variables that loaded significantly high i.e. Family oriented lifestyle (FOLS), Attitude towards usefulness of research in professional career (AURPC), Social oriented lifestyle (SOLS) and Academic oriented lifestyle (AOLS) with factor loadings of 0.922, 0.901, 0.877 and 0.701 respectively. There are four variables that loaded significantly high on the second factor i.e. Health conscious



lifestyle (HOLS), Attitude towards general aspects of research and research process, (AGARRP), Career oriented lifestyle (COLS) and Academic oriented lifestyle (AOLS) with factor loadings of 0.815, 0.809, 0.765 and 0.510 respectively. The variables that were seen to load significantly high on the third factor are mostly the variables that deals with Attitude towards relevance of research in personal and social life (ARRPSL) with factor loading 0.831; Trend seeking lifestyle (TOLS) with factor loading -0.823 and Attitude towards difficulties in research and research anxiety (ADRRA) with factor loading 0.412.

Factor analysis of Internet Non-users (University students) created 3 Factors that included 10 types of information. The results are represented in the (Fig. 44 Page: 168) which shows these groups by the names Investigator gave them, as well with the types of information in each group. Rotated Matrix (3 Factors with clustering of items) shows the Factor loadings and percentage variation for each variable and highlighted the Factor that each variable loaded most strongly. While Trend oriented lifestyle showed strong negative factor loadings. Loading resulting from an orthogonal rotation is a correlation coefficient of each variable with the factor, so they naturally range from -1 to +1. A negative loading simply means that the results need to be interpreted in the opposite direction from the way it is worded. Factor 1 accounted for 33.07% of the variance. It has been found that four variables loaded strongly on Factor 1 and generated 92.2 % of variation in Family Oriented Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.922. Data further reveals 90.1% of variation in Attitude towards Usefulness of Research in Professional career with Factor loading 0.901. The findings further revealed: 87.7% variation in Social Oriented lifestyle with Factor loading 0.877 and 70.1% of variation in Academic Oriented Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.701. Each of the variables that were seen to be loaded on this Factor has a correlation (r): $0.701 \le r \le 0.922$ with the Factor. The researcher devised the name of this Factor as "Socio-familial Involvement and Professional Interest." Factor 2 accounted for 23.08% of the variance. It has been observed that there are three variables loaded strongly on this factor and generated 81.5% of variation in Health Conscious Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.815. Data further depicts 80.9% of variation in Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process with Factor loading 0.809. It was observed that 76.5% of variation in Career Oriented



Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.765 and 51% of variation in Academic Oriented Lifestyle with Factor loading 0.510 and correlation is reported to be (r): $0.510 \le r \le$ 0.815 with the variables that loaded on it. The researcher devised the name of this Factor as "Health Efficacy with Research Perception." However, Factor 3 accounted for 12.20 % of the variance. The variables that load significantly high on this Factor are Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life which generated 83.1% of variation with Factor loading 0.831. It was observed that 82.3% of variation in Trend Seeking lifestyle (Factor loading -0.823) and 41.2% variation in Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research anxiety (Factor loading 0.412). It has correlation (r): $0.412 \le r \le 0.831$ with the variables that loaded on it. The researcher devised the name of this Factor as "Research Acquaintance for Existence." Fig. 45 shows a clear pattern of the loadings, with all items identified with 3 Factors; this result illustrates the benefits of rotation. Three-dimensional chart that includes not only horizontal and vertical axes but also *depth* by *rotating* the plotted points through 90 degrees, then the effect of this would be to bring closer together those variables that are similar to each other and to separate them more fully in distance from those variables that have no similarity to them, i.e. to render each group of variables (Factors) more homogeneous and to separate more clearly one group of variables (Factor) from another group of variables (Factor). The process of rotation keeps together those variables that are closely interrelated and keeps them apart from those variables that are not closely related.

Finally, the factor analysis led to the emergence of following factors in case of both the groups of Internet-users and Interne Non-users:

Internet-user Group:

- 1. Contemporary Lifestyle with Career & Health Preferences;
- 2. Academic Attainment and Research Affinity;
- 3. Research Convenience in Routine Life.

Internet Non-user Group:

- 1. Socio-familial Involvement and Professional Interest;
- 2. Health Efficacy with Research Perception;
- 3. Research Acquaintance for Existence.



From the above results, it can be observed that three factors determine the lifestyle and attitude towards research among the Internet-users group. It indicated Internetusers were found much interested to adapt modern lifestyle and have conscious about their health and career interests. It can be inferred that Internet-users update themselves with new trends and are very much eager to opt new ways of life. They used Internet and frequently consult the source which helps them to adopt modern lifestyle. Internet-users use their abilities and preferences with regard to career; they can access Internet sites describing the qualifications, skills, and educational requirements of various careers and can engage in online conversations with professionals to gain insights into the day-to day activities of specific careers. Connecting worldwide sites to get information on specific careers, like prepare for the job, kinds of courses are helpful, and job outlook for the future etc. They match the career information with personal abilities, desires, and values and gain valuable practice in synthesizing the information to formulate a viable career plan. Many career development sites that may visit to learn about careers and also use email to contact experts and professionals around the world to explore more personal aspects of a specific career by the Internet-group of subjects. Internet has been proposed as an effective medium to disseminate health information to address the health issues among Internet-users. It is first place for them to visit and seek health information, which influence the health seeking behaviour of university students. Internet-users were reported to take better care of themselves to communicate with their health consultants. Certainly, they use Internet for health related matters and to seek variety of health information. Internet-users were also found to have constructive ideas about research and research-related activities and employed research approaches in their lives and consider that research is highly beneficial for them. They consider research would be helpful for their future and improve the process and practice of education at any level. Internet-users recognize "Internet" is an integral part of the social fabric and it provides a major context in which personal, academic and research development is enacted.

On the other hand, Internet revolutionized the student's lives!" is an often heard exclamation. It has added a lot to students' lives indeed, and has also made a few things disappear. Internet Non-users reported that the content of Internet holds little



meaning for them, and they do not want to waste precious time online. It can be said that Internet Non-users spent healthy time in social activities; spend a considerable amount of their time involving social and familial interaction. Social interactions online are not psychologically interchangeable with social interactions offline for Internet Non-users group of subjects. Internet Non-users had more total contact with family members and an increased social participation. Higher level of community and family involvement were reported among Internet Non-users. They stay in touch with family and friends and found with higher levels of generalized trust, larger social networks and providing sense of belongingness through social contacts. Internet Nonusers were found interested about their health and research concerns. They represent a unique target for the promotion of positive health aspects such as physical activity and psychological well-being. Physical activity level of university students directly affected their healthy lifestyle behaviors. As results already indicated that Internet-use leads to ignoring other activities by the students and it has a negative effect on their physical and social activities. Health-related qualities of life of Internet Non-users were reported well. They were found to spend much time in physical and social related activities and have very positive perceptions of their general physical health; they evaluate their general state of physical health positively and rate their physical health as being 'good' or 'excellent'. In the course of attending university, they develop healthy lifestyle habits, perceptions, and research motivation which promoting health. They employed research approaches in their lives and consider that research is relevant and beneficial for their personal, social and physical concerns. It has been reported that Internet-Non-users have a sound sense of social, physical and psychological wellbeing. Keeping in view the above results the *hypothesis number* ten (Refer Chapter - 1), which reads as, "The dominant set of factors of Internetusers and Internet Non-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research bear no *similarity*" *stands accepted*. As it has been found that Internet-users and Internet-Non users bear no similarity. The results are in consonance with the findings of some of the researchers in the field (Manoj & Bhattacharjee 2013; Sampath & Manjunath 2013; Chongtham & Nil Ratan 2012; Carrick-Davies 2011; Venable 2010; Ilo & Ifijeh 2010; Ifeoma 2010; Mitchell et al. 2009; Madureira 2009; Molina-Garcia 2009; Kamba 2008; Unagha 2008; Amato et al. 2008; Hashim 2008; Pollard 2007; Schrofer



2007; Lloyd et al. 2007; Ebem 2007; Adegboji & Toyo 2006; Rajeev & Amritpal 2006; Yusuf 2006; Ammobi Chinwe 2006; Lenhart & Madden 2005; Lee, Kang Zum 2005; Menec 2003; Metzger 2003; Morgan & Cotten 2003; Nie & Erbring 2002; Shaw and Gant 2002; Adeya & Oyelaran-Oyeyinka 2002; McKenna 2002; Watts 2002; Offer et al. 2001; Katz et al. 2001;Howard et al. 2001; Williams 2001; Kiesler et al. 2000).

Manoj & Bhattacharjee (2013) revealed that the Internet use had generated a significant influence upon users in their research and academic work. Results further revealed that university students had claimed the Internet as a great tool for obtaining to the needed information for academics and research. Sampath & Manjunath (2013) revealed that university students used Internet service to support their study and research. They also showed that Internet use has improved their academic performance. Chongtham & Nil Ratan (2012) revealed that the Internet use had affected the research and academic work of university students. They acknowledged the Internet as a significant medium for gathering relevant knowledge and information for their academic and research work. Carrick-Davies (2011) revealed those who have a familiarity with the Internet leverage this to benefit their career. Venable (2010) reported that the Internet provides an important medium for the delivery of career support. This career support might be concerned with the development of digital career literacy. Ilo & Ifijeh (2010) reported that the Internet is an invaluable medium for students' research in their socio-personal life. Ifeoma (2010) revealed that Internet plays a major role in helping postgraduate researchers' access large number of materials from different parts of the world. With its advent, lecturers and students can work together without physical interaction between each other. *Mitchell et al.* (2009) revealed that the Internet has been acknowledged as a valuable means of health promotion; with information in web spread throw static health educational sites, peer support groups, online health consultations and delivery of Internet interventions. Kamba (2008) revealed that the only way to pursue knowledge is through research and the Internet is having a profound impact on the research process. Unagha (2008) reported that the Internet has become one of the most important channels of communication and research, a powerful tool in searching for, retrieving, disseminating and improved utilization of information among higher education



students. Pollard (2007) reported that Internet can be used as a means to both acquire and share health information with the advantage of the user being able to maintain anonymity. It can help users to prepare for medical consultations and in making decisions regarding treatment options. Schrofer (2007) stated that university students take responsibility more for determining educational learning strategies and thinks that the reason for this is the quality of the information obtained from Internet. Adegboji & Toyo (2006) reported that Internet contributed significantly to the ease of research through downloading materials. Further reported that higher education students used Internet for course related research. Rajeev & Amritpal (2006) revealed that majority of university students were used the Internet for educational and for research purpose and least number of students used the Internet for entertainment aims. Yusuf (2006) revealed that the Internet provides wide range opportunities for easy access of relevant and current literature, wide range of instruments, online opportunity for validation of instrument, simulation of an on-going research, and so on. Ammobi Chinwe (2006) revealed that students used Internet for the areas of knowledge improvement, collection of materials for assignment and collection of materials for research. Lenhart & Madden (2005) revealed that the Internet stimulates the closeness of existing interpersonal relationships by reducing restrictions of time and location. *Kiesler et al.* (2000) indicated that the Internet provides opportunities for family collaboration and communication between parents and children and increases their access to useful information regarding parenting, education, and family health. Similar findings have been given other researchers in the field (Metzger 2003; Adeya & Oyelaran-Oyeyinka 2002; McKenna 2002; Watts 2002; Offer et al. 2001 and Howard et al. 2001). However, a cluster of research studies revealed the findings infavour of Internet Non-users as: Amato et al. (2008) Internet Non-users engaged in traditional social activities, such as socializing with others, having meals together with household members. Internet-Non-users spend much time engaging in these activities with household members. Hashim (2008) found Internet Non-users have better social tolerance and good communication. Lloyd et al. (2007) found that Internet Non-use has been found to be associated with positive personal and social developmental outcomes. Morgan & Cotten (2003) reported that Internet Non-user have good quality of social relationships. Nie & Erbring (2002) revealed that Internet



Non-users spend more time interacting face-to-face with family and friends. Time spent on online activities may cut other activities such as social interaction. Therefore, increase in virtual interaction decreases the amount of face-to-face interaction and this in turn may lead to social isolation. *Shaw and Gant* (2002) revealed that the Internet Non-users spend more time with social gatherings and that they interact more with family, friends and their community. *Williams* (2001) revealed that Internet Non-users have the tendency to accommodate friends, their family members and other personal responsibilities. They have healthy interpersonal relationship which affects positively on their social engagements. Similar findings have been given other researchers in the field (*Madureira* 2009; *Molina-Garcia* 2009; *Ebem* 2007; *Lee, Kang Zum* 2005; *Menec* 2003; *Katz et al.* 2001).



n this section, an attempt has been made to summarize the findings of this study. The findings of the research were arrived after the data collected was subjected to various appropriate statistical tools, procedures and tests. In fact, conceptions and judgments from previous studies were incorporated to compare with the present findings. Subsequently, some conceptions were evolved pertaining to the association and intricacy of the variables under study. The present study was undertaken with the objectives of studying, Internet usage among university students in relation to their lifestyle, Academic achievement and Attitude towards research. The research results were presented and major findings reported in the previous chapter. This chapter will provide main conclusions, implications and future suggestion thereof, based on the main findings for the study. The objectives of the study, as documented in Chapter 1, were to determine the Lifestyle, Academic achievement and Attitude towards research of Internet-users and Internet Non-users (university students) of Kashmir University. On the basis of the findings an attempt has been made to provide result oriented implications as perceived from the statistical facts. From the analysis, Interpretation and discussion of the results presented in the preceding chapters, the present study emanated certain interesting and useful results based thereon can be drawn. A brief reporting of these results are summarised under the following captions.

The study emanated certain interesting and useful results. A brief reporting of these results are summarised under the following captions:

(A) Descriptive Analysis

Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Internet-users and Internet Non-users)



(B) Sub-Group Analysis

- i) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Gender wise)
- ii) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Faculty wise)

(C) Comparative Analysis

- i) Comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research
- ii) Comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Gender wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research
- iii) Comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Faculty Wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research

(D) Factor Analysis

Dominant factors influencing:

- i) Internet-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research.
- ii) Internet Non-users on Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research.

Section (A): Descriptive Analysis:

Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Internet-users and Non-users)

The below recorded conclusions are draw with regard to this Section:

- 1. Percent-wise distribution of Internet-users and Internet Non-users, on various levels of Lifestyle revealed majority of Internet-users with moderate level of lifestyle in comparison to Internet Non-users.
- 2. The study concluded that Internet-users, in comparison to Internet Non-users, exhibited higher academic achievement. The percent wise distribution revealed the major percentage of Internet-users placed in first division category.
- 3. The study revealed that majority of Internet-users were found moderately favourable on attitude towards research as against to their comparable group.



Section (B): Sub-Group Analysis

i) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Gender wise)

The sub group analysis led to the following conclusions:

- 1. Percent-wise comparison of male and female Internet-users on Lifestyle revealed majority of the female Internet-users on *above average level* as against to their male counterparts.
- The comparison between male and female Internet Non-user group on Lifestyle revealed that majority from the female Internet Non-user group was placed in *high level* category of Lifestyle as compared male Internet Non-user group.
- 3. It was concluded that the percent-wise distribution of male and female Internet-users on academic achievement indicated a higher frequency of female Internet-users in *first division* category as against to their male counterparts.
- 4. The percent-wise comparison of Internet Non-user group from both the genders on academic achievement revealed females with satisfactory results as compared to male group. Female Internet Non-users were placed in *first division* category.
- 5. The study was concluded with the observation that both the genders from Internet-users group were *moderately favourable* on attitude towards research.
- 6. The findings revealed that a considerable percentage of male Internet Nonusers had a *moderate level* of attitude towards research in comparison to female Internet Non-users.

ii) Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research (Faculty wise)

The faculty wise comparison revealed the following broader conclusions:

1. The findings revealed that Internet Non-users from *Science stream* had *above average level* of Lifestyle as against the Internet-users of same stream.



- 2. The percent-wise comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users belonging to *Social science stream* on Lifestyle was found significantly higher in case of Internet-users with *above average level* of Lifestyle.
- 3. The study found that on *high level* category, the lifestyle of Internet Nonusers from *Arts stream* was higher as against Internet-users.
- 4. The percent wise comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Science stream* found a maximum percentage with first *division* in case of Internet users.
- 5. The comparison between the Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Social science stream* on academic achievement revealed a large percentage of Internet-users with *first division* as compared the Internet Non-users.
- 6. It was concluded that Internet Non-users from *Arts stream* were considerably in higher percentage with *first division* as against the Internet-users.
- 7. Percent-wise comparison between Internet-users and Internet Non-users belonging to *Science stream* found a *moderate level* of attitude towards research among Internet-users in comparison to Internet-Non users.
- 8. While comparing the Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Social science stream* on attitude towards research, it has been observed that a significant percentage of Internet Non-users found their place as *unfavourable level* as against Internet-users.
- 9. Percent wise comparison of *Arts Stream* Internet-users and Internet Non-users on attitude towards research revealed large percentage of Internet-users found as *moderate level* as against Internet Non-users.

Section (C) Comparative Analysis

(i) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users on:

Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research:

This section is reported with following conclusions:

1. It has been found that Internet-users and Internet Non-users were significantly different on all the dimensions including the composite score of lifestyle.



- The study found Internet-users with good adaptation towards Health Oriented Lifestyle, Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle and Trend Oriented Lifestyle.
- Internet Non-users were found with an inclination towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle. However, the overall results revealed Internet-users with better adaptability on lifestyle than their comparable group.
- A significant difference between the Internet-users and Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement was confirmed. This confirmation supported Internet-users' group with higher academic achievement.
- 5. Internet-users and Internet Non-users differed significantly on all the four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. The study observed that Internetusers with a favourable Attitude towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, Relevance of Research in Personal Social Life. Difficulties in Research and Possession of Research Anxiety could not be found among Internet-users.
- (ii) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Gender wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research:

Gender wise comparison emanated the following broader conclusions:

- Male and female Internet-users differed significantly on three out of six dimensions of Lifestyle. The findings concluded that female Internet-users had excellent adaptation towards Academic Oriented Lifestyle and Trend Oriented Lifestyle. Whereas, male Internet-users were found with a favourable tendency in the adaptation of better Career Oriented Lifestyle.
- Both the groups under investigation were found equally inclined on Health Oriented Lifestyle, Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle. Overall results favoured female Internet-users with a better tendency in the adaptation of lifestyle than their comparable group.
- The Male and female Internet Non-users differed significantly on three out of six dimensions of Lifestyle. Male Internet Non-users were found with better adaptation towards Health Oriented Lifestyle. Whereas, female Internet Non-



users equally better on adaptability towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle.

- 4. Both the groups were similar on Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle and Trend Oriented Lifestyle. Overall results revealed with equal inclination towards their life style.
- Male and female Internet-users on academic Achievement were found significantly different on academic achievement. The results favoured female Internet-users with higher academic achievement.
- 6. Male and female Internet Non-users on Academic Achievement were found significantly different from each other. The results favoured female Internet Non-users with higher academic achievement.
- 7. Male and female Internet-users differed significantly on three out of four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. Male Internet-users were found with favourable tendency on General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety.
- 8. Both the groups were observed with similar inclination towards the Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life. Overall results revealed male Internet-users with a favourable leaning towards Research in comparison to their comparable group.
- Male and female Internet Non-users were significantly different on two out of four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. Female Internet Non-users' showed favourable tendency towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process.
- 10. The study found that male Internet Non-users were favourably inclined towards the Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life.
- 11. Both the groups had a similar inclination towards the Usefulness of Research in Professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety.
- 12. The overall results revealed both the groups of Internet-users and Internet Non-users with an equal tendency towards their lifestyle.



 (iii) Comparison between Internet-users and Non-users (Faculty Wise) on: Lifestyle, Academic Achievement and Attitude towards Research:

The conclusions deduced in this section are put as:

- 1. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Science stream* differed significantly on four out of six dimensions of lifestyle. Internet-users were found to have a tendency to adapt better Academic Oriented Lifestyle. On the other hand, Internet Non-users were found to have an excellent adaptation towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle, Trend Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle.
- 2. The dimensions of Health Oriented Lifestyle and Career Oriented Lifestyle were not found in any way different to both the groups of subjects from *Science Stream*.
- 3. The overall results revealed that Internet Non-users from *Science Stream* had a tendency to adapt better Lifestyle than their comparable group.
- 4. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Social Science Stream* were found significantly different from each other on all the six dimensions of Lifestyle. Internet-users have shown good adaptation towards Health Oriented Lifestyle, Academic Oriented Lifestyle, Career Oriented Lifestyle, and Trend Oriented Lifestyle. Whereas, Internet Non-users were found with higher inclination towards Socially Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle.
- 5. The overall results revealed Internet-users from *Social Science Stream* with higher leaning on Lifestyle than their comparable group.
- 6. The study concluded that Internet-users and Internet Non-users from Arts Stream were significantly different from each other on four out of six dimensions of Lifestyle. Internet Non-users from Arts Stream were found better on Health Oriented Lifestyle, Socially Oriented Lifestyle, Trend Oriented Lifestyle and Family Oriented Lifestyle. However, both the groups



reported similar inclination towards the Academic Oriented Lifestyle and Career Oriented Lifestyle.

- 7. The overall results revealed Internet Non-users from *Arts Stream* with an excellent adaptation on Lifestyle than their comparable group.
- It was concluded that Internet-users and Internet Non-users belonging to *Science Stream* were different from each other on academic Achievement. Better grades and higher Academic Achievement favoured Internet-user group.
- 9. A significant mean difference on academic achievement between the Internetusers and Internet Non-users from *Social Science Stream* was confirmed. This difference favoured the Internet-user group with higher grades and Academic Achievement.
- 10. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Arts Stream* were found different on Academic Achievement. Observation of this mean difference has gone in favour of Internet Non-user group, who were seen higher on grades and acquired higher Academic Achievement.
- 11. It was found that Internet-users and Internet Non-users (Science Stream) were significantly different on two out of four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. Internet-user group was found favourable on both the dimensions i.e. General aspects of Research and Research Process and Usefulness of Research in Professional Career. However, both the groups could not be differentiated on Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety.
- 12. The overall results revealed Internet-users (*Science Stream*) with a favourable Attitude towards Research in comparison to their comparable group.
- 13. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from Social Science Stream were seen significantly different in three out of four dimensions on Attitude towards Research. Internet-users were found with favourable attitude towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process, Usefulness of Research in Professional Career and Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety. On



one dimension i.e. Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life, the difference between the two groups could not be established.

- 14. The overall findings revealed Internet-users (*Social Science Stream*) with a favourable Attitude towards Research as against to their comparable group.
- 15. Internet-users and Internet Non-users from *Arts Stream* differed significantly in one out of four dimensions of Attitude towards Research. Internet-users were found in a favourable condition towards the General aspects of Research and Research Process. In rest of the three dimensions of Attitude towards research i.e. Usefulness of Research in Professional Career, Relevance of Research in Personal and Social life and Difficulties in Research and Research anxiety, the differences between the two groups could not be established.
- 16. The overall results revealed that Internet-users (*Arts Stream*) were favourable on the Attitude towards Research than Internet non user group.

Section D: Factor Analysis

i) Dominant factors influencing Internet-users on: Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research

The following conclusions are drawn by applying factor analysis:

- 1. The factor analysis led to the emergence of three factors in case of Internetusers with the explanation of 74 % of the total variation in data. Each of the variables that loaded on the first factor with a correlation (r) of $0.853 \le r \le$ 0.906. This First factor is designated as *"Contemporary Lifestyle with Career and Physical Efficacy"*. This factor was found more influential among the Internet-users group with high factor loadings.
- 2. The Second factor that loaded with correlation (r) as $0.717 \le r \le 0.903$. Therefore, the factor is designated as *"Academic Attainment and Research Affinity"*. This factor is the second influential factor of Internet-users.
- The variables that loaded on the Third factor with a correlation (r) coefficient of 0.676 ≤ r ≤ 0.717 is labelled as *"Research Connivance in Routine Life"*. This is a third but least influential factor among Internet-users.



- 4. It is to be recorded that out of these factors, "Contemporary Lifestyle with Career and Physical Efficacy" and "Academic Attainment and Research Affinity" exhibited the greatest variability in case of Internet-users.
- 5. Last identified factor i.e. *"Research Connivance in Routine Life"* emerged as the 3rd factor which exhibits low variability among Internet-users.
- ii) Dominant factors influencing Internet-Non-users on: Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research:
- 1. Three factors were also discovered from Internet Non-users which explained 76 % of the total variation in the data. Each of the variables that loaded on the first factor has a correlation (r) coefficient as $0.701 \le r \le 0.922$. This factor is labelled as *"Socio-familial Involvement and Professional Interest"*. This is the First and most influential factor among Internet Non-users group.
- The Second factor on which the variables that loaded on this factor had found correlation (r) coefficient as 0.510 ≤ r ≤ 0.815. This factor is labelled as *"Health Efficacy with Research Perception"*. This factor is the second influential factor of Internet Non-users.
- The variables that loaded on the third factor with a correlation (r) coefficient as 0.412 ≤ r ≤ 0.831. Therefore, the factor is labelled as *"Research Acquaintance for Existence"*. This is a third and least influential factor among Internet-users.
- 4. The factor analytical method found that Internet Non-users group with the greatest variability in "Socio-familial Involvement and Professional Interest" and "Health Efficacy with Research Perception".
- 5. Last identified factor i.e. *"Research Acquaintance for Existence"* emerged as the 3rd factor which exhibited a low variability among Internet Non-users.

Suggestions for Future Research

In the light of the findings of the present study, the investigator feels that the following suggestions are taken into consideration, while conducting a study similar to the present area of research. The present study was conducted on postgraduate students of various faculties of University of Kashmir. The present study suggests the future researchers to explore and address on various concerns of Internet usage



to examine its influence during their research voyage. Therefore, the following suggestions are recommended for future Research:

- 1. This type of study may be conducted at larger level and may be replicated. It is suggested to increase the sample size with the inclusion of other categories of students and variables.
- It is suggested for the future researchers to indentify the students enrolled in different courses and their Internet usage be compared on course basis in order to investigate the influence of Internet usage on other academic disciplines.
- 3. A comparative study is suggested to be undertaken in different states of India to draw interstate variations with regard to Internet usage.
- 4. A similar study on other factors such as students' age, socio-economic background and rural-urban dichotomy is recommended to be carried out.
- Since the present investigation was conducted on post graduate students, so, to generalize these results, studies on some other educational levels is suggested.
- 6. A study may be attempted to investigate the psychological, sociological and technological factors that are responsible for the Internet-use and Non-use among students at the higher education level.
- 7. The follow up studies may be undertaken to establish the validity of the findings of the present study.
- 8. Factor analytic studies may be carried out to study the relatively important factors contributing in the same area of research.
- 9. A longitudinal study can be undertaken that brings out the factors which promote students to take up Information and communication technology as one the prime subject in their studies.
- 10. A few studies have been conducted in this area, especially in our state, many more studies are recommended to be conducted with different environments or places involving the same variables as of the present study.
- 11. Last but not the least, it is expected from other investigators to carry out the research in the similar field with the compilation of some case studies.



Practical Implications

As we are living in the era of modern technology, therefore, future needs and requirement of students are to be addressed upon. The present study seems to enable future policy makers in the promotion of Internet facilities among future generation. The study reveals that computer and Internet are playing a pivotal role in educational projects viz. a. viz. research. A vast number of teaming millions use Internet and visit Google world for educational pursuits. It is easier to search through Internet as compared to the longer stay in the library rooms to collect, consolidate and compile information. The present study may send a strong message to publishers and writers to shift their attention to soft copies of their finding and make them available on the Internet so that more students can get access to this invaluable information. It is recommended that students should align their potential for significant and positive use of the Internet. Students must realize that the Internet as a medium. It is recommended that students should not waste their time on useless activities. Basic Internet tools may be introduced to students in their early stages of educational endeavour. The benefits of Internet should be disseminated to all students regardless of any status. Institutions should provide better infrastructure to facilitate students. Universities should organize courses which can promote internal capacity among the student community as a requirement to the use of Internet in efficient and effective way. The courses organized by Universities should highlight the use of Internet research techniques and course materials should be situated on the Web to facilitate access by students.

The following recommendations based on the findings and conclusions of the study are highlighted as under:

- The present study will encourage those students who do not use Internet. The study will further contribute to create awareness among those students who are afraid of both computer and Internet. They should be provided training so that they can also use computer and Internet.
- 2. Since Internet usage has adverse effects on social interaction, the students should be encouraged to be self-disciplined especially in terms of time allocation to social



and academic activities to avoid wasting much time for Internet use. This is because students have formed the habits of staying all-night-long browsing the Internet. Students, therefore, need to be able to access Internet technologies, to learn how to use them technically and then learn when and how to use them in ways that support social participation.

- 3. Parents, teachers, guardians and counsellors should encourage the students to relate with people in acceptable manner in order to develop social tolerance among themselves and avoiding circumstances that will bring about social upheavals. They should be told to be accommodating.
- 4. The Government should come up with a policy, guiding the practice of service providers. Service providers should not just be given a free hand to operate. Rather, government should devise means of filtering and controlling all information that come into the Internet through a central processing unit.
- 5. The future researchers can find out safe and secure ways so that those students who are not using Internet can also prove otherwise. The important direction for future research is to address misuse of Internet by students. It is a serious problem and affects the students. Instead of stop using Internet it is the duty of the future researchers and scholars to find out safe and sound ways of using Internet.
- 6. For Internet resources to be used effectively, students are required to develop a set of new skills that include strategies for searching relevant materials. Internet use will encourage our students generations to make use of modern technologies to accomplish their academic and research objectives.
- 7. The findings of the study listed above have important implications in our university students. Internet has immense potential to enables the students to get instant information for their varied purposes. In order to make more beneficial and effective, awareness programme for maximum use of Internet should be undertaken by the Universities.
- 8. It is recommended that university should provide Internet facility to its students and research scholars and motivate the students to use the Internet for their research and academics. The study also advocated that there should be training on how to use the Internet for academic and research.



- 9. The present study also observed that use of Internet might cause some socialization problems. The students' dependency on Internet has reduced the face to face interaction among them. Internet has positive effect on learning but has bad influence on social sides of a student's behaviour. It is also recommend that universities should organise seminars to make students aware about the significance of Internet as an educational tool. Universities should inspire group learning via Internet and should promote the use of weblogs.
- 10. University students who browse Internet are found to be better in academic achievement and attitude towards research than those who do not browse. So, it is suggested to promote browsing as one of the learning experiences and provided the Internet experience to the students.
- 11. The results of this research could help university students to increase the knowhow of Internet-use and will enable them to increase the research self-efficacy and improving the quality of their research preparation.
- 12. There should be more training, awareness, exposure or workshops on the use of other search engines which are seldom or never used in the Internet to improve and enrich their search for literatures for their academic work.



- Abdallah Ahmad Baniabdelrahman, Ruba Fahmi Bataineh, Rula Fahmi Bataineh (2014). An Exploratory Study of Jordanian EFL Students Perceptions of their Use of the Internet.
- Abdul-Salaam, A.O. (2007). The Role of Information and Communication Technologies in Nigeria Educational System. *Journal of Science and Science Education*, Vol. 1, No. 1 & 2, Pp: 177 – 186.
- Abedalaziz, Nabeel; Jamaluddin, Shahrir; Leng, Chin Hai (2013). Measuring Attitudes toward Computer and Internet Usage among Postgraduate Students in Malaysia. *Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology* - TOJET, Vol. 12, No. 2, Pp: 200-216.
- Abimbola Ojeniyi and Airen Adetimirin (2013). Gender Influence on ICT Use by Undergraduates in Two University Libraries in Nigeria. *Computer Communication & Collaboration*. Vol. 1, Pp: 62-71.
- Aborisade O.J. (2008). Construction and Validation of Mathematics Attitudinal Scale for Secondary School Students. *An Unpublished M.Ed. Thesis*, University of Ado-Ekiti.
- Abudullakutty, A. (2009). Digital divide among college students, Department of Mass Communication, University of Calicut.
- Addul Razaque Chhachhar, Ghulam Mujtaba Khushk, Ayaz Ahmed Chachar, Barkatullah Qureshi, (2013). Internet Usage among University Students in Pakistan. *Journal of Basic and Applied Scientific Research*, Vol.3, No. 9, Pp: 31-35.
- Adebule S.O. (2002). Development and Validation of an Anxiety Rating Scale in Mathematics for Nigerian Secondary Schools. *An unpublished Ph.D Thesis*, University of Ado-Ekiti.
- Adegbija, M.V. & Daramola, F.O. (2007). Evaluation of Computer Education Technology in Higher Institutions in Ilorin. African Journal of Educational Studies (AJES), Vol. 5, No. 1, Pp: 150 – 161.
- Adegbija, Mosiforeba Victoria; Bola, Olaniyi Oladimeji & Ogunsola, Olanike Maltida (2012). Availability And Utilization Of Internet Facilities By Postgraduate Students In Federal Universities Of Southwest, Nigeria. *International Journal of Computer Application*, Vol.1, No.2, Pp: 172-178.
- Adegboji, O.B., & Toyo, O.D (2006). The impact of the Internet on research: The experience of Delta State University, Abraka, Nigeria. *Library Philosophy and Practice*, Vol.8, No.2, Pp: 1-8.
- Adel Ben Youssef, Mounir Dahmani (2008). The Impact of ICT on Student Performance in Higher Education: Direct Effects, Indirect Effects and Organisational Change. *The Economics of E-learning*, Vol. 5 No.1, Pp: 1698-580.
- Adeya C.N. and Oyelaran-Oyeyinka B. (2002). The Internet in African Universities: Case studies from Kenya and Nigeria, *Infonomics and Unu/Intech*.



- Adogbeji O. and Toyo O., (2006). The Impact of the Internet on Research: the Experience of Delta State University, Nigeria, *Library Philosophy and Practice*, Vol. 8, No. 2.
- Agarwal, U. K. and Dave, R. K (2009). Use of Internet by the Scientists of CAZRI: A survey. *Indian Journal of Library and Information Science*, Vol.3, No.1, Pp: 15-21.
- Agence France-Presse (AFP). (2009). South Korea unveils steps to stop Internet-linked suicides. *Asia One*. Available online at: http://www.asiaone.com/News/
- Ahmad Fauzi Mohd Ayub, Wan Hamzari Wan Hamid and Mokhtar Hj. Nawawi (2014). Use of Internet for Academic Purposes among Students in Malaysian Institutions of Higher Education. *The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol.13, No.1.
- Ahmed Imran Hunjra, Nadeem Safwan and Abrar Ahmad (2010). Students Attitude towards the Uses of Internet. *International Journal of Business and Management*, Vol. 5, No. 6.
- Ahmet Aypay (2010). Information and communication technology (ICT) Usage and Achievement of Turkish Students.*The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol.9, No.2.
- Aiken, M., Vanjani, M., Ray, B. and Martin, J. (2003). College student Internet use, *Campus-Wide Information Systems*, Vol. 20, No. 5, Pp: 182-185.
- Ajzen, I. (1988). Attitudes, personality and behaviour. Bristol, UK: Open University Press.
- Ajzen, I. (1993). Attitude theory and the attitude-behaviour relation. In D. Krebs & P. Schmidt (Eds.), new directions in attitude measurement. Berlin, New York: De Gruyter.
- Akhter, Noreen (2013) Relationship between Internet Addiction and Academic Performance among University Undergraduates, *Educational Research and Reviews*, Vol. 8, No.19, pP: 1793-1796.
- Alan Neustadtl and John P. Robinson (2002) Social Contact Differences Between Internet Users and Nonusers in the General Social Survey. *Journal IT & Society*, Vol. 1, No. 1, Pp: 73-102.
- Al-Ansari, H. (2006). Internet use by the faculty members of Kuwait University. *The Electronic Library*, Vol.24, No. 6, Pp: 791-803.
- Albrecht, S. (2006). Whose voice is heard in online deliberation? A study of participation and representation in political debates on the Internet, *Information, Communication & Society*, Vol. 9, No. 1, Pp: 62-82.



- Ali, Zarqa S. (2014). Pakistani Students' Perceptions about Use of the Internet in Their Academic Activities, *E-Learning and Digital Media*, Vol.11, No.3, and Pp: 222-230.
- Alison J.head and Micheal B. Eisenberg (2011). How College students Use the Web to Conduct Everyday life Research. *Peer reviewed Journal of Internet*, Vol. 16, No. 4.
- Allen K., Boyce A., Horrigan J., Lenhart A., Madden M., OGrady E., Rainie L., (2003).The Ever- Shifting Internet Population: A new look at Internet access and the digital divide, *Pew Internet & American Life Project*. Available online at: http://www.pewInternet.org/Reports/2003/The-EverShifting-Internet-Population-A-new-look-at-Internet-access-and-the-digitaldivide.aspx.
- Alobiedat, A, Saraierh, R (2010). The Student's Attitude toward Use Platform as Learning Resources at University of Granada. *Review of European Studies*, Vol. 2, No. 2. Available online at:www.ccsenet.org/res.
- Alodied, Ahmad Sulieman; Eydat, Yousif Ahmad (2008). The Effect of Intranet Use on Students' Achievement and Self-Confidence. *Journal of International management review*, Vol. 4, No. 1, Pp: 72-87,109.
- Amanda M. Kimbrough, Rosanna E. Guadagno, Nicole L. Muscanell, Janeann Dill (2013) Gender differences in mediated communication: Women connect more than do men. *Journal of Computers in Human Behaviour*. Available online at: www.elsevier.com/locate/comphumbeh
- Amato, Paul, Alan Booth, David Johnson and Stacy Rogers (2008). Alone Together: How Marriage in America is changing. Cambridge, MA. Harvard University Press.
- American Life Project (2008). Available online at:

http://www.pewInternet.org/pdfs/PIP_Women_and_Men_online.pdf.

- Amin, E. M. (2005).Conception, Methodology and Analysis. Kampala. *Social Science Research*, Makerere University Printery.
- Ammobi, Chinwe V. (2006). Dynamics of Internet usage: A case of students of the federal.
- Anasi, S. (2006). Internet use pattern of undergraduate students at the University of Lagos, Nigeria. University of Dar es Salaam Library Journal, Vol.8, No.1, Pp: 1-15.
- Anderson, J.K. (2001). Internet Use among College Students: An Exploratory Study. *Journal of American College Health*, Vol.50, No.1, Pp: 21–26.
- Ani, O.E. (2005). Evolution of virtual libraries in Nigeria: A myth or reality? *Journal of Information Science*, Vol. 31, No.1, Pp: 66 69.
- Ani, Okon E. (2010). Internet access and use: A study of undergraduate students in three Nigerian universities. *The Electronic Library*, Vol.28, No. 4, Pp: 555 67.



- Ann Colley, John Maltby (2008). Impact of the Internet on our lives: Male and female personal perspectives. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 24, No. 5, Pp: 2005-2013.
- Anna Bujała (2012). Gender Difference in Internet Usage. Act Universitatis Lodziensis Folia Sociologica, Vol. 43.
- AnnBritt Enochsson, (2005). A gender perspective on Internet use: consequences for information seeking. *International journal of information research*, Vol. 10, No. 4.
- Anne Morris, Joy Gooddman, Helena Brading, (2007). Internet use and non-use: views of older users. *Journal Universal Access in the Information Society Springer-Verlag Berlin*, Heidelberg, Vol.6 No. 1, Pp; 43 – 57.
- Annenberg Digital Future Project (2004). Surveying the digital future year 4: ten years, ten trends. Available online at: www.digitalcenter.org/downloads/DigitalFutureReport-Year4-2004.pdf
- Anomo, K. Olaide and Oyenuga, Anthony O. Continental J. (2012). Impact of the use of Internet on technical collage vocational students academic performance in Ogun State, Nigeria. *Information Technology*, Vol. 6, No. 1, Pp: 21 – 26. Available online at: http://www.wiloludjournal.com
- Ansari, Mehtab Alam and Jilani Gulam (2008). Internet use by students of the Delhi University. *Information Studies*, Vol. 14, No. 3, Pp: 163-72.
- Anunobi, C. V. (2006). Dynamics of Internet usage: A case of students of the Federal University of Technology Owerri (FUTO) Nigeria. *Educational Research* and Reviews, Vol. 1 No. 6, Pp: 192-195. Available online at: http://www.academicjournals.org/ERR/PDF/Pdf2006/Sep/Anuno bi.pdf
- Asan, A., & Koca, N. (2006). An analysis of students attitudes towards Internet. Fourth International Conference on Multimedia and Information and Communication Technologies in Education, Seville, Spain. Available online at: http://www.formatex.org/micte2006/pdf/ 2120-2124.pdf
- Asdaque, M.M., Nasir Khan, M., & Abbas Rizvi, S.A. (2010). Effect of Internet on the Academic Performance and Social Life of University Students in Pakistan. *Journal of Education and Sociology*, Pp: 21-27.
- Asemi, A & Riyahiniya, N. (2007). Awareness and use of digital resources in the library of the University of Medical Science, Iran. *The Electronic Library* Vol. 25, No.3, Pp: 316–327.
- Asfaw, T. T., & Bo, C. C. (2003). Student use of Internet in China: A study on Huazhong University of Science and Technology (HUST), *Pakistan Journal of Information and Technology*, Vol. 2, No.1, Pp: 25-29.
- Aslvyn, J. (2001). Internet and Society Gylvry translated Abbas, Ali Rad Baveh. Tehran Librarian.



- Asselin, M., & Moayeri, M. (2008). Toward Pedagogy for Using the Internet to Learn: An Examination of Adolescent Internet Literacies and Teachers, Parents and Students Recommendations for Educational Change. International Association of School Librarianship. *Selected Papers from the Annual Conference*. Available online at: http://proquest.umi.com/pqdweb?did=1561027241&sid=2&Fmt=2&clientId =46825&RQT=309&VName=PQD
- Atwell, P. (2000). Beyond the digital divide New York: Russell Sage Foundation. Working paper No. 164.
- Audu, C. (2006). Internet availability and use by postgraduate students of University of Nigeria, Nsukka. Global Review of Library & Information Science. Vol. 2, Pp: 34-43.
- Awoleye O. and Siyanbola W. (2006). Examining the level of penetration and impact of Internet usage amongst Undergraduates in Nigerian Universities -a case study approach. Current Developments in Technology-Assisted Education.
- Aysegul Durak Batıgun and Nevin Kilic (2011). The Relationships between Internet Addiction, Social Support, Psychological Symptoms and Some Socio-Demographical Variables. *Turkish Journal of Psychology*, Vol. 26, No.67, Pp: 11-13.
- Ayub, Ahmad Fauzi Mohd; Hamid, Wan Hamzari Wan; Nawawi, Mokhtar Hj (2014). Use of Internet for Academic Purposes among Students in Malaysian Institutions of Higher Education. *Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology - TOJET*, Vol.13 No.1, Pp: 232-241.
- Ayyad, Khayrat (2011) Internet usage vs traditional media usage among university students in the United Arab Emirates. *Journal of Arab and Muslim Media Research*, Vol. 4, No. 1, Pp: 41-61.
- Azizah Zainudin, Marina Md. Din, Marini Othman (2013). Impacts due to Internet Addiction among Malayasian University Students. *International Journal of Asian Social Science*, Vol. 3, No. 9, Pp: 1922-1928.
- Azjen, I. (1985). From intentions to actions: A theory of planned behaviour. In J. Kuhl & J. Beckman (Eds.), Action control: *From cognition to behaviour*. New York: Springer Verlag, Pp: 11–39.
- B. A. Nardi, (1996). Cyberspace, Anthropological Theory, and the training of anthropologists, *Social Science Computer Review*, Vol.14, No.1, Pp: 34 35.
- B.T. Sampath Kumar, G. Manjunath, (2013). Internet use and its impact on the academic performance of university teachers and researchers: A comparative study, *Higher Education, Skills and Work-based Learning*, Vol. 3 No. 3, Pp: 219 238.


- Bahman Yasbolaghi SHarahi, Azam Ahmadi, Tayebe Goodarzi, Fatemeh Havas Beigi, Jaber Joukar (2013). Investigation of Problematic Internet Usage of University Students with Psychosocial Levels at Different Levels Original Research Article Procedia - Social and Behavioural Sciences, Vol. 103, No.26 Pp: 551-557.
- Bahman Yasbolaghi Sharahi, Azam Ahmadi, Tayebe Goodarzi, Fatemeh Havas Beigi and Jaber Joukar (2014). A Survey of the Amount of Internet Usage among High School Students of Khafr County and its Impacts on Students. Procedia -*Social and Behavioural Sciences*, Vol.114, Pp: 610 – 616. Available online at www.sciencedirect.com
- Baker, E. L. (2005). Technology and effective assessment systems. In J. L. Herman, & E. Haertel (Eds.), Uses and misuses of data for educational accountability and improvement. Chicago: *National Society for the Study of Education*, Pp: 358-378.
- Ball-Rokeach, Sandra, Yong-Chan Kim and Sorin Matei (2001). Storytelling neighborhood: Paths to belonging in diverse urban environments. *Communication Research* Vol. 28, Pp: 392-428.
- Bandele S.O. (2004): Educational Research in Perspective Ibadan, Niyi Commercial Ventures.
- Bandele S.O. and Adebule S.O. (2013) Patterns of University Graduating Students Attitude to Research Work. *International Journal of Educational Research* and Technology, Vol.4, No. 3, Pp: 98-103.
- Barak, A. & Sadovsky, Y. (2008). Internet use and personal empowerment of hearingimpaired adolescents. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.24, Pp: 1802-1815.
- Barron, A.E., Orwig, G.W. (1995). New technologies for education: A beginner's guide. (2nd ed.). Englewood, CA: Libraries Unlimited.
- Bassey EN (2003). Anatomy of Internet, Gonel System Limited, Effurun Nigeria.
- Bates, A.W. (2000). Managing Technological Change. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.
- Bayraktar, F., & Gun, Z. (2007). Incidence and correlates of Internet usage among adolescents in North Cyprus. *Cyber Psychology & Behaviour*, Vol.10, No.2, Pp: 191–197.
- Beard, K.W., (2005). 'Internet addiction: a Review of current assessment techniques and potential assessment questions, *Cyber Psychology & Behaviour*, Vol.8, Pp: 7-14.
- Becker, H. J. (2000). Access to classroom computers. *Communications of the ACM*, Vol.43, No. 6, Pp: 24-25.
- Becker, H., (1999). Internet Use by Teachers. Available online at: http://www.crito.uci.edu/Tlc/Findings/Internet-use/startpage.ht



- Becker, H.J. (1994). How exemplary computer-using teachers differ from other teachers: Implications for realizing the potential of computers in schools. *Journal of Research on Computing in Education*, Vol. 26, Pp: 291-321.
- Benson T.W. (1994). Electronic network resources forncommunication scholars. *Communication. Education.* Vol. 43, Pp: 120.
- Bereiter, C., & Scardamalia, M. (1989). Intentional learning as a goal of instruction. In L.
 B. Resnick (Ed.), Knowing Learning and Instruction: *Essays in Honor of Robert Glaser*, Hillsdale, NJ: Pp: 361-392.
- Berson, M.J. (2000). Effectiveness of computer technology in the social studies: A review of the literature. *Journal of Research on Computing in Education*, Vol.2, No. 4, Pp: 486-499.
- Beverly L. Fortson, Joseph R. Scotti, Yi-Chuen Chen, Judith Malone & Kevin S. Del Ben (2010). Internet Use, Abuse, and Dependence among Students at a Southeastern Regional University. *Journal of American College Health*, Vol.4 No.2, Pp: 137-144.
- Bhattacharya, I. & Sharma, K. (2007), 'India in the knowledge economy an electronic paradigm', *International Journal of Educational Management*, Vol. 21, No. 6, Pp: 543-568.
- Bimber, B (2000). Measuring the gender gap on the Internet. *Social Science Quarterly*, Vol.81, No.3, Pp: 868-876.
- Binder, M., & Niederle, U. (2007). Institutions as determinants of preference change- A one way relation? Available online at: https://papers.econ.mpg.de/evo/discussionpapers/2006-07.pdf
- Binnaz Kiran Esen, Erkan Aktas and Ismail Tuncer (2013). An Analysis of University Students Internet Use in Relation to Loneliness and Social Selfefficacy.*Procedia-Social and behavioural Sciences*. Vol. 89, Pp: 1504-1508.
- Biradar, B.S., Rajashekar, C.R., & Kumar, Sampath B.T., (2008). Students and Facultiessearching behaviour and the internet: use of search engines for retrieval of scholarly information. *Library Herald*, Vol.46, No.1, Pp: 21-30.
- Birdar, B.S. & Kumar, Sampath B.T. (2008). Use of search engines by research scholars and faculty members of physics departments in the Universities of Karnataka state. Annals of Library and Information Studies, Vol.55, Pp: 62-68.
- Bjorkstrom, M.E. & Hamrin, E.K.F. (2001). Swedish nurses attitudes towards research and development within nursing. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, Vol.34, No.5, Pp: 706-714.
- Bloch, J. (2007). Cyber wars: Catholics for a free choice and the online abortion debate. *Review of Religious Research*, Vol.49, No.2, Pp: 165-186.



- Blurton, C. (2010). New Directions of ICT-Use in Education, Available online at: http://www.unesco.org/education/educprog/lwf/dl/edict.pdf;UNESCO World Communication and Information Report.
- Bogard, W. (1996). The Simulation of Surveillance: Hypercontrol in Telematic Societies. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Boneva, B., Kraut, R., & Frohlich, D. (2001). Using email for personal relationships: the difference gender makes. *American Behavioural Scientist*, Vol. 45, No 3, Pp: 530–549.
- Borzekowski, D. L. G. & Robinson, T. N. (2005). The remote, the mouse, and the no. 2 pencil-The household media environment and academic achievement among third grade students. *Achieves of Pediatrics & Adolescent Medicine*, Vol. 159, and Pp: 607-613.
- Bourdeau, L., Chebat, J. & Couturie, C. (2002). Internet consumer value of university students: E-mail-vs. Web users. *Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services*, Vol.9, No.2, Pp: 61-69.
- Brakel, P.A., & Chisenga, J. (2003). Impact of ICT based distance learning: The African story. *The Electronic Library*, Vol, 21, No. 5, Pp: 476-486.
- Brandtzaeg, Petter Bae, Heim, Jan, & Karahasanovic, Amela. (2010). Understanding the new digital divide: A typology of Internet users in Europe. *International Journal of Human-Computer Studies*, Vol. 69, Pp: 123-138.
- Breakenridge, D. (2008). PR 2.0: new media, new tools, new audiences. *Upper Saddle River*, New Jersey: Pearson education.
- Brenner, V. (1997). Parameters of Internet use, abuse and addiction: The first 90 days of the Internet usage survey. *Psychological Reports*, Vol.80, Pp: 879-884.
- Brignall, Thomas Wells and Thomas Van Valeyb (2005). The impact of Internet communication on social interaction. *Sociological Spectrum*, Vol. 25, No. 3, Pp: 335-348.
- Broos, A. (2005). Gender and information and communication technologies (ICT) anxiety: Male self-assurance and female hesitation. *Cyberpsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.8, Pp: 21–31.
- Brophy, J. & Bawden, D. (2005). Is Google enough? Comparison of an Internet search engine with academic library resources. *Aslib Proceedings*, Vol.57, Pp: 498-512.
- Brotcorne, P. (2005). Making Sense of the Internet: Exploring Students Use of Internetbased Information Resources in University, paper presented at the British Educational Research Association Annual Conference, University of Glamorgan, Pp:14–17.
- Brown, M. (April 2001). Can ICTs address the needs of the poor? UNDP News, Pp: 2-5.



- Browne M.N., Freeman K.E., Williamson C.L. (2000). The importance of critical thinking for students use of the Internet. *Coll. Stud. J.*, Vol.34, No.3, Pp: 391-398.
- Burns, E. (2006). Global Internet adoption slows while involvement deepens, Available online at:

http://www.clickz.com/stats/sectors/demographics/article.php/3596131#table1

- Burns, N. and Grove, S. (2001). The practice of nursing research: conduct, critique and utilization (4th ed). W.B.Saunders: Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, USA
- Burns, SN & Grove, SK. (2003). Understanding nursing research. 3rd edition. Philadelphia: Saunders.
- Busari, G. (2001). Writing educational research proposal and presenting a report. Paper presented at the Formal Launching of the Ernwaca Small Grant Program, University of Lagos Conference Hall, and Lagos.
- Butt, I. H., & Shams, J. (2013). Master in Education Student Attitudes towards Research: A Comparison between two Public Sector Universities in Punjab. A Research Journal of South Asian Studies.
- Byun, S., Ruffini, C., Mills, J. E., Douglas, A. C., Niang, M., Stepchenkova, S., et al. (2009). Internet addiction: Metasynthesis of the 1996-2006 quantitative research. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.12, No.2, Pp: 203-207.
- Cam Escoffery Phd, Mph, Chesa, Kathleen R Miner Phd, Mph, Chesb, Daniel D Adame Phd, Msph, Chesc, Susan Butler Edd, Chesd, Laura McCormick Drphe & Elizabeth Mendell Med (2005). Internet Use for Health Information among College Students. *Journal of American College Health*, Vol. 53, No. 4, Pp: 183-188.
- Caplan, S. E. (2002). Problematic Internet use and psychosocial well-being: Development of a theory-based cognitive-behavioural measurement instrument. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.18, Pp: 553-575.
- Carrick-Davies, S. (2011). Munch Poke Ping! Vulnerable Young People, Social-Media and E-Safety. *Training and Development Agency*. Available online at: http://www.carrick-davies.
- Castells, M. (2001). The Internet galaxy: Reflections on the Internet, business, and society. New York: Oxford University Press. Catterall,
- Central Intelligence Agency (2006). The world fact book Hong Kong, Available online at: at: https://www.cia.gov/cia/publications/factbook/geos/hk.html
- Ceyhan, E., Ceyhan A., Gürcan, A. (2007). Validity and reliability studies of Problematic Internet Usage Scale. *Educational Sciences*: Theory & Practice, Vol.7, No.1, Pp: 387-416.
- Chaffee, S. H. & Mutz, D. C. (1988). Comparing Mediated and Interpersonal Communication Data. In R.P. Hawkins, et al. (Eds) *Advancing*



Communication Science: Merging Mass and Interpersonal Processes. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.

- Chandra, S. & Patkar, V. (2007). ICTS: A catalyst for enriching the learning process and library services in India, *The International Information & Library Review*, Vol .39, No. 1, Pp: 1-11.
- Chapman, L. (2002). Russian roulette or Pandora's Box: use of Internet as a research tool. Paper presented at VALA. 11th Biennial Conference and Exhibition, Pp: 6-8 Melbourne. Victoria, Australia.
- Charp, S. (2000). The millennium classroom. T.H.E. Journal, Vol. 27, No.10, Pp: 10-12.
- Chavez, C. (1997). Students take flight with Daedalus: Learning Spanish in a networked classroom, *Foreign Language Annals*, Vol. 30, No.1, Pp: 27-37.
- Chawla, R. (2003). Report of Information and Communication Technologies (ICTs) in Kashmir. Available online at: www.gipi.org.in/ict/kashmir
- Che-Chern and Wen-Shun Chen (2008). Study on Internet usages, academic achievements, and the exploring capability of regional culture knowledge using Internet: a case of primary school students in Taiwan. WSEAS *Transactions on Information Science and Applications,* Vol. 5, No. 10, Pp: 1428-1437.
- Chen YF, Peng SS. (2006). University students Internet use and its relationships with academic performance, interpersonal relationships, psychosocial adjustment, and self-evaluation. Center for Research on Educational Evaluation and Development, National Taiwan Normal University, Taiwan, Republic of China.
- Chen, R.S. & Tsai, C.C. (2007). Gender differences in Taiwan University students stitudes toward web-based learning. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 10, No.5, Pp: 645-654.
- Chen, Su-Yen; Fu, Yang-Chih (2009). Internet use and academic achievement: gender differences in early adolescence. *Journal of Adolescence*, Vol. 44, No. 176, Pp: 797-812.
- Chen, Y. F., & Peng, S. S. (2008). University students' Internet use and its relationships with academic performance, interpersonal relationships, psychosocial adjustment, and self-evaluation. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.11, Pp: 467-469.
- CHEPS (2000). Higher Education and the Stakeholder Society. Research program for 2001–2005. Available online at:

http://www.utwente.nl/cheps/Research/index.html

Chetan Sharma (2012). Internet surfing in Universities of Delhi. *International Journal of Communication Development*, Vol. 2, No.1.



- Cheung W., & Huang, W. (2005). Proposing a framework to assess Internet usage in university education: an empirical investigation from a students perspective. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol. 36, No.2, Pp: 237–253.
- Chih-Hung Lai and Hwei-Ling Gwung (2013). The effect of gender and Internet usage on physical and cyber interpersonal relationships. *Computers & Education*, Vol. 69, Pp: 303-309.
- Chih-Hung Lin, Ssu-Kuang Chen, Shan –Mie Chang, Sunny S.J.Lin, (2013) Cross-lagged relationships between problematic Internet use and lifestyle changes. *Journal* of Computers in Human Behaviour. Vol. 29, No. 6, Pp: 2615–2621.
- Chinwe M.T. Nwezeh, (2010). The impact of Internet use on teaching, learning and research activities in Nigerian universities: A case study of Obafemi Awolowo University, *Electronic Library*, Vol. 28 No. 5, Pp: 688 – 701.
- Chinwev, A. (2006). Dynamics of Internet usage: A case of students of the Federal University of Technology Owerri (FUTO) Nigeria. Educational Research and Reviews, Vol. 1, No. 6, Pp: 192- 195. Available online at: http:// www.academicjournals.org/ERR
- Choi, Kwisook; Son, Hyunsook; Park, Myunghee; Han, Jinkyu; Kim, Kitai; Lee, Byungkoo; Gwak, Hyesun (2009). Internet overuse and excessive daytime sleepiness in adolescents. *Journal of Psychiatry and Clinical Neuroscience*, Vol. 63, No. 4, Pp: 455-462(8)
- Choi, Y. (2007). Advancement of IT and seriousness of youth Internet addiction. International Symposium on the Counseling and Treatment of Youth Internet Addiction. Seoul, Korea, National Youth Commission (p.20).
- Chongtham Beda Devi & Nil Ratan Roy (2012). Internet Use among University Students: A Case Study of Assam University Silchar. A Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences, Vol. 1, No. 2, Pp: 183-202.
- Chou, C. (2001). Internet heavy use and addiction among Taiwanese college students: An online interview study. *Cyberpsychology and Behaviour*, Vol.4, No.5, Pp: 573-585.
- Chou, C. (2003). Incidences and correlates of Internet anxiety among high school teachers in Taiwan. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.19, Pp: 731-749.
- Chou, C., & Tsai, C.C. (2002). Developing Webbased curricula: issues and challenges. *Journal of Curriculum Studies*, Vol. 34, Pp: 623–636.
- Christos C. Frangos, Constantinos C. Frangos, and Ioannis Sotiropoulos (2011) Problematic Internet Use Among Greek University Students: An Ordinal Logistic Regression with Risk Factors of Negative Psychological Beliefs, Pornographic Sites, and Online Games. *Cyberpsychology, Behaviour, and Social Networking*. Vol. 14, No. 1-2, Pp: 51-58.



- Christy M.K. Cheung and Matthew K.o.Lee (2011) Exploring the Gender Differences in Student Acceptance of an Internet-Based Learning Medium. *Journal of Technology Acceptance in Education*, Pp: 183-199.
- Chung-Chuan Yang (2000). The use of the Internet among academic gay communities in Taiwan: an exploratory study. *Information, Communication & Society*. Vol.3, No. 2, Pp: 153-172.
- Ciboh, R. (2007). *Mass Media in Nigeria: Perspective on Growth and Development*. Makurdi: Aboki Publishers.
- Ciglaric, M., & Vidmar, T. (1998). The use of Internet technologies for teaching purposes. *European Journal of Engineering Education*, Vol. 23, No. 4, Pp: 497-503.
- Clark, Deborah J., Frith, Karen H. Demi and Alice S. Faan (2004). The Physical, Behavioural, and Psychosocial Consequences of Internet Use in College Students. *Computers, Informatics, Nursing*: Vol. 22, No. 3, Pp: 153-161.
- Clark, R.E. (1994). Media will newer influence learning. *Education technology research and development*, Vol. 42, No. 2, Pp; 21-29.
- Cliff Lampe; Jessica Vitak and Nicole Ellison (2013). Users and nonusers: interactions between levels of adoption and social capital. CSCW 13 *Proceedings of the conference on computer*. New York, NY, USA, Pp: 809-820.
- Cloud, C. C. (1989). Network Ethics: Access, Consent and Informed Community. USA: Westview Press.
- Coffin, R.J., & MacIntyre, P.D. (1999). Motivational influences on computer-related affective states. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 15: Pp: 549–569.
- Cole, J. I., Suman, M., Schramm, P., Bel, D. v., Lunn, B., Maguire, P., Hanson, K., Singh, R., & Aquino, J.S. (2000). *The UCLA Internet Report*: Surveying the Digital Future. Available online at: http://www.ccp.ucla.edu
- Cole, J., & Robinson, J. P. (2002). Internet use and sociability in the UCLA data: A simplified MCA analysis. *IT & Society*, Vol. 1, No.1, Pp: 202-218.
- Colley, A., & Comber, C. (2003). Age and gender differences in computer use and attitudes among secondary school students: what has changed? *Educational Research*, Vol.45,Pp:155–165.
- Collins, A. (1991). The role of computer technology in restructuring schools. *Phi Delta Kappan*, Vol. 73, Pp: 28-36.
- Collis, B. (2002). Information technologies for education and training. In Adelsberger, H., Collis, B, & Pawlowski, J. (Eds.) *Handbook on Technologies for Information* and Training. Berlin: Springer Verlag.
- Collis, B. And Wende, M. Van Der (2002). ICT and the Internationalisation of higher education: models of change, In: Special Issue of the Journal for Studies in International Education, Vol. 6, No. 6, Pp: 87-9.



- Collis, B. and Wende, M. van der (Eds.) (2002). Models of Technology and Change in Higher Education, *Center for Higher Education Policy Studies*, University of Twente, And the Netherlands. Available online at: http://www.utwente.nl/cheps/documenten/ictrapport.pdf
- Collis, B., & Gommer, E. M. (2001). Stretching the Mold or a New Economy? Scenarios for the university in 2005, *Educational Technology*, Vol.41, No. 3, Pp: 5-18.
- Collis, B., & Moonen, J. (2001). Flexible learning in a digital world: Experiences and Expectations. London: Kogan Page.
- Collis, B., & Wende, M. Ander. (2002). ICT and the Internationalisation of higher education: models of change, In: Special Issue of the Journal for Studies in International Education, Vol.6, No. 6, Pp: 87-9.
- Collis, B., & Wende, M. Ander. (Eds.). (2002). Models of change: ICT and the internationalisation of higher education. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, Vol.6, No. 2, Pp: 87-200.
- Commission of European Communities. (2001). Information and Communication Technologies in Development: The Role of ICTs in EC Development Policy. *Brussels, Commission of the EuropeanCommunities*. Available online at: http://europa.eu.int/rapid/pressReleasesAction.do?reference=IP/02/116&form at=HT ML&aged=0&language=EN&guiLanguage=en
- Computer Industry Almanac. (2009). Worldwide Internet Users Suppases 1 billion Available online at: http://ww.c-I.G.Com 1 pr 0/06 tm
- Comunale, C.L., Sexton, L.T., & Voss, A. (2002). The effectiveness of course web site in higher education: An exploratory study. *Journal of Educational Technology Systems*, Vol.30, No. 2, Pp: 171-190.
- Cooper, J., & Weaver, K. D. (2003). Gender and computers: Understanding the digital divide. Mahwah, NJ: Erlbaum Associates.
- Correa, T. (2010). The participation divide among online experts: Experience, skills, and psychological factors as predictors of college students web content creation. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication*, 16(1), 71–92.
- Council of Australian University Librarians (CAUL) (2001). Making information literacy legitimate. Available online at:www.caul.edu.au/survrys/info-literacy2004.doc.
- Crews, M. & Feinberg, M. (2002). Perceptions of university students regarding the digital divide. Social Science Computer Review, Vol. 20, Pp: 116-123.
- Crouch, M. A. (2001). Using the Internet to facilitate student learning in a large therapeutics course: A threeyear perspective. *American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education*, Vol.65, Pp: 7-13.
- Crutzen, R., de Nooijer, J., Brouwer, W., Oenema, A., Brug, J., de Vries, N. K. (2008). Qualitative Assessment of Adolescents Views about Improving Exposure to



Internet-Delivered Interventions, *Health Education*, Vol. 108, No. 2, Pp: 105-116.

- Cushman M., Klecun E., (2006). How (can) nonusers engage with technology: Bringing in the Digitally Excluded, Pp: 347-364, in: Trauth E., Howcroft D., Butler T., Fitzgerald B., DeGross J., eds, Social Inclusion: Societal and Organizational Implications for Information Systems, Boston, Springer.
- Cynthia Shuster, Patricia Brinkman, Lisa Barlage, Michelle Treber, Dana Brown and Linnette Goard (2013). Utilizing Technology to Encourage Healthy Lifestyles. *Journal of Human Sciences and Extension*, Vol. 1, No.1.
- Czerniewicz, L. & Brown, C. (2007). Disciplinary differences in the use of educational technology, In D. Remenyi, ICEL 2007: 2nd International Conference on e-Learning. New York. Pp: 117-130.
- Dailey, Dharma, Bryne, Amelia, Powell, Alison, Karaganis, Joe, & Chung, Jaewon. (2010). Broadband Adoption in Low-Income Communities: Social Science Research Council.
- Daly; J.A. (2000) Studying the Impact of the Internet without Assuming Technological Determinism. Aslib proceedings, Vol.8, No.8. Available online at: http://www.endinfosys.com
- Daramola, I.S. (2004). Knowledge and skills possessed by technical collage graduate of building technology trade in Taraba State. *Journal League of Researchers in Nigeria*, Vol. 4, No. 1.
- Davies, J.E. (1997). The Internet in Education. Available online at: http://www.ualberta.ca/~jedavies/inteduc.
- Davis, N.E., & Tearle, P. (Eds.). (1999). A core curriculum for telematics in teacher training. Available online at: http://www.ex.ac.uk/telematics.T3/corecurr/tteach98.htm
- Davis, R. A. (2001). A cognitive-behavioural model of pathological Internet use. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.17, No.2, Pp: 187–195.
- Dawson, A. 2005. The impact of the Internet on college students. The good, the bad and the ugly. Paper presented at the University of Nebraska, Kearney, and Available online at:

http://www.unk.edu/uploadedFiles/academic/cte/newsletters/

- De Corte, E., Verschaffel, L., Entwistle, N., & van Merrienboer, J. (Eds.). (2003). Powerful learning environments: unravelling basic components and dimensions. Oxford: Pergamon/Elsevier.
- De Vos, A.S. (2005). Qualitative data analysis and interpretation. In De Vos, A.S., Strydom, H., Fouché, C.B. and Delport, C.S.L. Research at Grass Roots for the Social Sciences and Human Services Professions (3rd ed.). Pretoria: Van Schaik Publishers, Pp: 333-349.



- De Vos, A.S. and Fouche, C.B. (1998). General introduction to research design, data collection methods and data analysis. In De Vos, A.S. (Ed.). Research at Grass Roots. A Primer for the Caring Professions. Pretoria: Van Schaik Publishers, Pp: 76-94.
- De Vos, A.S. And Van Zyl, C.G. (1998). The grounded theory methodology. In De Vos, A.S. (Ed.). Research at Grass Roots. A Primer for the Caring Professions. Pretoria. J.L. Van Schaik Academic, Pp: 265-276.
- Dehmle, K.M., (2009) Adolescent Technology Usage, Sleep, Attention and Academics.
- Del Castillo, J. A. G., Terol, M. D., Nieto, M., Liedo, A., Sanchez, S., Martin-Aragon, M. et al. (2008). Use and abuse of the Internet in university students. *Adicciones*, Vol.20, Pp: 131-142.
- Delucchi, M. (2000, October). Internet Use among Male and Female College Students. *Cyber Psychology & Behaviour*. Vol.3, No. 5. Available online at: http://lucia.ingentaselect.com/vl=4430638/cl=25/nw=1/rpsv/catchword/mal/1 0949313/v3n5/s16/p885
- Denise Matthews, Lynne Schrum (2003) High-speed Internet use and academic gratification in the collage residence. *The Internet and Higher Education*, Vol. 6, No. 2, Pp: 125-144.
- Deniz, L. & Coşkun, Y. (2004). Internet experiences of student teachers. Marmara University Ataturk Faculty of Education. *Educational Sciences Journal*, Vol.20, Pp: 39-52.
- Dennis Mazalin and Susan Moore (2004). Internet Use, Identity Development and Social Anxiety among Young Adults. *Behaviour Change*, Vol. 21, No. 2, Pp: 90–102.
- Derbshire Kl; lust KA; Schreiber Lr; Odlaug BL, Christenson GA; Golden DJ and Grant Je (2013). Problematic Internet use and associated risks in a college sample. *Journal of compr Psychiatry*, Vol. 54, No. 5, Pp: 415-22.
- D'Esposito, J. E. & Gardner, R. M. (1999). University students' perceptions of the Internet: An exploratory study. *Journal of Academic Librarianship*, Vol.25, Pp: 456-461.
- Deveshwar, M, (1999). The future of a wired India. Available online at: http://www.expressindia.com/news/fe/daily/ 20000119/ffel8124.html
- Dhanavandan, S, Esmail, S. Mohammed and Mani, V. (2008) Use of CD ROMs and Internet in Engineering Colleges in Cuddalore District: A Study. *Pearl: A Journal of Library and Information Science*, Vol.2, 3, Pp: 21-25.
- Dholakia, N., Dholakia, R. R., & Kshetri, N. (2004). Global diffusion of the Internet. In H. Bidgoli (Ed.), *The Internet Encyclopaedia*, Vol. 2, Pp: 38-51
- DiMaggio P, Hargittai E, Neuman WR, Robinson JP. (2001). Social implications of the Internet. *Annu. Rev. Sociol*. Vol. 27, Pp: 307–36, *Economist*. 2003a. Mar. Vol.



29 Pp: 58, *Economist*.2003b. Apr. Vol.5Pp:58, *Economist*. 2003c. Apr. Vol.26 Pp: 58.

- Dominic Madell and Steven Muncer (2004). Gender differences in the use of the Internet by English secondary school children. *Social Psychology of Education, Vol.*7, Pp: 229–251.
- Dominic Madell and Steven Muncer (2004). Gender Differences in the Use of the Internet by English Secondary School Children. *Journal of Social Psychology of Education*, Vol.7, No. 2, Pp: 229-251.
- Donnerstein, E., & Smith, S. (2001). Sex in the media. In D. Singer & J. Singer (Eds.), *Handbook of children and the media*, (Pp: 223-254). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Doring, N. (2010). Internet sexualities. *International Handbook of Internet Research*, Vol.1, Pp: 171-185.
- Douglas, A.C., Mills, J.E., Niang, M., Stepchenkova, S., Byun, S., Ruffini, C., Lee, S.K., Loutfi, J., Lee, J-K., Atallah, M., Blanton, M., (2008). Internet addiction: Metasynthesis of qualitative research for the decade 1996-2006, *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 24, and Pp: 3027-3044.
- Dr. Richard Joiner, Jeff Gavin, Jill Duffield, Mark Brosnan, Charles Crook, Alan Durndell, Pam Maras, Jane Miller, Adrian J. Scott, and Peter Lovatt.(2005). Gender, Internet Identification, and Internet Anxiety: Correlates of Internet Use. Cyber Psychology & Behaviour, Vol. 8, No. 4, Pp: 371-378.
- Draper S. & Brown M. (2004). Increasing interactivity in lectures using an electronic voting system. *Journal of Computer Assisted Learning*, Vol.20, Pp; 81–94.
- Driskell, R. & Lyon, L. (2002). Are virtual communities true communities? Examining the environments and elements of community. *City & Community*, Vol. 1, No. 4, Pp: 373-390.
- Dryli, O.E., & Kinnaman, D.E. (1996). Energizing the classroom curriculum through telecommunications. *Technology and Learning*, Vol.16, No. 4, Pp: 57-70.
- Durndell, A. & Haag, Z. (2002). Computer self efficacy, computer anxiety, attitudes towards the Internet and reported experience with the Internet, by gender, in an east European sample. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.18, Pp: 521– 535.
- Dutta-Bergman, M. (2004). Health attitudes, health cognitions and health behaviour among Internet health information seekers: Population-based survey. *Journal of Medical Internet Research*, Vol.6, No. 2, Pp: 15.
- E. Anyira, Gender implications in awareness and use by private university lecturers in South-South Nigeria, *Library Philosophy and Practice*, Available online at: http://www.digitalcommon.unl/libphilprac/109.



- E. Fariborzi,A. Sied Khodadadi(2010). Internet and academic achievement in higher education. International Academy of Technology, Education and Development (IATED) 4th International Technology, Education and Development Conference. Pp: 1903-1913.
- Eastin, M.S., & LaRose, R. (2000). Internet selfefficacy and the psychology of the digital divide. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication* Available online at: www.ascusc.org/jcmc/vol6/ issue1/eastin.html.
- Ebem, Z., (2007). Health Promoting Behaviors and Exercise Stages of Change Levels of Students at Transition to University. Middle East Technical University Social Sciences Institute an Unpublished PhD Thesis, Ankara.
- Edmunds, R., Thorpe, M., & Conole, G. (2010). Student attitudes towards and use of ICT in course study, work and social activity: A technology acceptance model approach, *British Journal of Educational Technology*. Vol.43, No.1, Pp: 71-84.
- Edwards, S. M., and Lee, W. N. (2000). Teens use of traditional media and the Internet, *Journal of Advertising Research*, Vol. 40 No. 3, Pp: 55-65.
- Ela Goyal, Seema Purohit and Manju Bhaga (2011). Study of satisfaction and usability of the Internet on students performance. *International Journal of Education and Development using Information and Communication Technology*, Vol. 7, No.1, Pp: 110-119.
- Elisabeth Donat, Roman Brandtweiner and Johann Kerschbaum (2009). Attitudes and the Digital Divide: Attitude Measurement as Instrument to Predict Internet Usage. Informing Science: *the International Journal of an Emerging Transdiscipline*, Vol. 12.
- Elizabeth A. Clark and Deborah Everhart (2007). Positive Effects of Internet Use by College Freshmen. *The New School Psychology Bulletin*, Vol. 5, No. 2.
- Ellen B.Meier and Keol lim (2009). New trends and gender differences in computer and Internet use among high school students in Korea. Doctoral Dissertation. Columbia University Teacher's College New York, NY, USA.
- Ellis-Danquah, L. V. (2004). Addressing health disparities: African American consumer information resources on the web. *Medical Reference Services Quarterly*, Vol.23, No. 4, Pp: 61-73.
- Ellison, N. B., Steinfield, C., & Lampe, C. (2007). The benefits of Facebook "friends:" Social capital and college students' use of online social network sites. *Journal* of Computer- Mediated Communication, Vol. 12, No.4, Pp: 1143-1168.
- Ellison, N., Steinfield, C., & Lampe, C. (2007). Spatially bounded online social networks and social capital: The role of Facebook. Paper presented at the In Proceedings from the annual conference of the international communication association, Dresden, Germany.



Ellsworth, J.H. (1994). Education on the Internet. Indianapolis, Ind. Sams.

- Emeagwali P (2000). Vaulting Nigeria into the Information Age. The Guardian on Sunday September 24, 2000. ESCAP (2000) Are ICT Policies Addressing Gender Equality? Available online at: http://www.unescaporg/wid/04/wideresources/11wideactivities/01cctegm/bac kgoundpaper.Pdf.
- Emeagwali P (2000). Vaulting Nigeria into the Information Age. The Guardian on Sunday September 24, 2000.
- Erac dalbuda (2014). The relationship of Internet addiction severity with Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder symptoms in Turkish University students; impact of personality traits, depression and anxiety. *Journal of Comprehensive psychiatry*, Vol. 55, No. 3, Pp: 497-503.
- Ercan Dalbudak, Cuneyt Evren, Secil Aldemir, Kerem Senol Coskun, Hilal Ugurlu, and Fatma Gul Yildirim (2013). Relationship of Internet Addiction Severity with Depression, Anxiety, and Alexithymia, Temperament and Character in University Students. *Cyberpsychology, Behaviour, and Social Networking*. Vol. 16, No.4, Pp: 272-278.
- Erdogan, Y. (2008). Exploring the relationships among Internet usage, Internet attitudes and loneliness of Turkish adolescents. *CyberPsychology; Journal of Psychosocial Research on Cyberspace*, Vol. 2, No. 2. Article 1.
- Eric B. Weiser (2000). Gender Differences in Internet Use Patterns and Internet Application Preferences: A Two-Sample. Comparison Cyber Psychology & Behaviour. Vol. 3 No. 2, Pp: 167-178.
- Erikson, E. (1998). Life cycle completed: Extended version. New York: WW Norton & Company.
- Escoffery, Cam. et al., (2005).Internet Use for Health Information among College Students.. *Journal of American College Health*, Vol.53, No. 4.
- Eshaghali Azizi (2014). Relationship between Internet Competency and Academic Achievement of Science Students in Bachelor Level. Research *Journal of Recent Sciences*, Vol. 3, No.9, Pp: 34-38.
- Eszter Hargittai (2008). Whos Space? Differences among Users and Non-Users of Social Network Sites. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication* Volume, 13, Pp: 276–297.
- Eynon, R. and Geniets, A. (2012). On the Periphery? Understanding Low and Discontinued Internet Use Amongst Young People in Britain. Report for the Nominet Trust.
- Eynon, R., Helsper, E. (2011): Adults learning online: Digital choice and/or digital exclusion? In: *New Media and Society*, Vol.13, No.4, Pp: 534-551.



- Eziani, CN. (2011). Network literacy skills of academic librarians for effective services delivery. The case of the University of Nigeria Library System. *Library Philosophy and Practice* (e-journal). Available online at: http://digitalcommunsunl.edu/libphilprac/648.
- Ezomo, E.O. (2006). Collection development in an automated environment. A Compendium of Papers Presented at the 2006 National Interactive Seminar, National Library of Nigeria, Jos, and 2nd-5thMay.
- F. Polit, and D. Hungler (2001).Nursing research principles and methods. (Philadelphia: J.B. Lippincott).
- Fabrigar, L.R., Wegener, D.T.(2012). Exploratory Factor Analysis. Oxford, New York.
- Fabunmi, F.A. (2012). Undergraduate students perception of the effectiveness of ICT use in improving teaching and learning in Ekiti State University, Ado-Ekiti, Nigeria. *International Journal of Library and Information Science*, Vol. 4, No.7, Pp: 121-130, Available online at: http://www.academicjournals.org/ijlis
- Fallows, D. (2005). How men and women use the Internet. Pew Internet and American Life Project. Available online at: http://www.pewInternet.org/Reports/2005/How-Women-and-Men-Use-the-Internet.aspx
- Farshbaf, S et al. (2009). Internet addiction: reasons and motivations.
- Fasae, J. K. and Aladeniyi, F. R. (2012). Internet Use by Students of Faculty of Science in Two Nigerian Universities. *Library Philosophy and Practice (e-journal)*. Paper 763. Available online at:

http://digitalcommons.unl.edu/libphilprac/763

- Feldman, D. C. and Klaas, B. S. (2002). Internet Job Hunting: A Field Study of Applicant Experiences with On-line Recruiting. *Human Resource Management*, Vol.41, No.2, Pp: 175-192.
- Fernando Lera-López, Margarita Billon & María Gil (2011). Determinants of Internet use in Spain. *Economics of Innovation and New Technology*. Vol. 20, No. 2, Pp: 127-152.
- Forcier, Richard C. (1996). The Computer as a Productivity Tool in Education. Prentice Hall Company in United States of America.
- Ford, N., & Miller, D. (1996). Gender differences in Internet perceptions and use. Aslib Proceedings, Vol.48, No.7/8, Pp:183–192.
- Ford, N., Miller, D., & Mosa, N. (2001). The role of individual differences in Internet searching: An empirical study. *Journal of the American Society for Information Science and Technology*, Vol.2, No. 12, Pp: 1049-1066.
- Fortson, Beverly L, Scotti, Joseph R, Chen, Yi-chuen, Malone, Judith, ben, Kevin S Del. (2007). Internet Use, Abuse, and Dependence among Students at a



Southeastern Regional University *Journal of American Collage Health*.Vol.56, No. 2, Pp: 137-44.

- Foster, S. (2003). Australian undergraduate Internet usage: Self-taught, self-directed, and self-limiting? *Education and Information Technologies*, Vol.5, No. 3, Pp: 165-175.
- Frangos, C. C., Frangos, C. C., & Kiohos, A. P. (2010). Internet addiction among Greek university students: Demographic associations with the phenomenon, using the Greek version of Youngs Internet addiction test. *International Journal of Economic Sciences and Applied Research*, Vol.3, No. 1, Pp: 49–74.
- Galuszka, P. (2007). Digging out of the digital divide. *Diverse Issues in Higher Education*, Vol. 24, No. 2, Pp: 21.
- Garbarino, E., & Strahilevitz, M. (2004). Gender differences in the perceived risk of buying online and efforts of receiving a site recommendation. *Journal of Business Research, Vol.*57, Pp: 768-775.
- Garrison, R. and Anderson, T. (2000) 'Transforming and enhancing university teaching: stronger and weaker technological influences, in T. Evans and D. Nation (Eds.) Changing University Teaching: *Reflections on creating educational technologies*, (London, Kogan Page).
- Gates, B. (2000). Shaping the Internet Age (Electronic Version). *Internet Policy Institute*. Available online at: http://www.microsoft.com/presspass/exec/billg/writing/shapingtheInternet.ms px.
- Gattiker, U., Perlusz, S., & Bohmann, K. (2000). Using the Internet for B2B activities: a review and future directions for research. *Internet Research: Electronic Networking Applications and Policy*, Vol. 10, Pp: 126-140.
- Ge, X. (2010). Information-Seeking Behaviour in the Digital Age: A Multi-disciplinary Study of Academic Researchers. *College & Research Libraries*, Vol.71, No. 5.
- Gee, James Paul. (2010). Publication: New Digital Media and Learning As an Emerging Area and Worked Examples As One Way Forward The John D. and Catherine T. Macarthur Foundation Reports on Digital Media and Learning.
- Genoni P, et al., (2006). Scholarly Communities, E Research Literacy and the Academic Libraries. *The Electronic Library*, Vol.24, No. 6, Pp: 734-746. Available online at: http:// www.emeraldinsight.com.
- Ghassemzadeh, L., Shahraray, M., & Moradi, A. (2008). Prevalence of Internet Addiction and Comparison of Internet Addicts and Non-Addicts in Iranian High Schools. *Cyberpsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 11, Pp: 731-733.
- Gibson, M. R., & Mazur, J. (2001). It's funner now! Where online guidance stops and mentoring starts: Fifth graders' perceptions of doing research with the



research buddy. In R. Branch & M. A. Fitzgerald (Eds.), *Educational Media* and *Technology Yearbook* Vol. 6, Pp: 93-114).

- Gillies, J. & Cailliau, R. (2000). How the web was born. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.
- Giovannetti, E., Kagami, M. & Tsuji, M. (2003). Introduction. In Giovanneti E., Kagami M. & Tsuji M. (Eds.), *The Internet revolution: a global perspective*. New York, NY: Cambridge University press.
- Glenda GA., Sonia M.,Dwayne D.,Philmore A. and Peter G. A.(2006). Perceptions of information and communication technology among undergraduate management students in Barbados. *International Journal of Education and Development using ICT*, Vol. 2, No. 4. Aviable online at: http://ijedict.dec.uwi.edu//viewarticle.php?id=223&layout=html
- Glenn, A. (2001). A Comparison of Distance Learning and Traditional Learning Environments. Faculty of the Graduate School of Texas A&M University, Unpublished Dissertation, Texas.
- Godfrey, C. (2001). Computers in school: changing technologies. *Australian Educational Computing*, Vol. 16, No. 2, Pp: 14-17.
- Goggin, G., & Griff, C. (2001). Regulating for content on the Internet: meeting, cultural and social objectives for broadband. *Media International Australia incorporating Culture and Policy*, Vol.101, Pp: 19-32.
- Goldenberg, Jacob, & Oreg, Shaul. (2007). Laggards in disguise: Resistance to adopt and the leapfrogging effect. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, Vol. 74, No. 8, Pp: 1272-1281.
- Gordon, C., Juang, L., and Syed, M. (2007). Internet use and well-being among college students: Beyond frequency of use. *Journal of College Student Development*, Vol. 48, No. 6, Pp: 674–688.
- Goyal, Ela; Purohit, Seema; Bhaga, Manju (2011). Study of satisfaction and usability of the Internet on student's performance International. *Journal of education and Development using information and communication Technology*, Vol. 7, No. 1, Pp: 110-119.
- Grant, B. (2012). On Non-users and Ex-users of Internet. University of Oxford for the Oxford Internet Institute.
- Greenfield (1999a) Psychological characteristics of compulsive Internet use: a preliminary analysis. *Cyber Psychology and behaviour*, Vol. 2, No.5, Pp: 403-412.
- Greenfield, David N. (1999b). The Nature of Internet Addiction: Psychological Factors in Compulsive Internet Use. Paper Presentation at 1999, American Psychological Association Convention.



- Gross, E. F. (2004). Adolescent Internet use: What we expect, what teens report? *Applied Developmental Psychology*, Vol.25, Pp: 633–649.
- GVU (1997b, 1998b) GVU_s www User Survey, Available online at: http://www.cc.gatech.edu/gvu/ user_surveys/survey-1998-10/.
- Haddon, L. (2004). Information and communication technologies in everyday life. Oxford: Berg Publishers.
- Hadley, M., & Sheingold, K. (1993). Commonalties and distinctive patterns in teachers integration of computers. *American Journal of Education*, Vol.101, Pp: 261-315.
- Hadley, M., & Sheingold, K. (1993). Commonalties and distinctive patterns in teachers integration of Hannan, A. Innovating in higher education: contexts for change in learning technology. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol. 36, No. 6, Pp: 975-985.
- Hanaver, D., Dible, T., Fortin, J., & Col, N.F. (2004). Internet use among community college students: Implications in designing health care interventions. *Journal* of American College Health, Vol. 52, No.5 Pp: 197-202.
- Haoffman, D. L., Novak, Thomas, & Schlesser, Ann (2000).JCMC, Vol.55, No.3 Available online at: http://www.acsuse.org/jcmc/vol5/issue3/hoffman.htmlS.
- Hargittai, E. & Shafer, S.M. (2006). Differences in actual and perceived online skills: The role of gender. *Social Science Quarterly, Vol.* 87, No.2, Pp: 432-448.
- Hargittai, E. (2007). Whose space? Differences among users and non-users of social network sites. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication*, Vol.13, No.1, article14. Available online at:

http://jcmc.indiana.edu/vol13/issue1/hargittai.html

- Hargittai, E., and Hinnant, A. (2008): Digital inequality: Differences in young adults" use of the Internet. In: *Communication Research*, Vol.35, and No. 5, Pp: 602-621.
- Harold, R., & von Eye, A. (2008). Race, gender, and information technology use: The new digital divide. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.11, No. 4, Pp: 437-443.
- Harris Interactive. (2004). College women close technology gender gap. Available online at: http://www.harrisinteractive.com/ news/allnewsbydate.asp? NewsID=773
- Harris-Bowlsbey, J. and Sampson, J. P. (2005). Use of Technology in Delivering Career Services Worldwide. *The Career Development Quarterly*, Vol. 54, No. 1, Pp: 48-56.
- Hart, C. (1998). Doing a literature review: Releasing the social science research imagination. London, Sage.



- Hassania, S. (2006). 'Locating Digital Divides at Homework, and Everywhere Else, Poetics, Vol. 34, No. 4–5 Pp: 250–72.
- Hatice Odaci (2011). Academic self-efficacy and academic procrastination as predictors of problematic Internet use in university students. *Computers & Education*. Vol. 57, No. 1, Pp: 1109-1113.
- Hatice Odaci (2013). Risk-taking behaviour and academic self-efficacy as variables accounting for problematic Internet use in adolescent university students. *Journal of Children and youth Services Review*, Vol. 35, No.1, Pp: 183–187.
- Hatice Odaci (2013). Who is problematic Internet users? An investigation of the correlations between problematic Internet use and shyness, loneliness, narcissism, aggression and self-perception. *Journal of Computer in Human behaviour*, Vol. 29, No. 6, Pp: 2382-2387.
- Hatice Odaci and MelekKalkan (2010). Problematic Internet use, loneliness and dating anxiety among young adult university students. *Journal of Computers and education*, Vol. 55, No. 3, Pp: 1091-1097.
- Havick, J. (2000). The impacts of Internet on a television- based society. *Technology in Society*, Vol.22: Pp: 273–287.
- Haythronthwaite, C., & Wellman, B. (2002). The Internet in everyday life. In B.Wellman, & C. Haythronthwaite (Eds.), *The Internet in everyday life*, Pp:3-44. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Head, A. J. & Eisenberg, M. B. (2009). Lessons learned: How college students seek information in the digital age. Available online at: http://projectinfolit.org
- Heimrath, R., & Goulding, A. (2001). Internet perception and use: a gender perspective, *Program*, Vol. 35, No. 2, Pp: 119-134.
- Heinstrom, J. (2005). 'Fast surfing, broad scanning and deep diving: the influence of personality and study approach on students' information-seeking behaviour. *Journal of Documentation*, Vol 61, No. 2 Pp: 228–247.
- Hendel, D. D., & Harrold, R. D. (2004). Undergraduate student leisure interests over three decades. *College Student Journal*, Vol. 38, No.4, Pp: 557-568.
- Henning, E, Van Rensburg, W & Smit, B. (2004). Finding your way in Qualitative Research. Van Schaik: Pretoria.
- Hepp, K. P., Hinostroza, S.E., Laval, M.E., Rehbein, L. F. (2004). Technology in Schools: Education, *ICT and the Knowledge Society*, [Internet] OECD. Available online at:

 $www.worldbank.org/education/pdf/ICT_report_oct04a.pdf$

- Hicks J.L. (2002). Distance education in rural public schools. *USDLA journal*, Vol.16, No.3. Available online at: http://www.firstsearch.org.
- Hinson, R & Amidu, M. (2005). Internet adoption among final year students in Ghana's oldest business school. *Library Review*, Vol. 55, No. 5 Pp: 314–323.



Hitlin, P., & Rainie, L. (2005). Teens, technology, and school. Data Memo. Washington, DC: Pew Internet & American Life Project, August 2005. Available online at:

http://www.pewInternet.org/~/media//Files/Reports/2005/PIP_Internet_and_s chools_05.pdf.

- Hoffman, D. L., Novak, T. P., & Venkatesh, A. (2004). Has the Internet become indispensable? *Communications of the ACM*, Vol.47, Pp: 37 42.
- Hoffman, D. L., Novak, T., & Schlosser, A. (2000). The evolution of the digital divide: How gaps in Internet access may impact electronic commerce. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication*, Vol. 55, No.3. Available online at:http://jcmc.indiana.edu/vol5/issue3/hoffman.html
- Holcomb, L. B. Castek, J. M. & Johnson, P. R. (2007). Unlocking the Potential of K-12 Classroom Websites to Enhance Learning. *New England Reading Association Journal*; Vol. 43, No.1, Pp: 36-43.
- Holloway I. (2005) Qualitative writing. In: Holloway I. (Ed.) Qualitative Research in Health Care, Pp. 288–304. Maidenhead, Open University Press.
- Holtz, S. (2002). Public relations on the net. New York, NY: Amacom.
- Homan, D. L., Kalsbeek, W. D., and Novak, T. P. (1996). Internet and Web use in the U.S. *Communications of the ACM*, Vol. 39, No.12, and Pp: 36–46.
- Hon Keung Yau and Alison Lai Fong Cheng (2012). Gender Difference of Confidence in Using Technology for Learning. *The Journal of Technology Studies*, Vol. 38, No. Available online at: jots@bgsu.edu
- Hooley, T., Hutchinson, J. and Watts, A. G. (2010). Careering Through the Web: The potential of Web 2.0 and 3.0 Technologies for Career Development and Career Support Services. London: UKCES.
- Horrigan J., 2009, « Home Broadband Adoption (2009). Pew Internet Research & American Life Project. Available online at: http://www.pewInternet.org/Reports/2009/10-Home-Broadband-%20Adoption-2009.aspx.%20Consult%C3%A9%20le%2009/12/09
- Horzum, Mehmet Baris (2012). The Effect of Web Based Instruction on Students' Web Pedagogical Content Knowledge, Course Achievement and General Course Satisfaction. *Faculty of Education Journal*, Vol. 41, No. 1, Pp: 25-40.
- Houtz, L. E., & Gupta, U. G. (2001). Nebraska high school students computer skills and attitudes. *Journal of Research on Computing in Education*, Vol.33 No. 3, Pp: 316-326.
- Howard PEN, Rainie L, Jones S. (2001). Days and nights on the Internet. Am. Behav. Sci.Vol. 45 Pp: 383-404.
- Howe, D. (2007). *The Free On-Line Dictionary of Computing*. Available online at: http://fodoc.org/



- Hsinyi Penga, Chin-Chung Tsaia & Ying-Tien Wua (2006). University students' selfefficacy and their attitudes toward the Internet: the role of students' perceptions of the Internet. *Journal of Educational Studies*, Vol. 32, No.1, Pp: 73-86
- Hupfer, M.E. & Detlor, B. (2006). Gender and Web information seeking: A self-concept orientation model. *Journal of the American Society for Information Science* and Technology, Vol. 57, No. 8 Pp: 1105-1115.
- HuseyinBioen and Nadire Cavus (2011). Social network sites usage habits of undergraduate students: case study of Facebook.*Procedia-Socialand Behavioural Sciences*, Vol. 28, Pp: 943-947.
- I. C. Mbaeze, Elochukwu Ukwandu and Choima Anudu (2010). The Influence of Information and Communication Technologies on Students Academic Performance. *Journal of Information Technology Impact*, Vol. 10, No. 3, Pp: 129-136.
- Ibegwam A (2004). Internet access and usage by students of the College of Medicine, University of Lagos. *The Information Technologist*, Vol. 1 No.1&2 Pp: 81-87.
- Ibegwam, A. (2004). Internet access and usage by students of the College of Medicine, University of India Department of Information Technology, Community Information Centres: Jammu and Kashmir (2008). Available online at: http://www.mit.gov.in/default.aspx?id=33.
- Ibia E. Ibia, Mrs. Imoh B. Ekott. (2013). Internet Usage and the Development of Social Skills among Youths in Akwa Ibom State, Nigeria. Sociology and Anthropology, Vol. 1, No.2 Pp: 65-71.
- Ibrahim Yasar Kazua and Mehmet Demirkolb (2014). Effect of blended learning environment model on high school students academic achievement. *The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol. 13, No. 1.
- Idu E.U. (1988). Development and Preliminary Validation of an Instrument for Measuring Attitudes towards Mathematics of Senior Secondary School.An Unpublished Ph.D Thesis of University of Ado-Ekiti.
- Ilknur Yıldız & Ferda Yıldırım (2012). The relation between problematic Internet use and healthy lifestyle behaviours in high school students. *Advances in School Mental Health Promotion*, Vol. 5, No. 2, Pp: 93-104.
- Ilo, P. I. and Ifijeh, G.I. (2010). Impact of the Internet on Final Year Students' Research: A Case Study of Covenant University, Ota, Nigeria. *Library Philosophy and Practice* (*ejournal*). Paper 403. Available online at: http://digitalcommons.unl.edu/libphilprac/403
- Information technology encyclopaedia (2001). Available online at: www.encyclopedia.com/topic/information_technology.aspx



- International Conference on Asian Academy of Applied Business Conference, Sabah, Malaysia, July 10-12.
- Internet use: Race, gender and digital divides. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication*, Vol.14, No.2, Pp: 244-264.
- Internet World Stats (2006), Internet usage and world population statistics. Available online at: www.Internetworldstats.com/stats.htm

Internet World Stats (2010b). India: Internet usage stats and telecommunications market report. Available online at: http://www.Internetworldstats.com/asia/in.htm

http://www.internetworldstats.com/asia/m.ittm

Internet World Stats, (2010). The Internet big picture world Internet users and population stats, Available online at:

http://www.Internetworldstats.com/stats.htm

- Internet World Stats. (2010a). Internet Usage in Asia: Internet users & population statistics for 35 countries and regions in Asia. Available online at: http://www.Internetworldstats.com/stats3.htm
- Internet World Stats. (2010b). Internet Usage Statistics: The Internet big picture: *World Internet users and population stats*, Available at: http://www.Internetworldstats.com/stats.htm
- Internet World Stats. (2011a). Internet Usage in Asia: Internet users & population statistics for 35 countries and regions in Asia, Available online at: http://www.Internetworldstats.com/stats3.htm
- Internet World Stats. (2011b). Internet Usage Statistics: The Internet big picture: World Internet users and population stats. Available online at: http://www.Internetworldstats.com/stats.htm
- Isman, A., & Dabaj, F. (2004). Attitudes of students towards Internet. *Turkish Online Journal of Distance Education-TOJDE*, Vol.5, No. 4.
- Israel, B. (2000). Understanding the Web: Social, political, and economic dimensions of the Internet. *Journalism and Mass Communication Quarterly*, Vol. 77, Pp: 931-933.
- Itamar Gati, Tali Kleiman, Noa Saka, Alon Zakai (2003). Perceived benefits of using an Internet-based interactive carrer planning system. *Journal of Vocational Behaviour*, Vol. 62, No. 2, Pp: 272-286.
- J. Katz and P. Aspden (1997). Motivations for and Barriers to Internet Usage: Results of a national public opinion survey, Internet Research-Electronic Networking Applications and Policy, Vol. 7, No.3, Pp: 170.
- J., Lee, J-K., Atallah, M., Blanton, M., (2009). Internet Addiction: Metasynthesis of 1996-2006. Quantitative Research, *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 12, Pp: 203-207.



- Jackson LA, von Eye A, Biocca FA, et al. (2006). Childrens home Internet use: predictors and psychological, social and academic consequences. In Kraut R, Brynin M, Kiesler S, eds. Computers, phones and the Internet: domesticating information technology. New York: Oxford University Press, pp.145–67.
- Jackson, L. A., Ervin, K. S., Gardner, P. D., & Schmitt, N. (2001). Gender and the Internet: Women communicating and men searching. *Sex Roles*, Vol. 44, Pp: 363–379.
- Jackson, L. A., von Eye, A., Biocca, F. A., Barbatsis, G., Zhao, Y., and Fitzgerald, H. E. (2006). Does home Internet use influence the academic performance of lowincome children? *Developmental Psychology*, Vol.42, No.3, Pp: 429–435.
- Jackson, L., Zhao, Y., Kolenic, I. A., Fitzgerald, H. E., Harold, R., & Von Eye, A. (2008). Race, gender, and information technology use: The new digital divide. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 11, No.4, Pp: 437-442.
- Jackson, L.A., Ervin, K.S., Gardner, P.D., & Schmitt, N. (2001). Gender and the Internet: women communicating and men searching. Sex Roles, Vol.44, No.5/6, Pp: 363–379.
- Jackson, L.A., Eye, A.V., Biocca, F.A., Barbatsis, G., Zhao, Y. and Fitzgerald, H.E. (2006). Does home Internet use influence the academic performance lowincome children? *Development Psychology*, Vol. 42, No.3, Pp: 1-7.
- Jackson, L.A., Von Eye, A., Biocca, F. A., Barbatsis, G., Zhao, Y., & Fitzgerald, H. (2006). Does home Internet use influence the academic performance of low income children? *Developmental Psychology*, Vol.42, Pp: 429-435.
- Jackson, L.A., von Eye, A., Biocca, F. A., Barbatsis, G., Zhao, Y., & Fitzgerald, H. (2006). Does home Internet use influence the academic performance of low income children? *Developmental Psychology*, Vol.42, Pp: 429-435.
- Jagboro K.O. (2003), A Case study of Internet usage in Nigerian universities: a case study of Obafemi Awolowo University, ile-ife Nigeria. Available online at: http://www.firstmonday.org/issues8_2/
- Jalalinejad Razieh, Ghasempoor, Ali, Ajdari, Zaman and Sadeghigooghari, Narjesskhatoon (2012). The Relationship between Internet Addiction and Anxity in the Universities Students. *Interdisiplinary Journal of Contemporary Research in Business*, Vol 4, No. 1.
- Janet, W. S. & Ann L. D. (2002). Bringing the Internet to the school: Lessons from an Urban District. John Wiley & sons inc.
- Jennings, N., & Wartella, E. (2004). Technology and the family. In A. L. Vangelisti (Ed.), Handbook of Family Communication (Pp. 593-608). Mahwah, NJ: Erlbaum.
- Jennings, S. E., And Onwuegbuzie, A. J. (2001). Computer Attitudes as a Function of Age, Gender, Math Attitude, and Developmental Status. *Journal of Educational Computing Research, Vol.25, No.* 4, Pp: 367-384.

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



- Jeong TG (2005). The Effects of Internet Addiction and Self Control on Achievement of Elementary School Children). *Korean J. Yeolin Educ*. Vol.13, No.1 Pp: 143-163.
- Jhurreev, V. (2005) "Technology Integration in Education in Developing Countries: Guidelines to Policy Makers". International Education *Journal Electronic*, Vol.6, No.4 Pp: 467- 483. Available online at: http://ehlt.flinders.edu.au/education/iej/articles/v6n4/jhurree/paper.pdf
- John P. Robinson & Steven P. Martin (2009) Social attitude differences between Internet users and non-users. *Journal of Information, Communication & Society*, Vol. 12, No.4, Pp: 508-524.
- John P. Robinson & Steven P. Martin (2011). Social attitude Differences between Internet Users and Non-Users. *Information, Communication & Society*, Vol. 12, No. 4, Pp: 508-524.
- Johnson, B & Christensen, L. (2004).Educational research: Qualitative, quantitative and mixed method approaches. *Boston, MA*: Pearson.
- Johnson, G. (2006). A Theoretical Framework for Organizing the Effect of the Internet on Cognitive Development. In E. Pearson & P. Bohman (Eds.), Proceedings of World Conference on Educational Multimedia, Hypermedia and Telecommunications, (Pp: 3041-3048).
- Joiner R, Gavin J, Duffield J., et al. (2005). Gender, Internet identification, and Internet anxiety: correlates of Internet use. *Cyberpsychology Behaviour*, Vol. 8, Pp: 371–378.
- Joiner, R., Gavin, J., Brosnan, M., Crook, C., Duffield, J., Durndell, A., Guiller, J., Maras, P. & Scott, A. (2006). 'Internet Identification and Future Internet Use, *Cyber psychology and Behaviour*, Vol. 9, No. 4, Pp: 410–14.
- Joiner, R., Gavin, J., Duffield, J., Brosnan, M., Crook, C., Durndell, A., et al. (2005). Gender, Internet identification, and Internet anxiety: Correlates of Internet use. *Cyberpsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.8, Pp: 371–378.
- Joiner, R., J. Gavin, J. Duffield, M. Brosnan, C. Crook, A. Durndell, P. Maras, J. Miller, A. J. Scott, and P. Lovatt. (2005). Gender, Internet identification, and Internet anxiety: correlates of Internet use. *Cyberpsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 8, No.4 Pp: 371-378.
- Joiner, R., M. Brosnan, J. Duffield, J. Gavin and P. Maras. (2007). The relationship between Internet identification, Internet anxiety and Internet use. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, 23: 1408–1420.
- Jomon Aliyas Paul, hope M .Baker, Justin Daniel Cochran, (2012). Effect of online social networking on student academic performance. *Journal of computer in Human bahiviour*, Vol. 28, No.6, Pp: 2117-2127.



- Jonassen, D.H., Peck, K.L., & Wilson, B.G. (1999). Learning with technology: *a constructivist perspective*. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Merrill.
- Jones, N., & Peachey, P. (2005). The development of socialization in an on-line learning environment. *The Journal of Interactive Online Learning*, Vol. 3, No. 3.
- Jones, S. (2002). The Internet goes to college: How students are living in the future with todays technology. Technical report, *Pew Internet & American Life Project*.
- Jones, S., & Madden, M. (2002). The Internet goes to college: How students are living in the future with todays technology.
- Jones, S., Johnson-Yale, C., Millermaier, S., & Pérez, F. S. (2009). U.S. college students'Internet use: Race, gender and digital divides. *Journal of Computer-MediatedCommunication*, Vol.14, No.2, Pp: 244-264.
- Jong Yeon Kim (2012). The Nonlinear Association between Internet Using Time for Non-Educational Purposes and Adolescent Health. *Journal of Prev Med Public Health.* Vol.45, No.1Pp: 37–46.
- Ju, Sun (2009). Chinese College Student Internet use and its Impact on their Health and Life. Computational intelligence and Software Engineering, *CiSE*. International Conference. (Wuhan) Pp: 1-3.
- Jupiter Communications (2000b). Targeting teens is a gender game: Focus on marketing to girls and programming to boys. Available online at: http://www.eglobal. es/016/016_jupiter_focus.pdf
- K.G. Sudhier, Seethalekshmi, K P. (2011). Use of E-resources by the Students and Researchers of Faculty of Arts, University of Kerala International. *Journal of Information Dissemination and Technology*, Vol. 1, No. 3: Pp 127-129.
- Kaan Zulfikar Deniz, Goksu Gozen Citak (2010). The investigation of factors affecting university students attitudes towards participation in scientific research. *Procedia Social and Behavioural Sciences*, Vol. 2, Pp: 5183–5189.
- Kadijevich, D. (2000). Gender differences in computer attitude among nine-grade students. *Journal of Educational Computing Research*, Vol. 22, Pp: 145–154.
- Kakooza, T. (2002) Research: *An Introduction to research methodology*, 2nd edition, The National Adult Education Association, Kampala.
- Kamba, M.A. (2008). The changing role of researchers in Nigeria: The Internet as an alternative future to modernity. *Library Philosophy and Practice*. Available online at: http://unllib.unl.edu/LPP/kamba.htm
- Kara Chan, Wei Fang, (2007). "Use of the Internet and traditional media among young people", Young Consumers: *Insight and Ideas for Responsible Marketers*, Vol. 8, No. 4, Pp.244 256.



- Karl Peltzer, Supa Pengpid, Tawatchai Apidechkul (2013). Heavy Internet use and its associations with health risk and health-promoting behaviours among Thai university students. *International Journal of Adolescent Medicine and Health*. Vol. 0, No.0, Pp: 1–8.
- Kashif-Ur-Rehman, Ahmed Imran Hunjra, Nadeem Safwan and Abrar Ahmad (2010) Students Attitude towards the Uses of Internet. *International Journal of Business and Management*, Vol. 5, No. 6.
- Katherine Bessièrea, Sara Kieslerb, Robert Krautc & Bonka S. Boneva (2012) Effects of Internet use and social resources on changes in depression. *Information, Communication & Society*. Vol. 11, Pp: 47-70.
- Katz, J. E., Rice, R. E., & Aspen, P. (2001). The Internet, 1995-2000. American Behavioural Scientist, Vol. 45, No.3, Pp: 405-419.
- Katz, James E. and Mark Aakhus. (2002). Perpetual contact: Mobile communication, private talk, public performance. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Kaur, A. (2005). Internet facility at GNDU: A survey, National Seminar on Academic Libraries in the Modern Era. Organized by IASLIC December 2000, Bhopal.
- Kautiainen, S., Koivusilta, L., Lintonen, T., Virtanen, S. M., & Rimpelä, A. (2005). Use of information and communication technology and prevalence of overweight and obesity among adolescents. *International Journal of Obesity*, Vol.29, No.8, Pp: 925- 933.
- Kay, R. H. (1992). Understanding gender differences in computer attitudes, *Journal of Research onComputing Education*, Vol. 25, No. 2, Pp: 159-171.
- Kaye, H. S. (2000). Computer and Internet use among people with disabilities. Technical report, Disability Statistics Center, Institute for Health and Aging, University of California, San Francisco, California.
- Kencho Tshering (2013). To Study the Internet Access and Usage Behaviour in the Kingdom of Bhutan. International Journal of Computer Science and Electronics Engineering (IJCSEE) Vol. 1, No. 2.
- Kerlinger, F. N., & Lee, H. B. (2000). Foundations of behavioural research (4th ed.). Holt, NY: Harcourt College Publishers.
- Keshtiaray. N and Akbarian. A. (2012). Internet Users Lived Experiences of Cultural (Values, Norms and Verbal Symbols) Changes in Iran Higher Education: Ethics and Philosophy topics. *The Electronic Journal Information Systems Evaluation*, Vol. 15, No. 3, Pp: 269-275, available online at: www.ejise.com
- Khan, Shakeel Ahmad; Khan, Aqeel Ahmad; & Bhatti, Rubina. (2011). Internet access, use and gratification among university students: A case Study of the Islamia University of Bahawalpur, Pakistan. Chinese Librarianship: an *International Electronic Journal*, available online at: http://www.iclc.us/cliej/cl31KKB.pdf



- Khare, Shashi Kant, Thapa, Neelam & Sahoo, K.C. (2007). Internet as a source of information: A survey of Ph.D scholars. Annals of Library and Information Studies, Vol.54, Pp: 201-206.
- Kim JH, Lau CH, Cheuk KK, Kan P, and Hui HL, Griffths SM (2009). Brief report: Predictors of heavy Internet use and associations with health-promoting and health risk behaviours among Hong Kong university students. *Journal of Adolescence*, Vol. 33, No.1, Pp: 215-20.
- Kim, Soohyun, (2011). Effects of Internet Use on Academic Achievement and Behavioural Adjustment among South Korean Adolescents: Mediating and Moderating Roles of Parental Factors" *Child and Family Studies* -Dissertations. Paper 62.
- King Storm, A., (1996). Internet addiction is the Internet addictive, or are addicts using the Internet. Available online at: http:// www.webpages.charter.net/stormking/iad.html
- King, L. (2007). Information literacy of incoming undergraduate Arts students at the University of the Western Cape: assessment of competencies and proficiencies is thesis submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Philosophize Doctor in the Department of Library and Information Science, University of the Western Cape.
- Kode, S., & Kode, A. (2003). Free online serials in the area of library and Information Science. Annals of library and Information Studies, Vol. 50, No. 4 Pp: 146 -152. Available online at: http://www.niscair.res.in/
- Korgen, K., Odell, P., and Schumacher, P. (2001). Internet use among college students: Are there differences by race/ethnicity? *Electronic Journal of Sociology*.
- Kothari (2010). *Quantitative Techniques*, (3rd Edition)[,] Vikash Publishing House Pvt. Ltd. New Delhi.
- Kozma, R.B. (1994). Will media influence learning? Reframing the debate. *Education technology research and development*, Vol. 42, No. 2, Pp: 7-19.
- Krant R., Patterson M., Lundmark V., Kiesler S., Mukophadiyay, T., Scherlis W. (1998). Internet paradox: A social technology that reduces social and psychological well-being? *Am. Psychologist*, Vol.53, No.9 Pp: 40, 81-86.
- Kraut, R., Kiesler, S., Boneva, B., Cummings, J., Helgeson, V., & Crawford, A. (2002). Internet paradox revisited. *Journal of Social Issues*, Vol. 58, No.1, Pp: 49-74.
- Kraut, R., Patterson, M., Lundmark, V., Kiesler, S., Mukopadhyay, T., & Scherlis, W. (1998). Internet paradox. A social technology that reduces social involvement and psychological well-being? *American Psychologist*, Vol.53, No.9, Pp: 1017–1031.
- Kroker, A., & Weinstein, M. A. (1994). *Data trash: The theory of the virtual class*. New York: St. Martin's Press.



- Krole, E. (1994) The Whole Internet: Users Guide Catalog (2nd ed) Sebastopol, CA: Reilly.
- Kubey, R., Lavin, M., and Barrows, J. (2001). Internet use and collegiate academic performance decrements: Early findings. *The Journal of Communication*, Vol.51, No.2, Pp: 366–382.
- Kuh, G. D., & Hu, S. (2001). The relationships between computer and information technology use, selected learning and personal development outcomes, and other college experiences. *Journal of College Student Development*, Vol.42, Pp: 217-232.
- Kuhlen, R. (1996): Informationsmarkt: Chancen und Risiken der Kommerzialisierung von Wissen. Konstanz.
- Kuhn, P. and Skuterud, M. (2000) Job Search Methods: Internet Versus Traditional. Monthly Labour Review, Vol.3, Pp: 3-11.
- Kumar R and Kaur A (2004). Use of Internet by teachers and students in Shaheed Bhagat Singh College of Engineering & Technology: A case study. *JLIS*, Vol.29, No.1&2, Pp: 81-94.
- Kumar, R. and Kaur, A. (2006). Internet use by teachers and students in engineering colleges of Punjab, Haryana, and Himachal Pradesh States of India: An analysis. *Electronic Journal of Academic and Special Librarianship*, Vol.7, No. 1 Pp: 1-13.
- Kumar, R., & Kaur, A. (2005). Internet and its use in the Engineering College of Punjab, India: A case study. *Webology*, Vol.2, No. 4 Pp: 1-18. Available online at: http://www.webology.org/2005/v2n4/a21.html
- Kuppuswamy, S., & Narayan, P. (2010). The Impact of Social Networking Websites on the Education of Youth. *International Journal of Virtual Communities and Social Networking (IJVCSN)*, Vol.2, No.1, Pp: 67-79.
- Ladebo, O.J. (2003). Attitudes toward research and teaching at some Nigerian agricultural university institutions. *The Journal of Agricultural Education and Extension*, Vol.9, No.2, Pp: 83-91.
- LaFerle, C., Edwards, S., & Lee, W. (2000). Teens use of traditional media and the Internet. *Journal of Advertising Research*, Vol.4, No.3, Pp: 55–64.
- Lagos EJU (2003). Internet Usage Campaign. JobiVoice Publishers, Benin-City. Nigeria. New Mexico State University. Lagos. *The Information Technologist*, Vol.1, No. 1&2, Pp: 81-87.
- Lajwanti and Ashish Paliwal (2012). Effect of Internet Use on Study Habits and Adjustment of Higher Secondary Students, International. *Journal of Educational Research and Technology IJERT*: Vol. 4, No. 1Pp: 52 -59.
- Lange, Michiel de ed. 2009. From always on to always there: Locative media as Playful Technologies. New York: Peter Lang.



- Large, A. & Beheshti, J. (2000). The Web as a classroom resource: reactions from the users. *Journal of the American Society for Information Science*, Vol. 51, No. 12, Pp: 1069-1080.
- LaRose, R., Eastin, M. S., & Gregg, J. (2001). Reformulating the Internet paradox: Social cognitive explanations of Internet use and depression. *Journal of Online Behaviour*, Vol.1, No.2 no pagination specified.
- LaRose, R., Eastin, M. S., & Gregg, J. (2001a). Reformulating the Internet paradox: Social cognitive explanations of Internet use and depression. Available online at: http://www.behaviour.net/JOB/ v1n2/paradox.html
- LaRose, R., Mastro, D., & Eastin, M. S. (2001b). Understanding Internet usage: a socialcognitive approach to uses and gratifications. *Social Science Computer Review*, Vol.19, Pp: 395-413.
- LaRose, S., Ghuay, F., & Boivin, M. (2002). Attachment, social support, and loneliness in young adulthood: A test of two models. *Personality and Social Pscyhology Bulletin*, Vol.28, No.5, Pp: 684-693.
- Lauer, Janice M. and J. William Asher. Composition Research: Empirical Designs. New York: Oxford UP, 1988.Print.
- Laurillard, D. (1992). Learning through collaborative computer simulation. British *Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol. 23, No. 3, Pp: 164-171.
- Lawrence, S., & Giles, C.L. (1999). Accessibility of information on the Web. Nature, Vol.400, Pp: 107–109.
- Lazar, A. (1991). Faculty, practitioner, and student attitudes towards research. *Journal of Social Work Education*, Vol. 27, No.1, Pp: 34–40.
- Lazonder, A. W. (2000). Exploring novice users' training needs in searching information on the www. Journal of Computer Assisted Learning, Vol.16, Pp: 326-335.
- Lee DH, Kang S, Zum S. A (2005). Qualitative assessment of personal and academic stressors among Korean Collage students: an exploratory study. College Student Journal, Vol. 39, No.3, Pp: 442.
- Lee, Fion S. L., Douglas Vogel and Moez Limayem. (2003). "Virtual Community Informatics: A Review and Research Agenda." *The Journal of Information Technology Theory and Application*, Vol. 5, No.1 Pp: 47-61.
- Leflore, D. (2000). Theory supporting design guidelines for web-based education. In: B. Abbey (ed.), *Instructional and cognitive impacts of web-based instruction*. Hershey, PA: Idea Group Publishing, Pp: 102–117.
- Lehto and Marrison (2007) report that men and women use the Internet differently for different purposes.
- Leiner B. M, Cerf V. G, Clark D.D, Kahn R. E, Kleinrock L, Lynch D. C, Postel J. L. G. Roberts and S.Wolff, (2000). A brief history of Internet. Available online at: at http://www.isoc.org/Internet/history/brief.shtml.



- Leiner BM, Cert VG, Clark DD, Kahn RE, Klein rock L, Lynch DC, Postel J, Roberts LG, Wolff S (2000). *A brief history of the Internet*: Available online at: http://www.isoc.org/Internet/history/brief.shtml.
- Lemke, C., & Coughlin, E.C. (1998). Technology in American schools. Available online at: http://www.mff.org/pnbs/ME158.pdf
- Lenhart, A. Rainie, L., & Lewis, O. (2001). Teenage life online: The rise of the instantmessage generation and the Internets impact on friendships and family relationships. PEW Internet & American Life Project, Washington, D.C. Available online at: www.pewInternet.org.
- Lenhart, A., & Madden, M. (2007). Teens, Privacy & online social networks: How teens manage their online identities and personal information in the age of My Space. Washington, DC.
- Lenhart, A., Madden, M., & Hitlin, P. (2005). Pew Internet and American life project: Teens and technology. Available online at: http://www.pewInternet.org/pdfs/PIP_Teens_Tech_
- Lenhart, A., Madden, M., & Hitlin, P. (2005). Teens and technology. Washington, DC: PEW and American Life Project.
- Lenhart, A., Raine, L., & Lewis, O. (2001). Teenage Life Online: The rise of the instantmessage generation and the Internets impact on friendships and family relationships. Available online at:http://www.pewInternet.org/report_display.asp?r=36
- Leo Sang-Min Whang, Sujin Lee, and Geunyoung Chang (2003) Internet Over-Users'
- Psychological Profiles. A Behaviour Sampling Analysis on Internet Addiction. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 6, No. 2, Pp: 143-150.
- Leung, Louis (2010). Effects of Internet Connectedness and Information Literacy on Quality of Life*Social Indicators Research*, Vol.98, No. 2, Pp: 273-290.
- Levin H. (2003). Making history come alive. *Learn. Lead.Technol.*, Vol.31, No.3, Pp: 22-27.
- Levin, J., Burbules, N., & Bruce, B. (2005). From student work to exemplary educational resources: The case of the CTER white papers. *E-Learning*, Vol. 2, No.1, Pp: 39–49. Available online at: https://www.ideals.illinois.edu/bitstream/handle/2142/16662/CTER_white_p apers.pdf?sequence=2.
- Lewis, B., Williams D., Neighbours, C., Jakicic, J., Bess H. Marcus, B. (2009). Cost analysis of Internet vs. print interventions for physical activity promotion, *Psychology of Sport and Exercise*, in press.
- Li. L. K. Y. (2012). A Study of the Attitude, Self-efficacy, effort and Academic Achievement of CityU Students towards research Methods and Statistics. SS Student E-Journal. Vol. 1, Pp: 154-183.



- Liang, G., & Wei, B. (2002). Internet use and social life/attitudes in urban mainland China. *IT & Society*, Vol. 1, No.1, Pp: 238-241.
- Liaw, S.-S. (2002). An Internet survey for perceptions of computers and the World Wide Web: relationship, prediction, and difference. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.18: Pp: 17–35.
- Liccardi, I., Ounnas, A., Pau, R., Massey, E., Kinnunen, P., Lewthwaite, S., Midy, A., & Sakar, C. (2007). The role of social networks in students learning experiences. *ACM SIGCSE Bull*, Vol. 39, No.4, Pp: 224-237.
- Ligang Wang, Jing Luo, Wenbin Gao, Jie Kong, (2012). The effect of Internet use on adolescents' lifestyles: A national survey. *Journal of Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 28, No. 6, Pp: 2007-2013.
- Limpach, A. L., Bazrafshan, P., Turner, P. D., & Monaghan, M. S. (2008). Effectiveness of Human Anatomy Education for Pharmacy Students via the Internet. *American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education*, 72.
- Lin CH, Yu SF. (2008) Adolescent Internet usage in Taiwan: exploring gender differences. *Journal of Adolescence. Summer*; Vol. 43, No.170 Pp:317-31.
- Lin, M. P., Ko, H. C., & Wu, J. Y. W. (2008). The role of positive/negative outcome expectancy and refusal self-efficacy of Internet use on Internet addiction among college students in Taiwan. *Cyberpsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.11, Pp: 451-457.
- Linda A. Jackson, Alexander von Eye, Edward A. Witt, Yong Zhao and Hiram E. Fitzgerald (2011) A longitudinal study of the effects of Internet use and videogame playing on academic performance and the roles of gender, race and income in these relationships. *Journal of Computers in Human Behaviour.* Vol. 27, No. 1, Pp: 228-239.
- Linda A. Jackson, Alexander von Eye, Frank A. Biocca, Gretchen Barbatsis, Yong Zhao, and Hiram E. Fitzgerald (2006). Does Home Internet Use Influence the Academic Performance of Low-Income Children? *Developmental Psychology* 2006, Vol. 42, No. 3, 429–435 .Michigan State University.
- Lindsay, R., Breen, R. & Jenkins, A. (2010). Academic Research and Teaching Quality: The views of undergraduate and postgraduate students, *Studies in Higher Education*, Vol.27, No.3, Pp: 309-327.
- Liu, M., Hsieh, P., Cho, Y., 7 Schallert, D. (2006). Middle school students, self-efficacy, attitudes and achievement in a computer-enhanced problem-based learning environment. *Journal of Interative Learning Research*, Vol.17, No.3, Pp: 225-242.
- Li-Yueh Chen, Bo Hsiao, Ching-Chin Chern, Houn-Gee Chen (2014). Affective mechanisms linking Internet use to learning performance in high school



students: A moderate mediation study. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol .35, Pp: 431-443.

- Lloyd, Jan, Laura Dean, and Diane Cooper. (2007). Students Technology Use and Its Effects on Peer Relationships, *Academic Involvement, and Healthy Lifestyles*. *NASPA*, Vol. 44 Pp: 481-491.
- Loan, F.A. (2011). Gender Variability in Internet Use of the College Students. *Journal of Society in Kashmir,* Vol. 1 Pp: 156-164.
- Loan, Fayaz Ahmad (2011). Internet use by the college students across disciplines: A study. *Annals of Library and Information studies*, Vol. 58 Pp: 118-27.
- Long, H. B. (2003). Preparing e-learners for self-directed learning. In G. M. Piskurich (Ed.), *Preparing learnersmfor e-learning. San Francisco*, CA: Pfeiffer.
- Longley, PA, Webber, R, & Li, C. (2006). The UK geography of the e-society: A national classification *Centre for Advanced Spatial Awareness (UCL)*, London, UK: University College London.
- Lopper, J. (2006). What is attitude? Available online at: http://suite101.com/article/what-isattitude-- a5575.
- Lorenzen, M. (2001). The land of confusion? High school students and their use of the World Wide Web for research. *Research Strategies*, Vol.18, No.2, Pp: 151-63.
- Louis Leung (2009) Effects of Internet Connectedness and Information Literacy on Quality of Life. *Springer Science Business Media* B.V.
- Luambano, I & Nawe, J. 2004. Internet use by students of the University of Dar-es-Salaam. *Library High Tech News*, Vol. 10 Pp: 13–17.
- Lubans J. (1998, April). How first-year university students use and regard Internet resources. Available from Duke University Libraries Web site: Available online at: www.lib.duke.edu/staff/orgzntn/lubans/docs/1styear/firs
- Lubans, J. (1999). Key findings on Internet use among students. Available online at: http://www.lubans.org/docs/ key/key.html.
- Lubans, John (2000). Summary of graduate students view points about the effect of the Internet on students work. Available online at: http://www.indians.org/study5a.html
- Lui, I. (1997). Internet has many benefits. Available online at: http://iml.jou.ufl.edu/projects/Students/Lui/index3.htm
- M. (2013). Comparison of Mental Health and Aggression in Two Groups of Student's Using and not Using Internet. *Journal of Life Science. Biomed.* Vol. 3, No. 6 Pp: 409-413.
- M. Betül Yilmaz and Feza Orhan (2010). The use of Internet by high school students for educational purposes in respect to their learning approaches. *Procedia Social* and Behavioural Sciences, Vol. 2, Pp: 2143–2150.



- M.E.Mitchell; J.R.Lebow; R.Uribe; H.Grathouse and W.Shoger (2011). Internet use, happiness, social support and introversion: A more fine grained analysis of person variables and Internet activity. *Journal of Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 27, No. 5, Pp: 1857-1861.
- Madell, D. and S. Muncer. (2004). Gender differences in the use of the Internet by English secondary school children. *Social Psychology of Education*, Vol.7: Pp: 229-251.
- Madell, D., & Muncer, S. (2006). Back from the Beach but Hanging on the Telephone? English Students Attitudes and Experiences of Mobile Phones and the Internet. *CyberPsychology and Behaviour*, Vol.7, No. 3, Pp: 359-367.
- Madell, Dominic & Muncer, Steven (2004). Gender differences in the use of the Internet by English secondary school children. *Social Psychology of Education*, Vol.7, Pp: 229-251.
- Madge, C., Meek, J., Wellens, J., & Hooley, T. (2009). *Facebook*, social integration and informal learning at university: It is more for socialising and talking to friends about work than for actually doing work. *Learning, Media and Technology*, Vol.34, No.2, 141–155. Available online at: ttp://www.informaworld.com/smpp/section?content=a912648077&fulltext=7 13240928
- Madureira, A.S.; Corseuil, H.X.; Pelegrini, A.; Petroski, E.L.(2009). Association between stages of behavior change related to physical activity and nutritional status in university students. *Cad. Saude Publ.* Vol.25, Pp: 2139–2146.
- Magwa Simuforosa (2013). The impact of modern technology on the educational attainment of adolescents. *International Journal of Education and Research*, Vol. 1 No. 9.
- Mahajan, O. (2006). Internet use by researchers: A study of Punjab University, Chandigarh. *Library philosophy and Practice*. Available online at: http://unllib.unl.edu/LPP/mahajan2.htm
- Mahajan, Preeti (2006). Internet used by researchers: A study of Punjab University, Chandigarh. *Library Philosophy and practice*, Vol. 8, No. 2. Available online at: htto://www.web0ages.uidaha.edu/mbolin/mahaian2.pdf
- Maharana, Bulu, Sethi, Bipin Bihari and Behera, Subedit (2010). Use of Internet and eresources by the students of business management: A survey of P. G. students of business administration, Sambalpur University, India. *International Journal of Library and Information Science*, Vol. 2, No. 3 Pp: 45-53.
- Malhotra N. K. (1999). Marketing Research. An Applied Orientation. (3th ed.). Upper Saddle River, New Jersey, Prentice-Hall, Inc.
- Malott, L; Vishwanathan, S.P; Chellappan, S. (2013). Differences in Internet usage patterns with Stress and Anxiety among college students.e-health



Networking, Application & Services (Healthcom) IEEE 15th international Conference. (Libson) Pp: 664-668.

- Manoj Kumar Sinha, Sudip Bhattacharjee and Sucheta Bhattacharjee (2013). A Study on ICT Literacy and Internet Use Pattern among. *Current Trends in Technology and Science*, Vol: 2, No. 5, Pp: 301-316.
- Marcelle, G. (2000). Gender Justice and ICTs. Available online at: http://www.un.org/womenwatch_daw/csw/marcello.htm
- Margam, Madhusudhan (2008). Use of UGC-Infonet e-journals by research scholars and students of the University of Delhi, Delhi: A study. *Library Hi Tech*, Vol. 26, No.3 Pp: 369-86.
- Maria Anna Coniglio, Enza Sidoti, Sarina Pignato, Giuseppe Giammanco and, Marina Marranzano (2012). A pilot study of Internet usage patterns in a group of Italian university students. *IJPH*, Vol. 9, No. 2.
- Massaquoi, J.G. (2006). *Trends and advances in engineering education in Africa*. Available online at: http://world .1million paper.com
- Matei, Sorin, & Ball-Rokeach, Sandra. (2003). The Internet in the Communication Infrastructure of Urban Residential Communities: Macro- or Mesolinkage? *Journal of Communication*, Vol.53, No. (4), Pp: 642-657.
- Mathew D., Schrum L. (2003). High speed Internet use and academic gratification in the college residence.*Internet Higher Educ.*, Vol.6, No. 2, Pp: 125-144.
- Matisse Enzer glossary of Internet terms 2000–2008. Available online at: http://www.Matissenet/files/glossary.html
- Matthews, D. and Schrum, L. (2003). High-speed Internet use and academic gratifications in the college residence. *The Internet and Higher Education*, Vol. 6, No.2, Pp: 125–144.
- Mazer, J. P., Murphy, R. E., & Simonds, C. J. (2007). Ill see you on Facebook: The effects of computer-mediated teacher self-disclosure on student motivation, affective learning, and classroom climate. *Communication Education*, Vol. 56, Pp: 1–17.
- McGorry, S. Y. (2003), 'Measuring quality in online programs', *The Internet and Higher Education*, Vol 6,No.2, Pp:159-177.
- McKenna, K. Y. A., Green, A. S., & Gleason, M. E. J. (2002). Relationship formation on the Internet: What's the big attraction? *Journal of Social Issues*, Vol.58, No.1, Pp: 9-31.
- McKenna, KYA. (2002). Plan 9 from cyberspace: the implications of the Internet for personality and social psychology. *Personality and Social Psychology Review*, Vol. 4, No.1 Pp: 57–75.



- Md. Abdullah Al Mahmud (2011). Students Attitudes towards Internet: A study on Private Universities of Bangladesh. European *Journal of Business and Management*, Vol 3, No.6.
- Means, B., Olson, K., & Singh, R. (1995). Beyond the classroom: *Restructuring schools with technology*. Phi Delta Kappan, Vol .77, Pp: 69-72.
- Mehlinger, H. (1996). School reform in the information age. Phi Delta Kappan, Vol. 77, Pp: 400-407.
- Mehmet Eroğlu, Mustafa Pamuk, Kübra Pamuk A Survey of the Amount of Internet Usage among High School Students of Khafr County and its Impacts on Students Original Research Article Procedia - *Social and Behavioural Sciences*, Vol. 114, Pp: 610-616.
- Mehra, Bharat, Merkel, Cecelia, & Bishop, Ann Peterson. (2004). The Internet for empowerment of minority and marginalized users. *New Media & Society*, Vol. 6, No.6, Pp: 781-802.
- Menec, V. 2003. The relationship between everyday activities and successful aging: A 6year longitudinal study. *Journal of Gerontology: Social Sciences* Vol.58, No.2, Pp: 74-82.
- Meng-Jung Tsai, Chin-Chung Tsai (2010). Junior high school students Internet usage and self-efficacy: A re-examination of the gender gap. *Journal of Computers & Education*, Vol.54, Pp: 1182–1192.
- Meng-Jung Tsai, Chin-Chung tsai (2010). Junior high school students Internet usage and self-efficacy: A re-examination of the gender gap. *Computers & Education*, Vol. 54, No.4, Pp: 1182-1192.
- Meraz, S. (2008).Women and technology: How socialization created a gender gap. In P.
 M. Poindexter, S. Meraz & A. Schmitz-Weiss (Eds.), Women, men and news: Divided and disconnected in the news media landscape (Pp: 99–116). New York: Routledge.
- Merkle, E. (2000). Digital dating and virtual relating: Conceptualising computer mediated romantic relationships. *Family Relations*, Vol.49, Pp: 187–203.
- Mersham, G., Theunissen, P., Peart, J. (2009). The nature of public relations. In Mersham, G., Theunissen, P. & Peart, J. (Eds.), *Public relations and communication management: An Aotearoa/New Zealand perspective*, (Pp: 1-18). New Zealand: Pearson.
- Mesch, G. S. (2001). Social relationship and Internet use among adolescents in Israel. *Social Science Quarterly*, Vol. 82, Pp: 329-339.
- Metzger, M.J., Flanagin, A.J., & Zwarun, L. (2003). College student Web use, perceptions of information credibility, and verification behaviour. *Computers & Education*, Vol.41, Pp: 271–290.



- Mike Z. Yao, Zhi-jin Zhong (2014). Loneliness, Social Contacts and Internet addiction: A cross- Lagged Panel study. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 30, Pp: 64-170
- Milan Kubiatko and Katerina Vickove (2010). The relationship between ICT use and science knowledge for Czech students: A secondary analysis of PISA 2006.*International journal of science and mathematics Education*, Vol. 8, No. 3, Pp: 523-543.
- Ming-der-Wu, Shih-chuan Chen (2010). The impact of electronic resources on humanities graduate student theses, *Online Information Review*, Vol. 34 No.3, Pp: 457–472.
- Miniwatts Marketing Group. (2010). Internet world stats: Usage and population statistics. Available online at: http://www.Internetworldstats.com/stats.htm.
- Minks, K.-H. (2000). Studienmotivation und Studienbarrieren, HIS Kurzinformation Article.8, Pp: 1-12.
- Mishra O.P., Yadav N., Bisht K. (2005). Internet utilization pattern of undergraduate students. *University News*, Vol.43, No.13 Pp: 8-12.
- Misra J & Satyanarayana N R (2001). Users of Internet in a University Library: A case study. Ila Bull., Vol.37, No. 4, Pp: 132-134.
- Mitchell, J., Stanimirovic, R., Klein, B., Vella-Brodrick, D. (2009) A randomised controlled trial of a self-guided Internet intervention promoting well-being *Computers in Human Behaviour*. Vol 25, Pp: 749–760.
- Mitchell, K., Finkelhor, D., & Wolak J. (2003). The exposure of youth to unwanted sexual material on the Internet: A national survey of risk, impact, and prevention. Youth Society, Vol.34, No.3, Pp: 330-358.
- Mitra, A., Willyard, J., Platt, C., and Parsons, M. (2005). Exploring web usage and selection criteria among male and female students. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication*, Vol.10, No.3, Article 10. Available online at: http://jcmc.indiana.edu/vol10/issue3/mitra.html.
- Moeedfar, S., E. Habbibpoor, K. Getabi and A. Ganjee, (2007). Study of Internet addiction between adolescent & young 15-25 years in Tehran University. *Global Media Journal*, Vol.2, No.4, Pp: 55.
- Mohammad Nazim (2008) Information searching behaviour in the Internet age: A users study of Aligarah Muslim University. *The International Information & Library Review*, Vol. 40, No. 1, Pp: 73-81.
- Mohammed, J. & Al-Karaki, J. (2008). Integrating Internet into traditional education: A practical study of university students' usage and attitudes. *International Arab Journal of Information Technology*, Vol. 5, Pp: 241- 252.



- Mohseni, M., Dowran, B., & Haghighat, M. H. S. (2008). Does the Internet make people socially isolated? A social network approach. *Bangladesh e-Journal of Sociology*, Vol. 5, No. 1, Pp: 81-93.
- Molina-García, J., Castillo, I., Pablos, C., & Queralt, A. (2009). Relation of Body Mass Index and body fat mass for Spanish university students, taking into account leisure-time physical activity. *Perceptual and Motor Skills*, Vol.108, Pp:343-348.
- Molosi, K. (2001). Making the Internet work for Africa. *Computers in Africa, Oct. Nov.*, Pp: 37-38.
- Moon, J. (2005). We seek it here. A New Perspective on the Elusive Activity of Critical Thinking: A Theoretical and Practical Approach. Bristol and Lancaster: ESCalate.
- Morahan-Martin J, Schumacher P (2000). Incidence and correlates of pathological Internet use among college students. *Computer Huuman Behaviour*, Vol. 16 Pp: 13-29.
- Morahan-Martin, J. (2005). Internet abuse: addiction? Disorder? Symptom? Alternative explanations? *Social Science Computer Review*, Vol.23, No.1, Pp: 39–48.
- Morahan–Martin, J. (2008). Internet abuse: Emerging trends and lingering questions. In
 A. Barak (Ed.), *Psychological aspects of cyberspace: Theory, research, applications* (Pp. 32–69). Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- Morahan–Martin, J., & Schumacher, P. (2000). Incidence and correlates of pathological Internet use among college students. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.16, No.1, Pp: 13–29.
- Morgan, C., & Cotten, S. R. (2003). The relationship between Internet activities and depressive symptoms in a sample of college freshmen. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.6, No.2, Pp: 133-142.
- Morrison, G. R., & Lowther, D. L. (2009). Integrating computer technology into the classroom: *Skills for the 21st century (4th ed.)*. Boston: Allyn & Bacon.
- Moschovitis, C. J. P., Polle, H., Schuyler, T., & Senft, T. M. (1999). From Sputnik to the ARPAnet: 1957-1969. In C. J. P. Moschovitis, H. Polle, T. Schuyler & T. M. Senft (Eds.), *History of the Internet: A Chronological 1843 to the present* (pp. 33-62). Calofornia: The United Sates of America: ABC-CLIO, Inc.
- Mostofa, Mamun (2011) Internet access and use among business students of a private university of Bangladesh: A survey. *Annals of Library and Information studies*, Vol.58, Pp: 79-86.
- Moursund, D. and Bielefeldt, T. (1999). Will New Teachers be prepared to teach in Digital Age? Santa Monica. *Milken Family Foundation*.
- Mouton, J. 2006. How to Succeed in Your Masters and Doctoral Studies. Pretoria: Van Schaik.


- Mugenda, O. M. and Mugenda, A.G. (2008). *Research Methods*; *Quantitative and qualitative Approaches*. Acts Press, ICRAF Complex, United Nations Avenue Nairobi.
- Muhammad Safdar, Khalid Mahmood, Saima Qutab (2013). Internet Use Behaviour and Attitude of College Students: a Survey of Leadership Colleges' Network. *Academic journal article from Library Philosophy and Practice*. Available online at: http://works.bepress.com/khalid_mahmood/6
- Muniandy, B. (2010). Academic use of Internet among students: A preliminary case study in a Malaysian University. *International Journal of Cyber Society and Education*, Vol. 3, No.2 Pp: 171–178.
- Munur Terali and, Vasfi Tugun (2011). Internet use profile of university student. *Procedia Social and Behavioural Sciences*, Vol. 15: Pp: 4068–4070.
- Murphy, C., & Beggs, J. (2003). Primary pupils and teachers use of computers at home and school. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol.34, Pp: 79-83.
- Murphy, D., Walker, R. & Webb, G. (2001). Online Learning and Teaching with Technology.London: Kogan Page.
- N. Nie, (2000). Study of social Consequences of the Internet, Stanford Institute of the Quantitative Study of Society (SIQSS),
- Nabeel Abedalaziz, Shahrir Jamaluddin, and Chin Hai Leng (2013) Measuring Attitude towards Computer and Internet Usage among Postgraduate Students in Malaysia. *The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol. 12, No. 2.
- Nachmias, R., Mioduser, D., & Shelma, A. (2000). Internet usage by students in an Israeli high school. *Journal of Educational Computing Research*, Vol. 22, and No.1, Pp: 55–73.
- Nalwa, K., & Anand, A. P. (2003). Internet Addiction in Students: A Cause of Concern. *Cyberpsychology and Behaviour*, Vol.6, No. 6, Pp: 653-656.
- Narimani M., Lak Z., Moazedian A., PurNikdast S., Rajabi S., Khoramdel K., Sabetimani
- Narimani M., Lak Z., Moazedian A., PurNikdast S., Rajabi S., Khoramdel K., Sabetimani M.(2013). Comparison of Mental Health and Aggression in Two Groups of Student's Using and not Using Internet. *Journal of Life Science. Biomed.* Vol. 3, No.6, Pp: 409-413.
- Nasir Younis (2014). Students Assessment of healthy lifestyle habits among Mosul university students International *Journal of Advancing nursing Studies*, Vol 3, No. 2.
- National Centre for Education Statistics (NCES), (2001). IPEDS college opportunities online: CUNY Bernard M Baruch College, IPED ID: 19051. Washington, DC: National Centre for Education Statistics. Available online at: http://nces.ed.gov/ipeds/cool/Enrollment.asp?



- National Public Radio, Kaiser Family Foundation and Kennedy School of Government. (2000). National survey of American adults on technology and National survey of American kids on technology. Available online at: www.kff.org.
- Nawaz, Muhammad. (2006). Mass Communication: An Introduction to Information Revolution, Theories, skills and practices. Islamabad: higher education commission.
- Nazim, Mohammad (2008). Information searching behaviour in the Internet age: A users study of Aligarh Muslim University. *The International Information and Library Review*, Vol.40, No.1 Pp: 73-81.
- Negahban, Mohammad Bagher (2010). Extent of utilization and familiarity in accessing digital technologies among post graduate and research scholars in Shiraz city. *PEARL - A Journal of Library and Information Science*, Vol.4, No. 4 Pp: 224-31.
- Neil Selwyn (2008). An investigation of differences in undergraduates academic use of the Internet. Active Learning in Higher Education. *SAGE Publications*, Vol. 9, No. 1, Pp: 11–22.
- Neil Selwyn's study (2006). Shows that socio-demographic factors such as age, gender or socio-economic background have only a limited impact on the use or non-use of ICT.
- Nenty, H. Johnson and Adedoyin, O. O. (2014). Determinants of Achievement Gap in Educational Research Course among Graduate Education Students at University of Botswana. *International Review of Social Sciences*, Vol. 2 No.3.
- Neuman, W L. (1997). Social research methods: qualitative and quantitative approaches. 3rd edition. Boston, Mass: Allyn & Bacon.
- Neuman, W. L. (2000). Social research methods: Qualitative and quantitative approaches (4th ed.). Boston: Allyn and Bacon.
- Neustadtl, A., & Robinson, J. P. (2002). Social contact differences between Internet users and nonusers in the General Social Survey. *IT & Society*, Vol.1, Pp: 73-102.
- Newman, D. (1992). Technology as support for school structure and school restructuring. *Phi Delta Kappan*, Vol. 74, Pp: 308-315.
- Ngulube, P, Shezi, M & Leach, A. (2009). Exploring network literacy among students of St Joseph's Theological Institute in South Africa. South African Journal of Libraries and Information Science, Vol. 75, No.1 Pp: 58–69.
- Nicholas, D et al. (2008a). 'Viewing and reading behaviour in a virtual environment: The full-text download and what can be read into it. *ASLIB Proceedings: New Information Perspectives*, Vol. 60, No. 3 Pp: 185-198.
- Nie NH, Erbring L. (2000). *Internet and Society: A Preliminary Report*. Stanford Inst. Quant. Study Soc., Stanford, CA.



- Nie, N. H. (2001). Sociability, interpersonal relations, and the Internet: Reconciling conflicting findings. *American Behavioural Scientist*, Vol. 45, Pp: 420-435.
- Nie, N. H., Hillygus, D. S., & Erbring, L. (2002). Internet use, interpersonal relations and sociability: Findings from a detailed time diary study. In B. Wellman & C. Haythornthwaite. *The Internet in everyday life* (Pp: 214-5-243). Malden, MA: Blackwell.
- Nie, N. H., Simpser, A., Stepanikova, I., & Zheng, L. (2005). Ten years after the birth of the Internet, how do Americans use the Internet in their daily lives? Stanford Institute for the Quantitative Study of Society. Available Online at: http://www.stanford.edu/group/siqss
- Niemz, K., M. Griffiths and P. Banyard, (2005). Prevalence of pathological Internet use among university students and correlations with self-esteem, the general health questionnaire (GHQ) and disinhibition, *Cyber Psychology and Behaviour*, Vol.8, No.6 Pp: 562-570.
- Nkomo, N. (2009). A comparative analysis of the web information seeking behaviour of students and staff at the University of Zululand and the Durban University of Technology. A dissertation submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the award of a degree of Masters of Arts in Library and Information Science from the Department of Information Studies at the University of Zululand.
- Nor Shahriza, Absdul Karim, Nurul Hidayah Ahmad and Yakinah Muhamad Nor (2009). Exploring the relationship between Internet ethics in university students and the big five model of personality. *Computer and Education*, Vol. 53, No.1, Pp: 86–93.
- Norshuhada Shiratuddin (2001). Internet Instructional Method: Effects on Students Performance. *Educational Technology & Society* Vol. 4, No. 3
- Norzaidi, M.D. and Intan Salwani, M. (2008a). Information Technology Management (IT) Models: An Introduction, University Publication Centre, Shah Alam, Selangor.
- Nwafor, F.A., et al. (2004). Exploiting the potentials of the Internet in women's empowerment. *The Nigerian Library Link*, Vol. 11, No.2.
- Nwagwu, W.E. (2006). Integrating ICTs into the globalization of the poor developing countries. *Information Development*, Vol.22, No. 3, Pp: 167-179.
- O. Michael Awoleye, W. Owolabi Siyanbola and O. Francisca Oladipo (2008). Adoption Assessment of Internet Usage Amongst Under graduates in Nigeria-A Case Study Approach. J. Technol. Manag. Vol. 3, No. 1.
- ONeil, H. F., & Perez, R. S. (2003). Technology applications in education: *A learning view*. Mahwah, N. J.: Lawrence Erlbaum.



- Obafemi Awolowo (2008). University, Ile-Ife, Nigeria. First Monday *First Monday*, Vol.8, *No.* 2. *Peer Reviewed Journal on the Internet*. Available online at: http://www.firstmonday.dk/issues/issue8_2/Jagboro.com/asia/pk.htm
- Odede Israel (2013). Attitude of undergraduates towards educational uses of the Internet: A Case of library schools in Delta and Edo States. *Journal of Education Research and Behavioural Sciences*, Vol. 2, No.4, Pp: 044-050. Available online at http://www.apexjournal.org/JERBS
- Odell, P. M., Korgen, K. O., Schumacher, P., & Delucchi, M. (2000). Internet use among female and male college students. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.3, No.5, Pp: 855–862.
- OECD. (2005), "E-learning in tertiary education: where do we stand? *Education & Skills*, Vol. 4, No.1, Pp: 1-293.
- Offer, M., Sampson, J.P. & Watts, A.G. (2001). Technology and the Future: Strategic Implications for Higher Education Careers Services of Technically Mediated Service Delivery, Higher Education Careers Services Unit, Manchester (in press).
- Ofodu Graceful Onovughe (2012) Internet Use and Reading Habits of Higher Institution Students. *Journal of Emerging Trends in Educational Research and Policy Studies.* Vol. 3, No. 1Pp: 11-15.
- Ofosu, H B. (2001). "Heavy Internet use: a proxy for social interaction." In Dissertation Abstracts International.
- Ogedebe, P. M., Dawha, E. &Anaso, I. (2004). Computer and Information Technology: Issues and Practice, 2nd Edition. Salone Psycho– Educational Services, Maiduguri.
- Ogedebe, P.M. (2012) Internet Usage and Students Academic Performance in Nigeria Tertiary Institutions: A Case Study of University of Maiduguri. *Academic Research International*, Vol.2, No.3, Pp: 334-343.
- Oghenevwogaga Benson Adogbeji, Blessings Amina Akporhonor, (2005). The Impact of ICT (Internet) on Research and Studies: The Experience of Delta State University Students in Abraka, Nigeria, *Library Hi Tech News*, Vol. 22, No. 10, Pp: 17 21.
- Ogunsola, L.A and Aboyade, W.A. (2005). Information and Communication Technology in Nigeria: revolution or Evolution. *Journal of Social science*, Vol. 11, No. 1; Pp: 7 -14.
- Ojedokun, A. A. (2001). Internet access and usage by students of the University of Bostwana. *Africa Journal of Library, Archives and Information Sciences,* Vol.11, No.2, Pp: 97-102.
- O'Leary, Z. (2004). The essential guide to doing research, Sage, London



- Oliver R. (2006). Exploring a technology-facilitated solution to cater for advanced students in large undergraduate classes. *Journal of Computer Assisted Learning*, Vol.22, Pp: 1–12.
- Omar Alkhawaldeh (2014). Health promoting lifestyles of Jordanian university students. *International Journal of Advancing nursing Studies*, Vol.3, No.1.
- Omidian & Maleki (2013). Information-seeking behaviour on Internet: A comparison between Arts and Science Undergraduate Students in Iran.*Turkish Online Journal of Distance Education-TOJDE*, Vol. 14, No. 4, Article 12.
- Omidian, F, (2011). E-Learning: Student's Attitude towards E-Learning In Relation To Computer Self-Efficacy and Anxiety. Germany: Lap Lambert Academic Publishing.
- Ono, Hiroshi and Madeline Zavodny (2003). Gender and the Internet. *Social Science Quarterly*, Vol. 84.
- Orose Leelakulthanit (2013). Life Satisfaction of the Internet and Non-Internet Users In Thailand. *International Business & Economics Research Journal*, Vol. 12, No. 4.
- Osborne, J., Hennssy, S., (2003). Literature review in science education and the role of ICT: *Promise, problems and future directions*. NESTA Futurelab series, Bristol: NESTA Futurelab. Available online at: http://www.nestafuturelab.org/research/reviews/se01.htm.
- Osunade, O., Ojo, O. M., and Ahisu, E. V. (2009). The role of the Internet on the academic performance of students in tertiary institutions. *Journal of Engineering Research in Africa*, Vol. 1, Pp: 30–35.
- Owston, R.D. (1997). The World Wide Web: A Technology to Enhance Teaching and Learning? *Educational Researcher*, Vol.26, Pp: 27-34.
- Oyedun, G.U. (2007). Internet use in the library of Federal University of Technology, Minna: A case study. *Gateway Library Journal, Vol.* 10, No.1, Pp: 23-32.
- Ozgul Orsal, Ozlem Orsal, Alaettin Unsal and S.Sinan Ozalp (2013). Evaluation of Internet Addiction and Depression among University Students. *Journal of social and behavioural sciences*, Vol. 83, Pp: 445-454.
- Pajo, K., & Wallace, C. (2001). Barriers to the uptake of web-based technology by university teachers. *Journal of Distance Education*, Vol.16, Pp: 70–84.
- Panda, K.C and Sahu, N.K. (2003). Use of Internet in the Engineering College of Orissa: An analysis. *Conference, Mapping Technology on Libraries and People. Ahmadabad, India:* Proceedings of the 1st International Conference on Mapping Technology on Libraries and People, Pp: 619-631.
- Papacharissi, Z., & Rubin, A. M., (2000). Predictors of Internet use. Journal of Broadcasting and Electronic Media, Vol.44, Pp: 175-196.



- Papanastasiou, E.C. (2005). Factor structure of the Attitudes toward Research scale. *Statistics Education Research Journal*, Vol.4, No.1, Pp: 16-26.
- Papastergious M., Solomonidou C. (2005). Gender issues in Internet access and favourite activities among Greek high school pupils inside and outside school. *Computer. Eduacation*, Vol.44, No. 4, Pp: 377-393.
- Papert, S. (1997). The Connected Family, Bridging the Digital Generation Gap (UK, Long Street Press).
- Parahoo, A. K (1997). Nursing Research: Principles, Process & Issues, London, Macmillan Press Palgrave.Pp: 416.
- Parameshwar, S. and Patil, D.B. (2009). Use of the Internet by faculty and research scholars at Gulbarga University Library. *Library Philosophy and Practice*. Available online at: http://unllib.unl.edu/LPP/parameshwar-patil.htm
- Patrick C-H Soh, BoonHeng Teh, Young Hoe Hong, Tze San Ong and John P. Charlton (2013). Exploring Gender Difference in Malaysian Urban Adolescents Internet Usage, *Home* Vol. 18, No. 9 – 2.
- Paulo Pinheiro, Dulce Esteves and Rui Bras (2011). Evaluation of New Information Technologies Exposure on Knowledge Retention, Regarding Benefits and Characteristics of a Physical Active Life Style.
- Paulsen, M.F. (1995). An Overview of CMC and the Online Classroom in Distance Education. In Computer Mediated Communication and the Online Classroom, Volume 3: Distance Learning, eds. Z.L. Berge and M. P. Collins. Cresskill, New Jersey: Hampton Press, Pp: 31-57.
- Pavica Sheldon (2012). Profiling the non-users: Examination of life- Position indicators, sensation seeking, shyness and loneliness among users and non-users of social network sites. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 28, No. 5, Pp: 1960-1965.
- Pee, Q.T. (2009). The Relationship between Internet Addiction and Academic Performance among Students in Universiti Teknologi Malaysia. UniversitiTeknologi Malaysia: Master Thesis.
- Pelgrum, W. (2001). Obstacles to the integration of ICT in education: results from a worldwide educational assessment. *Computers and Education*, Vol.37, Pp: 163-178.
- Pelgrum, W. J., Law, N. (2003). ICT in Education around the World: Trends, Problems and Prospects UNESCO- *International Institute for Educational Planning*. Available online at: http://www.worldcatlibraries.org/wcpa/ow/02d077080fcf3210a19afeb4da09e 526.ht ml
- Penny, T. (2006). Early years. Oxford: Heinenmann Educational Publishers.



- Perry, T., Perry, L., & Hosack-Curlin. (1998). Internet use by university students: an interdisciplinary study on three campuses. *Internet Research*, Vol. 8, No. 2, Pp: 136-141.
- Peter J., Valkenburg P. M., (2006). Adolescents Internet use: Testing the disappearing digital divide versus the emerging digital differentiation approach, *Poetics*, Vol. 34, Pp: 293-305
- Peter M. Ogedebe (2012). Internet usage and students academic achievement in Nigeria tertiary institutions: A case study of University of Maiduguri. *Journal of Academic Research International*, Vol. 2, No. 3.
- Pettersson, R. (1989). Visuals for information research and practice. Englewood Cliffs, N.J.: *Educational Technology Publications*, Pp: 1-58.
- Pew Internet & American Life Project (PI & ALP). (2005b). *Teens and technology*. Washington D. C: Pew Internet & American Life Project.
- PEW Internet and American Life Project. (2000). *Tracking online life*. Available online at:

http://www.pewInternet.org/~/media//Files/Reports/2000/Report1.pdf.pdf

- Pew Internet and American Life Project. (2000a, May 10). Tracking online life: how women use the Internet to cultivate relationships with family and friends. Available online at: http://www.pewInternet.org/reports/
- Pierce, T. A. and Vaca, R. (2008). Distracted: Academic performance differences between teen users and non-users of MySpace and other communication technology. *Journal of Systemics, Cybernetics and Informatics*, Vol. 6, No. 3, Pp: 67–71.
- Plomp, Tjeerd, et al. (1996). International Encyclopaedia of Educational Technology. Cambridge University Press in United Kingdom.
- Polit, D.F., Beck, C.T., Hungler, B.P. (2001). Essentials of Nursing Research: Methods, Appraisal, and Utilisation (5th edn). Philadelphia: Lippincott.
- Pollard, J. (2007). Working with men via the Internet. In White, A. and Pettifer, M. (eds), Hazardous Waist: Tackling Male Weight Problems. *Radcliffe, Oxford,* Pp: 186–197.
- Pradeepkumar, E, I. & Prnchatham, N. (2010). A study on impact of rural college students in e-learning IN E-Learning (Nagapattinam District, Tamilnadu-India).
- Pramod, S. K. and Raju, S. (2014). Problematic Internet use and General Health Among Students. *Indian Streams Research Journal*, Vol. 4, No.6. Available online at: www.isrj.net
- Prasher, R. G. (2003). Indian libraries in IT environment. Ludhiyana.
- Preeti Mahajan (2006). Internet Use by Researchers: a Study of Panjab University, Chandigarh, *Library Philosophy and Practice*, Vol. 8, No. 2.



- Price, L. (2006). Gender differences and similarities in online courses: challenging stereotypical views of women. *Journal of Computer Assisted Learning*, Vol.22, No.5, Pp: 349-359.
- Pronovost, G. (2002). The Internet and time displacement: A Canadian Perspective. *IT & Society*, Vol.1, No.1, Pp: 44-53.
- Pruskil, S., Burgwinkel, P., Georg, W., Keil, T., & Kiessling, C. (2009). Medical students attitudes towards science and involvement in research activities: a comparative study with students from a reformed and a traditional curriculum. *Med Teach*, Vol.31, No.6, Pp: 254-9
- Pulkkinen, J. (2007). Cultural globalization and integration of ICT in education. In K. Kumpulainen (Ed.), *Educational technology*: Opportunities and challenges (Pp. 13–23). Oulu, Finland: University of Oulu.
- Qiping Shen, Jackky K. H. Chung, Dichallis, Ronnie C. T. Cheung (2007). A Comparative Study of Student Performance in Traditional Mode and Online Mode of Learning. Wiley Periodicals, Inc. Comput Appl Eng Educ Vol.15, Pp: 30-40, published online in Wiley Inter Science. Available online at: www.interscience.wiley.com
- R. Kraut, M. Patterosn, V. Lundmark, S. Keisler, T. Mukophadhyay and W. Scherlis, (1998a). Internet Paradox: a Social Technology that Reduces Social Involvement and Psychological Well-being. *American Psychologist*, Vol. 53, No.9.
- R. Kraut, M. Patterosn, V. Lundmark, S. Keisler, T. Mukophadhyay and W. Scherlis, (1998a). Internet Paradox: a Social Technology that Reduces Social Involvement and Psychological Well-being?, American Psychologist, Vol. 53, No.9.
- Rahmani. Soudeh, Lavasani. Masoud Gholamali, (2011). The Comparison of Sensation seeking and fires Big Factors of Personality between Internet Dependents and Non-Dependents *Procedia-Social ad Behavioural Sciences*, Vol.15, Pp: 1029-1033.
- Rajeev K, Ampritpal K (2004). Use of Internet by Teachers and Students in Shaheed Bhagat Singh College of Engineering and Technology: A Case Study. J. Libr. Inf. Sci. Vol. 29, 1&2, Pp: 81-94.
- Rajeev, K. And Amritpal, K. (2006). Internet Use by Teachers and Students in Engineering Colleges of Punjab, Haryana, and Himachal Pradesh States of India: An Analysis. Electronic Journal of Academic and Special Librarianship, Vol.7, No.1.
- Ramayah, T., Jantan, M. And Aafaqi, B. (2003). Internet Usage among Students of Institutions of Higher Learning: *The Role of Motivational Variables*. The



Proceedings of the 1st International Conference on Asian Academy of Applied Business Conference, Sabah, Malaysia, Pp: 10-12.

- Random House Dictionary. (2005). *Random House Webster's Unabridged Dictionary*. New York: Random House.
- Rao.S.S, (2000). Internet service providers: An Indian scenario, Online Information Review, Vol. 24, No. 4, Pp: 322-329.
- Recabarren, M., Nussbaum, M., & Leiva, C. (2008). Cultural divide and the Internet. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.24, Pp: 2917-2926.
- Rehman, Kashif-Ur- and Hunjra, Ahmed Imran and Safwan, Nadeem and Ahmad, Abrar (2010). Students attitude towards the uses of Internet. Published in: International Journal of Business and Management, Vol. 5, No. 6, Pp: 46-55.
- Rice, R. E. (2006). Influences, usage, and outcomes of Internet health information searching: Multivariate results from the Pew surveys. *International Journal* of Medical Informatics, Vol.75, No.1, Pp: 8-28.
- Richard E. Belanger, Christina Aker, Andre Berchtold, Pierre-Andre Michaud (2011). A U-Shaped Association between Intensity of Internet Use and Adolescent Health. *Journal Paediatric*, Vol. 127 No. 2, Pp. e330 -e335
- Rickert, B. (2001). Adolescent cybersurfing for health information: a new resource that crosses barriers. Archives of Pediatrics & Adolescent Medicine, Vol.155, Pp: 813-817.
- Rina Dave (2012). An Exploratory Study on Measuring Impact of Interneton Students Academic Life of S.P. University. EXCEL International Journal of Multidisciplinary Management Studies Vol.2, No. 5. Available online at: http://zenithresearch.org.in/
- RO Odunlade (2008). Internet Use among Science Undergraduate Students: A Comparative Study of Two Universities in South West Nigeria. *Journal of Information Technologist*. Vol. 5, No, 2, Pp: 133-149.
- Robbins, Janice Irene. (2001). Making connections: Adolescent girls' use of Internet. In Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University. Virginia.
- Robinson J.W. (2005). Internet use among African- American college students: An Exploratory study. Available online from ProQuest database.
- Robinson, J. P., Kestnbaum, M., Neustadtl, A., & Alvarez, A. (2002). Information technology and functional time displacement. *IT & Society*, Vol.1, No.1, Pp: 21-36.
- Robinson, J. P., Martin, S. P. (2009). Social Attitude Differences between Internet Users and Non-users. *Information, Communication and Society*, Vol. 12, No. 4, Pp: 508 – 524.



- Robinson, John P. & Alan Neustadtl & Meyer Kestnbaum (2004). Technology and Tolerance: Public Opinion Differences among Internet Users and Nonusers. *Publisher: SAGE Publications, Inc.*
- Robinson, John; Martin, Steven (2009). Social Attitude Differences between Internet Users and Non users. *Journal of information, Communication and Society*, Vol. 12, No. 4, Pp: 508-524(17).
- Robinson, M, and Robertson, S. (2010). Young mens health promotion and new information communication technologies: illuminating the issues and research agenda. *Health Promotion International*, Vol.25, No.3, Pp: 363-370.
- Rocco Servidio (2014). Exploring the effects of demographic factors, Internet usage and personality traits on Internet addiction in a sample of Italian university students. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 35, Pp: 85-92.
- Rochester, C. D. & Pradel, F. (2008). Students' perceptions and satisfaction with a Webbased human nutrition course. *American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education*, 72.
- Rodriguez, F. and Wilson, E. (2000). Are Poor Countries Losing the Information Revolution? *MfoDev Working Paper*. Washington D.C.World Bank.
- Rohlinger, D. & Brown, J. (2009). Democracy, action, and the Internet after 9/11. *American Behavioural Scientist*, Vol.53, Pp: 133-150.
- Rose, S.A., & Ferlund, P.M. (1997). Using technology for powerful social studies learning. *Social Education*, Vol.61, No. 3, Pp: 160-166.
- Rowlands, I. (2008). 'Understanding information behaviour: how do students and faculty find books? *The Journal of Academic Librarianship*, Vol. 34, No. 1 Pp: 3-15.
- Rozita Jamili Oskouei, Mohsen Askari and Phani Rajendra Prasad Sajja (2013). Perceived Internet Usage Behaviours as Predictor to Outlier Detection in Students Communities in Academic Environments. *Indian Journal of Science and Technology*, Vol .6, No. 7.
- Ryan, S., Scott, B., Freeman, H. & Patel, D. (2000). The Virtual University: The Internet and Resource-based Learning. London: Kogan Page.
- S Anasi (2006). Internet use pattern of Undergraduate students at the University of Lagos, Nigeria. *University of Dar es Salaam Library Journal* Vol. 8, No. 1&2, Pp: 1-15.
- S Arulchelvan, (2007) Pattern of Usage and Perceived Effectiveness of Internet among higher Education Students Indian. *Journal of Open Learning*, Vol. 16, No. 3.
- S. Meraz & A. Schmitz-Weiss (Eds.), *Women, men and news: Divided and disconnected in the news media landscape* (Pp: 99-116). New York: Routledge.
- Saeed, H., Asghar, M., Anwar, M., & Ramzan, M. (2000). Internet use in university libraries of Pakistan, *Online Information Review*, Vol.24, No. 2, Pp: 154-160.



- Sahin, Y. G, Balta, S. & Ercan, T. (2010). The Use of Internet Resources by University udents During Their Course Projects Elicitation: A Case Study, *The Turkish* Online Journal of Educational Technology, Vol.9, No. 2, Pp: 234-244.
- Sakina Bashir et al (2011). Internet Use among University Students: A Survey in University of the Punjab, Lahore. Department of Library and Information Science, Islamia University of Bahawalpur.
- Sakina, Bashir and Khalid, Mahmood and Farzana, Shafiq (2008). Internet Use among University Students: A Survey in University of the Punjab, Lahore. Pakistan. *Journal of library & information science*, Vol. 8, No. 9.
- Salaam, M. O. and Adegbore, A. M. (2010). Internet access and use by students of private universities in Ogun State, Nigeria. *Library Practice and Philosophy*.
- Salako, O.A., & Tiamiju, M.A. (2007). Use of search engines for research by postgraduate students of the University of Ibadan, Nigeria. *African Journal of Library, Achieves and Information Science*, Vol. 7, No.2, Pp: 03-115.
- Salaway, G., & Caruso, J.B. (2008). The ECAR study of undergraduate students and information technology, 2008.ECAR Research 17 Study 8. Boulder, Colorado: Educause Center for Applied Research.Available online at: http://net.educause.edu/ir/library/pdf/ERS0808/RS/ERS0808w.pdf.
- Salaway, G., Caruso, J. B., & Nelson, M. R. (2008). The ECAR study of undergraduate students and information technology, Boulder: Educause Center for Applied Research.
- Saleem, K., Saeed, M., & Waheed, S. A. (2014). Relationship between Cultural Variations and Students Research Preferences: A Gender Based Comparison. Sindh University Journal of Education.
- Sampath Kumar, G. Manjunath, (2013). Internet use and its impact on the academic performance of university teachers and researchers: A comparative study, Higher Education, Skills and Work-based Learning, Vol. 3, No. 3, Pp: 219 – 238.
- Samuel M.Y Ho, Tatia M.C Lee (2001) Computer usage and its relationship with adolescent lifestyle in Hong Kong. *Journal of Adolescent Health*, Vol.29, No. 4, Pp: 258-266.
- Sanders, C. E., Field, T. M., Diego, M., & Kaplan, M. (2000). The relationship of Internet use to depression and social isolation. *Adolescence*, Vol.35, No.138, Pp: 237-242.
- Sanni, M., Awoleye O. M., Egbetokun A. A., &Siyanbola W. O (2009). Harnessing the potentials of Internet technology for research and development among undergraduates in Nigeria: A case study of ObafemiAwolowo University.*International Journal of Computing and ICT Research*, Vol. 3, No. 1.



- Sati, Sadiq M., Khalid M. Al-Tawil, Shahid Ali, Hussein Ali (2002). Use and Effect of Internet in Saudi Arabia, 6th WorMulticonference on Systems, Cybernetics, and Informatics, USA.
- Scherer, K. (1997). College life online: Healthy and unhealthy Internet use. J. Coll. Student Dev., Vol.38, No.6, Pp: 655-665.
- Schmidt, J. (2003). From library to cybrary. Changing the focus of library design and service delivery. Available online at: http uq.edu.au/papers/ from library to cybrary.pdf
- Schmitt KL, Dayanim S, Matthias S. (2008). Personal homepage construction as an expression of social development. *Development Psychology*, Vol. 44, Pp: 496–506.
- Schneider, G. P., Evans, J., & Pinard, K. T. (2006). The Internet Fourth Edition-Illustrated Introductory (4th ed.). United States of America: Thomson Course Technology.
- Schrofer, M. (2007). Die schule der zukunft–connecdet schools, key account manager higher education. Cisco Switzerland. Available online at:http://www.infosocietydays.ch/ ResourceImage.aspx? raid=11144
- Schumacher, P. & Morahan-Martin, J. (2001). Gender, Internet and computer attitudes and experiences. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.17, Pp: 95–110.
- Scott E. Caplan (2007) Relations Among Loneliness, Social Anxiety, and Problematic Internet Use. *Cyber Psychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 10, No. 2, Pp: 234-242.
- Scott Hazlehurst, Yestin Johnson, Ian Sanders, (2011). What clever hominids browse: An empirical analysis of the relationship between web usage and academic performance in undergraduate students? *Proceedings of the Annual Conference of the South African Computer Lecturers Association*, Ballito, South Africa, Pp: 29-37.
- Scott, S. D., Gilmur, J., & Fielden, J. (2008). Nursing students and Internet health information. *Nurse Education Today*, 28, 993-1001.
- Scully, J. L. (2000). The Power of Social Skills in Character Development: Helping Diverse Learners Succeed. Dude Publishing Company.
- Sedigh, O. GH (1996). Sociology of youth and social issues. Jihad Daneshgahi of Mashhad: Gothenburg publication.
- Seitel, F.P. (2001). The practice of public relations. New Jersey: Prentice-Hall Inc.
- Selfhout, Maarten H.W., Susan J.T. Branje, M. Delsing, Tom F.M. ter Bogt and Wim H.J. Meeus. (2009). Different types of Internet use, depression, and social anxiety: The role of perceived friendship quality." *Journal of Adolescence*, Vol. 32 Pp : 819-833.



- Selwyn N. (2003). Apart from Technology: Understanding Peoples Non-Use of Information and Communication Technologies in Everyday Life. *Technology* in Society, Vol.25, Pp: 99-116.
- Selwyn N. (2006). Digital division or digital decision? A study of non-users and lowusers of computers. *Poetics*, Vol.34, Pp: 273-292.
- Selwyn N., (2003). Apart from Technology: Understanding Peoples Non-use of Information and Communication Technologies in Everyday Life. *Technology* in Society, Vol. 25, Pp. 99-116.
- Selwyn, N. (2007). The use of computer technology in university teaching and learning: a critical perspective. *Journal of Computer Assisted Learning*, Vol.23, Pp: 83-94.
- Selwyn, N. (2009). Faceworking: Exploring students education-related use of Facebook. *Learning, Media and Technology*, Vol.34, Pp: 157–174.
- Selwyn, Neil, Gorard, Stephen, & Furlong, John. (2005). Whose Internet is it Anyway? Exploring Adults' (Non). Use of the Internet in Everyday Life. *European Journal of Communication*, Vol. 20, Pp: 5-26.
- Severin, WJ & Tankard, JW. (2001). *Communication theories: Origins, methods and uses in mass media.* 5th edition. New York: Longman.
- Shabana Iqbal, Noreen Anjum, Marina Mubashar and Ayesha Hameed (2014). The use Internet by students of Sargodha University. *International Journal of Academic Research and Reflection*, Vol. 2, No. 2.
- Shahin, Y. G., Balta, S., & Ercan, T. (2010). The use of Internet resources by university students during their course projects elicitation: A case study. *The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol.9, No. 2, Pp: 234-244.
- Shakeel Ahmad Khan, Aqeel Ahmad Khan and Rubina Bhatti (2010). Internet Access, Use and Gratification among University Students: A Case Study of the Islamia University of Bahawalpur, Pakistan. International Electronic Journal, 32. Available online at: http://www.iclc.us/cliej/cl3
- Shamimul Islam.Mahmudul Hasan Fouj (2010). The Impact of ICT on Students Performance: A Case Study of ASA University Bangladesh. ASA University Review, Vol. 4 No. 2.
- Shapira, N.A., Goldsmith, T.G., Keck, P.E. Jr, Khosla, U.M., Mcelroy, S.L., (2000). 'Psy-Internet Addiction among Greek University Students: Demographic Associations with the Phenomenon, using the Greek version of Youngs Internet Addiction Test chiatric features of individuals with problematic Internet use, *Journal of Affective Disorders*, Vol.57, Pp: 267-272.
- Shapira, N.A., Lessig, M.C., Goldsmith, T.D., Szabo, S.T., Lazoritz, M., Gold, M.S., Stein, D.J., (2003), 'Problematic Internet use: proposed classification and diagnostic criteria, *Depression and Anxiety*, Vol. 17, Pp: 207-216.



- Sharma, R., Verma, U., Sawhney, V., Arora, S., & Kapoor, V. (2006). Trend of Internet use among medical students. JK Science: *Journal of Medical Science & Research*, Vol.8, No.2, Pp: 101-102.
- Shasaani, L. (1997), "Gender differences in computer attitudes and use among college students. *Journal of Educational Research Computing Research*, Vol. 16, Pp. 37-51.
- Shashaani, L., & Khalili, A. (2001). Gender and computers: similarities and differences in Iranian college students attitudes toward computers. *Computers & Education*, Vol.37, No.3-4, Pp: 41-51.
- Shaw, L. and L. Gant. (2002). Users divided? Exploring the gender gap in Internet use. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.5, No.6 Pp: 517-527.
- Shaw, L. H., & Gant, L. M. (2002). In defense of the Internet: The relationship between Internet communication and depression, loneliness, self-esteem, and perceived social support. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.5, No.2, Pp: 157-170.
- Shaw, L. H., & Gant, L. M. (2002). Users divided? Exploring the gender gap in Internet use. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.5, No. 6, Pp: 517–527.
- Shaw, Lindsay H. and Larry M. Gant. (2002). Users divided? Exploring the gender gap in Internet use. *Cyberpsychology and Behaviour*. Vol. 5, No. 6.
- Sheingold, K. (1991). Restructuring for learning with technology: *The potential for synergy*. Phi Delta Kappan, Vol. 73, Pp: 17–27.
- Sherman, R.C., C. End, E. Kraan, A. Cole, J. Campbell, Z. Birchmeier and J. Klausner. (2000). The Internet gender gap among college students: forgotten but not gone? *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 3, No. 5 Pp: 885-894.
- Shields, N., & Kane, J. (2011). Social and Psychological Correlates of Internet Use among College Students. Cyberpsychology: *Journal of Psychosocial Research on Cyberspace*, Vol. 5, No.1, Article 2.
- Shitta, M.B.K. (2002). The impact of information technology on vocational and technology education for self reliance. *Journal of VOC & Tech. Education*, Vol.1, No.1.
- Shu Ching Yang and Chieh-Ju Tung (2007). Comparison of Internet addicts and nonaddicts in Taiwanese high school. *Journal of Computer in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 23, No. 1, Pp: 79–96.
- Shu-Chu Sarrina Li (2013). Lifestyle orientation and adoption of Internet- related technologies in Taiwan. Telecommunications Policy, Vol. 37, No. 8, Pp: 639-650.
- Shuling, W. (2006). Investigation and analysis of current use of electronic resources in university libraries. *Library Management, Vol.* 28, No. ½ Pp: 72–88.



- Siemens, D. R., Punnen, S., Wong, J., & Kanji, N. (2010). A survey on the attitudes towards research in medical school.*BMC Medical Education*, Vol.10, No. 4. Available online at: http://www.biomedcentral.com/1472-6920/10/4.
- Silvia Wen-Yu Lee, Chin-Chung Tsai (2011). Students perceptions of collaboration, self-regulated learning, and information seeking in the context of Internet- based and traditional learning. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol. 27, No. 2, Pp: 905-914.
- Simonson. M., Smaldino, S., Albright, M., & Zvacek, S. (2006). Teaching and learning at a distance: mfoundations of distance education. New York; Prentice Hall.
- Singh AM. (2002). The Internet Strategy for Optimum Utilization in South Africa. S. Afr. J. Info. Manage. Vol. 4: Issue/ (March).
- Singh, S. (2001). Gender and the use of the Internet at home. *New Media Society*, Vol.3, No.4, Pp: 395–415.
- Sinha, Manoj Kumar. (2004). Studies on the Scenario of Internet Use Pattern of Assam University Community and Local Population of Barak Valley: A Survey. In: Planner 2004: Content Creation, Access and Management in Networked Environment. (Eds: T.A.V. Murthy et. al) Inflibnet Centre, Ahmadabad, Pp: 210-225.
- Sinha, MK. (2008). Information communication technology (ICT) and Internet awareness amongst the college and university teachers. *International Caliber*, No.6 Pp: 94–103.
- Siomos, K. E., Dafouli, E. D., Braimiotis, D. A., Mouzas, O. D., & Angelopoulos, N. V. (2008). Internet Addiction among Greek Adolescent Students. *Cyberpsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.11, Pp: 653-657.
- Sirgy, M. J., Lee, D. J., & Bae, J. (2006). Developing a measure of Internet wellbeing: Nomological (predictive) validation. *Social Indicators Research*, Vol.78, Pp: 205-249.
- Solomon, G., Allen, N.J. and Resta, P. (2003). Toward Digital Equity: Bridging the Divide in Education. Boston, MA: Pearson Education Group.
- Soloway. E. & Pryor, A. (1996). The next generation in human-computer interaction. *Communications of the ACM*, Vol. 39, No. 4, Pp: 16-18.
- Soudeh Rahmani and Masoud Gholamali Lavasani (2011). The comparison of sensation seeking and five big factors of personality between Internet dependents and non-dependents. *Procedia Social and Behavioural Sciences*, Vol. 15 Pp: 1029–1033.
- Spada, M. M., Langston, B., Nikcevic, A. V., & Moneta, G. B., (2008). The role of metacognitions in problematic Internet use. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.24, Pp: 2325-2335.



- Spennemann, D.H.R., Artkinson, J. and Cornworth, D. (2007). Sessional, weekly and diurual patterns of computer lab usage by students attending a regional university in Australia, *Computer and Education*, Vol.49, No.3, and Pp: 726-39.
- Stanley, Laura D. (2003). Beyond Access: Psychosocial Barriers to Computer Literacy. Special Issue: ICTs and Community Networking. *The Information Society:* An International Journal, Vol.19, No.5, Pp: 407-416.
- Steve Jones and Mary Madden (2002). The Internet goes to college, Available online at: http://www.pewInternet.org/PPF/r/71/report_display.asp
- Stoll, C. (1995). Silicon snake oil: Second thoughts on the information highway. New York: Doubleday.
- Stritzke, W. G. K., Nguyen, A., & Durkin, K., (2004). Shyness and computer-mediated communication: A self-presentational theory perspective. *Media Psychology*, Vol.6, No.1, Pp: 1-22.
- Subrahmanyam, K., Greenfield, P., Kraut, R., & Gross, E. (2001). The impact of computer use on childrens and adolescents development. *Applied Developmental Psychology*, Vol.22, Pp: 7-30.
- Subramaniam Mythily, Shijia Qiu, Munidasa Winslow, (2008). Prevalence and Correlates of Excessive Internet Use among Youth in Singapore. *Annals Academy of Medicine*, Vol. 37, No. 1.
- Suhail K, Bargees Z (2006). Effects of excessive Internet use on undergraduate students in Pakistan. *Cyber Psychology. Behaviour*. Vol. 9, No.3: Pp: 297-307.
- Sujatha, H.R. (2011). Analysis of Internet use in undergraduate colleges of Mangalore. DESIDOC Journal of Library and Information Technology, Vol.31, No.1, Pp: 35-40.
- Sujatha, H.R. and Mudhol, Mahesh V. (2008). Use of electronic sources at the college of Fisheries, Mangalore, India. Annals of Library and Information Studies, Volo.55, No. 3 Pp: 234-45.
- Sunday Paul (2013). Effect of Internet Browsing on Students Academic Achievement at the Senior Secondary School Level. *International Journal of Evaluation and Research in Education, (IJERE)* Vol.2, No. 3.
- Tahiroglu, A. Y., Celik, G. G., Uzel, M., Ozcan, N., & Avci, A. (2008). Internet use among Turkish adolescents. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.11, No. 5, Pp: 537–543.
- Tao Hu; Xihui Zhang; Hua, Dai; Ping, Zang (2012). An examination of gender differences among college students in their usage perceptions of the Internet. *Education and Information Technology*, Vol.17, No.3, Pp: 315-330.

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



- Tarpley, T. (2001). Children, the Internet and other new technologies. In D. G. Singer & J. L. Singer (Eds), *Handbook of children and the media* (Pp: 73-99). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Tella, A, Tella, A, Ayeni, O & Omoba, RO. 2007. Self-efficacy and use of electronic information as predictors of academic performance. *Electronic Journal of Academic and Special Librarianship*, Vol. 8, No.2 Pp: 18–21.
- Tella, A. (2007). University of Botswana undergraduates uses of the Internet: Implications on academic performance. *Journal of Educational Media* &Library Sciences, Vol.45, No.2, Pp: 161–185.
- Tella, A., & Mutala, S. M. (2008). Gender differences in computer literacy among undergraduate students at the University of Botswana: Implications for library use. *Malaysian Journal of Library & Information Science*, Vol.13, No.3, Pp: 59-76.
- Tercanlioglu, L. (2004). Pre-service EFL teachers attitude toward research. Available online at:

http://www.readingmatrix.com/conference/pp/proceedings/leyla.pdf

- Thanuskodi, S. (2010). Use of Internet and Electronic Resources for Medical Science Information: A Case Study. *Journal of Communication*, Vol.1, No.1, Pp: 37-44.
- The Star. (2009). China closes down 1,250 sites in online porn crackdown. *The Star, Malaysia*.
- The Strait Times. (2009b, 6th Sept 2009). Rise in teen sex? Blame the Internet, says experts. *The Strait Times, Singapore*.
- Thomas Babalis, Yota Xanthakou, Maria Kaila, Nektarios Stavrou (2012). Research attitude and innovative-creative thinking: Differences between undergraduate male and female students. International Conference on Education and Educational Psychology.
- Toprakci, E. (2005). The Profiles of the use of the Internet for Study Purposes among University Students. *The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*, Vol. 6, No.3, Pp: 129-144.
- Tsai, C. (2001). The interpretation construction design model for teaching science and its applications to Internet-based instruction in Taiwan. *International Journal of Education Development*, Vol.21: Pp: 401–415.
- Tsai, C. C., Lin, S. S. J., & Tsai, M. J. (2001). Developing an Internet attitude scale for high school students. *Computers & Education*, Vol. 37, No. 1, Pp: 41-51.
- Tsai, C.-C., & Lin, C.C. (2004). Taiwanese adolescents perceptions and attitudes regarding the Internet: *exploring gender differences*. *Adolescence*, Vol. 39, Pp: 725–734.



- Tsai, C.-C., & Lin, S.S.J. (2001). Analysis of attitudes toward computer networks and Internet addiction of Taiwanese adolescents. *Cyber Psychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 4, Pp: 373–376.
- Tsai, M.-J. & Tsai, C. (2010). Junior high school students Internet usage and self-e_cacy: A re-examination of the gender gap. *Computers & Education*, Vol. 54, No. 4, Pp: 1182–1192.
- Tuncer, M. & Kaysi, F. (2011). Evaluation of Internet cafes in terms of technical infrastructure, services and user propensities (The case of stanbul and Elazi cities). 2nd International Conference on New Trends in Education and Their Implications, 27-29 April 2011, Antalya-Turkey.
- Tuncer, M. Yelmaz, O. & Tan, C. (2011). Evaluation of Internet as a source of information according to the students of the department of the computer and instructional technologies. 5th International Computer & Instructional Technologies Symposium, 22-24 September 2011 Ferat University, Elaze -Turkey.
- Turcotte, Martin. 2007. Time spent with family during a typical workday, 1986 to 2005.
 Canadian Social Trends. No. 82. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 11-008-XWE. Feb. 13. Available online at:

http://www.statcan.ca/bsolc/english/bsolc?catno=11-008-X20070039574.

- Turner, S. and Farmer, M.E. (2008). Assessing of student performance in an Internetbased multimedia classroom, Proceedings of International Conference on Frontier in Education Computer Science and Computer Engineering, Las Vegas, Pp:14-17.
- Tutgun, A. & Deniz, L. (2010). Problematic Internet usage among prospective teachers. International Educational Technology Conference (IETC), Vol.2, Pp: 1226, Bogazici University, Istanbul.
- Tutgun, A. (2009). Problematic Internet Use among Prospective Teachers. Marmara University, *Unpublished Master (M.A.) Thesis*, Istanbul.
- Twigg, C.A. and Oblinger, D. (1996). The Virtual University. Washington, DC: *Report* from a Joint Educom/IBM Roundtable.
- UCLA Internet Report: (2001). Surveying the digital future: Year 2. UCLA Center for Communication Policy. University of California, Los Angeles, CA. Available online at: www.ccp.ucla.edu.
- UCLS Center for Communication Policy. (2003). UCLA Internet Project Reports: Surveying the digital future. University of California, CA. Available online at: http://www.digitalcenter.org/pdf/InternetReportYearThree.pdf
- Unagha, A. O. (2008). Information system and structure: computers, computing and networking. Port Harcourt, Nigeria: Dlaxo.



- UNESCO (2003). Developing and Using Indicators of ICT Use in Education UNESCO-International Institute for Educational Planning.
- UNESCO, (2002), Open and Distance Learning Trends, Policy and Strategy Considerations.
- UNICEF (2011). *The States of the Worlds Children*. Available online at: http://www.unicef.org.
- Unnikrishnan B, et al. (2008). Pattern of computer and Internet use among medical students in Coastal South India, *South East Asian Journal of Medical Education*, Vol. 2, No. 2, Pp: 18-24.
- Usha M.M., (2002). (Ed.), Information management in new millennium, Allied, New Delhi.
- Usta, E., Bozdo an, A.E. & Yildirim, K. (2007). Evaluation of the pre-service classroom teachers attitudes towards Internet Use. Ahi Evran University. *Kirsehir Education Faculty Journal*, Vol. 8, No.1, Pp: 209-222.
- Usun, S. (2003). Undergraduate students attitudes towards educational uses of Internet. Interactive. *Educational Multimedia*, Vol.7, Pp: 46-62. Available online at: http://www.ub.edu/multimedia/iem/down/c7/IEM_number7.pdf
- Uzunboylu, H. (2004). The Effectiveness of Web Assisted English Language Instruction on the Achievement and Attitude of the Students. World Conference on Educational Multimedia Hypermedia and Telecommunications, No. 1, Pp: 727-733.
- Valcke, M., Bonte, S., de Wever, B., and Rots, I. (2010). Internet parenting styles and the impact on Internet use of primary school children. *Computers & Education*, Vol. 55, No.2, Pp: 454–464.
- Van den Eijnden, R. M., Meerkerk, G., Vermulst, A. A., Spijkerman, R., & Engels, R.E, 2008). Online communication, compulsive Internet use, and psychosocial well-being among adolescents: A longitudinal study. *Developmental Psychology*, Vol.44, Pp; 655-665.
- Van Gorp, M.J., Boysen, P. (1997). Class Net: Managing the Virtual Classroom. International Journal of Educational Telecommunications. Special Double Issue: The www in Use in Higher Education, Vol.3 No. 2/3, Pp: 279-291.
- Vansickle, S. (2002). Tenth graders search knowledge and use of the web: Comparing skills of technical, college prep and honors students. Knowledge Quest, Vol.30, No.4, Pp: 33-37.
- Vasilis Gialamas, Kleopatra Nikolopoulou and George Koutromanos (2013). Student teachers' perceptions about the impact of Internet usage on their learning and jobs. *Journal of Computer and Education*. Vol. 62, Pp: 1-7.

Faculty of Education, University of Kashmir.



Veenhof, Ben. (2006a). The Internet: Is it changing the way Canadians spend their time? Connectedness Series. No. 13. Statistics Canada Catalogue Available online at:

http://www.statcan.ca/bsolc/english/bsolc?catno=56F0004MIE2006013

- Venable, M. A. (2010). Using Technology to Deliver Career Development Services: Supporting Todays Students in Higher Education. *The Career Development Quarterly*, Vol. 59, No. 1, Pp: 87-96.
- Verdegem, Pieter, & Verhoest, Pascal. (2009). Profiling the Non-user: Rethinking Policy Initiatives Stimulating ICT Acceptance. *Telecommunications Policy*, Vol. 33, No.10-11, Pp: 642-652.
- Vida Fallahi (2011). Effects of ICT on the youth: A study about the relationship between Internet usage and social isolation among Iranian students. *Procedia Social* and Behavioural Sciences, Vol. 15, Pp: 394–398.
- Vishwanath, Arun, & Golohaber, Gerald M. (2003). An examination of the factors contributing to adoption decisions among late-diffused technology products. *New Media & Society*, Vol.5, Pp: 547-572.
- Vogel, U. & Hinz, Ch. (2000). Zur Steigerung der Attraktivität des Ingenieurstudiums, Kleine, Bielefeld.
- Volman, M., & Van Eck, E. (2001). Gender Equity and Information Technology in Education: The Second Decade. *Review of Educational Research*, Vol.71, No.4, Pp:613–634.
- Vondracek, R. (2007). Comfort and convenience? Why students choose alternatives to the library. *Portal: Libraries and the Academy*, Vol. 7, No. 3 Pp: 277-293.
- Vyas, J. (2007). Attitude towards research among teachers in higher education-A survey. *Experiments in Education*, Vol. 35, No.9. Available online at: http://www.eie.situedurnd.org
- Wagner, D., Kozma, R. (2003). New Technologies for Literacy and Adult Education: A Global Perspective, The Education for All Initiative, World Summit on the Information Society, and Leave No Child Behind. UNESCO- International Institute for Educational Planning. Available online at:http://www.literacyonline.org/products/wagner_kozma.pdf
- Wainer, J., Dwyer, T., Dutra, R. S., Covic, A., Magalhaes, V. B., Ferreira, L. R. R. et al. (2008). Too much computer and Internet use is bad for your grades, especially if you are young and poor: Results from the 2001 Brazilian SAEB. *Computers & Education*, Vol.51, Pp: 1417-1429.
- Walker, J.P., (2006). Identifying and overcoming barriers to the successful adoption and use of wikis in collaborative knowledge management. Chapel Hill, University of North Caroline. Available online at: http://hdl.handle.net/1901/267



- Wallace, R., & Kupperman, J. (1997). On-line search in the science classroom: Benefits and possibilities. Paper presented at the AERA, Chicago.
- Wanajak, K. (2011). Internet use and its impact on secondary school students in chainmail, Thailand. This thesis is presented in fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Doctor of philosophy. Faculty of Computing, Health and Science Edith Cowan University.
- Warren, A., Brunner, D., Mair P., & Barnet, L. (1998). Technology in Teaching and Learning: An Introductory Guide. London: Kogan Page.
- Watts, A. G. (2002). The Role of Information and Communication Technologies in Integrated Career Information and Guidance Systems: A Policy Perspective. *International Journal for Educational and Vocational Guidance*, Vol.2, No. 3, Pp: 139-155.
- Weiser EB (2000). Gender Differences in Internet Use Patterns and Internet Application Preferences: A Two-Sample Comparison. *Cyber Psychology Behaviour*, Vol. 3 Pp: 167-178.
- Weiser, E. B. (2001). The functions of Internet use and their social and psychological consequences. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.4, No.6, Pp: 723-743.
- Wellman, B., & Gulia, M. (1999). Virtual communities as communities: Net surfers dont ride alone. In M.A. Smith & P. Kollock (Eds.), *Communities in cyberspace* (Pp: 167-194). New York: Routledge.
- Wellman, K. Frank (2001). Network capital in a multilevel world: Getting support from personal communities, in N. Lin, R. Burt, & K. Cook (Eds.), *Social capital*: Theory and research, Chicago.
- Wen, M. L. & Tsai, C. C. (2006). University students' perceptions of and attitudes toward (online) peer assessment. *Higher Education*, Vol.51, Pp: 27-44.
- White, P., Selwyn, N. (2011). Moving on-line? An analysis of patterns of adult Internet use in the UK, 2002-2010. In: *Information, Communication & Society*. Doi: 10.1080/1369118X.2011.611816.
- Whitty, M. T., & McLaughlin, D. (2007). Online recreation: The relationship between loneliness, Internet self-efficacy and the use of the Internet for entertainment purposes. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol.23, No.3, Pp: 1435-1446.
- Widyanto, L., Griffiths, M., (2006). Internet Addiction: A Critical Review, International Journal of Mental Health and Addiction, Vol.4, Pp: 31-51.
- Wilkinson, D., Harries, G., Thelwall, M., & Price, E. (2003). Motivations for academic Web site interlinking: Evidence for the Web as a novel source of information on informal scholarly communication. *Journal of Information Science*, Vol. 29, No. 1, Pp: 59-66.



- Williams, Cara. (2001). Connected to the Internet, still connected to life? Canadian Social Trends. No. 63. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 11-008. Winter. Available online at: http://www.statcan.ca/bsolc/english/bsolc?catno
- Williams, D & Coles, L. (2003). The Use of Research by Teachers: Information literacy, access and attitudes. Scotland: Department of Information Management, Aberdeen Business School. The Robert Gordon University.
- Williamson D A, (2008). College students online: Driving change in Internet and mobile usage, eMarketer. Available online at: www.emarketer.com/Report.aspx?emarketer_ 2000524.
- Wiske, M. S., Zodhiates, P., Wilson, B., Gordon, M., Harvey, W., Krensky, L., Lord, B., Watt, M. & Williams, K. (1988). How technology affects teaching. Cambridge, MA: *Educational Technology Center*. (ERIC Document Reproduction Service No. ED 296 706).
- Wolin, D. L, & Korgaonkar, P. (2003). Internet research: Electronic networking. Web advertising: Gender differences Applications andPolicy, Vol.13, No.5, Pp: 375-385.
- Wolin, L., & Korgaonkar, P. (2003). Web advertising: Gender differences in beliefs, attitudes and behaviour. *Internet Research*, Vol.13, No. 5, Pp: 375-385.
- Wong Su Luan, Ng Siew Fung and Hanafi Atan (2008). Gender Differences in the Usage and Attitudes toward the Internet among Student Teachers in a Public Malaysian University. *American Journal of Applied Sciences*, Vol.5, No.6, Pp: 689-697.
- Wood, D. (1995). Theory, training, and technology: Part I. Education and Training, Vol. 37, No.1, Pp: 12–16.
- World Internet Users and Population Stats (2011) World Internet Users and Population Stats. Internet Usage Statistics: the Internet big picture. Available online at: http://www.Internetworldstats.com/stats.htm
- World Wide Web (2002). The American Heritage Science Dictionary. Available online at: http://dictionary.reference.com/browse/world_wide_web
- Wu, Y. T. & Tsai, C. C. (2006). University students' Internet attitudes and Internet selfefficacy: A study at three universities in Taiwan. *Cyber Psychology & Behaviour*, Vol.9, No. Pp: 441-450.
- Wyatt S., Thomas G., Terranova T., (2003). They came, they surfed, and they went back to the beach: Conceptualizing Use and Non-Use of the Internet. Pp: 23-40, in: Woolgar S., ed., *Virtual society? Technology, Ryberhole, Reality*, NewYork, Oxford Press Inc.
- Yang, S. C., & Tung, C. J. (2007). Comparison of Internet addicts and non-addicts in Taiwanese high school. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, Vol .23, No. 1, Pp: 79–96.



- Yang, S. W. (2003). Internet Use by Preservice Teachers in Elementary Education Instruction.Ed.D Dissertation. Idaho State University.
- Yang, Y., Cho, Y.J., Mathew, S., & Worth, S. (2011). College student effort expenditure in online versus face-to-face courses: The role of gender, team learning orientation, and sense of classroom community. *Journal of Advanced Academics*, Vol. 22, No.4, Pp: 619-638.
- Yang-Sook Yoo, Ok-Hee Cho and Kyeong-Sook Cha (2013). Associations between overuse of the Internet and mental health in adolescents. *Journal of Nursing* & *Health Sciences*, Vol. 16, No. 2, Pp: 193–200.
- Yasir G. Sahin, Sabah Balta and Tuncay Ercan (2010). The use of Internet Resources by University students during their course Projects Elicitation. *The Turkish online journal of Educational Technology*, Vol.9, No.2, Pp: 234-24.
- Yavuz Erdogan, Servet Bayram and Levent Deniz (2008). Factors that influence academic achievement and attitudes in web Based Education. *International Journal of Instruction*. Vol.1, No.1. Available online at: www.e-iji.net
- Ye Liu and Xiaolan (2009) the Interaction between Chinese University Students' Computer Use and Their Attitudes toward Computer in Learning and Innovation. 5th International Conference on Foundations of Augmented Cognition. Neuroergonomics and Operational Neuroscience: Held as Part of HCI International. Pp: 620 – 629.
- Yeh, Y. C., Ko, H. C., Wu, J. Y. W., & Cheng, C. P. (2008). Gender differences in relationships of actual and virtual social support to Internet addiction mediated through depressive symptoms among college students in Taiwan. *Cyberpsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.11, Pp: 484-487.
- Young, K. & Rodgers, R. C. (1998). The relationship between depression and Internet addiction. *CyberPsychology and Behaviour*, Vol.1. Available online at: http://www.healthyplace.com/Communities/Addictions/netaddiction/articles/ cy berpsycholog.htm
- Young, K. S. (1996). Internet addiction: The emergence of a new clinical disorder. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol.1, No.3, Pp: 237–300.
- Young, K. S. (1999). Evaluation and treatment of Internet addiction. In L. Van de Creek and T. L. Jackson, editors, Innovations in Clinical Practice: A source book, Vol. 17. Professional Resource Press.
- Young, K. S., & Rogers, R. C. (1998). The Relationship between Depression and Internet Addiction. *Cyber Psychology & Behaviour*, Vol.1, No.1, Pp: 25-2.
- Young, K.S., (2004), 'Internet Addiction: A New Clinical Phenomenon and Its Consequences, *American Behavioural Scientist*, Vol.48, Pp: 402-415.



- Yousef Ahmed Eyadat, (2012). Excessive Use of the Internet and Gender: The Case for University Students in Jordan, *Information Technology: New Generations, Third International Conference on*, Pp: 886-891.
- Yu, C. S. (2011). Construction and Validation of an E-Lifestyle Instrument. *Internet Research*, Vol.21, No.3.
- Yukselturk, E., & Bulut, S. (2009). Gender differences in self-regulated online learning environment. *Educational Technology & Society*, Vol.12, No.3, Pp: 12–22.
- Yu-Qian Zhu, Li-Yueh Chen, Houn-Gee Chen, Ching-Chin Chern, (2011). How does Internet information seeking help academic performance?-The moderating and mediating roles of academic self-efficacy. *Computers & Education*, Vol. 57, No. 4, Pp: 2476-2484.
- Yusuf, M.O. (2006). Information and Communication Technologies and Education: Analyzing the Nigerian National Policy for Information Technology. *International Education Journal*, Vol. 6, No. 3, Pp. 316 – 321.
- Zainol Bidin, Zakiyah, Mohd Farid Ashraf; Hashim Faridahwati; Mohd Shamsudin (2011). Factors Influencing Students Intention to Use Internet for Academic Purposes. Society of Interdisciplinary business research (SIBR).Conference on Interdisciplinary business Research.
- Zarqa S. Ali (2011). Impact of the Internet on Relationships: Perception of Male and Female Students of Pakistan. *International Journal of Humanities and Social Science* Vol. 1 No. 21. Available online at: Online: www.iiste.org
- Zemsky, R. and Massy, W. F. (2004). Thwarted Innovation: What Happened to elearning and Why, *A Report from the Learning Alliance*, University Pennsylvania. Available online at:

http://www.irhe.upenn.edu/WeatherStation.html

- Zhang, J. & Jia, H, (2002). Survey analysis about college students Internet usage. *Chinese Journal of Medical Library and Information Science* (in Chinese, Vol.11, No. 4, Pp: 51-53.
- Zhang, Y. (2002). Comparison of Internet attitudes between industrial employees and college students. *CyberPsychology & Behaviour*, Vol. 5 Pp: 143–149.
- Zhu, Yu-Qian; Chen, Li-Yueh; Chen, Houn-Gee; Chern, Ching-Chin (2011). How Does Internet Information Seeking Help Academic Performance? The Moderating and Mediating Roles of Academic. *Computers & Education*, Vol.57, No. 4, Pp: 2476-2484.
- Zickuhr, Kathryn. (2010). Generations 2010: Pew Research Centers Internet & American Life Project. Davis, Fred D. (1989). Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, and User Acceptance of Information Technology. *MIS Quarterly*, Vol.13, Pp: 319-340.





INFORMATION BLANK

Prepared by

Syed Noor-ul-Amin Dr. Mohammad Iqbal Mattoo (Supervisor) (Investigator) *****

Researchers' Introduction letter

Dear Respondents

I solicit your cooperation in the completion of this attached Information blank. I am a Ph.D. Research Scholar of the Department of Education, University of Kashmir and am conducting research on Internet usage among university students in Kashmir. This research is carried out to comply with the requirements of my Doctoral programme. Responses expressed by you in this Information Blank will strictly be used for research purpose.

You are requested to please tick the appropriate box against each Column and fill in the space which seems relevant. Information revealed by you shall remain confidential.

Thank You

A)	Name	Gender:	Male Female
	Domicile: Rural Urban	🗋 Departi	ment
	Qualification Semester 3 rd		4 th
	Marks Obtained:Out of	Aggregate 1	Percentage (%)
B)	Do you use Internet? Yes No [
/	If yes, mention how long you have been us	sing it?	
	For last one year More than one	year 🦳	
1	For Internet-use, are you using(i)Laptop(ii)Desktop	(iii) others	

FACULTY OF EDUCATION, UNIVERSITY OF KASHMIR Srinagar, Hazratbal, J&K-190006 (India)

T. M. Regd. No. 564838 Copyright Regd. No. © A-73256/2005 Dt. 13.5.05 S. K. Bawa (Phagwara) Sumanpreet Kaur (Phagwara)	Consumable Booklet of LSS-BK (English Version)					
Fill in the following Informations –	Date					
Father's Name Teaching Experience	Sex : Male Female Designation					

INSTRUCTIONS

On the next pages there are statements pertaining to different patterns of lifestyle. Please read the statements one by one on the following pages. Each statement is followed by the five response categories, i.e., **Strongly Agree, Agree, Indifferent, Disagree, Strongly Disagree**. You put a ⊠ mark on any one alternative for each statement as your answer.

There is no right or wrong answer. Your responses will be kept confidential.

There is no time limit, but you can comfortably complete it within 15 to 20 minutes.

SCORING TABLE

Area	I	11	ш	IV	v	VI	Total Score	Life Style Status
Score								
z-Score								
Interpretation								

Estd. 1971

a:(0562) 2464926

NA TIONAL PSYCHOLOGICAL CORPORATION 4/230, KACHERI GHAT, AGRA-282 004 (INDIA)



2 Consumable Bocklet of LLS-BK

\int				RESPO	VSE		
Sr. No.	STATEMENTS	Strongly Agree	Agree	Indiffe- rent	Dis- agree	Stronly Disagree	SCORE
	AR	EAI					
1.	l like junk food.						\Box
2.	I have been on dieting.						\square
3.	I take my meals when I find time.						\square
4.	I take bath everyday even in severe winters.						\square
5.	I read books on health.						\square
6.	I often watch health oriented						
	programmes.						\square
7.	It is difficult for me to get up early in the						
	morning.						\Box
8.	I wash my hands before and after taking						
-	meals.						\square
9.	I take plenty of water, fruits and vege-	_	_	-	_		\frown
4.0	tables in a day.				Ц	L	\square
10.	I do physical exercises to maintain body	п	r-1			-	\square
44	weight.						
11.	Tregularly go for medical check up.		LJ		ш — .		
					lot	al Score	
	ARI	EA II					
1.	I study near examinations only.						\square
2.	I spend maximum time on studies.						\square
3.	I mostly bunk classes.						\square
4.	I study only selected topics for exami-						
	nation in place of whole syllabus.						\square
5.	I read reference books along with text						
	books.						\Box
6.	I want to go for higher qualification.						\square
7.	I use technology to get information.						\square
8.	I visit library daily.						
9.	I watch academic programmes on T.V.						\square
					Tot	al Score	

	3	2	1	
	Ø,	γ	λ.	λ.
	а.	2	Т	b.
2		2	2	1
	- 22	and it	-	

·····		<u></u>				·····	<i>S-BK</i> 5
Sr.				RESPO	NSE	I	
No.	STATEMENTS	Strongly Agree	Agree	Indiffe- rent	Dis- agree	Stronly Disagree	SCORE
·	AR	EAIII				L	
1.	I am confused about my aim of life.						\square
2.	I am aware of different career options						-
	available for me.						\square
3.	I have selected subjects keeping in						
	mind my career.						\square
4.	I have selected the area of education in						
	which I am interested.						\square
5.	I do regular preparation for competitive						
	examinations.						\square
6.	I am always keen to gain knowledge						\square
	related to my career.						\Box
7.	I do not watch T.V. programmes related				2		\frown
	to my career.						\Box
8.	I frequently interact with people related						\square
	to my career.						\square
9.	I often discuss my career with my peer			_			\frown
	group.						\Box
					Tota	al Score	
	AR	EA IV					
1.	Freinds circle should be of limited size.						\Box
2.	I always help my freinds in their adversities	. 🗆					
3.	I always share my things with others.						\square
4.	I frequently visit my friends.						\square
5.	I always ⊾eep in mind views of society						
	while dressing up.						\Box
6.	I enjoy every social gathering.						\square
7.	Social service is mere wastage of time.						\square
8.	I participate in social activities.						\Box
					Tot	al Score	

Consumable Booklet of LLS-BK 3



4 Consumable Booklet of LLS-BK

\square		RESPONSE					
Sr. No.	STATEMENTS	Strongly Agree	Agree	Indiffe- rent	Dis- agree	Stronly Disagree	SCORE
	AR	EAV					
1.	I update myself with new trends.						\square
2.	I always do chatting on internet.						\square
3.	Purchasing branded things are mere						
	wastage of money.						\square
4.	My choice of dress is affected by fashion						
	channel.						\square
5.	I change my vehicle with the launch of the						
	new one in the market.						\square
6.	Disco clubs should be opened in every						
	village and city.						\square
7.	I frequently read fashion magazines.						
8.	I avoid watching fashion channel.						\subseteq
9.	I am very much eager to opt new fashion.						\square
10.	Fashion shows should not be organised.						\square
11.	I prefer to adopt new fashion.						
					Tot	al Score	
	AR		-	_	_	-	\frown
1.	I maintain my family values.						\square
2.	I violate my family aspirations.		Ц	Ц	Ц		\square
3.	I do not talk about my family disputes		П				\square
4	I prefer to remain apart from my family					Ē	\equiv
4. 5	I greet my family on all occasions						
6	I spend money keeping in view my					_	
0.	family status.						\Box
7.	There is no need to discuss daily activities						
	with family.						\square
8.	I like to go on tour with my family only.						\square
9.	I celebrate festivals with my family.						\square
10.	I will prefer to leave home if I get job at						
	distant place.						
11.	Family should be respected.						
12.	I devote maximum time towards my family.						\Box
					Tot	tal Score	
@ 201	0. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any form is a violation of C	Copyright Act.	Consumab	le Booklet o	f Life Style S	Scale (LSS–вк)	Eng. Version





2 Consumable Booklet of ASTR-SVSY

\square			 F	RESPON	ISE		
Sr. No.	STATEMENTS	Strongly Agree	Agree	Undeći- ded	Dis- agree	Strongly Disagree	Score
1.	Research is merely wastage of time, efforts and money.						Ú Ú
2.	I feel comfortable to get engaged in research and scholarly activities.						
3.	Research is useful for my professional career.						\Box
4.	I try to engage in discussions about research.						\Box
5.	Research has nothing to do with my field of study or course.					•	\Box
6.	R esearch makes me nervous and anxious.					! 🗖 🗕	\Box
7.	Any recent research work is just like 'old wine in a new bottle'.					• □	\Box
8.	R esearch at any degree level enhances the chances of exploitation/harassment of research students by research supervisors.					□•	\square
9.	I feel that society gets benefited from research.					_ П	
10.	Research is very useful for every profession.						
11.	It is not possible to produce quality researches in present scenario.					•	
12.	Manipulation of data has become the key feature of present research activities in every field.					• •	\square
13.	The skills that I have acquired through research will be helpful for me in the future.						
14.	I feel that knowledge acquired through research is more useful in my life as compared to knowledge gained through reading some literature.						
	Total Score page 2						





\neg			F	RESPON	ISE		\square
Sr. No.	STATEMENTS	Strongly Agree	Agree	Undeci- ded	Dis- agree	Strongly Disagree	Score
15.	I employ research approaches in my professional as well as personal life.						
16.	Mostly, 'cut, copy and paste' technology is employed in present day research works.						•
17.	I can easily understand research reports.						\Box
18.	R esearch is highly relevant and beneficial for my life.						\Box
19.	I would love to work on a research project.						\Box
20.	I become tense when it comes to statistical analysis of research data.						•
21.	Collection of data has a demoralizing effect on the researchers.						•
22.	The relationship between researcher and research supervisor become very cordial during research process.						
23.	I am much interested in research and research related activities.						
24.	Research work does not impose any extra workload on the students.						\Box
25.	It seems like a joke to generalize the research findings obtained from a small sample to the whole population.						•
26.	Research makes us systematic and hardworking in our daily lives.						\Box
27.	I feel at ease with arithmetic and statistical computations in research.						
28.	I am confident that I can understand research terminology.						
29.	R esearch works which are carried out by government or semi-govt. departments have mostly pre-determined conclusions.			□ Total :	C Score] 🗆 page 3 🖡	•

Consumable Booklet of ASTR-svsy 3

\square	2 CONT (1		F	RESPON	ISE		
Sr. No.	STATEMENTS	Strongly Agree	Agree	Undeci- ded	Dis- agree	Strongly Disagree	Score
30.	I am aware of the steps that I have to follow in pursuing a research project.	D					
31.	Formulation of research hypothesis makes the researcher aware of intended results and thus, provides a scope for manipulation in research work.						•
32.	Conducting research is an effective means to become a successful educator or teacher.						
33.	Conducting research provides insight into various issues related to one's profession.						
34.	I find it difficult to understand the methodology of conducting research works.						•
35.	Research develops originality among individuals.	۰D					\Box
36.	It is very essential to publish the research findings in order to enhance the authenticity and acceptability of research works among academic community.						\Box
37.	Identification and selection of a suitable research problem requires a good deal of patience and logical reasoning on the part of the researcher.						
38.	I don't think that research is essential to improve the process and practice of education at any level.						•
39.	Research projects and skills should be an integral part of every post graduate course.		Ò				\Box
40.	I believe that research-oriented thinking plays an important part in our everyday life.						
41.	It is my strong belief that research requires an expert, accurate and systematic observation.						
42.	Completed research projects/works just become the property of libraries and has nothing to do with their social implications.						•
_			n a fa a star a fa a	Total	Score	page 4	
(© 201	 All rights reserved. Reproduction in any form is a Consumable Booklet of Attitude Scale Towards 	a violation of Research ()	of Copyrig ASTR-sve	ht Act. (F) English			RP

4 Consumable Booklet of ASTR-svsy

Table: Showing the identified Correlation Matrix of the Internet-users on various dimensions of Lifestyle and Attitude towards Research (N = 300)

Variables	HOLS	AOLS	COLS	SOLS	TOLS	FOLS	AGARRP	AURPC	ARRPSL	ADRRA
HOLS	*	305	.831	283	.778	.036	.239	195	328	.637
AOLS		*	326	.805	319	041	216	.507	.861	109
COLS			*	305	.779	.026	.243	175	329	.657
SOLS				*	340	087	255	.492	.812	126
TOLS					*	066	.229	096	328	.732
FOLS						*	.101	111	051	167
AGARRP							*	.015	237	007
AURPC								*	.506	157
ARRPSL									*	097
ADRRA										*

Above table shows the correlation matrix which gives the correlation coefficients between a single variable and every other variable in the investigation.

Acronyms:

(1)HOLS= Health Oriented Lifestyle. (2) AOLS=Academic Oriented Lifestyle. (3) COLS=Career Oriented Lifestyle. (4) SOLS=Social Oriented lifestyle. (5) TOLS=Trend Oriented lifestyle. (6) FOLS=Family Oriented lifestyle. (7) AGARRP=Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process. (8) AURPC=Attitude towards Usefulness of Research in Professional career. (9) ARRPSL=Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life. (10) ADRRA=Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety

1 at	(N = 300)	the Correla		of the Inter	met non-us	ers on vario	us armensio	ons of Lifestyle	and Attitud	e towards Res	earch
	Variables	HOLS	AOLS	COLS	SOLS	TOLS	FOLS	AGARRP	AURPC	ARRPSL	ADRRA
	HOLS	*	.235	.577	115	323	096	.505	079	.045	.131
	AOLS		*	.557	.507	114	.526	.283	.509	073	009
	COLS			*	.324	334	.309	.377	.311	.004	.107
	SOLS				*	275	.765	162	.724	.196	.026
	TOLS					*	453	.201	481	667	129
	FOLS						*	316	.927	.446	.043
	AGARRP							*	317	512	.036
	AURPC								*	.467	.042
	ARRPSL									*	.169
	ADRRA										*

Tables Sharring the Completion Matrix of the Internet N

Above table shows the correlation matrix which gives the correlation coefficients between a single variable and every other variable in the investigation.

Acronyms:

(1)HOLS= Health Oriented Lifestyle. (2) AOLS=Academic Oriented Lifestyle. (3) COLS=Career Oriented Lifestyle. (4) SOLS=Social Oriented lifestyle. (5) TOLS=Trend Oriented lifestyle. (6) FOLS=Family Oriented lifestyle. (7) AGARRP=Attitude towards General Aspects of Research and Research Process. (8) AURPC=Attitude towards Usefulness of Research in Professional career. (9) ARRPSL=Attitude towards Relevance of Research in Personal and Social Life. (10) ADRRA=Attitude towards Difficulties in Research and Research Anxiety